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PRELIMINARY COPY SUBJECT TO COMPLETION

Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc.
6255 Sunset Boulevard
Hollywood, CA 90028

[ 1,2014
Dear Shareholder of Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc.:

You are cordially invited to attend a special meeting of the shareholders of Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc., a
New York corporation (the Company , we , our or us ), which we will hold at our principal executive offices locatec
6255 Sunset Boulevard, 6 Floor, Hollywood, California 90028, on [ ], 2014, at 10:00 a.m. local time.

At the special meeting, holders of our common stock, par value $0.01 per share, will be asked to consider and vote
upon a proposal to adopt and approve an Agreement and Plan of Merger (as it may be amended from time to time, the
Merger Agreement ), dated as of December 18, 2013, as amended on April 14, 2014, by and among the Company,
FOHG Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ( Parent ), and FOHG Acquisition Corp., a New York
corporation and wholly owned subsidiary of Parent ( Merger Sub ). Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub
will merge with and into the Company and the separate corporate existence of Merger Sub will cease. The Company
will be the surviving corporation in the merger and will continue to be a New York corporation after the merger.

If the merger is completed, then each share of our common stock will be converted into the right to receive
$0.27 in cash (other than shares held by the Rollover Shareholders (as defined below), shares held by us or any
wholly owned subsidiary of ours and shares held in our treasury). Immediately prior to the merger, HGI Funding, LL.C
( HGI Funding ), a wholly owned subsidiary of Harbinger Group Inc., TTG Apparel, LLC ( TTG ) and Tokarz
Investments, LLC ( TKZ ), each of which is controlled by Michael Tokarz, and Fursa Alternative Strategies LLC
( Fursa ) and Arsenal Group, LLC ( Arsenal ), each of which is controlled by William F. Harley III, a member of our
Board of Directors, and Mr. Harley individually (collectively, the Rollover Shareholders ) will cause all of their shares
of our capital stock to be contributed to Parent in exchange for an increase in their equity interests in Parent. As a
result of the merger, the Company will be privately owned and will be controlled by the Rollover Shareholders
through their ownership of Parent.

The Rollover Shareholders, as a group, may be deemed to beneficially own 91,257,883 shares, or 88.7%, of our
common stock, including 63,579,204 shares that they have the right to acquire pursuant to convertible preferred stock,
warrants and options held by them.

In order to evaluate the fairness of the merger to our shareholders, the Company s Board of Directors delegated to its
lead independent, disinterested director, Milton Walters (the Lead Director ), authority to consider and negotiate the
terms and conditions of the merger with Parent and to make a recommendation to the Board of Directors. The Lead
Director, based in part on advice from his legal and financial advisors, determined that the merger and the Merger
Agreement were fair to and in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders (other than the Rollover
Shareholders and their respective affiliates and associates), and recommended that the Board of Directors approve the
merger and the Merger Agreement, and that the Company s shareholders vote for the approval of the merger and
adoption of the Merger Agreement. Based on the Lead Director s recommendation, our Board of Directors approved
the merger and the Merger Agreement. Mr. Harley, who is a Rollover Shareholder, and Thomas J. Lynch, who is our
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officer and who has received a new employment agreement which will take effect if the merger is completed and
under which he will receive equity in Parent as described in the enclosed proxy statement, recused themselves from
the deliberations.

At the special meeting, you will also be asked to approve, by non-binding, advisory vote, compensation that may
become payable to our named executive officers (as defined in Item 402 of Regulation S-K of the Exchange Act) in
connection with the merger.

Our Board of Directors (other than Messrs. Harley and Lynch) unanimously recommends that the
shareholders of the Company vote FOR the proposal to approve the merger and adopt the Merger Agreement
and FOR the non-binding, advisory proposal to approve compensation that may become payable to the
Company s named executive officers in connection with the merger. In arriving at its recommendation to approve
the merger and adopt the Merger Agreement, our Board of Directors and the Lead Director carefully considered a
number of factors that are described in the enclosed proxy statement, including that (i) the Company has not reported
an operating profit since fiscal year 2007, (ii) since that time the Company has suffered from negative working capital
and, in many years, deficit equity and (iii) no firm or economically viable offers for strategic transactions resulted
from the marketing efforts in which the Company engaged during 2012 and 2013 or from the solicitation permitted
under the Merger Agreement.

The enclosed proxy statement describes the Merger Agreement, the merger and related agreements and provides
specific information concerning the special meeting. In addition, you may obtain information about us from
documents filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. We urge you to, and you should, read the entire proxy
statement carefully, including the appendices, as well as the Schedule 13E-3 relating to the Merger Agreement the
transactions contemplated thereby, including the exhibits attached thereto, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, as they set forth the details of the Merger Agreement and other important information related to the
merger.

The merger cannot be completed unless holders of two-thirds of the aggregate voting power of the outstanding shares
of common stock vote in favor of approving the merger and adopting the Merger Agreement. Holders of common
stock as of the record date have one vote for each share of common stock owned by the shareholder as of the close of
business on the record date. Because the Rollover Shareholders beneficially hold more than two-thirds of our
outstanding shares of common stock as of the record date, they can satisfy the required vote under New York law and
the Merger Agreement to approve the merger and adopt the Merger Agreement without the affirmative vote of any of
our other shareholders.

If you sign, date and return your proxy card without indicating how you wish to vote, your proxy will be voted in
favor of the approval of the merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement and the approval of the non-binding,
advisory proposal regarding compensation that may become payable to the Company s named executive officers in
connection with the merger. If you fail to vote or submit your proxy, the effect will be that your shares will not be
counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present at the special meeting (unless you are a record
holder as of the record date, or you obtain a legal proxy from your bank, broker or other nominee, and attend the
special meeting in person) and will have the same effect as a vote against the approval of the merger and the adoption
of the Merger Agreement.

While shareholders may exercise their right to vote their shares in person, we recognize that many shareholders may
not be able to attend the special meeting. Accordingly, we have enclosed a proxy that will enable your shares to be
voted on the matters to be considered at the special meeting even if you are unable to attend. If you desire your shares
to be voted in accordance with the recommendation of our Board of Directors, you need only sign, date and return the
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proxy in the enclosed postage-paid envelope. Otherwise, please mark the proxy to indicate your voting instructions;
date and sign the proxy; and return it in the enclosed postage-paid envelope. You also may submit a proxy by using a
toll-free telephone number or the Internet. We have provided instructions on the proxy card for using these convenient
services.
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Submitting a proxy will not prevent you from voting your shares in person if you subsequently choose to attend the
special meeting.

Sincerely,
Thomas J. Lynch
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities regulatory agency has approved or
disapproved the merger, passed upon the merits or fairness of the merger or passed upon the adequacy or

accuracy of the disclosure in this document. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

This proxy statement is dated [ ], 2014 and is first being mailed to shareholders on or about [ ], 2014.
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FREDERICK S OF HOLLYWOOD GROUP INC.
6255 Sunset Boulevard
Hollywood, CA 90028

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

To the Shareholders of Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc.:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Special Meeting of the Shareholders of Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc. (the
Company , we , our or us )will be held at our principal executive offices located at 6255 Sunset Bdilevard, 6
Hollywood, California 90028, on [ ], 2014, at 10:00 a.m. local time, for the following purposes:

to consider and vote on a proposal to approve the merger and adopt the Agreement and Plan of Merger (as it may be
amended from time to time, the Merger Agreement ), dated as of December 18, 2013, as amended on April 14, 2014,
| by and among the Company, FOHG Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ( Parent ), and FOHG

" Acquisition Corp., a New York corporation and wholly owned subsidiary of Parent ( Merger Sub ), pursuant to which

the Company will be merged with and into Merger Sub, with the Company surviving as wholly owned subsidiary of

Parent;

to approve, by non-binding, advisory vote, compensation that may become payable to the Company s named
2.executive officers (as defined in Item 402 of Regulation S-K of the Exchange Act) in connection with the merger;

and

to act upon other business as may properly come before the special meeting (provided the Company does not know,
3.at a reasonable time before the special meeting, that such matters are to be presented at the meeting) or any

adjournment or postponement thereof.

The holders of record of our common stock, par value $0.01 per share ( Common Stock ), voting as a class, as of the
close of business on [ ], 2014, are entitled to notice of and to vote at the special meeting or at any adjournment thereof.
All shareholders of record are cordially invited to attend the special meeting in person. A list of our shareholders will

be available at our headquarters located at 6255 Sunset Boulevard, 6t Floor, Hollywood, California 90028, during

ordinary business hours for ten days prior to the special meeting.

On September 26, 2013, HGI Funding, LLC ( HGI Funding ), a wholly owned subsidiary of Harbinger Group Inc.,
TTG Apparel, LLC ( TTG ) and Tokarz Investments, LLC ( TKZ ), each of which is controlled by Michael Tokarz, and
Fursa Alternative Strategies LLC ( Fursa ) and Arsenal Group, LLC ( Arsenal ), each of which is controlled by William

F. Harley III, a member of the Company s Board of Directors, entered into a non-binding consortium term sheet
agreement. HGI Funding, TTG, TKZ, Fursa and Arsenal are collectively referred to herein as the Consortium
Members. Parent and Merger Sub were formed by the Consortium Members for the purpose of acquiring us pursuant

to the Merger Agreement. Under the term sheet, the Consortium Members agreed, among other things, to jointly
deliver a non-binding proposal to the Company s Board of Directors for the acquisition of all of the Company s
publicly held Common Stock in a going private transaction with the Company, and to use their commercially
reasonable efforts to work together to structure, negotiate and do all things necessary or desirable, subject to the
Company s approval, to enter into definitive agreements in respect of the transactions contemplated under the
non-binding proposal.

The Consortium Members delivered to the Board of Directors their non-binding, written proposal to acquire all of the

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 8
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outstanding shares of the Company s Common Stock that they did not directly or indirectly own on September 26,
2013. Following receipt of the Consortium Members non-binding written proposal, in order to evaluate the fairness of
the merger to our shareholders, the Company s Board of Directors delegated to its lead independent, disinterested

director, Milton Walters (the Lead Director ), authority to consider and negotiate the terms and conditions of the
merger with Parent and to make a recommendation to the Board of Directors. As a result of these considerations and
negotiations, and upon the recommendation of the Lead Director, the Board of Directors (other than Mr. Harley and
Thomas J. Lynch, for the reasons discussed below) caused the Company to enter into the Merger Agreement and is
making the recommendations to the Company s shareholders set forth herein.

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 9
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We have described the merger and the Merger Agreement in the accompanying proxy statement, which you should
read in its entirety before voting. A copy of the Merger Agreement (including the amendment thereto) is attached as
Annex A to the proxy statement.

Immediately prior to the merger, the Consortium Members and Mr. Harley (collectively, the Rollover Shareholders )
will cause all of their shares of our capital stock to be contributed to Parent in exchange for an increase in their equity
interests in Parent. As a result of the merger, the Company will be privately owned and will be controlled by the
Rollover Shareholders through their beneficial ownership of Parent. The Consortium Members and Mr. Harley, as a
group, may be deemed to beneficially own 91,257,883 shares, or approximately 88.7%, of the Company s Common
Stock, including 63,579,204 shares that they have the right to acquire pursuant to convertible preferred stock, warrants
and options held by them.

Mr. Harley, who is a Rollover Shareholder, and Mr. Lynch, who is our chief executive officer and who has received a
new employment agreement which will take effect if the merger is completed and under which he will receive equity
in Parent as described in the accompanying proxy statement, recused themselves from all discussions by the Board of
Directors relating to the merger negotiations (except to the extent their presence was specifically requested by the
Lead Director) and all deliberations by the Board of Directors with respect to the approval of the merger and adoption
of the Merger Agreement and related agreements. The Board of Directors (other than Messrs. Harley and Lynch), after
receiving the recommendation of the Lead Director, has determined that the merger is fair, advisable, and in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders (other than the Rollover Shareholders and their respective affiliates and
associates) and has adopted the Merger Agreement. The Board of Directors (other than Messrs. Harley and
Lynch) unanimously recommends that the shareholders of the Company vote FOR the proposal to approve the
merger and adopt the Merger Agreement and FOR the non-binding, advisory proposal to approve
compensation that may become payable to the Company s named executive officers in connection with the
merger. In arriving at its recommendation to approve the merger and adopt the Merger Agreement, the Board of
Directors and the Lead Director carefully considered a number of factors that are described in the accompanying
proxy statement, including that (i) the Company has not reported an operating profit since fiscal year 2007, (ii) since
that time the Company has suffered from negative working capital and, in many years, deficit equity and (iii) no firm
or economically viable offers for strategic transactions resulted from the marketing efforts in which the Company
engaged during 2012 and 2013 or from the solicitation permitted under the Merger Agreement.

Under New York law, the approval of the merger and the adoption of the Merger Agreement require the affirmative
vote of holders of two-thirds of the aggregate voting power of outstanding shares of Common Stock. The non-binding,
advisory proposal to approve compensation that may become payable to the Company s named executive officers in
connection with the merger requires the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the voting power present in person
or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon. Holders of Common Stock as of the record date have one vote for each share
of Common Stock owned by the shareholder as of the close of business on the record date.

You also may submit a proxy by using a toll-free telephone number or the Internet. We have provided instructions on
the proxy card for using these convenient services.

If you sign, date and return your proxy card without indicating how you wish to vote, your proxy will be voted in
favor of the approval of the merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement and the non-binding, advisory proposal to
approve compensation that may become payable to the Company s named executive officers in connection with the
merger. If you fail to vote or submit your proxy (unless you are a record holder as of the record date, or you obtain a
legal proxy from your bank, broker or other nominee, and you and attend the special meeting in person), the effect
will be that your shares will not be counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present at the special
meeting and will have the same effect as a vote against the approval of the merger and the adoption of the Merger

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 10
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Agreement, but will not affect the vote regarding the non-binding, advisory proposal to approve compensation that
may become payable to the Company s named executive officers in connection with the merger.
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Your proxy may be revoked at any time before the vote at the special meeting by following the procedures outlined in
the accompanying proxy statement. If you are a shareholder of record, attend the special meeting and wish to vote in
person, you may revoke your proxy and vote in person.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Thomas Rende
Secretary

Dated [ ], 2014
Hollywood, California

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT

Your vote is important, regardless of the number of shares of Common Stock you own. Whether or not you plan
to attend the special meeting, please complete, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy. You also may submit a proxy
by using a toll-free telephone number or the Internet. We have provided instructions on the proxy card for using these
convenient services. Remember, if you do not return your proxy card or vote by proxy via telephone or the Internet or
if you abstain from voting, that will have the same effect as a vote against approval of the merger and adoption of the
Merger Agreement. If you are a shareholder of record, attend the special meeting and wish to vote in person, you may
revoke your proxy and vote in person. Even if you plan to attend the special meeting in person, we request that
you complete, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy and thus ensure that your shares will be represented at
the special meeting if you are unable to attend.

If you have any questions or need assistance in voting your shares of Common Stock, please call our Secretary,
Thomas Rende, at (212) 779-8300.

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT 12
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SUMMARY TERM SHEET

This Summary Term Sheet discusses selected information contained in this proxy statement including with respect to

the Merger Agreement, as defined below, and the Merger, as defined below, and may not contain all the information

about the Merger that is important to you. We encourage you to read carefully this entire proxy statement, its annexes

and the documents referenced elsewhere in this proxy statement. The items in this Summary Term Sheet include page
references directing you to a more complete description of that topic in this proxy statement.

The Parties to the Merger Agreement

Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc.

Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc., which we refer to as the Company, we, our or us, isa New York corporati
The address of our principal executive office is 6255 Sunset Boulevard, Hollywood, California 90028.

Through our subsidiaries, we sell women s apparel and related products under our proprietary Frederick s of
Hollywood® brand. Sales are predominantly through our U.S. mall-based specialty retail stores and our catalog and
retail website at www.fredericks.com. As of April 14, 2014, we operated 96 Frederick s of Hollywood stores in 28
states and during fiscal year 2013 mailed approximately 4,300,000 catalogs. See Important Information Concerning
the Company Company Background beginning on page 94.

Additional information about the Company is contained in our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
July 27, 2013 and the amendment to the annual report attached to this proxy statement as Annexes F-1 and F-2, in our
quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended January 25, 2014 attached to this proxy statement as Annex

G and in our other public filings. See Where You Can Find Additional Information beginning on page 106.

FOHG Holdings, LLC

FOHG Holdings, LLC, which we refer to as Parent, is a Delaware limited liability company. The address of Parent s
principal executive office is 450 Park Avenue, 30t Floor, New York, NY 10022. Parent was formed solely for the
purpose of engaging in the Merger and other related transactions.

Currently, the membership interests of Parent are held by HGI Funding, LLC, or HGI Funding, TTG Apparel, LLC, or
TTG, and Tokarz Investments, LLC, or TKZ, each of which is controlled by Michael Tokarz, and Fursa Alternative
Strategies LLC, or Fursa, and Arsenal Group, LLC, or Arsenal, each of which is controlled by William F. Harley III, a
member of the Company s Board of Directors, and Mr. Harley individually. We refer to HGI Funding, TTG, TKZ,
Fursa, Arsenal and Mr. Harley collectively as the Rollover Shareholders.

HGI Funding is a Delaware limited liability company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Harbinger Group Inc., or
HGI. HGI is incorporated in Delaware and is a diversified holding company focused on obtaining controlling equity
stakes in companies that operate across a diversified set of industries. HGI Funding was formed on January 12, 2011
to manage a portion of HGI s available cash by investing in equity and debt instruments and to acquire positions in
potential acquisition targets.

TKZ is a Delaware limited liability company that was formed by Michael Tokarz in 2002 for the purpose of making
various investments. TTG is a Delaware limited liability company that was formed in 2004 by Michael Tokarz for the
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purpose of investing in the Company.

Fursa, a Delaware limited liability company, is an employee owned hedge fund sponsor. The firm invests in the public
equity and fixed income markets across the globe. The firm also invests in the alternative investments markets,
typically limiting these investments to private equity. It employs various activist strategies along with an event-driven
strategy and a distressed debt strategy while making its investments. Arsenal, a Delaware limited liability company,
was co-founded by Mr. Harley in February 2011 and created via the merger of HRK Holdings LL.C and Fursa Global
Event Driven Fund LLC, a fund previously managed by Fursa. Arsenal owns HRK Holdings LLC and HRK Industries
LLC, both of which filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Middle District of
Florida on June 27, 2012. The
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court has approved the companies hiring an investment banker to market properties they own and intend to sell in
order to emerge from bankruptcy.

Mr. Harley has been a member of the Company s Board of Directors since January 2008. He currently serves as the
chairman and chief executive officer of Arsenal. Mr. Harley is principally responsible for Arsenal s investment
decisions. Mr. Harley also is president and chief investment officer of Fursa, which he co-founded in April 1999 (as
HBYV Capital Management, LLC) and sold to Mellon Financial Corporation in July 2002 (when it was re-named
Mellon HBV Alternative Strategies LLC). Mr. Harley served as chief investment officer and chief executive officer of
Fursa from July 2002 until he repurchased it from Mellon in December 2006. Mr. Harley is principally responsible for
Fursa s investment decisions.

Immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger, the Rollover Shareholders will cause all of their shares of our

capital stock to be contributed to Parent in exchange for an increase in their equity interests in Parent. The Rollover
Shareholders, as a group, may be deemed to beneficially own 91,257,883 shares, or 88.7%, of our common stock, par

value $0.01 per share ( Common Stock ), including 63,579,204 shares that they have the right to acquire pursuant to
convertible preferred stock, warrants and options held by them. Parent has not engaged in any business other than in

connection with the transactions described in this proxy statement. For more information on Parent and the holdings

of the Rollover Shareholders, see Special Factors The Parties to the Merger beginning on page 18.

FOHG Acquisition Corp.

FOHG Acquisition Corp., which we refer to as Merger Sub, is a New York corporation. The address of Merger Sub s
principal executive office is 450 Park Avenue, 30" Floor, New York, NY 10022. Merger Sub is a wholly-owned

subsidiary of Parent and was formed solely for the purpose of engaging in the Merger and other related transactions.
Parent owns 100% of the capital stock of Merger Sub. Merger Sub has not engaged in any business other than in

connection with the transactions described in this proxy statement. See Special Factors

The Parties to the Merger
beginning on page 18.

The Merger Proposal (Page 73 and Annex A)

You are being asked to consider and vote upon the proposal to adopt the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of
December 18, 2013, as amended on April 14, 2014, by and among the Company, Parent and Merger Sub, as it may be
further amended from time to time, which we refer to as the Merger Agreement and which is attached to this proxy
statement as Annex A, and to approve the merger contemplated thereby, which we refer to as the Merger.

The Merger Agreement provides that Merger Sub will be merged with and into the Company, with the Company
surviving as a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent, and each outstanding share of our Common Stock, other than
Excluded Shares and Dissenting Shares, each as defined below, will be converted into the right to receive $0.27 in
cash, which we refer to as the merger consideration, without interest and less any required withholding taxes.
Excluded Shares are shares of our capital stock currently held by the Rollover Shareholders, shares of Common Stock
held by the Company or any wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and shares of Common Stock held in the
Company s treasury. Dissenting Shares are shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately prior to the effective
time of the Merger and which are held by a shareholder (i) who has neither voted for adoption of the Merger
Agreement and the Merger nor consented thereto in writing and (ii) who is entitled to and shall have demanded
properly in writing appraisal for such shares in accordance with Section 910 of the New York Business Corporation
Law, or NYBCL.
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Shares of our Common Stock owned by the members of our Board of Directors (other than Mr. Harley) and by the
current executive officers of the Company, Thomas J. Lynch, the Company s chairman and chief executive officer, and
Thomas Rende, the Company s chief financial officer (the Executive Officers ), will receive the same treatment in the
Merger as the shares of our Common Stock owned by the unaffiliated shareholders, as defined in Rule 13e-3 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act ), which definition excludes the Rollover
Shareholders.

On September 26, 2013, HGI Funding, TTG, TTZ, Fursa and Arsenal jointly delivered a non-binding proposal letter
to our Board of Directors for the acquisition of all of our publicly held Common Stock in a going private transaction
with us. We refer to HGI Funding, TTG, TTZ, Fursa and Arsenal as the

The Merger Proposal (Page 73 and Annex A) 22



Edgar Filing: FREDERICK'S OF HOLLYWOOD GROUP INC /NY/ - Form PRER14A

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Consortium or the Consortium Members. The Board of Directors delegated authority to Milton Walters, our lead
independent, disinterested member of our Board of Directors, who we refer to as the Lead Director, to consider and
negotiate the terms and conditions of the Merger with the Consortium Members and to make a recommendation to the
Board of Directors. The terms of the Merger, including the amount of the merger consideration, were the result of
extensive negotiations between the Lead Director and the Consortium Members. During the negotiations, the Lead
Director took over two months to analyze and evaluate the Consortium Members initial proposal and to negotiate with
the Rollover Shareholders the terms of the proposed Merger, including an increase in the merger consideration of
approximately 17% and a 50% premium to the closing price of the Company s Common Stock on September 27, 2013,
the last trading day before the announcement by the Consortium Members of their initial proposal. The merger
consideration represents an independently negotiated amount for the acquisition of the shares of our Common Stock
not already owned by the Rollover Shareholders through the proposed Merger.

The Special Meeting (Page 69)

A special meeting of our shareholders, or the Special Meeting , will be held at our principal executive offices located at
6255 Sunset Boulevard, 6 Floor, Hollywood, California 90028, on [ ], 2014, at 10:00 a.m. local time.

Record Date and Quorum (Page 69)

The holders of record of our Common Stock as of the close of business on [ ], 2014, the record date for determination
of shareholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the Special Meeting, are entitled to receive notice of and to vote at
the Special Meeting.

The presence at the Special Meeting, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority of shares of our Common
Stock outstanding on the record date will constitute a quorum, permitting the Company to conduct its business at the
Special Meeting.

Required Vote (Page 69)

For the Company to complete the Merger, under New York law and the Merger Agreement, shareholders holding at
least two-thirds of the aggregate voting power of our Common Stock outstanding at the close of business on the record
date must vote  FOR the approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement, which we refer to as the
Shareholder Approval. The Merger is not structured to require the approval of at least a majority of the unaffiliated
shareholders.

Subject to the terms of the Voting Agreement, as defined in Agreements Involving the Company s Securities;
Transactions Between the Rollover Shareholders and the Company  Agreements Involving the Company s
Securities  Voting Agreement beginning on page 87, the Rollover Shareholders have agreed to vote all shares of our
Common Stock they beneficially own (and any shares acquired by them after the date of the Voting Agreement) in
favor of approving the Merger and adopting the Merger Agreement. As of the record date, there were 39,273,254
shares of our Common Stock outstanding, of which the Rollover Shareholders own 27,678,679 shares of Common
Stock, representing in the aggregate approximately 70.5% of the issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock.
This amount excludes the 63,579,204 shares of Common Stock that the Rollover Shareholders have the right to
acquire pursuant to convertible preferred stock, warrants and options held by them. Because the Rollover Shareholders
beneficially hold more than two-thirds of our outstanding shares of Common Stock as of the record date, they can
satisfy the required vote under New York law and the Merger Agreement to approve the Merger and adopt the Merger
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Agreement without the affirmative vote of any of our other shareholders.

Despite the fact that the Rollover Shareholders can satisfy the required vote, we are soliciting proxies and furnishing a
proxy statement to shareholders for two reasons. First, we must hold a meeting because we are not permitted to take
shareholder action by less than unanimous written consent, without a shareholder meeting, pursuant to our certificate

of incorporation and Section 615(a) of the NYBCL. Second, we are soliciting proxies to give the unaffiliated
shareholders the opportunity to express their respective views of the Merger, even though their approval is not
required as a condition to the transaction.
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Except in their capacities as members of our Board of Directors and/or as the Lead Director, as applicable, no officer
or director of the Company, nor any of the Rollover Shareholders, has made any recommendation either in support of
or in opposition to the Merger or the Merger Agreement.

The directors and Executive Officers have informed the Company that as of date of this proxy statement, they intend
to vote in favor of the approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement. All references to the Board of
Directors in this proxy statement relating to the Board of Directors recommendation and/or approval and adoption of
the Merger Agreement, the related agreements and the Merger exclude Messrs. Harley and Lynch. Mr. Harley is a
Rollover Shareholder. Mr. Lynch, our chairman and chief executive officer, has received a new employment
agreement which will take effect if the Merger is completed. Under the employment agreement, he will receive an
equity interest in Parent in the form of incentive units that are part of a separate series of units from those being issued
to the Rollover Shareholders and are subject to vesting and other terms. Messrs. Harley and Lynch recused themselves
from all discussions by the Board of Directors relating to the Merger negotiations (except to the extent their presence
was specifically requested by the Lead Director) and all deliberations by the Board of Directors with respect to the
approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement and the related agreements.

Shareholders holding at least a majority of the shares of Common Stock voted at the Special Meeting must vote FOR
the non-binding, advisory proposal regarding compensation that may become payable to the Company s named
executive officers (as defined in Item 402 of Regulation S-K) in connection with the Merger (as described in  Special

Factors Interests of the Company s Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger Interests of Executive
Officers beginning on page 61), which we refer to as the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal, in order for the
proposal to be approved. Approval of the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal is not a condition to the completion
of the Merger, and the vote with respect to the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal is advisory only and will not
be binding on the Parent or the Company. Because the Rollover Shareholders beneficially hold more than a majority
of our outstanding shares of Common Stock as of the record date, they can approve or disapprove the Merger-Related
Compensation Proposal regardless of how any other shareholder votes.

Providing Voting Instructions by Proxy

If you are a shareholder of record, you may provide voting instructions by (i) submitting a proxy by telephone or via
the Internet or (ii) submitting the proxy card attached to this proxy statement. If you sign, date and return your proxy
card without indicating how you wish to vote, your proxy will be voted in favor of the approval of the Merger and
adoption of the Merger Agreement, and the approval of the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal. If you fail to vote
or return your proxy card, the effect will be that your shares will not be counted for purposes of determining whether a
quorum is present at the Special Meeting (unless you attend the special meeting in person) and will have the same
effect as a vote against the approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement, but will not affect the vote
regarding the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal.
If your shares are held by a bank, broker or other nominee on your behalf in street name , your bank, broker or other
nominee will send you instructions as to how to provide voting instructions for your shares by proxy. In accordance

with the rules of the New York Stock Exchange, banks, brokers and other nominees who hold shares of Common

Stock in street name for their customers do not have discretionary authority to vote the shares with respect to the
approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement. Accordingly, if banks, brokers or other nominees do
not receive specific voting instructions from the beneficial owner of such shares, they may not vote such shares with
respect to the approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement. Under this circumstance, a broker non
vote would arise. Broker non votes, if any, will have the same effect as a vote  AGAINST the approval of the Merger
and adoption of the Merger Agreement, but will have no effect on the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal, and
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will count for purposes of determining the presence of a quorum if the shares are being voted with respect to any
matter at the Special Meeting. For shares of Common Stock held in street name , only shares of Common Stock
affirmatively voted FOR approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement will be counted as a favorable
vote for the proposals.
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Abstentions

Abstentions will be included in the calculation of the number of shares of Common Stock represented at the Special

Meeting for purposes of determining the presence of a quorum. Abstaining from voting will have the same effect as a

vote AGAINST the proposal to approve the Merger and adopt the Merger Agreement, but are not deemed voted and
will have no effect on the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal.

Certain Effects of the Merger (Page 54)

If the Shareholder Approval is obtained and the other conditions to the closing of the Merger, which we refer to as the
Closing, are either satisfied or waived, Merger Sub will be merged with and into the Company with the Company
being the surviving corporation. Upon completion of the Merger, shares of Common Stock, other than Excluded
Shares and Dissenting Shares, will be converted into the right to receive $0.27 per share, without interest and less any
required withholding taxes. Following the completion of the Merger, the Common Stock will no longer be publicly
traded, and you will cease to have any ownership interest in the Company.

Treatment of Company Awards and Warrants (Page 74)

Each Company stock option (other than those held by Mr. Harley) that is outstanding immediately prior to the
effective time of the Merger, which we refer to as the Effective Time, whether or not vested or exercisable, as of the
Effective Time, will be cancelled. Each holder will be entitled to receive a payment, if any, in cash from the Company
(less any applicable withholding taxes) promptly following the Effective Time, equal to (a) the amount, if any, by
which $0.27 exceeds the exercise price per share with respect to the stock option, multiplied by (b) the total number of
shares of Common Stock then issuable upon the exercise of the stock option. As of the date of this proxy statement,
there are outstanding stock options to purchase 360,000 shares of Common Stock with an exercise price of less than
$0.27, which will be cancelled for an aggregate consideration of $30,900. All of the Company s other outstanding
stock options (including all of those held by the Company s directors and Executive Officers) will be cancelled for no
consideration.

Each Company share-based award other than a stock option, including restricted share awards (other than those held
by Mr. Harley), whether or not vested, as of the Effective Time, will be cancelled. Each holder will be entitled to
receive a payment, in cash from the Company (less any applicable withholding taxes) promptly following the
Effective Time, equal to (a) $0.27 per share, multiplied by (b) the total number of shares of Common Stock
constituting the award. As of the date of this proxy statement, the Company has outstanding an aggregate of 737,194
shares subject to restricted share awards, which will be cancelled in exchange for aggregate consideration of
$199,042.38. These amounts include an aggregate of 578,694 shares subject to restricted share awards held by the
Company s directors (other than Mr. Harley) and Executive Officers, which will be cancelled for aggregate

consideration of $156,247.38.

Each Company warrant (other than those held by Mr. Harley and the other Rollover Shareholders), whether or not
vested or exercisable, as of the Effective Time, will be cancelled. Each holder will be entitled to receive a payment, if
any, in cash from the Company (less any applicable withholding taxes) promptly following the Effective Time, equal

to (a) the amount, if any, by which $0.27 exceeds the exercise price per share with respect to the warrant, multiplied
by (b) the total number of shares of Common Stock then issuable upon the exercise of the warrant. However, any
Company warrant that will have no value after the Effective Time (because the warrant has an exercise price per share
that is greater than the merger consideration and, as of the Effective Time, the holder of the warrant will be entitled to
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receive, upon exercise of the warrant, only the merger consideration multiplied by the number of shares subject to the
warrant), may remain outstanding. As of the date of the proxy statement, the Company has no outstanding warrants
(other than those held by the Rollover Shareholders) with an exercise price of less than $0.27 and, accordingly, no
consideration will be paid with respect to these warrants.

Each Company stock option and restricted share award held by Mr. Harley and each warrant held by Mr. Harley and
the other Rollover Shareholders, as of the Effective Time, will be cancelled on the terms and conditions set forth in
the Rollover Agreement, as defined in Agreements Involving the Company s Securities; Transactions Between the
Rollover Shareholders and the Company  Agreements Involving the Company s Securities  Rollover Agreement

beginning on page 87.
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Conditions to the Merger (Page 83)

The obligations of the Company, Parent and Merger Sub to effect the Merger are subject to the satisfaction or waiver,
at or prior to the date of the Closing, referred to as the Closing Date , of the following mutual conditions:

the Shareholder Approval shall have been obtained; and
no court or U.S. governmental entity shall have issued an order, decree or ruling or taken any other action restraining,
enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the consummation of the Merger or the other transactions contemplated by the
Merger Agreement.
The obligation of Parent and Merger Sub to effect the Merger is subject to the satisfaction or waiver, at or prior to the
Closing Date, of the following additional conditions:

the representations and warranties of the Company set forth in the Merger Agreement, disregarding any qualifications
or limitations contained therein as to materiality or Material Adverse Effect (as such term is defined in the Merger
Agreement, as described below in  The Merger Agreement  Representations and Warranties beginning on page 75),
shall be true and correct as of the date of the Merger Agreement and as of the Closing Date as though made on and as
of the Closing Date (or, if given as a specific date, at and as of that date), except where such failures to be true and
correct, taken as a whole, have not had, and would not reasonably be expected to have, a Material Adverse Effect, and
Parent shall have received a certificate from the Company to such effect;
the Company shall have performed or complied in all material respects with all agreements and covenants required to
be performed by it under the Merger Agreement at or prior to the Closing Date, and Parent shall have received a
certificate from the Company to such effect;
since July 27, 2013, there shall not have been any, or a worsening of any, states of facts, events, changes, effects,
developments, conditions or occurrences that, when taken as a whole, have had or would reasonably be expected to
have a Material Adverse Effect;
Parent shall have received a certification from the Company to the effect that the Company is not (and was not at any
time during the five-year period ending on the Closing Date) a United States real property holding corporation within
the meaning of the Internal Revenue Code; and
the aggregate number of Dissenting Shares shall not equal or exceed 10% of the issued and outstanding shares of our
Common Stock immediately prior to the Effective Time.

The obligation of the Company to effect the Merger is subject to the satisfaction or waiver, at or prior to the Closing

Date, of the following additional conditions:

the representations and warranties of Merger Sub and Parent set forth in the Merger Agreement, in each case, made as
if none of such representations and warranties contained any qualifications or limitations as to materiality or a Parent
Material Adverse Effect (as such term is defined in the Merger Agreement, as described below in The Merger
Agreement Representations and Warranties beginning on page 75), shall be true and correct, in each case, as of the
date of the Merger Agreement and as of the Closing Date as though made on and as of the Closing Date (except to the
extent that any such representation and warranty speaks as of another date), except where the failure of any such
representation and warranty to be true and correct as so made, individually or in the aggregate with all such failures,
has not had and could not reasonably be expected to have a Parent Material Adverse Effect, and the Company shall
have received a certificate from Parent to such effect;

each of Merger Sub and Parent shall have performed or complied in all material respects with all agreements and
covenants required to be performed by it under the Merger Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements at or prior to the
Closing Date, and the Company shall have received a certificate from Parent to such effect; and

each of the Ancillary Agreements shall have been executed and delivered by each party thereto (other than the
Company) and shall be in full force and effect.

Conditions to the Merger (Page 83) 29



Edgar Filing: FREDERICK'S OF HOLLYWOOD GROUP INC /NY/ - Form PRER14A

Conditions to the Merger (Page 83)

30



Edgar Filing: FREDERICK'S OF HOLLYWOOD GROUP INC /NY/ - Form PRER14A

TABLE OF CONTENTS

For the purposes of this proxy statement, Ancillary Agreements refers collectively to the Voting Agreement, the
Rollover Agreement and the Purchase Agreement, as defined in Agreements Involving the Company s Securities;
Transactions Between the Rollover Shareholders and the Company  Agreements Involving the Company s Securities
beginning on page 87.

When the Merger Will be Completed

We anticipate completing the Merger during our fourth fiscal quarter of 2014, which ends on July 26, 2014, subject to
receipt of the Shareholder Approval and the satisfaction of the other conditions to Closing.

Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of the Lead Director
and of the Board of Directors; Fairness of the Merger (Page 35)

The Board of Directors (other than Messrs. Harley and Lynch), based upon the recommendation of the Lead Director,
unanimously recommends that the shareholders of the Company vote FOR the proposal to approve the Merger and
adopt the Merger Agreement. The Lead Director s reasons for the Merger included:

the Company s precarious financial condition and deteriorating financial performance, and the uncertainty that the
Company will be able to effect changes to its operations to improve its financial performance;
the significant expense of remaining a public company;
all discussions with respect to the proposals for strategic transactions made during the Allen & Company LLC, or
Allen & Co., marketing process had terminated by the time the Series B Preferred Stock transaction was completed
because none of the proposals resulted in any firm or economically viable offers that would have produced any value
for the unaffiliated shareholders;
the Company had not received any other proposals since the announcement of the Consortium Members initial
proposal;
the Lead Director s determination that the merger consideration of $0.27 per share to be received by the common
shareholders (other than the Rollover Shareholders, Parent and any of their respective affiliates or associates):
was more favorable to the unaffiliated shareholders of the Company than the potential value that might
result from the Company s only other alternative of remaining a stand-alone public company, as the
Company s financial condition continued to deteriorate because of ongoing operating losses;
was the highest consideration that could be obtained at the time;
Jrepresents a 50% premium to the market price of the Common Stock on the day prior to the announcement of the
Consortium Members initial proposal; and
was, in the opinion of Cassel Salpeter & Co., LLC rendered to the Lead Director on December 18, 2013, fair, from a
ofinancial point of view as of such date to the holders of the Common Stock other than the Rollover Shareholders,
Parent and any of their respective affiliates or associates (which opinion was subject to the assumptions,
qualifications and limitations set forth in such opinion);
the terms of the Merger Agreement were negotiated to include that the merger consideration is all cash and that
procedural safeguards were employed;

o

the absence of regulatory approvals; and
the existence of financing for the Merger.
For a complete description of the reasons considered by the Lead Director and the Board of Directors, see Special
Factors Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of the Lead Director and of the Board of Directors; Fairness of
the Merger beginning on page 35.
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Opinion of the Lead Director s Financial Advisor (Page 41 and
Annex B)

Cassel Salpeter & Co., LLC, or Cassel Salpeter, an investment banking firm, rendered its oral opinion to the Lead
Director on December 18, 2013 (which was subsequently confirmed in writing by delivery of Cassel Salpeter s written
opinion dated the same date) as to, as of December 18, 2013, the fairness, from a financial point of view, to the
holders of Common Stock (other than the Rollover Shareholders, Parent and any of their respective affiliates or
associates) of the merger consideration to be received by such holders in the Merger pursuant to the Merger
Agreement. We refer to the holders of our Common Stock other than the Rollover Shareholders and any of their
respective affiliates or associates as the Public Shareholders. The Public Shareholders include our directors (other than
Mr. Harley) and our Executive Officers.

The opinion was provided for the use and benefit of the Lead Director (in his capacity as such) and with the consent of
the Lead Director, the members of the Board (in their capacity as such) in connection with the Lead Director s and, as
applicable, the Board s evaluation of the Merger and only addressed, as of the date of the opinion, the fairness, from a

financial point of view, to the Public Shareholders of the merger consideration to be received by such holders in the
Merger pursuant to the Merger Agreement and did not address any other aspect or implication of the Merger or the
Merger Agreement. No opinion or view was expressed as to the relative merits of the Merger as compared to any
alternative transaction or business strategy that might exist for the Company, or the merits of the underlying decision
by the Lead Director, the Board or the Company to engage in or consummate the Merger. The summary of Cassel
Salpeter s opinion in this proxy statement is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the written opinion.
The written opinion is included as Annex B to this proxy statement. It sets forth the procedures followed, assumptions
made, qualifications and limitations on the review undertaken and other matters considered by Cassel Salpeter in
preparing its opinion. However, neither Cassel Salpeter s written opinion nor the summary of its opinion and the
related analyses set forth in this proxy statement are intended to be, and do not constitute, advice or a recommendation
to any shareholder or any other security holder as to how such holder should vote or act with respect to any matter
relating to the Merger or otherwise.

Purpose and Reasons of the Rollover Shareholders, Parent and
Merger Sub for the Merger (Page 49)

For the Rollover Shareholders, Parent and Merger Sub, the purposes and reasons for the Merger are:

to operate the Company as a privately-held companys;
to afford the Company greater operating flexibility as a privately-held company, allowing management to concentrate
on long-term growth and to reduce its focus on the quarter-to-quarter performance often emphasized by the public

markets;
to enable the Company to use in its operations those resources that would otherwise be expended in

complying with requirements applicable to public companies; and
to allow the Rollover Shareholders, Parent and Merger Sub to benefit from any future earnings and growth of the
Company after the Common Stock ceases to be publicly traded.
For a full description of the purpose and reasons of the Rollover Shareholders, Parent and Merger Sub for the Merger,
Purpose and Reasons of Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Shareholders for the Merger

see Special Factors
beginning on page 49.
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Positions of the Rollover Shareholders, Parent, Merger Sub,
HGl, Philip Falcone and Michael Tokarz as to the Fairness of the
Merger (Page 50 and Page 53)
The Rollover Shareholders, Parent, Merger Sub, HGI, Philip Falcone and Michael Tokarz believe that the Merger is
substantively and procedurally fair to the Company s shareholders (other than the Rollover Shareholders, Parent and
any of their respective affiliates or associates). See Special Factors Positions of the Rollover Shareholders as to the

Fairness of the Merger beginning on page 50 and Special Factors Positions of the Parent, Merger Sub, HGI, Philip
Falcone and Michael Tokarz as to the Fairness of the Merger beginning on page 33.

Financing (Page 58)

The Company and Parent estimate that the total financing required to complete the Merger and related transactions
and pay related fees and expenses will be approximately $25,230,585, which consists of
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$21,209,150 in rollover equity, $3,161,435 in merger consideration payable in cash to the Public Shareholders and
holders of Company stock options and an estimated $860,000 in fees and expenses. The Company and Parent expect
this amount to be provided through a combination of (i) the rollover of Common Stock, Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock by the Rollover Shareholders and (ii) debt financing (up to
$6,000,000 of which may be used for the Merger), which is available to us under our existing credit facility with Salus
CLO 2012-1, Ltd., or Salus CLO, and Salus Capital Partners, LLC, or Salus. We refer to Salus CLO and Salus
collectively as the Lenders.

Interests of the Company s Directors and Executive Officers in
the Merger (Page 60)

In considering the recommendation of the Lead Director and the Board of Directors with respect to the Merger
Agreement, you should be aware that some of the Company s directors and Executive Officers have interests in the
Merger that are different from, or in addition to, the interests of the Company s unaffiliated shareholders generally.

These interests include, among others:

if the Merger is completed, the Company will be 100% beneficially owned by the Rollover Shareholders, including
Mr. Harley, a member of our Board of Directors, and by Mr. Lynch, our chief executive officer, upon his receipt of an
equity interest in Parent as described below, including any permitted assignee or designee of the foregoing;
Thomas J. Lynch, our chairman and chief executive officer, has entered into a new employment agreement, which
was negotiated after the Lead Director negotiated the merger consideration of $0.27 per share in cash. Under the new
employment agreement, which will take effect if the Merger is completed, Mr. Lynch will receive an equity interest in
Parent in the form of incentive units that are part of a separate series of units from those being issued to the Rollover
Shareholders and are subject to vesting and other terms, as discussed in Interests of the Company s Directors and
Executive Officers in the Merger Interests of Executive Officers beginning on page 61;
Thomas Rende, our chief financial officer, will receive certain change in control payments under his employment
agreement, if he is terminated without cause or resigns for good reason (each as defined in his employment
agreement) after the Merger;
the treatment of Company equity awards in the Merger, including cash payments with respect to Company restricted
share awards (other than those held by Mr. Harley), whether or not vested,;
Peter Cole and William F. Harley III, each a member of our Board of Directors, became members of the board of
managers of Parent on the date the Merger Agreement was executed. Currently, members of the board of managers of
Parent receive no cash fees or equity awards for their service;
indemnification of the officers and directors following the Effective Time and the purchase of a fully-paid,
non-cancellable tail policy under the Company s existing directors and officers insurance policy that has an effective
term of six years from the Effective Time; and
other interests discussed in  Special Factors Interests of the Company s Directors and Executive Officers in the
Merger beginning on page 60.
The Lead Director and the Board of Directors were aware of the different or additional interests described in this
proxy statement and considered these interests along with other matters in approving the Merger Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereby, including the Merger.

Material United States Federal Income Tax Considerations (Page
63)
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The receipt of cash in the Merger will generally be a taxable transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes. If you
are a U.S. holder for U.S. federal income tax purposes, your receipt of cash in exchange for your shares of Common
Stock will generally cause you to recognize a gain or loss. The amount of gain or loss will equal the difference, if any,
between the cash you receive in the Merger and your adjusted cost basis in your shares. If you are a non-U.S. holder,
you generally will not be subject to United States federal income tax unless you have certain connections to the United
States. You should consult your tax advisor for a full understanding of the tax consequences of the Merger in your
particular circumstances.
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Anticipated Accounting Treatment of the Merger (Page 65)

The Company, as the surviving corporation, will account for the Merger as a business combination using the
acquisition method of accounting for financial accounting purposes, whereby the consideration transferred will be
allocated to the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed following FASB Accounting Standards
Codification Topic 805, Business Combinations.

Dissenters Rights (Page 102)

Sections 623 and 910 of the NYBCL provide that if the Merger is consummated, holders of shares of our Common
Stock entitled to vote on the approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement who object to such actions
in writing prior to or at the Special Meeting, but before the vote, and who follow the procedures specified in Section
623 (as summarized in Dissenters Rights beginning on page 102) will have the right to receive cash payment of the
fair value of their shares of Common Stock if the proposed Merger is completed. The express procedures of Section
623 must be followed precisely; if they are not, holders of shares of our Common Stock will lose their right to dissent.
As described more fully below, such fair value would potentially be determined in judicial proceedings, the result of
which cannot be predicted. We cannot assure you that holders of shares of our Common Stock exercising dissenters
rights will receive consideration equal to or greater than the merger consideration.

Limited Solicitation (Page 80)

Generally, under the Merger Agreement, we may not solicit alternative Takeover Proposals (as defined in the Merger
Agreement and as described below in  The Merger Agreement Other Covenants and Agreements — Limited
Solicitation beginning on page 80), but we may engage in a limited solicitation of certain designated parties that were
agreed upon among Parent, Merger Sub and the Company as a result of the negotiations of the Merger Agreement by
the Lead Director.

We will, and will direct each of our representatives to, immediately cease any discussions, negotiations, or
communications with any party, except the designated parties, with respect to any Takeover Proposal. The Company
shall not, nor shall it authorize or permit any of its representatives to (and shall use its reasonable best efforts to cause

such persons not to), among other things, directly or indirectly:

except with respect to the designated parties, initiate, induce, solicit, knowingly facilitate or encourage any inquiry or
the making, submission or announcement of any proposal that constitutes or could reasonably be expected to lead to a
Takeover Proposal;

approve, adopt or recommend (or propose to do so) any Takeover Proposal or enter into any letter of intent,
memorandum of understanding, agreement, arrangement or understanding relating to, or that could reasonably be
expected to lead to, any Takeover Proposal;

enter into any agreement or agreement in principle requiring the Company to abandon, terminate or fail to
consummate the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement or breach its obligations
thereunder, or propose or agree to do any of the foregoing;

except with respect to the designated parties, fail to enforce, or grant any waiver under, any standstill or similar
agreement with any person; or

except with respect to the designated parties, engage in, continue or otherwise participate in any discussions or
negotiations regarding, furnish to any person any information or data with respect to the Company in connection with
or in response to, or otherwise cooperate with or take any other action to facilitate any proposal that constitutes, or
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could reasonably be expected to lead to, any Takeover Proposal or requires the Company to abandon, terminate or fail
to consummate the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement.

However, prior to the receipt of the Shareholder Approval, the Company or the Lead Director may, in response to a
bona fide written Takeover Proposal that did not result from a breach of the above paragraph, contact the party that
submitted such Takeover Proposal to clarify the terms and conditions thereof and, subject to compliance with the
provisions outlined in subsequent paragraphs below and provided that the Lead Director determines in good faith,
after consultation with its outside legal counsel and financial advisors, that
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such Takeover Proposal constitutes or could reasonably be expected to lead to a Superior Proposal (as such term is
defined in the Merger Agreement, as described in The Merger Agreement  Other Covenants and
Agreements Limited Solicitation beginning on page 80):

furnish information or data with respect to the Company or any of its subsidiaries to the person making such Takeover
Proposal and its representatives pursuant to a confidentiality agreement, provided that all such information provided
has previously been provided to Parent or is provided to Parent prior to or concurrently with the time it is provided to
such person; and

engage in, continue or otherwise participate in discussions or negotiations regarding, and otherwise cooperate with or
take any other action to facilitate, such Takeover Proposal.

As promptly as practical and in any event within one business day of the receipt by the Company of any Takeover
Proposal or any inquiry with respect to, or that could reasonably be expected to lead to, any Takeover Proposal, the
Company will provide notice to Parent of such Takeover Proposal or inquiry. The notice will include the identity of
the person making the Takeover Proposal or inquiry and the material terms and conditions of the Takeover Proposal

or inquiry. The Company will keep Parent reasonably informed on a current basis of the status of the Takeover

Proposal, including any material changes to its terms and conditions. The Company is required to provide Parent,

within one business day after receipt, with copies of all written communications, other written materials and
summaries of all other communications sent or provided to or by the Company and its representatives in connection
with any Takeover Proposal.

The Lead Director will promptly consider in good faith any alteration of the terms of the Merger Agreement or the
Merger proposed by Parent in response to any Takeover Proposal.

Prior to the Company receiving the Shareholder Approval, the Lead Director may, in response to a Superior Proposal,
effect a change in the Company s recommendation that the shareholders approve the Merger, which we refer to as a
Change in the Company Recommendation, or approve and enter into any agreement relating to a Superior Proposal,
provided that the Lead Director determines in good faith that the failure to do so would constitute a breach of its
fiduciary duties to the shareholders of the Company. At least five business days prior to effecting a Change in the
Company Recommendation or approving and entering into an agreement relating to a Superior Proposal, the Lead
Director will provide written notice to Parent of his intention to make a Change in the Company Recommendation or
enter into such agreement. The notice shall include the reasonable details regarding the cause for, and nature of, the
Change in the Company Recommendation or the entering into such agreement. In addition, the Lead Director may not
effect the Change in the Company Recommendation or approve and enter into an agreement relating to a Superior
Proposal unless Parent does not make, within five business days of receipt of such notice, an offer that the Lead
Director determines, in good faith after consultation with his legal and financial advisors, results in the applicable
Takeover Proposal no longer being a Superior Proposal.

As described in  The Merger Agreement  Other Covenants and Agreements  Limited Solicitation beginning on page
80, nothing in the Merger Agreement will prohibit the Company, the Board of Directors or the Lead Director from
complying with securities laws in respect of any Takeover Proposal, including making any disclosure to the
shareholders of the Company. However, any public disclosure by the Company relating to a Takeover Proposal shall
be deemed to be a Change in the Company Recommendation unless the Board of Directors expressly publicly
reaffirms its approval of or recommendation to approve the Merger and adopt the Merger Agreement in such
disclosure, or in the case of a stop, look and listen or similar communication, in a subsequent disclosure.

Other than as otherwise described in The Merger Agreement Other Covenants and Agreements  Limited
Solicitation beginning on page 80, neither the Board of Directors nor any committee thereof nor the Lead Director

will, directly or indirectly, effect a Change in the Company Recommendation, take any formal action or make any
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recommendation or public statement in connection with a tender offer or exchange offer other than a recommendation
against such offer or a temporary stop, look and listen communication or approve any agreement, arrangement or
understanding relating to, or that may reasonably be expected to lead to, any Takeover Proposal.
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Termination (Page 83)

The Merger Agreement may be terminated and the transactions contemplated thereby may be abandoned at any time
prior to the Effective Time, whether prior to or after receipt of the Shareholder Approval:

by mutual written consent of Parent and the Company (acting at the direction of the Lead Director);
by either Parent or the Company (with the prior approval of the Lead Director), if:
the Merger shall not have been consummated by June 15, 2014, which we refer to as the Termination Date, provided
othat the right to terminate the Merger Agreement pursuant to this provision is not available to any party whose failure
to perform any of its obligations under the Merger Agreement has been the primary cause of the failure of the Merger
to be consummated by the Termination Date;
a governmental entity of competent jurisdiction takes any action (which the party seeking to terminate the Merger
Agreement shall have used its reasonable best efforts to resist, resolve, annul, quash or lift, as applicable)
opermanently restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the Merger and such action shall have become final and
non-appealable, provided that the right to terminate the Merger Agreement pursuant to this provision shall not be
available to any party whose failure to perform any of its obligations under the Merger Agreement has been the
primary cause of any such action; or
othe Shareholder Approval shall not have been obtained at the Special Meeting or any adjournment or postponement
thereof;
by Parent, if:
the Company shall have breached or failed to perform in any material respect any of its representations, warranties,
covenants or agreements contained in the Merger Agreement, which breach or failure to perform is incapable of
being cured by the Company prior to the Termination Date or if capable of being cured, is not cured within 30 days
Jfollowing receipt by the Company of written notice from Parent, and which would result in a failure of any Parent
and Merger Sub condition to effect the Merger, as described in The Merger Agreement — Conditions to the Merger
beginning on page 83, provided that Parent s right to terminate the Merger Agreement pursuant to this provision shall
not be available if Parent or Merger Sub is then in material breach of any of its representations, warranties, covenants
or agreements under the Merger Agreement; or
° a Change in the Company Recommendation shall have occurred;
by the Company (with the prior approval of the Lead Director), if:
Parent or Merger Sub shall have breached or failed to perform in any material respect any of its representations,
warranties, covenants or agreements contained in the Merger Agreement, which breach or failure to perform is
incapable of being cured by Parent or Merger Sub prior to the Termination Date or if capable of being cured, is not
ocured within 30 days following receipt by Parent of written notice from the Company, and which would result in a
failure of any Company condition to effect the Merger, as described in The Merger Agreement Conditions to the
Merger beginning on page 83, provided that the Company s right to terminate the Merger Agreement pursuant to this
provision shall not be available if the Company is then in material breach of any of its representations, warranties,
covenants or agreements under the Merger Agreement; or
the Board of Directors, upon the recommendation of the Lead Director, causes the Company to enter into any
agreement related to a Superior Proposal, provided that the Company has complied in all material respects with the
°provisions in the Merger Agreement relating to solicitation of Takeover Proposals, including the notice provisions
therein, as summarized in The Merger Agreement Other Covenants and Agreements  Limited Solicitation
beginning on page 80.
12
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The Merger Agreement provides that, if the Company terminates the Merger Agreement because the Board of
Directors, upon recommendation of the Lead Director, causes the Company to enter into an agreement related to a
Superior Proposal, the Company is obligated to reimburse Parent for its expenses (not to exceed $300,000 in the
aggregate) and pay Parent a termination fee of $300,000. The Merger Agreement provides further that, if the
Company terminates the Merger Agreement because Parent or Merger Sub breached or failed to perform in any
material respect any of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements contained in the Merger Agreement
and (i) such breach was material and knowing, willful or intentional and (ii) at the time of such termination, the

Company is then ready, willing and able to consummate the Merger and the conditions to Parent and Merger Sub s
obligations under the Merger Agreement have been satisfied or waived, Parent is obligated to reimburse the Company
for its expenses (not to exceed $300,000 in the aggregate) and pay the Company a termination fee of $300,000. If the

Company terminates the Merger Agreement because Parent or Merger Sub breached or failed to perform in any
material respect any of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements contained in the Merger Agreement in
circumstances other than those set forth in the preceding sentence, Parent will reimburse the Company for its expenses
(not to exceed $300,000 in the aggregate).

Litigation (Page 66)

Between January 24 and 31, 2014, three purported shareholders of the Company filed putative class action lawsuits in
New York State Supreme Court challenging the Merger. These actions are: Bruce H. Paul et al., v. Frederick s of
Hollywood Group Inc., et al., Index No. 650252/2014 (N.Y. Sup. Ct. Jan. 24, 2014); David Strasenburgh v.
Frederick s of Hollywood Group In., et al., Index No. 650294/2014 (N.Y. Sup. Ct. Jan. 28, 2014); and Stephen
Dworkin v. Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc., et al., Index No. 650356/2014 (N.Y. Sup. Ct. Jan. 31, 2014). On
March 6, 2014, the parties to those lawsuits submitted to the court a stipulation and proposed order that would
consolidate all three actions into a single action captioned In re Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc. Shareholder

Litigation, Index No. 650252/2014, and would appoint two of the five firms involved as co-lead plaintiffs counsel and
the other three firms as the executive committee. The proposed consolidation order also provided that the amended
complaint filed Bruce H. Paul, et al, v. Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc., et al. on February 11, 2014 would be

the operative complaint in the consolidated action. The court has not yet entered the proposed consolidation order. The
consolidated amended complaint alleges that the preliminary proxy filed by the Company contained material
misstatements and omissions and that the members of the Board of Directors breached their fiduciary duty to
maximize shareholder value by pursuing the Merger through a flawed process and for inadequate consideration. The
complaint is more fully described in Special Factors Litigation beginning on page 53. Each of the defendants denies
any allegations of wrongdoing and believes that the plaintiffs claims are without merit. On March 14, 2014, after
settlement discussions between plaintiffs counsel and counsel for the Company, the parties agreed to resolve the
litigation and permit the Merger to proceed as contemplated. The settlement provides, among other things, that certain
agreed supplemental and/or modified disclosures be included in this proxy statement. The settlement was subject to
confirmatory discovery by the plaintiffs, which was completed on March 31, 2014, and is now subject to court
approval.

13
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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE SPECIAL
MEETING AND THE MERGER

The following questions and answers address briefly some questions you may have regarding the Special Meeting, the
Merger Agreement and the Merger. These questions and answers may not address all questions that may be important
to you as a shareholder of the Company. Please refer to the more detailed information contained elsewhere in this
proxy statement, the annexes to this proxy statement and the documents referred to in this proxy statement.

Q: What is the proposed transaction?

A: The proposed transaction is the Merger of Merger Sub with and into the Company pursuant to the Merger
Agreement, with the Company surviving as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Parent. Parent is an entity formed by the
Consortium Members for the purposes of acquiring us in the proposed transaction. The Rollover Shareholders hold
100% of the outstanding equity of Parent. Following the Effective Time, the Company will be privately held by the

Rollover Shareholders (and by Mr. Lynch, upon his receipt of an equity interest in Parent, pursuant to his new

employment agreement, in the form of incentive units that are part of a separate series of units from those being issued
to the Rollover Shareholders and are subject to vesting and other terms). See The Merger Agreement beginning on
page 73.

Q: What will I receive in the Merger?

A: If the Merger is completed, you will be entitled to receive $0.27 in cash, without interest and less any required
withholding taxes, for each share of Common Stock that you own. For example, if you own 100 shares of Common
Stock, you will be entitled to receive $27.00 in cash in exchange for your shares of Common Stock, less any required
withholding taxes. You will not be entitled to receive shares in the surviving corporation. Shares of Common Stock
owned by the members of our Board of Directors (other than Mr. Harley) and by our Executive Officers will receive
the same treatment in the Merger as the shares of common stock owned by the unaffiliated shareholders.

Q: Where and when is the Special Meeting?

A: The Special Meeting will take place at our principal executive offices located at 6255 Sunset Boulevard, 6t Floor,
Hollywood, California 90028, on [ ], 2014, starting at 10:00 a.m. local time.

Q: What matters will be voted on at the Special Meeting?
A: You are being asked to consider and vote on the following proposals:

to approve the Merger and adopt the Merger Agreement;
to approve the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal; and
to act upon other business that may properly come before the Special Meeting (provided the Company does not know,
at a reasonable time before the Special Meeting, that such matters are to be presented at the meeting) or any
adjournment or postponement thereof.

Q: What vote of our shareholders is required to approve the Merger and adopt the Merger Agreement?

A: For the Company to complete the Merger, under New York law, shareholders holding at least two-thirds of the
aggregate voting power of the Common Stock outstanding at the close of business on the record date must vote FOR
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the approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement. Subject to the terms of the Voting Agreement
between us, Parent and the Rollover Shareholders, the Rollover Shareholders have agreed to vote all shares of our
Common Stock they beneficially own (and any shares acquired by them after the date of the Voting Agreement) in

favor of approving the Merger and adopting the Merger Agreement. See Agreements Involving the Company s
Securities, Transactions Between the Rollover Shareholders and the Company Agreements Involving the
Company s Securities Voting Agreement beginning on page 87. As of the record date, the Rollover Shareholders
own 27,678,679 shares of Common Stock, representing in the aggregate approximately 70.5% of the issued and
outstanding shares of Common Stock. This amount excludes the 63,579,204 shares of Common Stock that the
Rollover Shareholders have the right to acquire pursuant to convertible preferred stock, warrants and options held by
them. Because the
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Rollover Shareholders beneficially hold more than two-thirds of our outstanding shares of Common Stock as of the
record date, they can satisfy the required vote under New York law and the Merger Agreement to approve the Merger
and adopt the Merger Agreement without the affirmative vote of any of our other shareholders.

Except in their capacities as members of the Board of Directors and/or as the Lead Director, as applicable, no officer
or director of the Company has made any recommendation either in support of or in opposition to the Merger or the
Merger Agreement. The directors (excluding Mr. Harley) and Executive Officers of the Company, who collectively
own 1,742,999 shares, or 4.4%, or our outstanding Common Stock (which excludes 1,648,920 shares of Common
Stock that the directors (excluding Mr. Harley) and the Executive Officers have the right to acquire pursuant to
options held by them), have informed the Company that as of date of this proxy statement they intend to vote in favor
of approving the Merger and adopting the Merger Agreement.

See The Special Meeting  Required Vote beginning on page 69.

Q: With respect to the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal, why am I being asked to cast a non-binding
advisory vote to approve compensation that may become payable to the Company s named executive officers in
connection with the Merger?

A: SEC rules require us to seek a non-binding, advisory vote with respect to certain categories of compensation that
may be provided to named executive officers in connection with a merger transaction.

Q: What will happen if shareholders do not approve the non-binding Merger-Related Compensation Proposal?

A: Approval of the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal is not a condition to the completion of the Merger. The
vote on the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal is an advisory vote and will not be binding on the Company.

Therefore, if the Shareholder Approval is obtained and the Merger is completed, the payments that are the subject of
the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal may become payable to the named executive officers regardless of the
outcome of the vote on the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal.

Q: What vote of our shareholders is required to approve the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal?

A: Shareholders holding at least a majority of the shares of Common Stock voted at the Special Meeting must vote
FOR the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal in order for the proposal to be approved. Because the Rollover
Shareholders beneficially hold more than a majority of our outstanding shares of Common Stock as of the record date,
they can approve or disapprove the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal regardless of how any other shareholder
votes.

Q: How does the Board of Directors recommend that I vote?

A: The Board of Directors (other than Messrs. Harley and Lynch, who recused themselves from all deliberations
relating to the recommendation and approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement), acting upon the
recommendation of the Lead Director, unanimously recommends that our shareholders vote FOR the approval of the

Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement and FOR the approval of the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal.
You should read Special Factors

Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of the Lead Director and of the Board
of Directors; Fairness of the Merger beginning on page 35 for a discussion of the factors that the Lead Director and

Board of Directors considered in deciding to recommend the approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger
Agreement. See also Special Factors Interests of the Company s Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger
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Q: What effects will the Merger have on the Company?

A: The Common Stock is currently registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the
Exchange Act , and is quoted on the OTCQB under the symbol FOHL. As a result of the Merger,
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the Company will cease to be a publicly traded company and will be wholly owned by Parent. Following the
consummation of the Merger, the registration of the Common Stock and our reporting obligations under the Exchange
Act will be terminated upon application to the SEC. In addition, upon the consummation of the Merger, the Common
Stock will no longer be quoted on any quotation system, including the OTCQB. See Special Factors Plans for the
Company after the Merger beginning on page 53.

Q: What happens if the Merger is not consummated?

A: If the Shareholder Approval is not obtained or if the Merger is not consummated for any other reason, the Merger
will not be effected and the Company s shareholders will not receive any payment for their shares. Instead, the
Company will remain a public company and its shares of Common Stock will continue to be quoted on the OTCQB.
Under specified circumstances, the Company may be required to reimburse Parent and Merger Sub for their costs and
expenses and pay a termination fee. See The Merger Agreement  Termination beginning on page 83 and The Merger
Agreement Fees and Expenses beginning on page 84. The Company s results of operations and financial condition
raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. If the Company is unsuccessful in
consummating the Merger, it will need to raise additional capital through debt or equity financings, strategic
relationships or other arrangements. Additional financing may not be available in amounts or on terms acceptable to
the Company or at all, and if available, may be at prices and on terms that may not be as favorable as they would be
without a going concern qualification. An inability to obtain additional financing may result in the Company s
voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy.

Q: What do I need to do now?

A: We urge you to read this proxy statement carefully, including its annexes and the documents referred to in this
proxy statement as well as the Schedule 13E-3, including the exhibits attached thereto, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, or the SEC, and to consider how the Merger affects you. If you are a shareholder of record,

you can ensure that your shares are voted at the Special Meeting by submitting your proxy via:

telephone, using the toll-free number listed on each proxy card;
the Internet, at the address provided on each proxy card; or
mail, by completing, signing, dating and mailing each proxy card and returning it in the envelope provided.

If you hold your shares in street name through a broker, bank or other nominee, you should follow the directions
provided by your broker, bank or other nominee regarding how to instruct your broker, bank or other nominee to vote
your shares. Without those instructions, your shares will not be voted, which will have the same effect as voting
against the approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement.

Q: Should I send in my stock certificates or other evidence of ownership now?

A: No. After the Merger is completed, you will be sent a letter of transmittal with detailed written instructions for
exchanging your shares of Common Stock for the merger consideration. If your shares of Common Stock are held in
street name by your broker, bank or other nominee, you may receive instructions from your broker, bank or other
nominee as to what action, if any, you need to take to effect the surrender of your street name shares in exchange for
the merger consideration. Do not send in your certificates now.

Q: Can I revoke my voting instructions?

A: Yes. You can revoke your voting instructions at any time before your proxy is voted at the Special Meeting. If you
are a shareholder of record, you may revoke your proxy by notifying the Company s Corporate Secretary in writing at
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Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc., Attn: Secretary, 6255 Sunset Boulevard, 6 Floor, Hollywood, California
90028, or by submitting a new proxy by telephone, the Internet or mail, in each case, dated after the date of the proxy
being revoked. In addition, you may revoke your proxy by attending the Special Meeting and voting in person (simply
attending the Special Meeting will not cause your proxy to be revoked). Please note that if you hold your shares in
street name and you have instructed
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a broker, bank or other nominee to vote your shares, the above-described options for revoking your voting instructions
do not apply, and instead you must follow the instructions received from your broker, bank or other nominee to revoke
your voting instructions. See The Special Meeting  Voting; Proxies; Revocation — Revocation of Proxies beginning
on page 71.

Q: What does it mean if I get more than one proxy card or voting instruction card?

A: If your shares are registered differently or are held in more than one account, you will receive more than one proxy
or voting instruction card. Please complete and return all of the proxy cards or voting instruction cards you receive (or
submit each of your proxies by telephone or the Internet, if available to you) to ensure that all of your shares are
voted.

Q: Who will count the votes?

A: A representative of our transfer agent, American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC, will count the votes and
act as an inspector of election.

Q: Who can help answer my other questions?

A: If you have more questions about the Merger, or require assistance in submitting your proxy or voting your shares
or need additional copies of the proxy statement or the enclosed proxy card, please contact AST Phoenix Advisors, a
division of American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC, at 1-877-732-3617. If your broker, bank or other
nominee holds your shares, you should also call your broker, bank or other nominee for additional information.
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SPECIAL FACTORS
The Parties to the Merger

The parties to the Merger Agreement are the Company, Parent and Merger Sub.

The Company

For information regarding the Company, see Important Information Concerning the Company  Company
Background beginning on page 94.

Parent

Parent is a new Delaware limited liability company that was formed by HGI Funding to pursue the transaction
contemplated by the non-binding consortium term sheet agreement among the Consortium Members. The Rollover
Shareholders collectively hold 100% of the issued and outstanding equity of Parent. Immediately prior to the Effective
Time, the Rollover Shareholders will cause all of their shares of our capital stock to be contributed to Parent in
exchange for an increase in their equity interests in Parent. The Rollover Shareholders, as a group, may be deemed to
beneficially own 91,257,883 shares, or 88.7%, of our Common Stock, including 63,579,204 shares that they have the
right to acquire pursuant to convertible preferred stock, warrants and options held by them. Parent has not engaged in
any business other than in connection with the Merger and the other related transactions contemplated thereby.

Merger Sub

Merger Sub is a newly formed New York corporation. Merger Sub was formed solely for the purpose of engaging in
the Merger and other related transactions. Merger Sub is a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent. Merger Sub has not
engaged in any business other than in connection with the Merger and other related transactions.

Background of the Merger

Introduction

Our financial condition is precarious. The opinion of our independent auditors included in our Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended July 27, 2013 without completing the Merger questions our ability to continue as a
going concern. As of January 25, 2014, we had shareholders deficiency of $(29,223,000) or $(0.74) per outstanding
share and a working capital deficit of $(23,507,000) or $(0.60) per outstanding share.

During the past six years, we suffered from the economic recession, a protracted recovery and a downturn in consumer
spending. In California, the location of many of our stores, the recession was particularly severe. We also faced rising
operating costs, difficulties in paying vendors and significant long-term lease costs. Competition also increased from
retailers including the GAP, H&M, Aerie and Victoria s Secret, the leader in our industry. Numerous steps to improve
our financial performance were recommended by management and authorized by our Board of Directors. We reduced

our workforce, wages and capital expenditures, sold our wholesale division and negotiated margin assistance with
vendors. We also negotiated more favorable lending terms and eventually replaced our lender.
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From fiscal years 2007 through 2013, annual operating expenses were reduced by approximately $40,000,000.
Despite these efforts, we incurred net operating losses of approximately $114,000,000 from fiscal years 2008 through
2013 and have not reported an operating profit since fiscal year 2007. To sustain our operations and finance growth,
we completed capital raises of approximately $38,000,000 from fiscal years 2008 through 2013. These capital raises
were accomplished through a $20,000,000 rights offering and a $3,000,000 private placement of Common Stock,
followed by the $15,000,000 placement of the Series A and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock described below.
We also converted approximately $23,000,000 of debt and preferred stock into Common Stock. From fiscal years
2008 through 2013, we struggled to remain solvent, suffering from negative working capital and, in many years,
deficit equity. As a result, we had difficulty staying current with vendors. Our Board of Directors encouraged Messrs.
Lynch and Rende to explore possible strategic alternatives.
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On April 16 and 18, 2012, we received two unsolicited acquisition inquiries. On April 18, 2012, our Board of
Directors authorized Mr. Lynch to retain the investment banking firm, Allen & Co., to assist in evaluating and
negotiating the indications of interest. Allen & Co. also was retained to undertake a broad effort to explore other
potential strategic alternatives, including an investment of strategic capital. Neither the marketing process to
approximately 120 parties nor the two initial unsolicited indications of interest described in further detail below
resulted in any firm offers that our Board of Directors believed were viable or would produce any value for our
shareholders.

On February 28, 2013, Kyle Shonak, the then Senior Vice President of Salus, arranged for Mr. Lynch to meet with
Philip Falcone, Chief Executive Officer of HGI, and Phillip Gass, Managing Director of Investments of HGI, on
March 1, 2013 to discuss a potential strategic transaction. Salus is a subsidiary of HGI. The discussions resulted in our
$10,000,000 Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant sale on March 15, 2013. The buyer was Five Island
Asset Management, LL.C, a subsidiary of HGI, which we refer to as Five Island. These preferred shares and warrants
may be converted into a majority interest in the Company. The negotiations relating to the Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock transaction are described in detail below under Evaluation of Strategic Transactions .

On August 6, 2013, Five Island initially proposed the Merger to our Board of Directors. Five Island subsequently
negotiated with our largest shareholders to form the Consortium, and negotiations between the Consortium and the
Lead Director ultimately led to the execution of the Merger Agreement on December 18, 2013. Our Board of
Directors, upon recommendation of the Lead Director, determined that the Merger is in the best interests of our
unaffiliated shareholders. Our unaffiliated shareholders and our directors (other than Mr. Harley) and Executive
Officers, who together own 11,594,575 shares, or approximately 29.5%, of our outstanding Common Stock as of
April 14, 2014, will receive $0.27 per share, or an aggregate of approximately $3,100,000, upon the closing of the
Merger. Shares of Common Stock owned by our directors (other than Mr. Harley) and Executive Officers will receive
the same treatment in the Merger as the shares of Common Stock owned by the unaffiliated shareholders.

The indications of interest, the marketing process and the negotiations with HGI are described in detail below.

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock Transaction and New Credit Facility

Throughout fiscal year 2012, our business continued to be adversely affected by limited working capital. We were
also in arrears with our vendors. Accordingly, Messrs. Lynch and Rende focused on negotiating vendor allowances,
raising capital and pursuing other strategic possibilities. Because of our financial condition, it was difficult to attract

new investors. As an alternative, in late April 2012, Mr. Lynch initiated discussions with our largest
shareholders Michael Tokarz, who controls TTG and TKZ, and William F. Harley III, a member of our Board of

Directors who controls Fursa and Arsenal regarding further investment in the Company. Mr. Tokarz expressed an

interest in providing additional funding to the Company.

On May 11, 2012, Messrs. Lynch and Tokarz orally agreed in principle to TTG making a $5,000,000 convertible
preferred stock equity investment in the Company. On May 11 and 14, 2012, Marci Frankenthaler, General Counsel to
the Company, emailed Edwards Wildman Palmer LLP, or Edwards Wildman , counsel to TTG, an initial draft of the
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock purchase agreement, an initial draft of the amendment to the Company s
certificate of incorporation establishing the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and a non-binding term sheet
prepared by the Company and Graubard Miller setting forth the proposed terms. The documents contemplated a
non-voting, non-redeemable, zero coupon series of convertible preferred stock ranking senior to all other outstanding
capital stock. The liquidation preference would be equal to the initial purchase price. The preferred stock would
automatically convert into Common Stock, at the same price, if lower, as a subsequent closed private placement.
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On May 15, 2012, Graubard Miller arranged for Messrs. Tokarz, Lynch and Rende, Ms. Frankenthaler, Edwards
Wildman and Graubard Miller to have a conference call to discuss proposed revisions to the term sheet and
transaction agreements. After the call, Edwards Wildman circulated a revised term sheet, which provided for, among
other things, dividends, payable quarterly, at the Company s option, in cash or additional shares of Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock ( PIK shares ), at the rate of 9% per annum; conversion at the option of the holder at an
initial conversion price of $1.25 per share (with the conversion price decreasing by
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$0.25 per share on each of the first three anniversaries of the closing date); and anti-dilution protection. The term sheet
also provided for the issuance of ten-year warrants to purchase the number of shares of Common Stock equal to
$1,500,000 divided by the closing price of the Common Stock on the day prior to the closing.

On May 17, 2012, Ms. Frankenthaler, Mr. Rende, Graubard Miller and Edwards Wildman had additional discussions
regarding the proposed terms, and, following discussions with Mr. Tokarz, Edwards Wildman circulated a further
revised term sheet to reflect what was discussed on the call. This further revised term sheet provided for: (i) beginning
on the second anniversary of the closing date, the dividend rate to be the greater of 9% per annum or the highest rate
the Company pays on any debt; (ii) conversion at the option of the holder at a price of $1.05 per share for the preferred
shares other than the PIK shares, and at a price of $0.45 per share for the PIK shares; (iii) downward adjustments to
the conversion price if the Company sells Common Stock or common stock equivalents at a price below the then
conversion price, but not lower than the closing price of the Common Stock on the day prior to the closing date; (iv) a
liquidation premium equal to 109% of the stated value of the shares (plus all accrued and unpaid dividends) until the
first anniversary of the closing date and equal to 105% of the stated value of the shares (plus all accrued and unpaid
dividends) from the first anniversary until the second anniversary of the closing date; and (v) three, five and seven
year warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1,500,000 shares of Common Stock (500,000 shares each) at exercise prices
of $0.45, $0.53 and $0.60, respectively.

On May 21, 2012, Edwards Wildman circulated a revised Series A Preferred Stock purchase agreement, a revised
certificate of amendment to the Company s certificate of incorporation establishing the Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock and a form of warrant, each of which reflected the terms set forth in the May 17 revised term sheet. The revised

agreements also included the following additional provisions: (i) the proceeds would be used to settle vendor
payables, (ii) the preferred shares could be redeemed at the Company s option, and (iii) a redemption premium would
apply to the preferred shares, other than the PIK shares, in an amount equal to 110% of the stated value (plus all
accrued and unpaid dividends), if redemption occurred before the third anniversary of the closing, and equal to 108%
of the stated value (plus all accrued and unpaid dividends), if the redemption occurred between the third and fifth
anniversaries of the closing.

On May 23, 2012, our Board of Directors approved the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock purchase agreement and
related documents, and we completed the sale of $5,000,000 in shares of our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock to
TTG. As of May 23, 2012, the outstanding shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock were convertible into
4,761,905 shares of Common Stock, or 10.9% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock as of May 23, 2012. By
April 14, 2014, the outstanding shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, including PIK shares issued as
dividends, were convertible into 6,552,127 shares of Common Stock, or 14.3% of the outstanding shares of Common
Stock as of April 14, 2014.

On May 23, 2012, pursuant to the Series A Preferred Stock purchase agreement, we also issued to TTG three, five and
seven-year warrants, each to purchase 500,000 shares of Common Stock, at exercise prices of $0.45, $0.53 and $0.60
per share, respectively. As required by the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock purchase agreement, the proceeds of
the transaction were used to settle vendor accounts payable. We obtained approximately $4,900,000 of vendor
allowances during the fiscal quarter ended April 28, 2012. A complete description of the terms of the Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock and warrants may be found in  Agreements Involving the Company s Securities;
Transactions Between the Rollover Shareholders and the Company  Agreements Involving the Company s
Securities  Series A Convertible Preferred Stock Transaction beginning on page 91.

In addition to the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock investment, on May 31, 2012, we secured a new $24,000,000
credit facility with Salus. At the closing, proceeds from the credit facility were used to repay outstanding secured

indebtedness of the Company. The Salus credit facility includes a first in last out tranche, which was at the time for up
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to $9,000,000 million, that consists of the first advances made under the facility and the last amounts repaid
thereunder. The credit facility also provides for a revolving line of credit, except that repayments of the first in last out
tranche may not be reborrowed. The unpaid principal of the first in last out tranche bears interest, payable monthly, in
arrears, at the 30-day LIBOR rate plus 11.5%, but not less than 12.0% regardless of fluctuations in the LIBOR rate.
Up to 2.5% of the interest payable on the first in last out tranche is capitalized, compounded and added to the unpaid
amount under the credit
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facility each month. The unpaid principal of advances other than the first in last out tranche bears interest, payable
monthly, in arrears, at the prime rate plus 4.0%, but not less than 7.0%, regardless of fluctuations in the prime rate.
The obligations of the borrowers under the credit facility are secured by first priority security interests granted to

Salus in all of the borrowers tangible and intangible property, including intellectual property such as trademarks and
copyrights, as well as shares and membership interests of the borrowers.

Evaluation of Strategic Transactions

On April 16 and 18, 2012, Mr. Lynch received two unsolicited acquisition proposals. On April 18, 2012, all of the
members of our Board of Directors held a special meeting to discuss the two proposals. Mr. Rende, Ms. Frankenthaler
and Mr. Tokarz were in attendance. At the meeting, the Board considered engaging an investment banking firm to
assist in the evaluation of the proposals, and to explore other potential strategic alternatives, including an investment
of strategic capital, to enhance shareholder value. Mr. Lynch reported that he and Mr. Rende had recent discussions
with two investment banking firms that expressed an interest in working with the Company. He reviewed their
respective qualifications and their proposed fees for services. He explained that one firm did not have the extensive
industry and financial contacts needed for a widespread marketing effort, and the other firm had industry expertise,
but proposed to charge a high retainer and minimum fees. The Board then discussed, at the suggestion of Mr. Harley
(who was employed by Allen & Co. prior to June 1996, but who has had no affiliation with and received no
consideration from the firm since then), the possibility of engaging Allen & Co. Because of Allen & Co. s reputation,
national recognition and extensive contacts and expertise, the Board of Directors was positively disposed to discussing
Allen & Co. s interest in working with us. The Board of Directors authorized discussions with Allen & Co. and, later
that day, Messrs. Walters and Harley met with John Simon, James Quinn and Denise Calvo of Allen & Co., who
expressed an interest in working with the Company. On April 24, 2012, Allen & Co. sent a draft engagement letter to
Messrs. Lynch and Walters. Between April 24, 2012 and May 3, 2012, Mr. Lynch, at the direction of the Board of
Directors, negotiated the terms of Allen & Co. s engagement. On May 3, 2012, following Board approval, Allen & Co.
was retained, and the Company issued a press release announcing their engagement and their role to seek strategic
alternatives for the Company. With the assistance of Allen & Co., we prepared confidential evaluation materials
regarding the Company, our business and management. Mr. Lynch advised the two parties that had submitted
proposals that Allen & Co. would contact them as part of a broader marketing effort.

Our Board of Directors and Messrs. Lynch and Rende continued their extensive business review of the Company,
which included analysis of our deteriorating financial condition. They considered our financial and business prospects
and further considered financial and strategic alternatives to enhance shareholder value, including, among other
things, obtaining additional financing, selling all or a portion of our business and identifying strategic partners. Allen

& Co. advised on strategic transactions that might be available to the Company.

Between June and October 2012, Allen & Co. contacted approximately 120 parties, including retailers, private equity
firms and family offices and one of the two parties who had submitted unsolicited proposals in April 2012. No
subsequent interest was expressed by the other party. Approximately 30 expressed an interest and executed
non-disclosure agreements to receive the confidential evaluation materials and gain access to the Company s electronic
data room. The non-disclosure agreements did not contain provisions restricting the purchase of the Company s
securities or the taking of any other actions that could lead to a change of control of the Company at any time. In early
October 2012, Allen & Co. called for written proposals from the approximately 12 remaining interested parties. In
response, Allen & Co. received indications of interest from only three parties. Two were from private equity firms and
contemplated pre-packaged bankruptcy filings, and a third was from a domestic specialty retailer that had previously
submitted an indication of interest in April 2012.

Evaluation of Strategic Transactions
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Prior to the Company engaging in any negotiations with the interested parties, on November 8, 2012, our Board of
Directors selected Mr. Walters to coordinate the full Board s review and negotiation of all of the proposals received
during the marketing process. Mr. Walters was not individually authorized to, and did not, negotiate the terms of these
proposals on behalf of the Company or make any final recommendations with respect to such proposals.
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From November 2012 to March 2013, all of the members of our Board of Directors, Messrs. Lynch and Rende, Ms.
Frankenthaler, Mr. Tokarz and Allen & Co. met numerous times to evaluate a total of six indications of interest
three received in October 2012 plus three additional indications of interest subsequently received from parties
unaffiliated with the Company. The two indications of interest that contemplated a pre-packaged bankruptcy process
were considered by the Board of Directors, but rejected because our shareholders would receive no value. The Board
gave no further consideration to these proposals. In making this decision, the Board considered the difficulty of
obtaining debtor-in-possession financing and the uncertain outcome of a bankruptcy process. They also considered the
Company s net losses of $6,432,000 and $12,055,000 for the years ended July 28, 2012 and July 30, 2011 and working
capital deficiency of $6,326,000 as of July 28, 2012. The Company had used $6,571,000 and $11,137,000 of cash in
operating activities for the years ended July 28, 2012 and July 30, 2011. They also considered that, while vendor
payables were reduced following the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock transaction in May 2012, during the first
quarter of fiscal year 2013 vendor payables were increasing again. Based on these factors, they anticipated that, if the
Company filed for bankruptcy protection, liquidation was a legitimate possibility. The Company s current vendor base
would be unlikely to supply the inventory necessary for the Company to continue operations unless existing payables
were brought current. Based on the Company s deteriorating financial condition during the fiscal year 2012 and the
first quarter of fiscal year 2013, the Board of Directors ascertained that, if the Company liquidated, the value of its
assets would be insufficient to pay its unsecured creditors and its preferred stockholders and, accordingly, the
common shareholders would be left with no value.

the

At the direction of our Board of Directors, Messrs. Lynch and Rende, Ms. Frankenthaler and Allen & Co. engaged in

negotiations with the other four parties. We sometimes refer to these parties collectively as the Proposing Parties. As

described below, despite extensive negotiations between November 2012 and March 2013, we terminated discussions

with each of the Proposing Parties because we were unable to reach definitive terms with any of them that the Board
of Directors believed would produce any value for our shareholders.

On October 25, 2012, in response to Allen & Co. s request for written proposals earlier that month, a domestic
specialty retailer submitted an indication of interest to acquire the Company. We refer to this party as the Specialty
Retailer. The Specialty Retailer was the same party who made the unsolicited acquisition inquiry on April 16, 2012.
During November 2012, Allen & Co. and the Specialty Retailer s financial advisor arranged discussions between Mr.
Lynch and the Specialty Retailer to further explore their interest in acquiring the Company.

On December 3, 2012, the Specialty Retailer submitted a non-binding letter of intent to Allen & Co. to acquire
through a new entity all of the Company s outstanding capital stock for cash, including the Company s Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock and the Common Stock held by TTG, TKZ, Fursa and Arsenal. The letter of intent also
provided an option for TTG, TKZ, Fursa and Arsenal to roll their equity in the Company into a percentage interest in
the new entity. The letter contained a 60-day exclusivity period for the Specialty Retailer to conduct due diligence and
negotiate with the Company. It also required the Company to pay the Specialty Retailer s expenses up to $500,000 if
the Company terminated the letter of intent prior to the end of the exclusivity period or entered into a definitive
agreement with a third party within 180 days after the end of the exclusivity period. With the assistance of Allen &
Co. and Graubard Miller, and at the direction of our Board of Directors, Messrs. Lynch and Rende and Ms.
Frankenthaler negotiated the terms of the letter of intent with the Specialty Retailer, but the parties were unable to
reach an agreement on the length of the exclusivity period or when the Company s obligation to pay the Specialty
Retailer s expenses would be triggered. Both time and amount were critical to the Company, because of its steadily
deteriorating financial condition. The Specialty Retailer did not provide a reason why it would not shorten the
exclusivity period or clarify the termination language. On December 21, 2012, the Company terminated discussions
with the Specialty Retailer.
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On December 5, 2012, a private equity firm with strategic relationships in the retail and entertainment industries
submitted a proposal to Allen & Co. We refer to this party as the PE Firm. Under the proposal, the PE Firm would
acquire all of the Company s outstanding capital stock for cash, including the Company s Series A Convertible

Preferred Stock and the Common Stock held by TTG, TKZ, Fursa and Arsenal.
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Repayment of the Company s credit facility with Salus and an infusion of equity capital also were contemplated. The
proposal included a 60-day exclusivity period.

On December 10, 2012, Allen &Co. arranged for Messrs. Lynch and Rende and Ms. Frankenthaler to meet with the
PE Firm and its financing source at Allen & Co. s offices. The parties discussed proposed consideration, but the PE
Firm and its financing source indicated that no firm offers could be made until it performed due diligence.

Over the next week, Messrs. Lynch and Rende and Ms. Frankenthaler proposed revisions to the PE Firm s initial

indication of interest, including a reduction in the length of the exclusivity period. On December 20, 2012, the PE
Firm submitted a non-binding letter of intent to Allen & Co. for the Board s consideration. It contained substantially
the same terms as their initial indication of interest, but included a shortened, 45-day exclusivity period. The letter of

intent required a response from the Company by the close of business on December 28, 2012.

On December 12, 2012, another private equity firm with strategic relationships in the retail industry submitted a
proposal to acquire the Company. We refer to this party as the Second PE Firm. The Second PE Firm had previously
submitted one of the two indications of interest that contemplated a pre-packaged bankruptcy process. The new
proposal contemplated that the firm would, through a new entity, acquire for cash all of the Common Stock held by
shareholders other than TTG, TKZ, Fursa and Arsenal, and that TTG, TKZ, Fursa and Arsenal would roll their equity
in the Company into a percentage interest in the new entity. The new proposal also contemplated retiring the Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock and infusing additional capital into the Company. The proposal included a 60-day
exclusivity period. Mr. Lynch and the firm engaged in preliminary discussions. However, the Second PE Firm s
financing could not be confirmed. Accordingly, the Company terminated discussions with the Second PE Firm and the
Board gave no further consideration to the Second PE Firm s proposal.

On December 20, 2012, Mr. Lynch met with a foreign private equity firm with strategic relationships in the intimate

apparel industry. We refer to this party as the Foreign Strategic Party. The meeting was arranged at the suggestion of

Mr. Tokarz, who was introduced to the Foreign Strategic Party by one of his colleagues. The Foreign Strategic Party
discussed with Mr. Lynch its potential interest to go public through a reverse merger with a U.S. exchange listed

company, to assist us with our immediate financial needs and to help us source our core intimate apparel inventory.
Mr. Lynch invited the Foreign Strategic Party to submit a formal indication of interest for our Board of Directors to
consider.

On December 27, 2012, the Foreign Strategic Party submitted to Mr. Lynch a non-binding letter of intent for a
$5,000,000 convertible debt financing. On December 28, 2012, at the request of our Board of Directors, Mr. Lynch
submitted a revised proposal to the Foreign Strategic Party, which instead contemplated a $5,000,000 preferred stock
transaction substantially similar to the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock transaction the Company completed in
May 2012 with TTG. The letter of intent did not contain an exclusivity provision, but provided for funding to first
occur by no later than January 18, 2013. The Foreign Strategic Party accepted the proposed changes.

On December 28, 2012, all of the members of our Board of Directors held a special meeting to further consider the
proposals submitted by the PE Firm and the Foreign Strategic Party. Mr. Rende, Ms. Frankenthaler and Mr. Tokarz
were in attendance. After further discussion and review of both proposals, our Board of Directors concluded that the

Foreign Strategic Party offered a superior opportunity for the Company because, with its extensive experience in the
lingerie industry, it possessed potential synergies that did not exist with the PE Firm. Accordingly, our Board of
Directors authorized Mr. Lynch to terminate discussions with the PE Firm and enter into the non-binding letter of
intent with the Foreign Strategic Party for a $5,000,000 preferred stock investment, which Mr. Lynch executed and
delivered later that day.
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Following the execution of the letter of intent, the Foreign Strategic Party was given access to the Company s
electronic data room, and performed extensive due diligence. After the completion of due diligence and further
meetings and negotiations, the Foreign Strategic Party withdrew its preferred stock financing proposal. The Foreign
Strategic Party believed that the Company s capital needs were greater than what the Foreign Strategic Party had

anticipated. Instead, the Foreign Strategic Party discussed assisting the
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Company with sourcing core intimate apparel inventory and with financing in a pre-packaged bankruptcy. No firm
offer was made. Based on our prior determination that in a bankruptcy, liquidation was a legitimate possibility and the
common shareholders would be left with no value, our Board of Directors authorized Mr. Lynch to terminate
discussions with the Foreign Strategic Party and authorized Allen & Co. and Mr. Lynch to attempt to reinitiate
discussions with the Specialty Retailer and the PE Firm.

On January 21, 2013, Mr. Lynch contacted the Specialty Retailer and Allen & Co. contacted the financing source for
the PE Firm. The Specialty Retailer expressed an interest in reinitiating discussions with the Company. On the other
hand, the PE Firm s financing source declined to engage in any further discussions. Accordingly, our Board of
Directors gave no further consideration to the PE Firm s proposal. After negotiations resumed with the Specialty
Retailer, the Company and the Specialty Retailer executed a non-binding letter of intent on January 25, 2013 with an
exclusivity period expiring February 27, 2013. The letter of intent was substantially similar to the one that the parties
had previously negotiated, but not signed, in December 2012. Specifically, it provided for the acquisition by the
Specialty Retailer of all of the Company s outstanding Common Stock for $0.45 per share, including the Common
Stock held by TTG, TKZ, Fursa and Arsenal. The non-binding letter of intent also contemplated that the Specialty
Retailer would purchase the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and included an option for TTG, TKZ, Fursa and
Arsenal to roll their equity in the Company into a 2.5% interest in the new entity.

From January 25, 2013 through February 21, 2013, the Specialty Retailer conducted extensive due diligence on the
Company s operations, financial performance and financial projections, including meetings conducted at the
Company s facilities. During this period, at the direction of the Board and with the assistance of Allen & Co. and
Graubard Miller, Messrs. Lynch and Rende and Ms. Frankenthaler provided information to the Specialty Retailer. On
February 21, 2013, the Specialty Retailer emailed a revised offer to Allen & Co. to present to the Board of Directors.
Later that same day, a conference call was held with Messrs. Lynch and Rende, Allen & Co., the Specialty Retailer
and its financial advisor to discuss the terms in more detail. The Specialty Retailer explained that the revised offer
reflected its view that the Company had more liabilities than expected, and that they were not prepared to move
forward on the previously indicated terms. The revised proposal contemplated (i) that no payment at all would be

made to the Company s equity holders unless the Company could reduce the impact of its liabilities through, among

other things, vendor concessions and (ii) that the Company must maintain its working capital levels, with any shortfall

reducing equity value, which was equivalent to the pre-packaged bankruptcy plan proposals because, in each case, the
unaffiliated shareholders of the Company were likely to receive no value.

On February 22, 2013, all of the members of our Board of Directors met to discuss the Specialty Retailer s revised
offer. Mr. Rende, Ms. Frankenthaler, Allen & Co. and Graubard Miller were in attendance. Allen & Co. reviewed the
financial terms of the revised proposal. After discussion, the Board concluded that, based on the Company s current
financial condition and ongoing losses, the Company s shareholders were likely to be left with no value in the sale of
the Company to the Specialty Retailer under the revised offer. The Board determined that further consideration and
negotiations should take place, and that Allen & Co. should arrange a call with the Specialty Retailer and financial
advisor to allow the Company an opportunity to respond. While the parties continued to negotiate over the next few
weeks, little progress was made, primarily because of the Company s continuing losses and the Specialty Retailer s
unwillingness to guarantee any value for the Company s common shareholders.

During the Company s strategic alternative evaluation process conducted with Allen & Co. described above, Messrs
Lynch and Rende provided regular status updates to Mr. Shonak regarding progress in the negotiations with the
Proposing Parties. On February 28, 2013, Mr. Lynch advised Mr. Shonak that negotiations with the Specialty Retailer
were continuing, but progress was limited. He also confirmed to Mr. Shonak that the Company s exclusivity agreement
with the Specialty Retailer had expired on February 27, 2013. On February 28, 2013, Mr. Shonak arranged for Mr.
Lynch to meet on March 1, 2013 with Philip Falcone, the Chief Executive Officer of HGI, and Phillip Gass, Managing
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On March 1, 2013, Mr. Lynch met with Messrs. Falcone and Gass to discuss a potential strategic transaction between
the Company and HGI or one of its subsidiaries. On the evening of March 1, 2013, Mr. Gass emailed Mr. Lynch a
non-binding term sheet. The term sheet provided for a $10,000,000 investment in the Company through the issuance
of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, which would result in HGI obtaining a controlling interest in the Company.
The term sheet contemplated non-voting, non-redeemable, Series B Convertible Preferred Stock ranking senior to all
other outstanding capital stock, with cumulative dividends payable quarterly in arrears either (i) at the rate of 9% per
annum in cash or, at the Company s discretion, (ii) at the rate of 12% per annum in additional shares of Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock. The Series B Convertible Preferred stock would be convertible, at the option of the
holder, into 51% of the Company s fully diluted common stock. The proposed terms also included a liquidation
preference equal to the initial purchase price, standard anti-dilution adjustments, and the ability of a majority of the
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock holders to appoint three members of the Company s Board of Directors, which
would consist of a maximum of eight members. The term sheet also contained a seven-day exclusivity period.

On the morning of March 3, 2013, all of the members of our Board of Directors met to review and consider the Series
B Convertible Preferred Stock term sheet. Mr. Rende, Ms. Frankenthaler, Mr. Tokarz and Allen & Co. were in
attendance. Our Board of Directors reviewed the proposed terms of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock
transaction, including the potential dilutive consequences, and developed a list of proposed changes to the term sheet.
The proposed changes included a fixed, rather than a floating, conversion price, a lower interest rate on the cash and
payment-in-kind dividends, and to add redemption rights at the Company s option. Our Board of Directors instructed
Mr. Lynch and Ms. Frankenthaler to communicate the Company s position to Mr. Gass and Milbank, Tweed, Hadley
& McCloy LLP, or Milbank, HGI s counsel. Our Board of Directors then determined to reconvene the meeting after
Messrs. Lynch and Rende and Ms. Frankenthaler communicated the proposed changes to the term sheet to Mr. Gass
and Milbank.

Also at the March 3, 2013 meeting, our Board of Directors considered two other alternatives continuing to negotiate
with the Specialty Retailer and filing for bankruptcy. Allen & Co. reviewed with the Board the potential transaction
with the Specialty Retailer, the lack of progress in the negotiations, and the low likelihood of closing a transaction
with them quickly enough to address our acute and deteriorating financial condition. Allen & Co. also discussed the
Company filing for bankruptcy, the challenges in obtaining debtor-in-possession financing and the uncertain outcome
of a bankruptcy process. The Board of Directors engaged in a similar analysis to the one it conducted in October 2012
in connection with the pre-packaged bankruptcy proposals. The Board considered that the Company had net losses of
$6,432,000 and $12,055,000 for the years ended July 28, 2012 and July 30, 2011 and had a net loss of $14,959,000 for
the six months ended January 26, 2013. In addition, as of January 26, 2013, the Company had a working capital
deficiency of $12,349,000 and a shareholders deficiency of $17,401,000. The Company had used cash of $6,571,000
and $11,137,000 in operating activities for the years ended July 28, 2012 and July 30, 2011 and used cash of
$1,079,000 in operating activities for the six months ended January 26, 2013. They also considered that for the six
months ended January 26, 2013, accounts payable and accrued expenses had increased by $12,504,000 primarily as a

result of slower payments to the Company s vendors.

The Board considered that, as a result of the Company s financial condition, procuring inventory from new vendors
had become challenging, and our current vendors had been reluctant to produce new merchandise for the Company
due to our inability to make timely payments to them. As in October 2012, the Board anticipated that, if the Company
filed for bankruptcy protection, liquidation was a legitimate possibility. The Company s current vendor base would be
unlikely to supply the inventory necessary for the Company to continue operations unless existing payables were
brought current. Based on the Company s deteriorating financial condition during fiscal year 2012 and the first six
months of fiscal year 2013, the Board of Directors ascertained that, if the Company liquidated, the value of its assets
would be insufficient to pay its unsecured creditors and its preferred stockholders and, accordingly, the common
shareholders would be left with no value.
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Later that day, Mr. Gass emailed Mr. Lynch a revised term sheet, and all of the Board members reconvened the
meeting to consider it. Mr. Rende, Ms. Frankenthaler, Mr. Tokarz and Allen & Co. were in attendance. The revised
term sheet included the Company s right to redeem the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock after the fifth anniversary
of the closing, but the dividend rate remained at 9% per annum for cash
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dividends and 12% for payment-in-kind dividends. The revised term sheet also provided for the conversion of the
preferred stock at the option of the holder at a fixed conversion price of $0.25 per share, for an aggregate of
40,000,000 shares of Common Stock. On conversion, HGI would own approximately 51% of the current outstanding
shares of common stock. To ensure that HGI maintained their majority interest, a provision was added to the revised
term sheet that HGI would receive warrants exercisable for a number of shares of Common Stock ( Warrant Shares )
such that the Warrant Shares plus the shares issuable upon conversion of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock
would equal 51% of the issued and outstanding Common Stock on a fully diluted basis. The number of warrants and
their exercise price were left open pending a review of the terms of all currently outstanding derivative securities. The
term sheet also required waivers from the holder of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, including waivers of (i)
the anti-dilution adjustments that would otherwise result from the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock transaction,
(i) the holder s right to force the Company to repurchase the shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock upon
consummation of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock transaction, (iii) the holder s right to receive payment for
PIK Shares and a redemption premium for shares other than PIK Shares in connection with any redemption of the
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock by the Company, and (iv) the holder s right to convert its shares of Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock after the Company delivers any such redemption notice. The term sheet also required the
Company to amend its by-laws with respect to board size and composition and shareholder action by less than
unanimous written consent. After reviewing and discussing the revised term sheet, the Board proposed a clarifying
change to the term sheet that the warrants are only to cover the Company s current outstanding derivative securities.
Based on conversations with Mr. Tokarz, an affiliate of TTG, the holder of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock,
whose consent was required for the transaction, the Board of Directors also proposed to limit the required waivers to
those dealing with the repurchase right and the anti-dilution adjustments triggered by the proposed transaction. The
Board authorized Messrs. Lynch and Rende and Ms. Frankenthaler to communicate these changes to Mr. Gass and
Milbank and reconvene a meeting the next day.

On March 4, 2013, all of the members of our Board of Directors held a special meeting to consider a further revised
draft of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock term sheet, which Milbank emailed to Mr. Lynch, Ms. Frankenthaler
and Graubard Miller earlier that day. Mr. Rende, Ms. Frankenthaler, Mr. Tokarz, Allen & Co. and Graubard Miller
were in attendance. They discussed the changes made to the term sheet, noting that both of the requested changes had
been made. Because the issuance of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock would affect the rights of the Company s

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, Mr. Tokarz, an affiliate of TTG, the holder of the Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock, excused himself from the meeting. After further review and consideration of the term sheet, our
Board of Directors (with Mr. Eisel abstaining because his law firm represented Mr. Tokarz, including in the Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock transaction) authorized Mr. Lynch to enter into the non-binding term sheet with HGI. Our
Board of Directors also authorized Messrs. Lynch and Rende to terminate negotiations with the Specialty Retailer,
which they did that day. Later on March 4, 2013, Mr. Lynch executed the non-binding term sheet and delivered it to
Mr. Gass and Milbank.

On March 7, 2013, Mr. Gass and Kostas Cheliotis, Senior Vice President & Deputy General Counsel of HGI, invited
Mr. Lynch to a meeting to discuss the Company s financial condition. Mr. Lynch provided Messrs. Gass and Cheliotis
and Milbank with a draft of the Company s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended January 27,
2013 and explained the reasons for the decrease in sales as compared to the prior year. They also discussed the
possibility of HGI providing additional funding in the months following the consummation of the proposed Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock transaction.

Between March 4 and March 15, 2013, Messrs. Lynch, Rende, Gass and Cheliotis, and Ms. Frankenthaler worked
with Graubard Miller and Milbank to negotiate and prepare the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock transaction
documentation, which included: (i) the Series B Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, or Series B SPA ; (ii) Certificate
of Amendment to the Company s Restated Certificate of Incorporation, setting forth the rights and preferences of the
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Series B Convertible Preferred Stock; (iii) Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company, setting forth,
among other things, the changes with respect to board size and composition and shareholder action by less than
unanimous written consent to the extent permitted by the certificate of incorporation; and (iv) six separate common
stock purchase warrants exercisable upon a
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corresponding exercise or conversion of specified outstanding securities, as set forth in the warrants. Five of the
warrants are to purchase an aggregate of up to 4,708,850 shares of common stock at prices ranging from $0.67 to
$1.21 per share and expire at various times between June 2015 and February 2022. One warrant is to purchase up to
5,468,127 shares of common stock for $.01 per share and expires 30 days following the date that the Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock is no longer outstanding.

Additional transaction documentation included the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock waiver executed by TTG and
a voting agreement executed by Five Island, TTG, TKZ, Fursa and Arsenal. The voting agreement, dated March 15,
2013, related to a requirement in the Series B SPA in which the Company agreed to hold a meeting of its shareholders,
as soon as practicable, but not later than February 1, 2014, for the purpose of voting on the approval and adoption of
an amendment to the Company s certificate of incorporation providing that the shareholders entitled to vote may take

any action that they might have taken at a shareholders meeting by a written consent signed by the holders of
outstanding shares having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take
such action. Pursuant to the Voting Agreement entered into in connection with the Merger Agreement, HGI Funding
waived the requirement to include the amendment in this proxy statement for the Special Meeting. Accordingly, the
certificate of incorporation continues to prohibit the Company from taking action by less than unanimous consent.

On March 11, 2013, all of the members of our Board of Directors held a special meeting to review the terms of the
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock transaction documents. Mr. Rende, Ms. Frankenthaler, Mr. Tokarz and Allen &
Co. were in attendance. Among other things, they discussed the redemption and conversion rights of the Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock as compared to the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, the waiver of anti-dilution and
repurchase rights by the holder of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock in connection with the Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock transaction, the representations and warranties contained in the Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock purchase agreement and the minority shareholder protections. They also reviewed the terms of the
warrants and how they could only be exercised upon exercise or conversion of corresponding securities, and noted that
the terms of these warrants were being finalized, including the exercise prices and anti-dilution adjustment provisions.
They also were informed that the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock holder was still in the process of negotiating
the waiver with HGI. After further discussion, our Board of Directors determined to hold off on approving the
transaction until these items were finalized, and instructed Messrs. Lynch and Rende, Ms. Frankenthaler and Graubard
Miller to work with HGI and Milbank to address them. Over the next two days, anti-dilution protection terms of the
warrants were agreed upon, and the Board of Directors received confirmation from Mr. Tokarz that the terms of the
waiver of anti-dilution and repurchase rights by the holder of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock were
acceptable, and would only apply to this specific transaction.

On the evening of March 13, 2013, the Specialty Retailer submitted another unsolicited revised non-binding proposal
to Mr. Lynch and Allen & Co. The proposal contemplated an initial purchase of the outstanding Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock and Common Stock held by TTG, TKZ, Fursa and Arsenal at $0.45 per share, the same price the
Specialty Retailer had proposed in the non-binding letter of intent the Company and the Specialty Retailer had
executed on January 25, 2013. Those purchases were to be followed by a tender offer for the shares of Common Stock
held by the unaffiliated shareholders at that same price. That evening, all of the members of our Board of Directors
except for Messrs. Walters and Harley, held a special meeting. Mr. Rende, Ms. Frankenthaler, Allen & Co. and
Graubard Miller were in attendance. Our Board of Directors and Graubard Miller discussed the Board s fiduciary
obligation to the Company and its shareholders to address the proposal, notwithstanding that the Company and Five
Island had finalized negotiations on the Series B Preferred Stock transaction documents and were preparing for the
closing. The Board determined to reconvene the meeting early the following morning when all of the Board members
were available to attend.
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Early the following morning on March 14, 2013, all of the members of our Board of Directors met to discuss the terms
of the Specialty Retailer s proposal. Mr. Rende, Ms. Frankenthaler, Allen & Co. and Graubard Miller were in
attendance. The Board discussed whether the Specialty Retailer could close quickly enough, or at all, based on the fact
that the Specialty Retailer s proposal from just a few weeks prior would have likely left the shareholders with no value,
as well as the risks related to further delay, including
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bankruptcy. Our Board of Directors considered ways to mitigate these risks and address the Company s critical need
for additional capital. Accordingly, our Board of Directors directed Allen & Co. to communicate to the Specialty
Retailer that the Board required the Specialty Retailer to provide a binding commitment letter that day for (i) the
immediate purchase of all of the capital stock held by TTG, TKZ, Fursa and Arsenal at $0.45 per share, followed by a
tender offer for the shares of Common Stock held by the unaffiliated shareholders at $0.45 per share, and (ii) the
provision of interim financing through the closing of the tender offer. Our Board of Directors also requested a timeline
for completion of the transaction, which was vital given the Company s tenuous financial condition. Messrs. Lynch
and Ms. Frankenthaler, Allen & Co. and Graubard Miller held discussions with the Specialty Retailer through the day,
and the Board reconvened several times for status updates and further discussions. Despite these efforts, the follow-up
communication that the Company received from the Specialty Retailer on March 14, 2013 specifically stated that its
offer was non-binding. The Specialty Retailer did not explain its refusal to make its offer binding as requested.
Accordingly, after extensive discussion of the circumstances, including the history of negotiations with the Specialty
Retailer, its refusal to provide the necessary binding commitment and the Company s deteriorating financing situation,
a majority of our Board of Directors approved the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock transaction with Five Island.
The Board of Directors authorized Messrs. Lynch and Rende to terminate discussions with the Specialty Retailer and
execute the transaction agreements. The Board gave no further consideration to the Specialty Retailer s proposal.

The closing of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock transaction took place on March 15, 2013. After expenses, the
Company received approximately $9,350,000 of net proceeds. A complete description of the terms of the Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock and warrants may be found in Agreements Involving the Company s Securities;
Transactions Between the Rollover Shareholders and the Company  Agreements Involving the Company s
Securities  Series B Convertible Preferred Stock Transaction beginning on page 88.

Upon completion of this transaction, Allen & Co. received a success fee and Allen & Co. and the Company mutually
agreed to terminate Allen & Co. s engagement, because the purpose for its engagement had been achieved. Allen &
Co. did not continue its marketing efforts, provide any further advisory services or participate in any subsequent
negotiations on the Company s behalf.

By this time, all discussions with respect to the previous proposals received by the Company had terminated, as
described above, and the Company received no further communications with respect to any of the proposals.
Following the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock transaction, the Company refocused substantially all of its
attention on the operation of its business in the ordinary course on a stand-alone basis.

Negotiations Relating to the Merger

On April 24, 2013, all of the members of our Board of Directors held a regularly scheduled meeting. Mr. Rende, Ms.
Frankenthaler, and Messrs. Falcone and Gass were in attendance. Mr. Rende reviewed with our Board of Directors
and Messrs. Gass and Falcone the Company s financial statements for the one, two and eight months ended March 30,
2013, and discussed the anticipated third and fourth fiscal quarter losses, as well as the Company s need for between
$5,000,000 and $10,000,000 of additional funding to pay outstanding payables, plus additional funds to build
inventory for the upcoming fall and holiday selling seasons. Messrs. Lynch and Rende also presented the proposed
fiscal 2014 budget, discussed the Company s poor performance of its expansion into non-core product categories such
as dresses, sportswear and shoes. They also stressed the need for additional funding to pay vendors to ensure their
continued support of the business during the Company s return to focusing on core intimate apparel product offerings
such as bras, lingerie and corsets. Messrs. Gass and Falcone discussed the potential avenues for providing additional
financial support to the Company.
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Subsequent to the April 24, 2013 Board of Directors meeting, Messrs. Lynch and Gass discussed with Mr. Shonak the
possibility of Salus providing the Company with additional temporary financial support with an advance under the
Company s existing credit facility. On May 23, 2013, the revolving credit agreement with Salus was amended to
increase the first in last out tranche of the Company s line of credit by $5,000,000 to $14,000,000, and decrease the
revolving portion of the line of credit by the same amount, such that the maximum line of credit amount remained the
same. The terms of the first in last out tranche of the
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line of credit, including the interest rate, remained the same. Concurrently with the execution of the amendment, the
Company paid to the Lenders in cash a one-time fee of $50,000 and agreed to an increase in the Lender s collateral
monitoring fee from $4,500 to $12,500 per month.

On June 26, 2013, all of the members of our Board of Directors held a special meeting. Mr. Rende, Ms. Frankenthaler

and Mr. Cheliotis were in attendance. The purpose of the meeting was for the Board to reiterate the Company s need

for additional financing and the amounts required to satisfy its business objectives as previously discussed at the April
24, 2013 Board of Directors meeting.

On July 23, 2013, all of the members of our Board of Directors held a regularly scheduled meeting. Mr. Rende, Ms.
Frankenthaler, Messrs. Gass and Cheliotis and Vernon Young, Chief Risk Officer of Front Street Re, a subsidiary of
HGI, were in attendance. They reviewed a proposed third amendment to the Company s credit agreement to

temporarily remove the facility s existing $1,500,000 availability block and discussed the Company s weakening

financial condition. After discussion, our Board of Directors concluded that even with the removal of the $1,500,000

availability block as contemplated by the proposed amendment, the Company will continue to have limited liquidity.
Mr. Gass informed our Board of Directors that HGI understood the Board of Director s view of the importance of

working with the Lenders to increase the availability under the Company s credit facility.

On July 25, 2013, the Company s credit agreement with the Lenders was amended to remove the $1,500,000 credit line
block until October 31, 2013. However, the block was reinstated by Salus, effective October 10, 2013, in connection
with a subsequent amendment to the credit agreement which is described below. Through October 10, 2013, the initial
$1,500,000 of the outstanding balance under the revolving portion of the Company s line of credit bore interest at a
20% annual rate. Concurrently with the execution of the amendment, the Company paid to the Lenders a one-time
$50,000 cash fee.

On August 6, 2013, Mr. Cheliotis emailed Mr. Lynch a non-binding preliminary proposal letter from Five Island to
our Board of Directors regarding a potential going private transaction in which a group led by Five Island or its
affiliates would acquire the outstanding publicly traded common shares of the Company (excluding shares owned by
Five Island s acquisition group) in an all cash transaction ranging from $0.20 to $0.225 per share. Based on discussions
between Mr. Lynch and Messrs. Gass and Cheliotis following receipt of the letter, HGI s indication of interest was
highly contingent upon the Company s largest shareholders agreeing to form an investor consortium with HGI
affiliates to take the Company private.

On August 7, 2013, all of the members of our Board of Directors held a special meeting. Mr. Rende and Ms.
Frankenthaler were in attendance. They discussed the Five Island proposal and the Board of Directors fiduciary
obligations to the Company and its shareholders in connection with its consideration of the proposed transaction. As
our Board of Directors had done previously in connection with its review of strategic alternatives for the Company,
Mr. Walters was appointed by the Board of Directors to coordinate the full Board s review and negotiation of the HGI
proposal.

On September 26, 2013, after a period of extensive negotiations, HGI successfully formed a consortium with our
largest shareholders, which was comprised of HGI Funding (a subsidiary of HGI and successor in interest to Five
Island), TTG, TKZ, Fursa and Arsenal. Also on September 26, 2013, Mr. Cheliotis delivered to Mr. Lynch a
non-binding, written proposal from the Consortium to acquire all of the outstanding shares of the Company s Common
Stock that they did not directly or indirectly own at a price of $0.23 per share.

On September 27, 2013, the Company issued a press release announcing that the Consortium s proposal had been
received. Also on that day, all of the members of our Board of Directors held a special meeting. Mr. Rende, Ms.
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Frankenthaler and Graubard Miller were in attendance. The Board discussed the Consortium s proposal and (i)
appointed Mr. Walters, the sole disinterested, independent director, as the Lead Director, with the power to evaluate
and negotiate the terms and conditions of the proposed transaction, (ii) authorized the Lead Director to hire his own

legal, financial and other advisors and (iii) made the recommendation of the Lead Director a requirement for approval
of the proposed transaction. Our Board of Directors did not consider electing additional independent directors to assist
the Lead Director in negotiating with the Consortium. Messrs. Lynch and Rende then reviewed with our Board of
Directors the Company s financial condition, and informed them that the Lenders were preparing an amendment to the
credit agreement to increase the
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Company s line of credit by an additional $5,000,000, which was expected to close quickly. Subsequently, Mr.
Walters, after considering whether a conflict of interest existed, decided to use Graubard Miller, the Company s
outside general counsel, as his counsel with respect to the Merger. Mr. Walters concluded that no conflict of interest
existed because he determined that it was in the best interests of both the Company and the Lead Director to seek the
most favorable terms for the Merger. Further, he observed that Graubard Miller did not have a relationship with any of
the Rollover Shareholders (except to the extent the firm advised the Board of Directors) and each of the Rollover
Shareholders was represented by separate legal counsel in connection with and prior to the Consortium s proposal. Mr.
Walters reserved the right to retain separate counsel at any time.

On September 30, 2013, the Lead Director emailed Messrs. Gass and Cheliotis, confirming his role as Lead Director
and the role of Graubard Miller as his counsel and informing them of his intention to retain a financial advisor. He
also suggested a time for the parties to meet in person to discuss background issues and transaction terms, including
merger consideration, after retaining and receiving input from the financial advisor.

On October 3, 2013, following discussions with several investment banking firms, the Lead Director retained Cassel
Salpeter as his financial advisor in connection with the proposed going private transaction.

On October 4, 2013, the Lead Director and Mr. Lynch met with Messrs. Gass and Cheliotis at HGI s offices. The Lead
Director reviewed the process the Company had conducted over the past year to explore strategic alternatives,
including the Company s negotiations with other parties. He also reviewed the timeline of discussions between the
Company and HGI leading up to the presentation of the Consortium s going private proposal, and reviewed the
deterioration of the Company s financial condition and relationships with key vendors over this period of time. The
parties agreed to meet again on October 11, 2013 for further discussions.

On October 8, 2013, all of the members of our Board of Directors held a special meeting to consider a fourth
amendment to the Company s credit agreement proposed by Salus. Mr. Rende and Ms. Frankenthaler were in
attendance. The Board reviewed the terms of the amendment proposed by Salus, which would provide an immediate
$5,000,000 advance to the Company and up to an additional $6,000,000 advance to become available upon the closing
of the proposed going private Merger transaction with the Consortium to be used to cover Merger related expenses,
including the merger consideration to the Company s Public Shareholders. The Lead Director informed our Board of
Directors that he had retained Cassel Salpeter and provided the Board of Directors with an update on the October 4,
2013 meeting with Messrs. Gass and Cheliotis.

On October 10, 2013, the Company s credit agreement was amended to provide an immediate $5,000,000 advance and
up to an additional $6,000,000 advance to become available upon the closing of the proposed going private transaction
with HGI. The unpaid principal of the $5,000,000 advance currently bears annual interest at the LIBOR rate plus
11.5%, but not less than an annual rate of 14%. In addition, the $1,500,000 credit block which had been removed in
July 2013 was reinstated. In connection with the amendment, the Company and the Lenders agreed to an additional
origination fee equal to the greater of (i) $110,000, or (ii) 1% of the amount funded by the Lenders in respect of the
$11,000,000 in total advances, $50,000 of which was paid in cash on the amendment date and the balance of which
will be paid on the closing of the Merger, or earlier under certain circumstances. The Company issued a press release
announcing the execution of the credit agreement amendment.

On October 11, 2013, Milbank distributed a first draft of the Merger Agreement to the Lead Director and Graubard
Miller. Between October 11 and December 18, 2013, Mr. Cheliotis, the Lead Director, Milbank and Graubard Miller
negotiated and revised the draft Merger Agreement.
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On October 11, 2013, the Lead Director and Mr. Lynch met with Messrs. Gass and Cheliotis at HGI s offices to
negotiate the per share merger consideration for shares held by the Company s Public Shareholders. Mr. Rende
participated by telephone. The Lead Director rejected the Consortium s $0.23 per share offer as inadequate. In seeking
to obtain the highest per-share consideration for the unaffiliated shareholders, the Lead Director argued that the
merger consideration in a going private transaction typically represents a 50% premium to the closing price on the
trading day prior to the announcement of a proposal, but in this case, the
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$0.23 per share offer represented only 27% premium. After discussion, Messrs. Gass and Cheliotis asked for the Lead
Director s input on the latest draft of the Merger Agreement before continuing merger consideration discussions.

On October 15, 2013, at the Lead Director s request, the Lead Director and Messrs. Lynch and Rende met with Mr.
Cheliotis at HGI s offices. The Lead Director stressed the importance of closing the proposed transaction expeditiously
given the Company s deteriorating financial condition. The Lead Director proposed that Mr. Cheliotis consider a

tender offer followed by a short form merger as an alternative to the proposed one-step merger transaction. Mr.

Cheliotis rejected that proposal, stating that the Consortium preferred the certainty of a one-step merger transaction,
primarily because a successful tender would be difficult to achieve given the large number of Public Shareholders who
own a small amount of shares. Accordingly, a substantial number of the Company s Public Shareholders would need to

participate for the Consortium to acquire the 90% of shares of Common Stock required for a short form merger. In

addition, the Consortium noted the disproportionate costs it would bear in obtaining the tenders of the Public
Shareholders. However, he did indicate that he would continue to consider increasing the merger consideration to be
paid to the Company s Public Shareholders while simultaneously negotiating the other Merger Agreement terms.

On October 16, 2013, Mr. Cheliotis communicated to the Lead Director and Mr. Lynch that the Consortium would
agree to a 10% increase in the per share merger consideration to be paid to the Company s Public Shareholders, and
would not consider any further increases in merger consideration until after negotiation of the terms of the Merger
Agreement and related documents had concluded. The Lead Director believed that a greater premium over the closing
price on the trading day prior to the announcement of the proposal was justified and that the Consortium could be
persuaded to further increase its offer.

Also on October 16, 2013, all of the members of our Board of Directors held a regularly scheduled meeting. Mr.
Rende, Ms. Frankenthaler and Graubard Miller were in attendance. Messrs. Lynch and Rende reviewed the status of
outstanding payables and discussed our continued underfinanced position, even with the recent $5,000,000 advance

from Salus. They discussed the Company not meeting its sales plan as a result of starting the fiscal year over

$2,000,000 below required inventory levels. Mr. Lynch informed our Board of Directors that he had scheduled a
meeting with Salus and Messrs. Gass and Cheliotis for October 21, 2013 to provide a business update and to discuss

the transaction process, especially in light of the timing and importance of the Company procuring inventory and

executing sales during the upcoming holiday season. The Lead Director updated our Board of Directors on his
meetings with Messrs. Gass and Cheliotis, and explained that negotiations regarding merger consideration and Merger
Agreement terms were in process. Graubard Miller reviewed the substantive provisions being negotiated in connection
with the Merger Agreement, including, among other things, the ability for the Lead Director to terminate the
agreement upon acceptance of a superior proposal, a go shop provision and a majority of minority voting requirement.
At this meeting, our Board of Directors approved compensating the Lead Director for serving as Lead Director in the
amount of $5,000 per month for a minimum of four months commencing as of September 1, 2013. Mr. Lynch also

confirmed that to date, there had been no discussions with HGI regarding post-transaction employment arrangements.

On October 18, 2013, Graubard Miller distributed the Lead Director s initial comments to Milbank s draft of the
Merger Agreement to the Rollover Shareholders and their counsel.

On October 21, 2013, Messrs. Lynch, Gass, Cheliotis and Young met with Mr. Shonak and Andrew Moser, President
of Salus, at the Lenders offices in Boston. Mr. Rende participated by phone. They discussed the Company s financial
condition and Mr. Lynch provided a general business update.

On October 24, 2013, the Lead Director and Messrs. Lynch and Rende met with Mr. Cheliotis to continue
negotiations on the proposed going private transaction. The Lead Director proposed including a majority of the
minority voting provision in the Merger Agreement. Mr. Cheliotis rejected this primarily because the vote would be
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relatively small dollar value, and would entail significant expenditure on the part of the Company to obtain the
requisite shareholder participation. Mr. Cheliotis indicated that the Consortium was willing to consider adding other
shareholder protections such as a limited go shop provision (along with the payment of a termination fee if the

Company accepts a superior proposal). After
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discussion, Mr. Cheliotis suggested a meeting including himself, the Lead Director, Messrs. Lynch and Rende and
Ms. Frankenthaler, Milbank and Graubard Miller to settle any outstanding Merger Agreement issues and to complete
the merger consideration negotiations.

On October 29, 2013, the Lead Director, Mr. Cheliotis, Mr. Lynch, Ms. Frankenthaler, Milbank and Graubard Miller
met at Milbank s offices. Mr. Rende participated by telephone. At the meeting, Mr. Cheliotis proposed the addition of
alimited go shop provision, indicating that it was in lieu of a further increase in the merger consideration. The Lead
Director was interested in a limited go shop provision, but rejected the concept of it being in lieu of a further increase
in merger consideration, noting that the Company had agreed to move forward without a majority of minority vote.
Mr. Cheliotis agreed to discuss a further merger consideration increase with the Consortium and to address it with the
Lead Director once the negotiation of the other terms of the Merger Agreement had concluded.

On October 30, 2013, the Company opened its electronic data room to Milbank.

On November 6, 2013, Milbank circulated a revised draft of the Merger Agreement. At Graubard Miller s request,
Milbank, Ms. Frankenthaler and Graubard Miller had a call to discuss the termination provisions included in the
Merger Agreement as revised.

On November 8, 2013, at the Lead Director s request, the Lead Director and Mr. Cheliotis held a conference call. They
discussed the termination fee payable to the Company and the Company having the ability to seek specific
performance in certain circumstances. Mr. Cheliotis suggested that they discuss the termination fee issue, as well as
continuing to negotiate merger consideration, at a follow up meeting to be held on November 11, 2013.

Also on November 8, 2013, Milbank circulated drafts of the ancillary transaction agreements, including the Voting
Agreement, Rollover Agreement and Series A Preferred Stock Purchase and Sale Agreement. On November 9, 2013,
Ms. Frankenthaler and Graubard Miller discussed modifying the Voting Agreement so that it would terminate upon
termination of the Merger Agreement. Later the same day, Graubard Miller proposed the revision to Milbank. There
were no discussions between the Lead Director and the Consortium Members relating to material terms of the
Rollover Agreement and the Series A Preferred Stock Purchase and Sale Agreements, as to which the Company was
not a party.

On November 11, 2013, the Lead Director, Messrs. Lynch and Rende and Mr. Cheliotis held a call to follow up on the
discussion from the November 8, 2013 call between the Lead Director and Mr. Cheliotis. With respect to the
termination fee issue, Mr. Cheliotis agreed to permit the Company to seek specific performance in certain
circumstances. He and the Lead Director also resolved an issue relating to the timing of the closing date and continued
to negotiate merger consideration.

On November 15, 2013, at the Lead Director s request, the Lead Director and Mr. Cheliotis had a call to discuss the
Voting Agreement. The Lead Director requested that the Voting Agreement be modified to terminate upon
termination of the Merger Agreement, and Mr. Cheliotis agreed. The Lead Director also continued to request an
increase in the merger consideration to be paid to the Company s Public Shareholders.

On November 21, 2013, Mr. Cheliotis emailed Mr. Walters the Consortium s final offer for a transaction with the
Company. Under the terms of the final offer, Parent would acquire all of the Company s outstanding Common Stock of
the Public Shareholders in a merger transaction with per share merger consideration of $0.27, which the Lead Director

accepted. In accepting the $0.27 per share offer, Mr. Walters considered, among other things, that it represented a
premium of approximately 50% to the closing price of the Company s Common Stock on September 27, 2013, the last
trading day before the announcement by the Consortium Members of their initial proposal. He also weighed the $0.27
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per share offer against the Company s current precarious financial position, and the fact that, in a bankruptcy, the
holders of the Company s Common Stock would likely receive no value, and concluded that agreeing to the $0.27 per
share offer was a better alternative to the unaffiliated shareholders. The final offer was conditioned on the completion
of a review of the change of control provision contained in employment agreements of Messrs. Lynch and Rende and
Ms. Frankenthaler, which were identical other than the payment amounts.
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Between November 22, 2013 and December 17, 2013, Graubard Miller, Milbank, Messrs. Lynch and Cheliotis and
Ms. Frankenthaler discussed the applicability of the change of control payments to this transaction. They also
discussed the change of control payment amount that would be payable to Mr. Lynch ($675,000), Mr. Rende
($387,500) and Ms. Frankenthaler ($337,500) if they were terminated after the consummation of the Merger.

On December 3, 2013, Mr. Cheliotis confirmed with Mr. Lynch that under the existing employment agreements, the
change of control payments to Mr. Lynch, Mr. Rende and Ms. Frankenthaler would be payable upon a termination of
employment by the Company after the completion of the Merger. He also required that, prior to the execution of the
Merger Agreement, he and Mr. Lynch negotiate an amended employment agreement for Mr. Lynch to serve as Chief

Executive Officer to take effect following, and only in the event of, the completion of the Merger.

Between December 3, 2013 and December 17, 2013, Messrs. Cheliotis and Lynch negotiated an employment

agreement for Mr. Lynch to take effect following, and only in the event of, the completion of the Merger. The
employment agreement was executed in connection with the execution of the Merger Agreement. The change of

control provision in Mr. Lynch s existing employment agreement was not included in the new employment agreement.

On December 18, 2013, the Lead Director held a meeting with Graubard Miller, Ms. Frankenthaler and Cassel
Salpeter. The Lead Director reviewed the timeline and process and progress of the negotiations with the Consortium,
and, among other things, discussed his efforts to obtain the highest merger consideration for the Company s
unaffiliated shareholders. Graubard Miller then reviewed the Lead Director s fiduciary duties in connection with his
consideration of the final offer from the Consortium, and provided a detailed review of the terms of the Merger
Agreement, including, among other things, the termination provisions and the nature of the fiduciary outs contained in
the Merger Agreement.

At the request of the Lead Director, Cassel Salpeter then reviewed and discussed its financial analyses with respect to
the Company and the proposed Merger. Thereafter, Cassel Salpeter rendered its oral opinion to the Lead Director
(which was confirmed in writing by delivery of Cassel Salpeter s written opinion dated the same date), as to, as of

December 18, 2013, the fairness, from a financial point of view, to the Company s Public Shareholders of the merger

consideration to be received by such holders in the Merger pursuant to the Merger Agreement. The full text of the
written opinion of Cassel Salpeter, which describes, among other things, the assumptions, qualifications, limitations
and other matters considered in connection with the preparation of its opinion is attached as Annex B.

After discussion, the Lead Director adopted resolutions declaring the Merger Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereby, including the Merger, to be advisable, and fair to and in the best interests of the Company s
unaffiliated shareholders and recommended that our Board of Directors approve the Merger Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereby, including the Merger.

Later that day, a special meeting of the Board of Directors was convened with all directors present. Mr. Rende, Ms.
Frankenthaler and Graubard Miller were in attendance. Messrs. Harley and Lynch recused themselves from the

deliberations and left the meeting because they have interests in the Merger different from the interests of the
Company s unaffiliated shareholders generally, as described in  Special Factors

Interests of the Company s Directors
and Executive Officers in the Merger beginning on page 60. The Lead Director first summarized the basic terms of the
proposed Merger Agreement and Merger. He then reviewed the history of the Company s efforts to obtain funding and

execute strategic alternatives to address the challenges the Company has faced with its business, including the
Consortium s proposed going private transaction. The Lead Director next reviewed the timeline, process and progress
of the negotiations with the Consortium, and, among other things, discussed his efforts to obtain the highest merger
consideration for the Company s unaffiliated shareholders. Graubard Miller then reviewed our Board of Directors
fiduciary obligations to the Company and its shareholders in connection with its consideration of the proposed going
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private transaction. He then provided a detailed review of the terms of the Merger Agreement, including, among other
things, the termination provisions and the nature of the fiduciary outs contained in the draft Merger Agreement. Our
Board of Directors considered the positive and negative factors and risks in connection with the proposed Merger
transaction as discussed in Special Factors Reasons for the Merger;
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Recommendation of the Lead Director and of the Board of Directors; Fairness of the Merger beginning on page 35.
Our Board of Directors, on the basis of the Lead Director s recommendation, with the unanimous vote of all present,
adopted resolutions: declaring the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the
Merger, to be advisable, and fair to and in the best interests of the Company s unaffiliated shareholders; approving and
adopting the Merger Agreement; and authorizing certain Company officers to take necessary actions to effect the
transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, including the preparation of this proxy statement, solicitation of
shareholder approval of the Merger Agreement, holding a special meeting of shareholders for such purpose, and
preparing and filing documents required by applicable law.

On December 18, 2013, the Company executed the Merger Agreement with Parent and Merger Sub and the Company
publicly announced the signing of the Merger Agreement on December 19, 2013.

The Merger Agreement generally provides that we may not solicit alternative Takeover Proposals (as defined in the
Merger Agreement and described in  The Merger Agreement  Other Covenants and Agreements  Limited Solicitation
on page 80), but we may engage in a limited solicitation of 12 designated parties. Ten of the 12 designated parties are
companies the Lead Director believed to have expressed a credible interest in a strategic transaction with the
Company during the marketing efforts conducted by Allen & Co. between June 2012 and March 2013, including all of
the Proposing Parties. Another designated party is a brand company new to our industry that communicated with the
Company for business purposes and which the Lead Director believed to be a prospect for an alternative transaction.
Another designated party is one of the Company s licensing partners which had conversations with the Company
concerning a possible strategic transaction prior to Allen & Co. s marketing efforts. All 12 of the designated parties
were contacted to determine whether they would be interested in a transaction with us that would be superior to the
transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, including the Consortium s agreement to pay the unaffiliated
shareholders $0.27 per share. Five of the parties, including the Specialty Retailer and the PE Firm, expressly declined
to make an offer to acquire the Company. Three of the parties did not respond to communications from the Lead
Director or Mr. Lynch. The Lead Director received inquiries from four of the parties, including the Foreign Strategic
Party and the Second PE Firm, requesting more information. We notified Parent of the inquiries as required under the
Merger Agreement. We entered into non-disclosure agreements with all four of these parties and gave each of them
access to the Company s electronic data room and the opportunity to communicate with management. All four of these
parties expressly declined to make an offer to acquire the Company.

Between January 29, 2014 and February 28, 2014, Messrs. Lynch and Rende provided updates to Messrs. Falcone,
Gass and Cheliotis and Mr. George Nicholson of HGI and separately to Salus through Mr. Shonak and Andrew
Moser, President of Salus, regarding the Company s financial condition. Messrs. Lynch and Rende discussed with
them possible ways to alleviate the Company s limited liquidity and to obtain the funding needed to pay vendors to
assure goods are shipped. In the course of these discussions, Mr. Lynch proposed to Mr. Moser that Salus lift the
$1,300,000 availability block under the credit agreement and Messrs. Cheliotis and Nicholson suggested to Messrs.
Lynch and Rende the possibility of HGI purchasing a portion of the Company s outstanding payables from certain of
the Company s vendors.

On March 1, 2014, Salus counsel emailed Graubard Miller, Ms. Frankenthaler and Mr. Rende a draft of a proposed
Fifth Amendment to the Company s credit agreement (the Fifth Amendment ). In addition to requiring that the
Company hire a consultant to assist with developing a vendor payment plan, the draft contemplated extending the
repayment date of the $5,000,000 term loan advance under the credit agreement from April 10, 2014 to May 31, 2014
and that the Company raise at least $5,000,000 of capital. It also contemplated a one-time payment of $130,000 to
Salus and an increase in its monthly monitoring fee from $12,500 to $20,000.
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Between March 1, 2014 and March 7, 2014, Messrs. Lynch and Rende, Graubard Miller, Salus and Salus counsel
negotiated the terms of the Fifth Amendment. Following these negotiations, the Fifth Amendment was revised to
provide the Company with the option to either raise at least $5,000,000 of capital or to have another party purchase at
least $5,000,000 of its outstanding vendor payables.
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Between March 6, 2014 and March 19, 2014, Messrs. Lynch and Rende of the Company and Messrs. Cheliotis,
Young and Nicholson of HGI negotiated the structure of the vendor payables purchases. They reached an agreement
in principle for HGI to purchase at least $5,000,000 of the Company s outstanding payables from its five largest
vendors and to defer the Company s payment of that amount for 90 days.

On March 25, 2014, the Lead Director held a meeting with Graubard Miller and Ms. Frankenthaler. The Lead Director
reviewed the transactions contemplated by the Fifth Amendment, including the prospective vendor payables purchases
to be made by HGI. He considered that the Company was significantly past due on payables, and that pending orders
for new inventory may not be fulfilled. He also determined that the Fifth Amendment could provide the Company
with an arrangement that was necessary for it to continue to obtain inventory to operate its business. He concluded
that the transactions contemplated by the Fifth Amendment were in the best interests of the unaffiliated shareholders
and determined to recommend to the Board of Directors that it approve the Fifth Amendment and related agreements
and the contemplated transactions.

Following the Lead Director meeting, a special meeting of the Board of Directors was convened with all directors
present. Mr. Rende, Ms. Frankenthaler and Erik Frederick, the Company s Senior Vice President of Finance, were in
attendance. Messrs. Harley and Lynch recused themselves from the deliberations and left the meeting. The Board of
Directors (other than Messrs. Harley and Lynch), on the basis of the Lead Director s recommendation, unanimously

approved the Fifth Amendment and related agreements and the contemplated transactions.

On March 26, 2014, the Lenders and the Borrowers entered into the Fifth Amendment. Pursuant to the Fifth
Amendment, the Lenders agreed to extend the repayment date of the $5,000,000 term loan advance from April 10,
2014 to June 15, 2014. The Lenders also agreed to suspend the requirement that the Borrowers maintain a minimum
of $1,300,000 of availability under the revolving line of credit until June 16, 2014, at which time the Borrowers will
be required to maintain a minimum of $1,500,000 of availability. The Fifth Amendment also required that, by no later
than March 31, 2014, the Borrowers would either have (i) received cash proceeds of a capital infusion in an amount
not less than $5,000,000, in the form of equity or subordinated debt, on terms reasonably satisfactory to the Lenders,
which amount will be used entirely to reduce the outstanding balance under the credit agreement, or (ii) made
arrangements reasonably satisfactory to the Lenders to defer payment of at least $5,000,000 of the Company s
outstanding vendor payables.

On March 27, 2014, pursuant to arrangements deemed satisfactory by the Lenders, HGI, through its subsidiary HGI
Funding, purchased an aggregate of approximately $5,238,900 of the Company s outstanding payables from the
Company s five largest vendors and agreed to defer the payment of that amount for 90 days or until June 28, 2014. The

Fifth Amendment also required the Company to engage a consultant to assist in negotiating with vendors and
developing a vendor payment plan, and to present a proposed plan to the Lenders by April 4, 2014. The Company
satisfied both of these requirements. Concurrently with the execution of the Fifth Amendment, the Borrowers paid to
the Lenders a one-time $130,000 cash fee in consideration for the Lenders agreement to enter into the Fifth
Amendment. In connection with the Fifth Amendment, the Borrowers and the Lenders also entered into an amended
and restated fee letter which provides for an increase in the monthly monitoring fees from $12,500 to $20,000.

On April 14, 2014, we entered into an amendment to the Merger Agreement with Parent and Merger Sub, pursuant to
which the parties agreed to extend the termination date under the Merger Agreement from April 30, 2014 to June 15,
2014.
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Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of the Lead Director
and of the Board of Directors; Fairness of the Merger

The Lead Director

As described above, the Board of Directors delegated to the Lead Director the exclusive authority to review, evaluate,
reject, negotiate and, if appropriate, make a recommendation to the Board of Directors regarding the proposal from the
Consortium Members or any alternative thereto. The Lead Director evaluated, with the assistance of his legal and
financial advisors, the Merger Agreement and the Merger and, on
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December 18, 2013, determined that the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement and the Ancillary
Agreements, including the Merger, are advisable, and fair to, and in the best interests of, the unaffiliated shareholders
of the Company.

The Lead Director engaged his own financial advisor and received advice throughout the negotiations from outside
counsel to the Company. Since the Lead Director is an independent non-employee director, the Lead Director believed
that he could effectively represent the unaffiliated shareholders of the Company in negotiating the terms of the Merger

and did not believe it necessary to retain a separate unaffiliated representative to act solely on behalf of unaffiliated

shareholders of the Company for the purposes of negotiating the Merger.

The Lead Director also recommended to the Board of Directors that the Board:

determine that the Merger Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements and the transactions contemplated thereby,
including the Merger, are advisable, and fair to and in the best interests of the unaffiliated shareholders of the
Company;
approve the Merger and adopt the Merger Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements and the transactions
contemplated thereby, including the Merger;
recommend approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement by the shareholders of the Company and
direct that the Merger and the Merger Agreement be submitted to the shareholders of the Company for their approval
and adoption; and
approve the consummation of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Merger
Agreement, and the Ancillary Agreements, and the performance of the Company s obligations thereunder.
In the course of reaching the determinations and decisions, and making the recommendation, described above, the
Lead Director considered the following positive factors relating to the Merger Agreement, the Merger and the other
transactions contemplated thereby, each of which the Lead Director believed supported his decision:

all discussions with respect to the proposals for strategic transactions made during the Allen & Co. marketing process

had terminated by the time the Series B Preferred Stock transaction was completed because none of the proposals

resulted in any firm or economically viable offers that would have produced any value for the unaffiliated

shareholders;

that the Lead Director believed the merger consideration of $0.27 per share was more favorable to the unaffiliated

shareholders of the Company than the potential value that might result from the Company s only other alternative of

remaining a stand-alone public company, as the Company s financial condition continued to deteriorate because of

ongoing operating losses. The Lead Director considered the following risks and uncertainty associated with remaining

a stand-alone public company:

° the Company s significant liquidity issues;

the Company s limited availability under its line of credit for operations;

othe Company s merchandise vendors ceasing to ship new product without being paid in full for their past due
invoices, in which event the Company will not have sufficient capital resources to fund its planned activities;

othe Company s need for substantial additional capital, which the Company may not be able to secure on acceptable
terms or at all; and

othe voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy, restructuring or liquidation of the Company, in which the holders of the
Company s Common Stock may receive little or no value;

the current and historical market prices of the Common Stock, including the market performance of the Common
Stock relative to that of other participants in the Company s industry and general

36

o

The Lead Director 86



Edgar Filing: FREDERICK'S OF HOLLYWOOD GROUP INC /NY/ - Form PRER14A

TABLE OF CONTENTS

market indices, and the fact that the merger consideration of $0.27 per share represents a premium of approximately
50% to the closing price of the Company s shares on September 27, 2013, the last trading day before the
announcement by the Consortium Members of their initial proposal, and a premium of approximately 46% over the
average closing price of the Company s Common Stock for the 45 trading days prior to that date;
that, subsequent to the Company s announcement on September 27, 2013 of the Consortium Members initial proposal
to acquire the Company, no third party has submitted a proposal to the Company, the Lead Director or the Lead
Director s advisors regarding a potential transaction;
the Lead Director s understanding of the Company s business, assets, financial condition and results of operations, its
competitive position and historical and projected financial performance, and the nature of the industry in which the
Company competes, including that the Company has not reported an operating profit since fiscal year 2007 and since
that time has suffered from negative working capital and, in many years, deficit equity;
the uncertainty that the Company will be able to effect the changes to its operations necessary to improve its liquidity
and ultimately profitability;
the Lead Director s belief that the $0.27 per share merger consideration, which is $0.04, or approximately 17%, greater
than the Consortium Members original proposal of $0.23 per share, and $0.02, or approximately 8%, greater than the
$0.25 per share conversion price of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock purchased by Five Island in March 2013
(pursuant to which Five Island obtained beneficial ownership over a majority of our Common Stock), represents the
highest per-share consideration that could be obtained at that time in light of the negotiations that took place;
that the Company s net book value per share as of October 26, 2013 was approximately $(0.63), or $0.90
lower than the $0.27 per share cash merger consideration;

the efforts of the Lead Director and his advisors to negotiate and execute a Merger Agreement favorable to the
Company and the unaffiliated shareholders of the Company under the circumstances, and the fact that extensive
negotiations regarding the Merger Agreement were held between the Lead Director and his advisors, on the one hand,
and Parent, the Consortium Members and their respective advisors, on the other hand;
that the proposed merger consideration is all cash, so that the transaction allows the unaffiliated shareholders of the
Company to realize a fair value, in cash, for their investment and provides these shareholders certainty of value for
their shares, especially when viewed against the risks confronting the Company s business, including the risks set forth
in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended July 27, 2013 and the amendment to the
Annual Report attached to this proxy statement as Annexes F-1 and F-2;
that the Lead Director believed the merger consideration is fair in light of the Company s business, operations,
financial condition, strategy and prospects, as well as the Company s historical and projected financial performance;

the absence of material regulatory approvals or third party consents required to consummate the Merger;
the Lead Director s consideration of alternative outcomes, including bankruptcy, which the Lead Director concluded
were unlikely to provide a superior alternative to the Merger;
the financial analysis reviewed by Cassel Salpeter with the Lead Director, and the oral opinion of Cassel Salpeter to
the Lead Director (which was subsequently confirmed in writing by delivery of Cassel Salpeter s written opinion dated
the same date), as to, as of December 18, 2013, the fairness, from a financial point of view, to the Public Shareholders
of the merger consideration to be received by these holders in the Merger pursuant to the Merger Agreement, as more

fully described in Special Factors Opinion of the Lead Director s Financial Advisor beginning on page 41;
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the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, including:

the provision of the Merger Agreement allowing the Board of Directors to terminate the Merger Agreement in
°response to a Superior Proposal, subject to payment of a $300,000 termination fee and the reimbursement of

expenses up to $300,000;

that the Company would receive reimbursement of its expenses up to $300,000, if the Merger Agreement is
oterminated because of a material breach by the Parent and would receive a termination fee of $300,000 and

reimbursement of its expenses up to $300,000 if the Merger Agreement is terminated because of an intentional

material breach by the Parent while the Company stands ready and able to close; and
o-the Company s ability, under certain circumstances, to seek specific performance to prevent breaches of the Merger

Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms of the Merger Agreement;

the Company has financing arrangements already in place to fund the payment of the merger consideration;

the Lead Director s belief that he is fully informed about the extent to which the interests of the Consortium Members
and members of management in the Merger differed from those of the Company s other shareholders; and

the fact that, in the absence of the Merger, the Company will continue to incur significant expenses by remaining a
public company, including the legal, accounting, transfer agent, printing and filing fees and that those expenses could
adversely affect the Company s financial performance and the value of the Common Stock.

In the course of reaching the determinations and decisions, and making the recommendation described above, the
Lead Director also considered the following factors relating to the procedural safeguards that the Lead Director
believed were and are present to ensure the fairness of the Merger and to permit the Lead Director to represent the
unaffiliated shareholders of the Company, each of which safeguards the Lead Director believed supported his decision
and provided assurance of the fairness of the Merger to the unaffiliated shareholders of the Company:

the Lead Director is not an officer or controlling shareholder of the Company, or affiliated with any of the Rollover
Shareholders;
the Lead Director was adequately compensated for his services and his compensation was in no way contingent on his
approving the Merger Agreement;

the Lead Director will not personally benefit from the completion of the Merger in a manner materially

different from the unaffiliated shareholders of the Company;

the Lead Director had the power to retain, and retained, legal and financial advisors;

the Lead Director was involved in extensive deliberations over a period of over two months regarding the Consortium
Members proposal to acquire the Company, and was provided with full access to the Company s management in
connection with his due diligence;
the Lead Director had ultimate authority to decide whether or not to proceed with a transaction or any alternative
thereto, subject to the Board of Directors approval of the Merger Agreement, as required by New York law;
the Lead Director was aware that he had no obligation to recommend any transaction, including the proposal put forth
by the Consortium Members;
the Lead Director had the authority to take such actions as the Lead Director deemed necessary or appropriate in
connection with anti-takeover provisions;
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the Company is permitted to engage in a limited solicitation, to respond to unsolicited inquiries regarding acquisition
proposals under certain circumstances and, upon payment of a $300,000 termination fee to the Consortium Members,
to terminate the Merger Agreement to accept a Superior Proposal (as defined in the Merger Agreement and as
described in The Merger Agreement  Other Covenants and Agreements  Limited Solicitation beginning on page
80); and
the Lead Director made his evaluation of the Merger Agreement and the Merger based upon the factors discussed in
this proxy statement, independent of members of management and with knowledge of the interests of management
and the other directors in the Merger.
In the course of reaching the determinations and decisions, and making the recommendation described above, the
Lead Director considered the following risks and potentially negative factors relating to the Merger Agreement, the
Merger and the other transactions contemplated thereby:

the unaffiliated shareholders of the Company will have no ongoing equity participation in the Company following the

Merger, and that these shareholders will cease to participate in the Company s future earnings or growth, if any, or to

benefit from increases, if any, in the value of the Common Stock, and will not participate in any potential future sale

of the Company to a third party;

the participation in the Merger by the Rollover Shareholders and the fact that their interests in the transaction differ

from those of the unaffiliated shareholders of the Company;

the possibility that the Rollover Shareholders could, at a later date, engage in unspecified transactions including a

restructuring effort or the sale of some or all of the surviving corporation or its assets to one or more purchasers that

could conceivably produce a higher aggregate value than that available to shareholders in the Merger;

the risk of incurring substantial expenses related to the Merger, including in connection with any litigation that may

result;

the fact that there can be no assurance that all conditions to the parties obligations to complete the Merger will be

satisfied and that, as a result, it is possible that the Merger may not be completed even if the Shareholder Approval is

obtained;

the Merger Agreement s restrictions on the conduct of the Company s business prior to the completion of the Merger,

generally requiring the Company to conduct its business only in the ordinary course, subject to specific limitations,

which may delay or prevent the Company from undertaking business opportunities that may arise pending completion

of the Merger;

the risks and costs to the Company if the Merger does not close, including the diversion of management and employee

attention, potential employee attrition and the potential effect on business and customer relationships;

the receipt of cash in exchange for shares of Common Stock pursuant to the Merger will be a taxable transaction for

U.S. federal income tax purposes;

the possibility that, under certain circumstances under the Merger Agreement, the Company may be required to

reimburse the Parent expenses and/or pay a termination fee to the Parent; and

although the Company already has financing arrangements in place, the possibility that the debt financing necessary

for the Merger will not be funded at the time required by the Merger Agreement.

The Lead Director did not conduct a going concern valuation, because he believed the other factors he considered, as
described above, addressed the fairness of the Merger.

In the course of reaching his decision to recommend to the Board of Directors that they approve the Merger
Agreement, the Lead Director considered the liquidation value of the Company in the event the Merger was not
consummated, based on the going concern opinion provided by the Company s independent auditors in their audit
report included in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
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ended July 27, 2013. In doing so, the Lead Director relied on the estimate by the Company s management that the
liquidation value would be negative, after payment of anticipated liquidation expenses and repayment of its secured
debt.

Since the Company has not received any firm or economically viable offers concerning a potential acquisition of the
Company or similar fundamental transaction during the past two years from any party (other than the offer from the
Consortium Members that led to the Merger Agreement), as described in  Special Factors Background of the Merger
beginning on page 18, the consideration of any alternative or recent firm or economically viable offers was not a
factor available for the Lead Director to consider. However, the Lead Director did consider that no firm or
economically viable offers resulted from the marketing efforts in which the Company engaged during 2012 and 2013
with the assistance of a nationally recognized investment banking firm.

The Lead Director also considered the inclusion in the Merger Agreement of a requirement that at least a majority of
the unaffiliated shareholders approve the Merger and adopt the Merger Agreement, as described above in  Special
Factors Background to the Merger beginning on page 18. However, the Consortium Members rejected this provision.
The Lead Director determined that the other factors described above in favor of the Merger collectively outweighed
the omission of this provision.

The Lead Director also considered that, after the formation of the Consortium, the Rollover Shareholders expressed an
unwillingness to sell their stake in the Company to a third party, which likely would have a chilling effect on
proposals for alternative transactions. Notwithstanding this statement, the Lead Director believed that, if the terms of
an alternative transaction were sufficiently favorable, some or all of the Rollover Shareholders might in fact
participate in such an alternative transaction. Accordingly, the Company negotiated for the right under the Merger
Agreement to conduct a limited solicitation, to respond to unsolicited inquiries regarding acquisition proposals under
certain circumstances and to terminate the Merger Agreement and the Voting Agreement to accept a Superior
Proposal.

The foregoing discussion of the information and factors considered by the Lead Director includes the material factors

considered by the Lead Director. In view of the variety of factors considered in connection with his evaluation of the

Merger, the Lead Director did not find it practicable to, and did not, quantify or otherwise assign relative weights to

the specific factors considered in reaching its determination and recommendation. The Lead Director recommended
the Merger Agreement and the Merger based upon the totality of the information he considered.

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of five directors, one of whom, Mr. Lynch, is an employee of the Company, and two
of whom, Messrs. Harley and Lynch, have interests in the Merger different from the interests of the unaffiliated
shareholders of the Company generally. The Board of Directors delegated to the Lead Director the exclusive authority
to review, evaluate, reject, negotiate and, if appropriate, make a recommendation to the Board of Directors regarding
the proposal from the Consortium Members or any alternative thereto. On December 18, 2013, on the basis of the
Lead Director s recommendation and the other factors described below, the Board of Directors unanimously (with

Messrs. Harley and Lynch recusing themselves from the deliberations because they have interests in the Merger
different from the interests of the unaffiliated shareholders of the Company generally, as described in  Special
Factors Interests of the Company s Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger Interests of Executive
Officers beginning on page 61):

determined that the Merger Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements and the transactions contemplated thereby,

The Board of Directors 91



Edgar Filing: FREDERICK'S OF HOLLYWOOD GROUP INC /NY/ - Form PRER14A

including the Merger, are advisable, and fair to and in the best interests of the unaffiliated shareholders of the
Company;

approved the Merger and adopted the Merger Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements and the transactions
contemplated thereby, including the Merger;

recommended approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement by the shareholders of the Company
and directed that the Merger and the Merger Agreement be submitted to the shareholders of the Company for their
approval and adoption;
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approved the consummation of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, and the
Ancillary Agreements, and the performance of the Company s obligations thereunder; and
duly and validly approved for the purposes of, and authorized the taking of all other corporate actions required to be
taken, under the Company s certificate of incorporation and bylaws and pursuant to applicable law, including the
NYBCL, by the Board of Directors to authorize the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the
Agreements, including the Merger.
In determining that the Merger Agreement is advisable, and fair to and in the best interests of the unaffiliated
shareholders of the Company, and approving the Merger Agreement, the Merger and the other transactions
contemplated thereby, and recommending that the Company s shareholders vote for the approval of the Merger and the
adoption of the Merger Agreement, the Board of Directors (excluding Messrs. Harley and Lynch) expressly and
unanimously adopted the analysis of the Lead Director, which is discussed above. Messrs. Harley and Lynch recused
themselves from all deliberations concerning the Merger Agreement, the Merger and the other transactions
contemplated thereby because they have interests in the Merger different from the interests of the unaffiliated
shareholders of the Company generally, as described in  Special Factors Interests of the Company s Directors and
Executive Officers in the Merger Interests of Executive Officers beginning on page 61. Accordingly, the members of
the Board of Directors who deliberated on the Merger Agreement, the Merger and the other transactions contemplated
thereby were the Lead Director and Messrs. John Eisel and Peter Cole.

The foregoing discussion of the information and factors considered by the Board of Directors includes the material
factors they considered. In view of the variety of factors considered in connection with its evaluation of the Merger,
the Board of Directors did not find it practicable to, and did not, quantify or otherwise assign relative weights to the
specific factors considered in reaching its determination and recommendation. In addition, individual directors may
have given different weights to different factors. The Board of Directors approved and recommends the Merger
Agreement and the Merger based upon the totality of the information presented to and considered by it.

Opinion of the Lead Director s Financial Advisor

On December 18, 2013, Cassel Salpeter rendered its oral opinion to the Lead Director (which was confirmed in
writing by delivery of Cassel Salpeter s written opinion dated the same date), as to, as of December 18, 2013, the
fairness, from a financial point of view, to the Public Shareholders of the merger consideration to be received by such
holders in the Merger pursuant to the Merger Agreement. The summary of the opinion in this proxy statement is
qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the written opinion, which is included as Annex B to this proxy
statement and sets forth the procedures followed, assumptions made, qualifications and limitations on the review
undertaken and other matters considered by Cassel Salpeter in preparing its opinion.

The opinion was provided for the use and benefit of the Lead Director (in his capacity as such) and with the consent of
the Lead Director, the members of the Board of Directors (in their capacity as such) in connection with the Lead
Director s and, as applicable, the Board of Directors evaluation of the Merger. In addition, Cassel Salpeter consented to
the inclusion of the opinion and the summary of the opinion set forth below in this proxy statement. Cassel Salpeter s
opinion may not be used for any other purpose without Cassel Salpeter s prior written consent. Neither the opinion nor
the summary of the opinion and related analyses set forth in this proxy statement is intended to and they do not
constitute advice or a recommendation to any of the shareholders or any other security holders as to how such holder
should vote or act with respect to any matter relating to the Merger or otherwise. Cassel Salpeter s opinion should not
be construed as creating any fiduciary duty on Cassel Salpeter s part to the Company or any other party to the Merger
Agreement, any security holder of the Company or such other party, any creditor of the Company or such other party,
or any other person. Cassel Salpeter s opinion was just one of the several factors the Lead Director took into account in
making his determination to recommend that the Company board approve the Merger, including those described
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Cassel Salpeter s opinion only addressed whether, as of the date of the opinion, the merger consideration to be received
by the Public Shareholders in the Merger pursuant to the Merger Agreement was fair, from a
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financial point of view, to such holders and does not address any other terms, aspects, or implications of the Merger or
the Merger Agreement, the Rollover Agreement, the Voting Agreement or any arrangements, understandings,
agreements, or documents related to the Merger including, without limitation (i) any term or aspect of the Merger that
is not susceptible to financial analyses, (ii) the fairness of any portion or aspect of the Merger, or all or any portion of
the consideration, to any security holders of the Company or any creditors or other constituencies of the Company,
other than the Public Shareholders, or (iii) the fairness of the Merger or all or any portion of the merger consideration,
to any other security holders of the Company or any other person or any creditors or other constituencies of the
Company or any other person, nor the fairness of the amount or nature, or any other aspect, of any compensation or
consideration payable to or received by any officers, directors, or employees of any parties to the Merger, or any class
of such persons, relative to the merger consideration to be received by the Public Shareholders pursuant to the Merger
Agreement, or otherwise. Cassel Salpeter is not expressing any opinion as to the prices at which shares of the
Common Stock, the Company s Series A Convertible Preferred Stock or Company s Series B Convertible Preferred
Stock may trade, be purchased or sold at any time.

Cassel Salpeter s opinion did not address the relative merits of the Merger as compared to any alternative transaction
or business strategy that might exist for the Company, or the merits of the underlying decision by the Lead Director,
the Board or the Company to engage in or consummate the Merger. The financial and other terms of the Merger were
determined pursuant to negotiations between the parties to the Merger Agreement and were not determined by or
pursuant to any recommendation from Cassel Salpeter. In addition, Cassel Salpeter was not authorized to, and did not,
solicit indications of interest from third parties regarding a potential transaction involving the Company.

Cassel Salpeter s analysis and opinion were necessarily based upon market, economic, and other conditions as they
existed on, and could be evaluated as of, the date of the opinion. Accordingly, although subsequent developments
could arise that would otherwise affect its opinion, Cassel Salpeter did not assume any obligation to update, review, or
reaffirm the opinion to the Lead Director or any other person or otherwise to comment on or consider events occurring
or coming to its attention after the date of the opinion.

In arriving at its opinion, Cassel Salpeter made such reviews, analyses, and inquiries as Cassel Salpeter deemed
necessary and appropriate under the circumstances. Among other things, Cassel Salpeter:

Reviewed an execution version, received by Cassel Salpeter on December 16, 2013, of the Merger Agreement.
Reviewed an execution version, received by Cassel Salpeter on December 16, 2013, of the Rollover Agreement.
Reviewed an execution version, received by Cassel Salpeter on December 16, 2013, of the Voting Agreement.
Reviewed certain publicly available financial information and other data with respect to the Company that Cassel
Salpeter deemed relevant, including its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the most recent fiscal year, as amended by
amendment no. 1 thereto on Form 10-K/A, certain other communications to shareholders, and certain other publicly
available filings with SEC.
Reviewed certain other information and data with respect to the Company made available to Cassel Salpeter by the
Company, including financial projections with respect to the future financial performance of the Company for the
fiscal year ending July 26, 2014, prepared by management of the Company, which we refer to as the Company
Projections, and other internal financial information furnished to Cassel Salpeter by or on behalf of the Company.
Considered and compared the financial and operating performance of the Company with that of other companies with
publicly traded equity securities that Cassel Salpeter deemed relevant.
Considered the publicly available financial terms of certain transactions that Cassel Salpeter deemed relevant.
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Discussed the business, operations, and prospects of the Company and the proposed Merger with the
Company s management and certain of the Company s representatives.
Conducted such other analyses and inquiries, and considered such other information and factors as Cassel Salpeter
deemed appropriate.

In arriving at its opinion, Cassel Salpeter, with the Lead Director s consent, relied upon and assumed, without
independently verifying, the accuracy and completeness of all of the financial and other information that was supplied
or otherwise made available to it or available from public sources, and Cassel Salpeter further relied upon the
assurances of the Company s management that they were not aware of any facts or circumstances that would have
made any such information inaccurate or misleading. Cassel Salpeter is not a legal, tax, environmental, or regulatory
advisory firm and Cassel Salpeter did not express any views or opinions as to any legal, tax, environmental, or
regulatory matters relating to the Company, the Merger, or otherwise. Cassel Salpeter understood and assumed that
the Company had obtained or would obtain such advice as it deemed necessary or appropriate from qualified legal,
tax, environmental, regulatory, and other professionals. The Lead Director also advised Cassel Salpeter that the
Company does not prepare, and Cassel Salpeter did not have access to, long-term forecasts with respect to the future
financial performance of the Company, and the Lead Director directed Cassel Salpeter to use and rely upon, for
purposes of its analyses and opinion, the Company Projections, which with the Lead Director s consent Cassel Salpeter

assumed were reasonably prepared on a basis reflecting the best currently available estimates and judgments of
management of the Company with respect to the future financial performance of the Company, and that the Company
Projections provided a reasonable basis upon which to analyze and evaluate the Company and form an opinion. Cassel
Salpeter expressed no view with respect to the Company Projections or the assumptions on which they were based.
Cassel Salpeter did not evaluate the solvency of the Company or any other party to the Merger, the fair value of the
Company or any of its assets or liabilities, or whether the Company or any other party to the Merger is paying or
receiving reasonably equivalent value in the Merger under any applicable foreign, state, or federal laws relating to
bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent transfer, or similar matters, nor did Cassel Salpeter evaluate, in any way, the
ability of the Company or any other party to the Merger to pay its obligations when they come due. Cassel Salpeter
did not physically inspect the Company s properties or facilities and did not make or obtain any evaluations or
appraisals of the Company s assets or liabilities (including any contingent, derivative, or off-balance-sheet assets and
liabilities). Cassel Salpeter did not attempt to confirm whether the Company has good title to its assets. Cassel
Salpeter s role in reviewing any information was limited solely to performing such reviews as Cassel Salpeter deemed
necessary to support its own advice and analysis and was not on behalf of the Lead Director, the Board of Directors,
the Company or any other party.

Cassel Salpeter assumed, with the Lead Director s consent, that the Merger would be consummated in a manner that
complies in all respects with applicable foreign, federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations and that, in the
course of obtaining any regulatory or third party consents, approvals, or agreements in the Merger, no delay,
limitation, restriction, or condition would be imposed that would have an adverse effect on the Company or the
Merger. Cassel Salpeter also assumed, with the Lead Director s consent, that the final executed form of the Merger
Agreement would not differ in any material respect from the draft Cassel Salpeter reviewed and that the Merger would
be consummated on the terms set forth in the Merger Agreement, without waiver, modification, or amendment of any
term, condition, or agreement thereof that was material to its analyses or opinion. Cassel Salpeter also assumed that
the representations and warranties of the parties to the Merger Agreement contained therein were true and correct and
that each such party would perform all of the covenants and agreements to be performed by it under the Merger
Agreement. Cassel Salpeter offered no opinion as to the contractual terms of the Merger Agreement or the likelihood
that the conditions to the consummation of the Merger set forth in the Merger Agreement would be satisfied.

Management of the Company advised Cassel Salpeter that (i) the Company had been and was currently experiencing
significant liquidity issues, (ii) the Company only had a limited amount of availability under its line of credit for
operations, and (iii) if the Company s merchandise vendors did not continue to ship new product without being paid in
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beyond December 31, 2013. Management of the Company also advised Cassel Salpeter that the Company would
require substantial additional capital to operate on a standalone basis
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in accordance with the Company business plan underlying the Company Projections and the Company had not been
able to, and did not expect to be able to, identify or otherwise access any sources of equity or debt financing for the
future operations of the Company prior to the date that it would exhaust its remaining cash resources, if ever.
Management of the Company advised Cassel Salpeter that the inability of the Company to continue as a going
concern would likely result in a voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy, restructuring or liquidation of the Company in
which the Company could receive less than the value at which its assets were carried on the Company s consolidated
financial statements, and holders of Company Common Stock would likely receive little or no value and would likely
lose all or substantially all of their investment in the Company.

In connection with preparing its opinion, Cassel Salpeter performed a variety of financial analyses. The following is a
summary of the material financial analyses performed by Cassel Salpeter in connection with the preparation of its
opinion. It is not a complete description of all analyses underlying such opinion. The preparation of an opinion is a

complex process involving various determinations as to the most appropriate and relevant methods of financial
analysis and the application of those methods to the particular circumstances. As a consequence, neither Cassel
Salpeter s opinion nor the respective analyses underlying its opinion is readily susceptible to partial analysis or
summary description. In arriving at its opinion, Cassel Salpeter assessed as a whole the results of all analyses
undertaken by it with respect to the opinion. While it took into account the results of each analysis in reaching its
overall conclusions, Cassel Salpeter did not make separate or quantifiable judgments regarding individual analyses
and did not draw, in isolation, conclusions from or with regard to any individual analysis or factor. Therefore, Cassel
Salpeter believes that the analyses underlying the opinion must be considered as a whole and that selecting portions of
its analyses or the factors it considered, without considering all analyses and factors underlying the opinion
collectively, could create a misleading or incomplete view of the analyses performed by Cassel Salpeter in preparing
the opinion.

The implied multiple ranges and implied value reference ranges indicated by Cassel Salpeter s analyses are not
necessarily indicative of actual values nor predictive of future results, which may be significantly more or less
favorable than those suggested by such analyses. Much of the information used in, and accordingly the results of,

Cassel Salpeter s analyses are inherently subject to substantial uncertainty.

The following summary of the material financial analyses performed by Cassel Salpeter in connection with the
preparation of its opinion includes information presented in tabular format. The tables alone do not constitute a
complete description of these analyses. Considering the data in the tables below without considering the full narrative
description of the analyses, as well as the methodologies and assumptions underlying the analyses, could create a
misleading or incomplete view of the financial analyses Cassel Salpeter performed.

Unless the context indicates otherwise, share prices for the selected companies used in the selected companies analysis
described below were as of December 17, 2013, and estimates of financial performance for the Company were based
on the Company Projections. Estimates of financial performance for the selected companies listed below for the years
ending December 31, 2013 and 2014 were based on publicly available research analyst estimates for those companies.

Selected Companies Analysis

Cassel Salpeter considered certain financial data for the Company and selected companies with publicly traded equity
securities Cassel Salpeter deemed relevant. The selected companies were selected because they were deemed to be
similar to the Company in one or more respects including, the nature of their business, size and financial performance.
The selected companies with publicly traded equity securities were:
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Coldwater Creek Inc.
New York & Company, Inc.
The Wet Seal, Inc.
American Apparel, Inc.
Joe s Jeans Inc.
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Danier Leather Inc.
dELiA%*s, Inc.
The financial data reviewed included:

Enterprise value as a multiple of revenue for the latest twelve month period, or LTM Revenue.
Enterprise value as a multiple of the relevant company s projected revenue for the calendar year ended December 31,
2013, or CY 2013 P Revenue.
Enterprise value as a multiple of the relevant company s projected revenue for the fiscal year ended July 26, 2014, or

FY 2014 P Revenue.

Enterprise value as a multiple of the relevant company s earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization
for the fiscal year ended July 26, 2014, or FY 2014 P EBITDA.

Cassel Salpeter calculated the following multiples with respect to the selected companies:

Total Invested Capital Multiple of High Mean Median Low
LTM Revenue 0.59x 0.33x 0.27x 0.15x
CY 2013 P Revenue 0.59x 0.35x 0.28x 0.16x
FY 2014 P Revenue 0.56x 0.31x 0.27x 0.16x
FY 2014 P EBITDA 12.5x 7.1x 6.7x 3.3x

Taking into account the results of the selected companies analysis and its experience as investment bankers and
professional judgment, Cassel Salpeter applied multiple ranges to corresponding financial data for the Company.
Cassel Salpeter applied multiples of 0.30x to 0.35x to the Company s LTM Revenue, 0.30x to 0.35x to the Company s
CY 2013 P Revenue, 0.25x to 0.30x to the Company s FY 2014 P Revenue, and 6.5x to 7.5x to the Company s FY
2014 P EBITDA. The selected companies analysis indicated an aggregate implied enterprise value reference range for
the Company of $29,000,000 to $34,000,000 as compared to the implied enterprise value of the Company based on
the merger consideration of approximately $55,106,000.

None of the selected companies have characteristics identical to the Company. An analysis of selected publicly traded
companies is not mathematical; rather it involves complex consideration and judgments concerning differences in
financial and operating characteristics of the selected companies and other factors that could affect the public trading
values of the companies reviewed.

Selected Transactions Analysis

Cassel Salpeter considered certain financial data for the Company and the financial terms of the following business
transactions Cassel Salpeter deemed relevant. The selected transactions were selected because they involved
acquisition targets that were deemed to be similar to the Company in one or more respects including, the nature of
their business, size and financial performance. The selected transactions were:

Target Acquirer

Lucky Brand Dungarees, Inc. Leonard Green & Partners, L.P.
Maidenform Brands, Inc. Hanesbrands Inc.

True Religion Apparel Inc. TRLG Holdings, Inc.

Intermix, Inc. The Gap, Inc.

Warnaco Group, Inc. PVH Corp.

Charming Shops Inc. Ascena Retail Group Inc.
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Kenneth Cole Productions Inc. Kenneth D. Cole and Family of Kenneth D. Cole
Avenue Stores Versa Capital Management, Inc.

Boston Proper, Inc. Chico s FAS, Inc.

Urban Brands, Inc. GB Merchant Partners, LLC

VOLCOM, Inc. PPR S.A.
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The financial data reviewed included the enterprise value (calculated based on the consideration paid in the relevant
transaction) as a multiple of LTM Revenue.

Enterprise Value as a Multiple of High Mean Median Low
LTM Revenue 1.86x 0.87x 1.00x 0.09
In addition, Cassel Salpeter noted that the mean enterprise value as a multiple of LTM Revenue was 0.27x for those
selected transactions involving acquisition targets that had an EBITDA margin of less than 5% or that were acquired
in connection with a bankruptcy.

Taking into account the results of the selected transactions analysis and its experience as investment bankers and
professional judgment, Cassel Salpeter applied multiple ranges to corresponding financial data for the Company.
Cassel Salpeter applied multiples of 0.30x to 0.40x to the Company s LTM Revenue. The selected transactions
analysis indicated an aggregate implied enterprise value reference range for the Company of $25,000,000 to
$33,300,000 as compared to the implied enterprise value of the Company based on the merger consideration of
approximately $55,106,000.

None of the target companies in the selected transactions have characteristics identical to the Company. Accordingly,
an analysis of selected business combinations is not mathematical; rather it involves complex considerations and
judgments concerning differences in financial and operating characteristics of the target companies in the selected
transactions and other factors that could affect the respective acquisition values of the transactions reviewed.

Other Matters Relating to Cassel Salpeter s Opinion

As part of its investment banking business, Cassel Salpeter regularly is engaged in the evaluation of businesses and
their securities in connection with mergers, acquisitions, corporate restructurings, private placements and other
purposes. Cassel Salpeter is a recognized investment banking firm that has substantial experience in providing

financial advice in connection with mergers, acquisitions, sales of companies, businesses and other assets and other

transactions.

Cassel Salpeter received a fee of $75,000 for rendering its opinion, no portion of which was contingent upon the
completion of the Merger. In addition, the Company agreed to reimburse Cassel Salpeter for certain expenses incurred
by it in connection with its engagement and to indemnify Cassel Salpeter and its related parties for certain liabilities
that may arise out of its engagement or the rendering of its opinion. There has been no other material relationship in
the last two years, and no other material relationship is mutually contemplated, between Cassel Salpeter, its affiliates
or representatives and the Company or its affiliates.

Cassel Salpeter is a recognized investment banking firm which is regularly engaged in providing financial advisory
services in connection with mergers and acquisitions. The Lead Director selected Cassel Salpeter to act as his
financial advisor in connection with the Merger on the basis of Cassel Salpeter s experience in similar transactions and
its reputation in the investment community. The Lead Director also believed Cassel Salpeter s fee was proportionate to
the transaction size. In selecting a financial advisor in connection with the Merger, the Lead Director approached three
investment banking firms other than Cassel Salpeter, including Allen & Co. Allen & Co. declined to be considered
because the minimum fee it would accept was disproportionate to the size of the transaction based on the Consortium s
initial offer of $0.23 per share. The second firm declined because of its limited experience in rendering fairness
opinions in merger and acquisition transactions. The Lead Director selected Cassel Salpeter over the third firm
because Cassel Salpeter s fee was more commensurate with the transaction size.
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In accordance with Cassel Salpeter s policies and procedures, a fairness committee was not required to, and did not,
approve the issuance of the opinion.

Company Projections

As part of its financial planning process, the Company from time to time prepares financial projections for upcoming
fiscal years. In connection with the consideration of the Consortium Members proposal, the Lead Director and Cassel
Salpeter, the Lead Director s financial advisor, were provided on October 4, 2013 with previously prepared Company
Projections through fiscal year 2014. The Company does not, as a matter of course, publicly disclose projected
financial information.
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We have included these projections solely for the purpose of giving our shareholders access to certain nonpublic
information considered by the Lead Director and Cassel Salpeter in evaluating the Merger. The projections are, in
general, prepared solely for internal use in assessing strategic direction, related capital and resource needs and
allocations and other management decisions. Projections of this type are based on estimates and assumptions that, in
many cases, reflect subjective judgment, and which are subject to significant uncertainties and contingencies,
including apparel industry performance, general business, economic, regulatory, market and financial conditions, as
well as changes to the business, financial condition and results of operations of the Company. These factors, which
may prevent the financial projections or underlying assumptions from being realized, are difficult to predict, and many
of them are beyond the Company s control. Therefore, the projections are forward-looking statements and should be

read with caution. See Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Information beginning on page 68.

When preparing projections the Company makes assumptions based on its past performance, its current financial
condition and general economic conditions. When preparing the budget for fiscal year 2014, management assumed,
among other things:

Based on the receipt of additional financing and the assumption that further financing would be available, the
Company would be able to maintain sufficient inventory levels in fiscal year 2014. During fiscal year 2013, as a result
of the Company s liquidity issues, the Company was paying its product vendors beyond the normal payment terms.
Accordingly, the Company s vendors were not shipping and/or producing goods in a timely manner or in some cases
not at all and, as a result, the Company s inventory levels had been inadequate;
The Company s unsuccessful expansion into non-core product categories (dresses, sportswear and shoes) would be
significantly reduced and sold primarily through the Company s website;
The Company would be able to reduce costs related to its catalog and reallocate those resources to digital marketing
initiatives; and

The Company would use the additional financing to increase its overall marketing efforts.

There can be no assurance that the underlying assumptions (including those set forth above) will prove to be accurate,
that the projected results will be realized or that actual results will not be significantly different than projected. For
example, from May 2013 through January 2014, while the Company had obtained an additional $10,000,000 in
funding, through increases under the term loan portion of its credit facility, and had been reducing its non-core
product inventory, it continued to experience liquidity issues that adversely affected inventory levels of its core
product categories (bras, lingerie and corsets) and marketing efforts.

These projections were prepared solely for internal use and not for publication or with a view toward complying with
the published guidelines of the SEC regarding projections or with guidelines established by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants for preparation and presentation of prospective financial information. Our independent
registered public accounting firm has not examined, compiled or otherwise applied procedures to the financial
projections presented herein and, accordingly, has not, and does not, express an opinion or any other form of
assurance with respect to them. The Merger Agreement includes no representations by the Company or its
management as to this projected financial information. In light of the uncertainties inherent in projections of this type,
neither the Company nor any other person has expressed any opinion or assurance to shareholders on this information
or its achievability, and the inclusion of this information should not be regarded as an indication that the Company, the
Lead Director, the Rollover Shareholders, any of their representatives or anyone who received this information then
considered, or now considers, it to be necessarily predictive of actual future events.

The Company Projections do not reflect any impact of the Merger, nor do they take into account the effect of any
failure of the Merger to occur. None of the Company, the Lead Director, the Rollover Shareholders or any of their
representatives intends to update or revise the summary projected financial information set forth below to reflect
circumstances existing after the date when made, except as may be required by applicable securities laws.
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FY 2014 FY 2013 FY 2012 FY 2011

(3 in thousands) (Projected) (Actual)  (Actual)  (Actual)

Total revenues $126,799 $86,507 $111,406 $119,615
Total cost of goods 76,600 61,328 69,782 76,647
Gross margin 50,199 25,179 41,624 42,968
Total selling, general and administrative expenses 46,515 42,968 45,757 49,771
Impairment of long-lived assets and lease abandonment 2,939 1,910
Interest expense, net 2,047 2,137 2,224 1,483
Fair value gain on warrant (381 )

Net income/(loss) before tax 1,636 (22,484) (6,357 ) (10,196)
Income tax 100 38 75 134
Income/(loss) before discontinued operations 1,536 (22,522) (6,432 ) (10,330)
Loss from discontinued operations (1,725 )
Net income/(loss) 1,536 (22,522) (6,432 ) (12,055)
Adjusted EBITDA 5,142 (16,558) (1,120 ) (2,858 )

The above projections set forth, among other measures, the Company s projected adjusted EBITDA for fiscal year
2014 that was made available to the Lead Director and Cassel Salpeter. These measures were thought to be useful for
evaluating, on a prospective basis, the Company s potential operating performance. The Company defines adjusted
EBITDA as net income from continuing operations before preferred stock dividends in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, or GAAP, adjusted to exclude interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, stock
compensation, changes in the fair value of the warrant liability and impairment of long lived-assets.

Because adjusted EBITDA as calculated by the Company is a non-GAAP financial measure, this measure should not
be considered in isolation from, nor as a substitute for, net income as calculated in accordance with GAAP. Adjusted
EBITDA, as calculated by the Company, may not be comparable to similarly titled measures employed by other
companies. In addition, this measure does not necessarily represent funds available for discretionary use and is not
necessarily a measure of the Company s ability to fund the Company s cash needs. Adjusted EBITDA excludes certain
financial information compared to net income in accordance with GAAP, the most directly comparable GAAP
financial measure. Shareholders should consider the types of events and transactions that are excluded when reviewing
this financial information.

As required by the SEC in accordance with Regulation G, the tables below provide a reconciliation of net income (as
calculated in accordance with GAAP) to EBITDA.

FY 2014 FY 2013 FY 2012 FY 2011
(Projected) (Actual) (Actual) (Actual)
Income/(loss) before discontinued operations $ 1,536 $(22,522) $(6,432 ) $(10,330)
Plus:

($ in thousands)

Interest 2,047 2,137 2,224 1,483
Tax 100 38 75 134
Depreciation and amortization 1,414 1,672 2,460 3,122
Stock compensation 45 314 553 823
Impairment of long-lived assets 2,184 1,910
Fair value gain on warrant (381 )

Adjusted EBITDA 5,142 (16,558) (1,120 ) (2,858 )
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Purpose and Reasons of the Rollover Shareholders, Parent and
Merger Sub for the Merger

Under a possible interpretation of the SEC rules governing going-private transactions, each of the Rollover
Shareholders, Parent and Merger Sub may be deemed to be affiliates of the Company and, therefore, required to
express their purpose and reasons for the Merger to the unaffiliated shareholders of the Company. The Rollover

Shareholders, Parent, and Merger Sub are making the statements included in this section solely for the purpose of
complying with the requirements of Rule 13e-3 and related rules under the Exchange Act.

For the Rollover Shareholders, Parent and Merger Sub, the purpose of the Merger is to enable Parent to acquire
control of the Company, in a transaction in which the unaffiliated shareholders of the Company will be cashed out for
$0.27 per share of Common Stock. For Merger Sub, the purpose of the Merger is to effectuate the transactions
contemplated by the Merger Agreement. Following the Merger, Parent and the Rollover Shareholders will bear the
rewards and risks of the ownership of the Company and the Company s Common Stock will cease to be publicly

traded.

The Merger provides an opportunity for the Company s unaffiliated shareholders to immediately receive, in cash, a
substantial premium for their shares based upon the closing price of the Company s Common Stock on September 27,
2013, the last trading date before the Consortium s offer to acquire all of the outstanding shares of Common Stock of

the Company was announced. In addition, the Rollover Shareholders, Parent and Merger Sub believe the Merger is the
best way to address the Company s liquidity needs, as the Company (a) requires substantial additional capital to
operate on a standalone basis in accordance with the Company s business plan as informed by management and (b) has
not been able to, and does not expect to be able to, identify or otherwise access any sources of equity or debt financing
for the future operations of the Company prior to the date that it would exhaust its remaining cash resources, if ever.

The Merger will also allow the Rollover Shareholders to maintain a significant portion of their investment in the
Company through their obligations to make an equity investment in Parent via the rollover of their existing holdings
of Common Stock and Preferred Stock as described in  Special Factors  Financing of the Merger  Rollover
Financing beginning on page 38.

As stated in the Consortium s initial proposal letter for the Merger submitted to the Company, the Consortium decided
to pursue the Merger because they believe that the Company can be operated more effectively as a privately-owned
company. Recent market challenges have created a sharply competitive landscape and the Rollover Shareholders
believe, at this point in time in the Company s operating history, it is now more important than ever to embrace a more
entrepreneurial approach where the Company and its stakeholders are incentivized to grow and develop the Company s
products, brand and business with a longer term perspective. The Rollover Shareholders believe it is increasingly
difficult to develop this type of culture in a public company context, where the public markets are increasingly
focused on short-term results. As a privately-owned company, the Company would have increased flexibility to make
decisions that may negatively affect quarterly results but that may, over the long-term, increase the Company s value.
In contrast, as a publicly-traded company, the Company currently faces public shareholder pressure to make decisions
that may produce better short-term results, but which may over the long-term lead to a reduction in the per share price
of its publicly-traded equity securities. As a privately-owned company, the Company would also be relieved of many
of the other burdens and constraints imposed on public companies. The need for management to be responsive to
public shareholder concerns and to engage in an ongoing dialogue with public shareholders may at times distract
management s time and attention from the effective operation and improvement of the business.

Purpose and Reasons of the Rollover Shareholders, Parent and Merger Sub for the Merger 108



Edgar Filing: FREDERICK'S OF HOLLYWOOD GROUP INC /NY/ - Form PRER14A

For these reasons, the Rollover Shareholders, Parent and Merger Sub believe that private ownership is in the best
interests of the business and the organization and that the Merger is in the best interests of the Company s
shareholders.

49

Purpose and Reasons of the Rollover Shareholders, Parent and Merger Sub for the Merger 109



Edgar Filing: FREDERICK'S OF HOLLYWOOD GROUP INC /NY/ - Form PRER14A

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Positions of the Rollover Shareholders as to the Fairness of the
Merger

Under a possible interpretation of the SEC rules governing going-private transactions, the Rollover Shareholders
may be deemed to be affiliates of the Company and, therefore, are required to express their beliefs as to the
substantive and procedural fairness of the Merger to the unaffiliated shareholders of the Company. The Rollover
Shareholders are making the statements included in this section solely for the purpose of complying with the
requirements of Rule 13e-3 and related rules under the Exchange Act.

As described below, the Rollover Shareholders believe that the Merger is fair to the unaffiliated shareholders of the
Company on the basis of (i) the factors as described in  Special Factors Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of
the Lead Director and the Board of Directors; Fairness of the Merger beginning on page 35, which factors the
Rollover Shareholders agree with and adopt, and (ii) the additional factors described below. In this section and in
Special Factors  Positions of Parent, Merger Sub, HGI, Philip Falcone and Michael Tokarz as to the Fairness of the
Merger beginning on page 53, we refer to the Board to mean the Board of Directors other than Messrs. Harley and
Lynch, who recused themselves from all discussions by the Board of Directors relating to the Merger negotiations
(except to the extent their presence was specifically requested by the Lead Director) and all deliberations by the Board
of Directors with respect to the approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement and related agreements.

None of the Rollover Shareholders participated in the deliberations of the Lead Director or the Board regarding, or
received advice from the Company s legal advisor or the Lead Director s financial advisor as to, the fairness of the
Merger. As described in  Special Factors Interests of the Company s Directors and Executive Officers in the
Merger beginning on page 60, and in Special Factors Certain Effects of the Merger beginning on page 54, the

Rollover Shareholders have interests in the Merger different from those of the unaffiliated shareholders of the
Company by virtue of the Rollover Shareholders obligation to make an equity investment in Parent via the rollover of
their existing holdings of Common Stock and Preferred Stock.

The unaffiliated shareholders were represented by the Lead Director, who negotiated the terms and conditions of the
Merger Agreement and evaluated the fairness of the Merger, with the assistance of the Lead Director s financial
advisor and the Company s outside counsel. The Rollover Shareholders have not performed, nor engaged a financial
advisor to perform, any valuation or other analysis for the purpose of assessing the fairness of the Merger to the

unaffiliated shareholders of the Company.

Based on the Rollover Shareholders knowledge and analysis of available information regarding the Company, as well
as discussions with members of the Company s senior management regarding the Company and its business and the
factors considered by, and the analysis and resulting conclusions of, the Board and the Lead Director described in
Special Factors Reasons for the Merger, Recommendation of the Lead Director and the Board of Directors;
Fairness of the Merger beginning on page 35, with which the Rollover Shareholders agree and which analysis and
resulting conclusions the Rollover Shareholders adopt, the Rollover Shareholders believe that the Merger is
substantively fair to the unaffiliated shareholders of the Company. In particular, the Rollover Shareholders considered
the following:

the Rollover Shareholders are not willing to sell their stake in the Company to a third party or allow the Company to
merge with or be acquired by another entity; however, the Rollover Shareholders have not applied a minority discount
to the merger consideration even though the Rollover Shareholders believe that the possibility of a competing bid by
another party is highly unlikely;
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other than his receipt of Board of Director and Lead Director fees (which are not contingent upon the consummation
of the Merger or the Lead Director s or the Board of Director s recommendation or approval of the Merger) and his
interests described in  Special Factors Interests of the Company s Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger
beginning on page 60, the Lead Director has no financial interest in the Merger that is different from, or in addition to,
the interests of the unaffiliated shareholders generally, although the Merger Agreement does include customary
provisions for indemnity and the continuation of liability insurance for the Company s officers and directors;
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the Board determined, by the unanimous vote of the members of the Board, based on the recommendation of the Lead

Director, that the Merger is fair to, and in the best interests of, the Company and its unaffiliated shareholders;

the fact that the Company (i) had been and was currently experiencing significant liquidity issues and (ii) only had a

limited amount of availability under its line of credit for operations;

during the fiscal year ended July 27, 2013, the Company s (i) total net sales declined approximately 22.3% over the

prior year period, (ii) the net loss increased approximately 250%, and (iii) the working capital deficiency increased by

approximately 95%;

as a result of its continuing weak financial results, the Company experienced a coinciding decline in the market price

of its common stock;

management of the Company s belief that if the Company s merchandise vendors did not continue to ship new product

without being paid in full for their past due invoices, the Company would not have sufficient capital resources to fund

its planned activities beyond December 31, 2013;

the fact that the Company would require substantial additional capital to operate on a standalone basis in accordance

with the Company business plan;

the fact that the Company had not been able to, and did not expect to be able to, identify or otherwise access any

sources of equity or debt financing for the future operations of the Company prior to the date that it would exhaust its

remaining cash resources, if ever;

the possibility that (i) the Company s inability to continue as a going concern would likely result in a voluntary or

involuntary bankruptcy, restructuring or liquidation in which the Company could receive less than the value at which

its assets were carried on the Company s consolidated financial statements and (ii) in the event of a voluntary or

involuntary bankruptcy, restructuring or liquidation of the Company, the holders of the Company s Common Stock

would likely receive little or no value and would likely lose all or substantially all of their investment in the Company;

the per share merger consideration of $0.27 represents (i) a 50% premium to the closing price of the Company s

Common Stock on September 27, 2013, the last trading day before the announcement by the Consortium of its initial

proposal and (ii) a 46% premium over the average closing price of the Company s Common Stock for the 45 trading

days prior to September 27, 2013, the last trading day before the announcement by the Consortium of its initial

proposal;

the Merger will provide consideration to the unaffiliated shareholders of the Company entirely in cash, allowing the

unaffiliated shareholders of the Company to immediately realize a certain and fair value for their shares of Common

Stock and eliminating any uncertainty in valuing the consideration to be received by such shareholders;

the Merger shifts the risks relating to the Company s ability to continue as a going concern from the unaffiliated

shareholders to the Rollover Shareholders;

the Merger shifts the risk of future financial performance from the unaffiliated shareholders to the Rollover

Shareholders; and

the Merger allows unaffiliated shareholders to receive value for their stock, which would likely not be available if the

Company voluntarily or involuntarily liquidated.

The Rollover Shareholders did not establish, and did not consider, a pre-Merger public company going concern value
of Common Stock for the purposes of determining the per share merger consideration or the fairness of the per share
merger consideration to the unaffiliated shareholders of the Company because, following the Merger, the Company
will have a significantly different capital structure. However, to the extent the pre-Merger going concern value was

reflected in the pre-announcement per share price of Common Stock, the per share merger consideration of $0.27
represented a premium to the going concern value of the Company. In addition, the Rollover Shareholders did not
consider net book value of Common Stock because they believe that net book value, which is an accounting concept,
does not reflect, or have any meaningful
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impact on, either the market trading prices of Common Stock or the Company s value as a going concern. The
Rollover Shareholders did not consider liquidation value in determining the fairness of the Merger to the unaffiliated
shareholders of the Company because of (i) their belief that liquidation sales generally result in proceeds substantially
less than sales of a going concern, (ii) the impracticability of determining a liquidation value given the significant
execution risk involved in any breakup, (iii) their belief that the Company is a viable, going concern and (iv) the
Company s plans to continue to operate its business following the Merger.

The Rollover Shareholders believe that the Merger is procedurally fair to the unaffiliated shareholders of the
Company based upon the following:

the Lead Director conducted an extensive due diligence investigation of the Company before commencing
negotiations, which the Rollover Shareholders believe provided the Lead Director with the information necessary to
effectively represent the interests of the unaffiliated shareholders;

the Lead Director retained its own recognized financial advisor;
other than their receipt of Board of Directors and Lead Director fees (which are not contingent upon the
consummation of the Merger or the Lead Director s or the Board s recommendation or approval of the Merger) and
their interests described in  Special Factors Interests of the Company s Directors and Executive Officers in the
Merger beginning on page 60, the Lead Director, who is disinterested and independent and is not affiliated with the
Rollover Shareholders, Parent or Merger Sub, and who has no financial interest in the Merger that is different from, or
in addition to, the interests of the unaffiliated shareholders generally, was given exclusive authority to, among other
things, review, evaluate and negotiate the terms of the proposed Merger, to decide not to engage in the Merger and to
consider alternatives to the Merger;
the per share merger consideration of $0.27, and the other terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, resulted
from extensive negotiations between Parent and its advisors, on the one hand, and the Lead Director and his advisors,
on the other hand;
the Lead Director was deliberate in his process, taking over two months to analyze and evaluate the Consortium s
initial proposal and to negotiate with the Consortium the terms of the proposed Merger, ultimately resulting in a
$0.04, or 17%, per share increase in the merger consideration to be paid in connection with the Merger over that
initially proposed by the Consortium;
the Lead Director received an opinion of his financial advisor as to, as of December 18, 2013, the fairness, from a
financial point of view, to the Public Shareholders of the merger consideration to be received by such holders in the
Merger pursuant to the Merger Agreement;
the Board determined, by the unanimous vote of the members of the Board, based on the recommendation of the Lead
Director, that the Merger is fair to, and in the best interests of, the Company and its unaffiliated shareholders; and
shareholders who do not vote in favor of the Merger Agreement and who comply with certain procedural
requirements will be entitled, upon completion of the Merger, to exercise statutory appraisal rights under New York
law, which allow shareholders to have the fair value of their shares determined by a court; and
the fact that there are no unusual requirements or conditions to the Merger to provide the financing necessary to
consummate the Merger expeditiously, increasing the likelihood that the Merger will be consummated and that the
consideration to be paid to the unaffiliated shareholders of the Company in the Merger will be received.

The foregoing discussion of the information and factors considered and given weight by the Rollover Shareholders in
connection with the fairness of the Merger Agreement and the Merger is not intended to be exhaustive, but is believed
to include all material factors considered by them. The Rollover Shareholders did not find it practicable to, and did
not, quantify or otherwise attach relative weights to the foregoing factors in reaching their position as to the fairness of
the Merger Agreement and the Merger. Rather, the Rollover Shareholders made the fairness determinations after
considering all of the foregoing as a whole. The Rollover
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Shareholders believe these factors provide a reasonable basis upon which to form their belief that the Merger is fair to
the unaffiliated shareholders of the Company. This belief should not, however, be construed as a recommendation to
any Company shareholder to approve the Merger or adopt the Merger Agreement. The Rollover Shareholders do not
make any recommendation as to how shareholders of the Company should vote their shares of Common Stock relating
to the Merger.

The decision to undertake the going-private transaction at this time was made after taking into account the negative
effects that the Company s financial results have had on the Company s ability to take advantage of certain benefits of
being a public entity, including financing opportunities and an active, liquid market for its Common Stock. Despite
the capital infusion provided by the Series B Preferred convertible transaction and the recent increase in the amount of
funds available under the Company s credit facility, the Company continued to face significant liquidity and other
financial difficulties. The Company has not been able to, and does not expect to be able to, identify or otherwise
access any sources of equity or debt financing for the future operations of the Company prior to the date that it would
exhaust its remaining cash resources. In light of these factors, the Rollover Shareholders and the Lead Director have
determined that the costs and challenges associated with keeping the Company a public company far exceed the
benefits and that undertaking the going private transaction at this time would alleviate such costs and challenges.

Positions of Parent, Merger Sub, HGI, Philip Falcone and
Michael Tokarz as to the Fairness of the Merger

Under a possible interpretation of the SEC rules governing going-private transactions, Parent, Merger Sub, HGI,
Philip Falcone and Michael Tokarz may be deemed to be affiliates of the Company and, therefore, required to express
their beliefs as to the substantive and procedural fairness of the Merger to the unaffiliated shareholders of the
Company. Parent, Merger Sub, HGI, Mr. Falcone and Mr. Tokarz are making the statements included in this section
solely for the purpose of complying with the requirements of Rule 13e-3 and related rules under the Exchange Act.

None of Parent, Merger Sub, HGI, Mr. Falcone or Mr. Tokarz participated in the deliberations of the Lead Director or
the Board regarding, or received advice from the Company s legal advisor or the Lead Director s legal or financial
advisors as to, the fairness of the Merger to the Company s unaffiliated shareholders. Parent, Merger Sub, HGI, Mr.
Falcone and Mr. Tokarz considered the same factors considered by, and adopted the analysis and resulting
conclusions of, the Rollover Shareholders, as described in  Special Factors  Positions of the Rollover Shareholders as
to the Fairness of the Merger beginning on page 50. Based on the information and factors set forth in the foregoing
discussion, as well as Parent s, Merger Sub s, HGI s, Mr. Falcone s and Mr. Tokarz s knowledge and analysis of available
information regarding the Company, as well as discussions with members of the Company s senior management
regarding the Company and its business and the factors considered by, and the analysis and resulting conclusions of,
the Board and the Lead Director described in  Special Factors Reasons for the Merger, Recommendation of the Lead
Director and the Board of Directors; Fairness of the Merger beginning on page 35 (including, without limitation, the
Board s and Lead Director s analysis with respect to the Company s going concern value), with which Parent, Merger
Sub, HGI, Mr. Falcone and Mr. Tokarz agree and which analysis and resulting conclusions Parent, Merger Sub, HGI,
Mr. Falcone and Mr. Tokarz adopt, Parent, Merger Sub, HGI, Mr. Falcone and Mr. Tokarz believe that the Merger is
fair to the unaffiliated shareholders of the Company. Parent, Merger Sub, HGI, Mr. Falcone and Mr. Tokarz believe
that the foregoing information and factors provide a reasonable basis for their belief that the Merger is fair to the
unaffiliated shareholders of the Company. This belief should not, however, be construed as a recommendation to any
Company shareholder to approve the Merger or adopt the Merger Agreement. Parent, Merger Sub, HGI, Mr. Falcone
and Mr. Tokarz do not make any recommendation as to how shareholders of the Company should vote their shares of
Common Stock relating to the Merger.
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Plans for the Company after the Merger

After the Effective Time, neither the Company s corporate structure nor its business will change. Parent anticipates
that the Company will continue its current operations, except that it will (i) cease to be an independent public
company and will instead be a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent and (ii) have significantly more debt than it

currently has. There are no current plans to repay the debt taken out to finance
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the Merger, which is due on May 31, 2015 if the Merger is consummated. If the Merger is consummated, the
Common Stock will cease to be quoted on the OTCQB and will cease to be registered under the Exchange Act (via
termination of registration pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act). After the Effective Time: (i) no member of
the present Board of Directors of the Company will continue to serve as a director of the Company, and (ii) the
present directors of Merger Sub will become the directors of the Company. The named Executive Officers of the
Company immediately prior to the Effective Time will remain the named Executive Officers of the Company,
specifically Thomas J. Lynch and Thomas Rende, in each case until the earlier of their resignation or removal or until
their respective successors are duly elected or appointed and qualified, as the case may be. Parent has entered into a
new employment agreement with Thomas J. Lynch, the chief executive officer and chairman of the Board of Directors
of the Company, but has not entered into a new employment agreement with Mr. Rende or any other executive officer
of the Company.

Mr. Lynch s new employment agreement, which was negotiated after the Lead Director negotiated the merger
consideration of $0.27 per share in cash, will commence only upon the Effective Time. The new employment
agreement makes the following material changes to the terms of Mr. Lynch s employment: (i) the term of his new
employment will continue until the third anniversary of the Effective Time, unless terminated earlier as provided in
the agreement, or unless extended by mutual written agreement of the Company, Parent and Mr. Lynch, (ii) the
Company will pay Mr. Lynch a one-time cash signing bonus of $150,000, (iii) as additional compensation, Parent will
recommend to its board of managers that Mr. Lynch be granted an equity interest in Parent, representing
approximately 5% of the outstanding equity interests of Parent outstanding after the Merger, in the form of incentive
units that are part of a separate series of units from those being issued to the Rollover Shareholders and are subject to
vesting and other terms, to be made promptly, but in no event more than sixty days, following the Effective Time, (iv)
Mr. Lynch must deliver to the Company a general release of all claims in a form and substance acceptable to the
Company, in order to receive any payments upon termination of his employment (other than payments required by
law), and (v) the change of control provision in Mr. Lynch s existing employment agreement, which would have
provided him with a cash bonus of $675,000 if his employment was terminated under certain circumstances following
a change of control, was not included. For a full description of the employment agreements of Messrs. Lynch and
Rende, see Special Factors Interests of the Company s Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger beginning on
page 60.

Certain Effects of the Merger

If the Shareholder Approval is obtained and the other conditions to the Closing are either satisfied or waived, Merger
Sub will be merged with and into the Company, with the Company surviving as a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent.
Except for the Rollover Shareholders (and Mr. Lynch, upon his receipt of an equity interest in Parent, pursuant to his
new employment agreement, in the form of incentive units that are part of a separate series of units from those being
issued to the Rollover Shareholders and are subject to vesting and other terms), none of our current shareholders will
have any ownership interest in, or be a shareholder of, the Company after the completion of the Merger. As a result,
our current shareholders (other than the Rollover Shareholders and Mr. Lynch) will no longer benefit from any
increase in our value, nor will they bear the risk of any decrease in our value. Following the Merger, Parent (and Mr.
Lynch) will benefit from any increase in our value and also will bear the risk of any decrease in our value.

Upon the consummation of the Merger:
each issued and outstanding share of Common Stock held by the Public Shareholders will be converted automatically

into and will represent the right to receive $0.27 in cash, without interest and less any required withholding taxes, and
each share shall otherwise cease to be outstanding and shall otherwise automatically be cancelled and cease to exist;
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each issued and outstanding share of Common Stock that is owned by the Rollover Shareholders (all of which stock
shall, immediately prior to the Effective Time, be held indirectly by Parent pursuant to the terms of the Rollover
Agreement between Parent and each of the Rollover Shareholders, as described in  Agreements Involving the

Company s Securities; Transactions Between the Rollover
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Shareholders and the Company Agreements Involving the Company s Securities beginning on page 87)
immediately prior to the Effective Time shall cease to be outstanding and shall automatically be cancelled and shall
cease to exist;

each Company stock option (other than those held by Mr. Harley) that is outstanding immediately prior to the
Effective Time, whether or not vested or exercisable, as of the Effective Time, will be cancelled. Each holder will be
entitled to receive a payment, if any, in cash from the Company (less any applicable withholding taxes) promptly
following the Effective Time, equal to (a) the amount, if any, by which $0.27 exceeds the exercise price per share
with respect to the stock option, multiplied by (b) the total number of shares of Common Stock then issuable upon the
exercise of the stock option. As of the date of this proxy statement, the Company has outstanding options to purchase
360,000 shares with an exercise price of less than $0.27, which will be cancelled for an aggregate consideration of
$30,900. All of the Company s other outstanding stock options (including all of those held by the Company s directors
and Executive Officers) will be cancelled for no consideration;

each Company share-based award other than a stock option, including restricted share awards (other than those held
by Mr. Harley), whether or not vested, as of the Effective Time, will be cancelled. Each holder will be entitled to
receive a payment, in cash from the Company (less any applicable withholding taxes) promptly following the
Effective Time, equal to (a) $0.27 per share, multiplied by (b) the total number of shares of Common Stock
constituting the award. As of the date of this proxy statement, the Company has outstanding an aggregate of 737,194
shares subject to restricted share awards, which will be cancelled in exchange for aggregate consideration of
$199,042.38. These amounts include an aggregate of 578,694 shares subject to restricted share awards held by the
Company s directors (other than Mr. Harley) and Executive Officers, which will be cancelled for aggregate
consideration of $156,247.38;

each Company warrant (other than those held by Mr. Harley and the other Rollover Shareholders), whether or not
vested or exercisable, as of the Effective Time, will be cancelled. Each holder will be entitled to receive a payment, if
any, in cash from the Company (less any applicable withholding taxes) promptly following the Effective Time, equal
to (a) the amount, if any, by which $0.27 exceeds the exercise price per share with respect to the warrant, multiplied
by (b) the total number of shares of Common Stock then issuable upon the exercise of the warrant. However, any
Company warrant that will have no value after the Effective Time (because the warrant has an exercise price per share
that is greater than the merger consideration and, as of the Effective Time, the holder of the warrant will be entitled to
receive, upon exercise of the warrant, only the merger consideration multiplied by the number of shares subject to the
warrant), may remain outstanding. As of the date of the proxy statement, the Company has no outstanding warrants
(other than those held by one of the Rollover Shareholders) with an exercise price of less than $0.27 and, accordingly,
no consideration will be paid with respect to these warrants; and

each Company stock option and restricted share award held by Mr. Harley and each warrant held by Mr. Harley and
the other Rollover Shareholders, as of the Effective Time, will be cancelled on the terms and conditions set forth in
the Rollover Agreement between Parent and the Rollover Shareholders.

Following the Merger, the entire equity in the Company, as the surviving corporation, will be owned by Parent. If the
Merger is completed, the Rollover Shareholders (and Mr. Lynch, upon his receipt of an equity interest in Parent,
pursuant to his new employment agreement, in the form of incentive units that are part of a separate series of units
from those being issued to the Rollover Shareholders and are subject to vesting and other terms) will be the sole
beneficiaries of our future earnings and growth, if any, and will be entitled to vote on corporate matters affecting the
Company following the Merger. Similarly, the Rollover Shareholders (and Mr. Lynch, upon his receipt of such equity
interest) will also bear the risks of ongoing operations, including the risks of any decrease in our value after the
Merger and the operational and other risks related to the incurrence by the Company, as the surviving corporation, of

additional debt as described below in Special Factors Financing of the Merger beginning on page 58.
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If the Merger is completed, the Company s shareholders other than the Rollover Shareholders (and Mr. Lynch) will
have no interest in the Company s net book value or net earnings.

Following the Merger, the Rollover Shareholders (and Mr. Lynch, upon his receipt of an equity interest in Parent,
pursuant to his new employment agreement, in the form of incentive units that are part of a separate series of units
from those being issued to the Rollover Shareholders and are subject to vesting and other terms) will own 100% of
Parent (and thereby indirectly 100% of the Company). The following table sets forth, among other things, the
percentage ownership of the Company by each of the Rollover Shareholders and Mr. Lynch pre-and post-Merger, as
well as the interest in the net book value and net earnings of the Company of each of the Rollover Shareholders and
Mr. Lynch pre-and post-Merger.

Ownership of the Company
Prior to the Merger

Percentage
Interestin  Interest in Percentage
the Net the Net Interest in the Interest in the
OwnershiBOOk Value/ Book Net ot
Rollover Shareholder Percenta gglgareholdersValue/ Earnings/(Lossgarrlin S/(Loss)
eficiency) (Shareholderof the £
.. of the
of the Deficiency) Company® C
Company@ of the ompany
Company®
HGI Funding, LLC
Tokarz Investments, LLC 214% $(3,716 ) 214 % $(G,000 ) 214 %
TTG Apparel, LLC 45 % $(83 ) 45 % $(1,055 ) 45 %
Arsenal Group, LLC 289% $(5,033 ) 289 % $(6,784 ) 289 %
Fursa Alternative Strategies LLC 145% $(2,522 ) 145 % $@3B,399 ) 145 %
William F. Harley III 1.2 % $210 ) 12 % $(283 ) 1.2 %
Thomas J. Lynch® 15 % $265 ) 15 % $ (357 )y 15 %

Ownership of the Company After the Merger

Interest in the Percentage Percentage
Net Book Interest in the Interestin  Interest in
.Value/ Net Book the Net the Net
Ownershi . .
Rollover Shareholder Percenta g%hareholders Value/ Earnings/  Earnings/
eficiency) of (Shareholders (Loss) of the (Loss) of
the Deficiency) of Company® the
Company®  the Company Company
HGI Funding, LLC 62.0% $(10,789 ) 620 % $(14542 ) 620 %
Tokarz Investments, LLC 12.1% $ (2,112 ) 121 % $(2,847 ) 121 %
TTG Apparel, LLC 109% $(1,890 ) 109 % $(2,547 ) 109 %
Arsenal Group, LL.C 97 % $(1,606 ) 9.7 % $2285 ) 97 %
Fursa Alternative Strategies LLC 49 % $ (850 ) 49 % $(1,145 ) 49 %
William F. Harley III 04 % $ (65 ) 04 %  $(87 ) 04 %

Thomas J. Lynch®

Certain Effects of the Merger 120



Edgar Filing: FREDERICK'S OF HOLLYWOOD GROUP INC /NY/ - Form PRER14A

(D Based on 39,273,254 shares of Common Stock outstanding as of April 14, 2014.
) Based on a shareholders deficiency of $17,401,000 as of July 27, 2013.
3 Based on a net loss of $23,455,000 for the fiscal year ended July 27, 2013.

The equity interest in Parent that is to be granted to Mr. Lynch under his new employment agreement will be in the
(4)form of incentive units that are part of a separate series of units from those being issued to the Rollover
Shareholders and will be subject to vesting and other terms.
As of the consummation of the Merger, the Rollover Shareholders (and Mr. Lynch), and any permitted assignee or
designee thereof, will have an indirect interest in our net book value and earnings as a result of their ownership of all
the equity interests in Parent.

A primary benefit of the Merger to the unaffiliated shareholders of the Company will be the right of such shareholders
to receive a cash payment of $0.27, without interest, for each share of Common Stock held by such shareholders,
representing a premium of approximately 50% to the closing price of the Common Stock on September 27, 2013, the
last trading day before the announcement by the Consortium Members of their
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proposal to acquire all outstanding shares of Common Stock not owned by him, as well as a premium of
approximately 46% over the average closing price of the Company s Common Stock for the 45 trading days prior to
that date.

The primary detriments of the Merger to the unaffiliated shareholders of the Company include the lack of interest of

such shareholders in our potential future earnings, growth or value. Additionally, the receipt of cash in exchange for

shares of Common Stock pursuant to the Merger will generally be a taxable sale transaction for U.S. federal income
tax purposes to our shareholders who surrender shares of our Common Stock in the Merger.

In connection with the Merger, the Rollover Shareholders (and Mr. Lynch), and any permitted assignee or designee of
the foregoing, will receive benefits and be subject to obligations that are different from, or in addition to, the benefits
received by our unaffiliated shareholders generally. The primary benefits of the Merger to the Rollover Shareholders
(and Mr. Lynch), based on their ownership of all the equity interests in Parent, include their interest in our potential
future earnings and growth which, if they successfully execute their business strategies, could be substantial.
Additionally, following the Merger, we will be a private company, and as such will be relieved of the burdens
imposed on companies with publicly traded equity, including the requirements and restrictions on trading that our
directors, officers and beneficial owners of more than 10% of the shares of our Common Stock face as a result of the
provisions of Section 16 of the Exchange Act and the requirement of furnishing a proxy statement in connection with
shareholders meetings pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act. Termination of registration of our Common
Stock under the Exchange Act will also substantially reduce the information required to be furnished by the Company
to the public and the SEC. It is estimated that the Company will save approximately $700,000 per year as a result of
no longer being a publicly traded company. Additionally, following the Merger, the Rollover Shareholders will
control the surviving corporation. Additional anticipated benefits to the Rollover Shareholders include receiving
tax-free treatment with respect to the contribution of shares of Common Stock in the transaction pursuant to the
Rollover Agreement discussed in Agreements Involving the Company s Securities; Transactions Between the
Rollover Shareholders and the Company Agreements Involving the Company s Securities  Rollover Agreement
beginning on page 87. As a result of the Merger, the Rollover Shareholders (and Mr. Lynch) may also become the
beneficiaries of the Company s future use of net operating loss carryforwards, which, as of July 27, 2013, equaled
approximately $80,000,000 before any ownership change adjustments under Section 382 of the Code. The Company s
management determined that an ownership change of the Company under Section 382 of the Code occurred in
connection with the sale of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock on March 15, 2013. Accordingly, management
determined, on a preliminary basis, that the amount of net operating loss carryforwards that may be utilized to offset
future taxable income will be limited to approximately $365,000 per year until the last of the net operating loss
carryforwards expire in 20 years, or approximately $7,300,000 in the aggregate. It is possible that the Company s
income may be higher following the Merger due in part to the cost savings noted above relating to the Company s
avoidance of costs associated with being a publicly traded company. The ownership changes of the Company that
occurred on March 3, 2005 and January 28, 2008 would have resulted in a higher annual limitation and therefore have
no effect on these estimates. The Company s management also determined, on a preliminary basis, that the Merger will
not result in a further annual limitation, because it will not result in an ownership change of the Company.

The primary detriments of the Merger to the Rollover Shareholders (and Mr. Lynch) include the fact that all of the risk
of any possible decrease in our earnings, growth or value, and all of the risks related to our additional leverage, which
is substantial, following the Merger will be borne by Parent and indirectly by such shareholders. Additionally, the
interests of the Rollover Shareholders (and Mr. Lynch) in Parent and the Company will not be liquid, with no public
trading market for such securities, and the equity securities of Parent and the Company may be subject to contractual
restrictions on transfer, including, in the case of our securities, liens to the extent provided under the terms of our debt
financing.
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In connection with the Merger, the Executive Officers will receive benefits and be subject to obligations that are
different from, or in addition to, the benefits and obligations of the Company s unaffiliated shareholders generally, as
described above with respect to Mr. Lynch and as described generally in more detail in Special Factors Interests of

the Company s Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger beginning
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on page 60. Such incremental benefits are expected to include, among others, Mr. Lynch continuing as an executive
officer of the surviving corporation and receiving, pursuant to his new employment agreement, an equity interest in
Parent in the form of incentive units that are part of a separate series of units from those being issued to the Rollover
Shareholders and are subject to vesting and other terms. Additionally, Thomas Rende, if he does not continue as
executive officer of the surviving corporation, will receive certain change in control payments.

The Common Stock is currently registered under the Exchange Act and is quoted on the OTCQB under the symbol
FOHL. As aresult of the Merger, the Company will be a privately held corporation and there will be no public market
for its stock. After the Merger, the Common Stock will cease to be quoted on the OTCQB and price quotations with
respect to sales of Common Stock in the public market will no longer be available. In addition, registration of the
Common Stock under the Exchange Act will be terminated.

The certificate of incorporation and the by-laws of the Company will be amended in the Merger to read in their
entirety in the form of Exhibit D to the Merger Agreement (in the case of the certificate of incorporation) and Exhibit
E to the Merger Agreement (in the case of the by-laws), and, as so amended, will be the certificate of incorporation
and by-laws of the Company following the Merger until thereafter amended in accordance with their respective terms
and the NYBCL. The Merger Agreement (including the amendment thereto) is attached to this proxy statement as
Annex A.

Financing of the Merger

The Company and Parent estimate that the total financing required to complete the Merger and related transactions
and pay related fees and expenses will be approximately $25,230,585, which consists of $21,209,150 in rollover
equity, $3,161,435 in merger consideration payable in cash to the Public Shareholders and holders of Company stock
options and an estimated $860,000 in fees and expenses. Parent expects this amount to be provided through a
combination of the proceeds of:

the rollover of Common Stock by the Rollover Shareholders immediately prior to the Merger (representing
27,678,679 shares of Common Stock, 58,056 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and 110,804 shares of
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, the equivalent of an approximately $21,209,150 investment based upon the per
share merger consideration of $0.27 and valuing the convertible preferred stock on an as-converted basis), which is
described in  Special Factors Financing of the Merger Rollover Financing beginning on page 58; and
debt financing (up to $6,000,000 of which may be used for the Merger), which is available to us under our existing
credit facility with the Lenders and which is described in  Special Factors  Financing of the Merger Debt
Financing beginning on page 38.

Rollover Financing

On December 18, 2013, the Rollover Shareholders entered into the Rollover Agreement with Parent, pursuant to
which the Rollover Shareholders collectively committed to contribute, immediately prior to the consummation of the
Merger, an aggregate amount of 27,678,679 shares of Common Stock, 58,056 shares of Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock and 110,804 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock to Parent (the equivalent of a $21,209,150
investment based on the per share merger consideration of $0.27 and valuing the convertible preferred stock on an
as-converted basis) in exchange for an increase in their equity interests in Parent. The obligations of the Rollover
Shareholders pursuant to the Rollover Agreement are conditioned upon the satisfaction or waiver of the conditions to
the obligations of Parent to complete the Merger contained in the Merger Agreement.
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The Rollover Agreement is further described in Agreements Involving the Company s Securities; Transactions
Between the Rollover Shareholders and the Company Agreements Involving the Company s Securities beginning on
page 87.

Debt Financing
The Company is party to that certain Credit and Security Agreement, dated as of May 31, 2012, which, as amended,
supplemented, modified and in effect on the date of this proxy statement, we refer to as the Credit Agreement, with

FOH Holdings, Inc., Frederick s of Hollywood, Inc., Frederick s of Hollywood
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Stores, Inc. and Hollywood Mail Order, LL.C, each a direct or indirect subsidiary of the Company, and which we refer
to as the Borrowers, and the Lenders.

The Credit Agreement, among other things, provides for a line of credit of up to $35,000,000, which includes two

tranches of first in last out advances. The second such tranche, or the Second Tranche, in the amount of $11,000,000,
represents (i) $5,000,000 that was advanced to the Company on October 10, 2013 to provide short term working
capital and (ii) up to $6,000,000 that may be advanced upon consummation of the Merger, at the Borrowers option,
subject to the terms and conditions of the Credit Agreement, in order to finance the payment of the merger
consideration and for other fees, expenses, costs and obligations incurred by Borrowers in connection with the
Merger, or the Merger Advance. The Company will pay an additional origination fee in an amount equal to $60,000,
which will be due and payable on the earliest of (A) the date on which the Lender funds the Merger Advance, (B) the
occurrence of an Event of Default under the Credit Agreement, or (C) June 15, 2014, if the Merger has not occurred
by such date.

The $5,000,000 advance is to be repaid on June 15, 2014 if the Merger is not consummated by that date, or May 31,
2015 if the Merger is consummated on or before June 15, 2014. The $6,000,000 advance, if made, plus any additional
amount that the Lender may elect to advance in its sole discretion, is to be repaid on May 31, 2015. The unpaid
principal of the Second Tranche will bear interest, payable monthly, in arrears, at an amount equal to the LIBOR Rate
(as defined in the Credit Agreement) in effect from time to time plus 11.5% per annum, but not less than 14% per
annum regardless of fluctuations in the LIBOR Rate. Following the consummation of the Merger, so long as no Event
of Default (as defined in the Credit Agreement) has occurred and is continuing, a portion of the interest payable on the
Second Tranche equal to 6% per annum (or such lesser amount as the Borrowers may elect) shall be capitalized,
compounded and added to the unpaid amount of the total obligations due under the credit facility on each interest
payment date and shall also accrue interest at the applicable rate and will be due and payable in cash on May 31, 2015.

The obligations of the Borrowers under the Credit Agreement, including for the Merger Advance, are secured by first

priority security interests granted to the Lenders in all of the Borrowers tangible and intangible property, including

intellectual property such as trademarks and copyrights, as well as shares and membership interests of the Borrowers
that are subsidiaries of other Borrowers.

The Merger Advance is subject to certain conditions, including, without limitation:

the absence of any Default (as defined in the Credit Agreement) or Event of Default as of the date of Borrowers notice
to Lenders regarding the Merger Advance and as of the effective date of the proposed increase in the amounts under
the Second Tranche;
Borrowers shall have concurrently with the making of such Merger Advance consummated the Merger;
after giving effect to the requested Merger Advance (x) the aggregate principal amount of the two tranches of first in
last out advances exclusive of paid-in-kind interest accrued thereon shall not exceed the lesser of $25,000,000 and the
fair market value of the Company s intellectual property, unless the Merger closes after June 15, 2014, in which case
the limit shall be the lesser of $19,000,000 and 85% of the fair market value of the Company s intellectual property
rights, and (y) the outstanding balance of all advances under the Credit Agreement shall not exceed the Borrowing
Base (as defined in the Credit Agreement); and
payment by Borrowers to Lender of the additional origination fee described above.
Although the debt financing described in this proxy statement is not subject to due diligence or a market out provision,
which allows lenders not to fund their commitments if certain conditions in the financial markets prevail, there is still
a risk that such debt financing may not be funded when required. As of the date of this proxy statement, no alternative
financing arrangements or alternative financing plans have been made in the event the debt financing described in this
proxy statement is not available as anticipated.
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The Lenders are affiliates of HGI, HGI Funding and Parent. Salus commenced operations in December 2011 and is a
subsidiary of HGI engaged primarily in the business of providing secured asset-based loans across a variety of
industries. Salus CLO is a collateralized loan obligation vehicle of Salus providing
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for the issuance of collateralized obligations. The Lenders under the Credit Agreement have in the past engaged, and

may in the future engage, in transactions with and perform services, including commercial banking, financial advisory

and investment banking services, for the Company and its affiliates in the ordinary course of business for which they
have received or will receive customary fees and expenses.

No plans or arrangements have been made to refinance or repay the Merger Advance.

Copies of the Credit Agreement and the amendments thereto are attached as exhibits to the Current Reports on Form
8-K filed by the Company with the SEC June 6, 2012, May 30, 2013, July 31, 2013, October 16, 2013 and April 1,
2014.

Interests of the Company s Directors and Executive Officers in
the Merger

When considering the recommendation of the Board of Directors, you should be aware that certain members of the
Board of Directors and our Executive Officers have interests in the Merger other than their interests as shareholders
generally, including those described below. These interests may be different from, or in conflict with, your interests as
a shareholder of the Company. The members of the Board of Directors and the Lead Director were aware of these
additional interests, and considered them, when they approved the Merger Agreement and recommended that
shareholders vote in favor of approving the Merger and adopting the Merger Agreement.

At the Effective Time, shares of Common Stock held by the members of the Board of Directors (other than Mr.
Harley) and our Executive Officers will be converted into the right to receive the merger consideration in the same
manner as all outstanding shares of Common Stock held by the unaffiliated shareholders of the Company, as

described in  Special Factors Certain Effects of the Merger beginning on page 54.

Interests of the Non-Employee Directors

Each Company stock option that is held by a non-employee director (other than those held by Mr. Harley) and that is
outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time, whether or not vested or exercisable, will, as of the Effective
Time, be cancelled and will entitle each holder thereof to receive a payment, if any, in cash from the Company (less
any applicable withholding taxes), promptly following the Effective Time, equal to (a) the amount, if any, by which
$0.27 exceeds the exercise price per share with respect to such stock option, multiplied by (b) the total number of
shares of Common Stock then issuable upon the exercise of such stock option. As of the date of this proxy statement,
none of the non-employee directors (including Mr. Harley) hold stock options with an exercise price of less than
$0.27. Accordingly, all of the stock options held by the non-employee directors will be cancelled for no consideration.

As of the Effective Time, each Company share-based award other than a stock option, including restricted share
awards (other than those held by Mr. Harley), whether or not vested, will be cancelled and will entitle each holder
thereof to receive a payment, in cash from the Company (less any applicable withholding taxes) promptly following
the Effective Time, equal to (a) $0.27 per share, multiplied by (b) the total number of shares of Common Stock
constituting the award. As of the date of this proxy statement, the non-employee directors (other than Mr. Harley) hold
an aggregate of 99,500 shares subject to restricted share awards, which will be cancelled in exchange for aggregate
consideration of $26,865.

Mr. Harley and the other Rollover Shareholders will contribute, immediately prior to the consummation of the
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Merger, their shares of our capital stock beneficially owned by them (after taking into account the transfer of shares of

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock from TTG to HGI Funding pursuant to the Purchase Agreement) to Parent in
exchange for an increase in their equity interests in Parent. Following the Merger, the Company will be 100%

beneficially owned by Mr. Harley and the other Rollover Shareholders (and Mr. Lynch, upon his receipt of an equity

interest in Parent, pursuant to his new employment agreement, in the form of incentive units that are part of a separate
series of units from those being issued to the Rollover Shareholders and are subject to vesting and other terms), and

any permitted assignee or designee thereof. For a description of the treatment of the Common Stock beneficially
owned by Mr. Harley in the Merger and a discussion of Mr. Harley s continuing interest in the Company as a Rollover
Shareholder, see Special Factors Certain Effects of the Merger beginning on page 54. Each Company stock option
and restricted share award held by Mr. Harley and each warrant held by Mr. Harley and the other Rollover
Shareholders, as
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of the Effective Time, will be cancelled on the terms and conditions set forth in the Rollover Agreement between
Parent and the Rollover Shareholders.

Peter Cole and William F. Harley III, each a member of our Board of Directors, became members of the board of
managers of Parent on the date the Merger Agreement was executed. Currently, members of the board of managers of
Parent receive no cash fees or equity awards for their service.

Interests of Executive Officers

Each Company stock option that is held by an Executive Officer (or any other holder who is not a Rollover
Shareholder) and that is outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time, whether or not vested or exercisable,
will, as of the Effective Time, be cancelled and will entitle each such holder thereof to receive a payment, if any, in
cash from the Company (less any applicable withholding taxes), promptly following the Effective Time, equal to (a)
the amount, if any, by which $0.27 exceeds the exercise price per share with respect to such stock option, multiplied

by (b) the total number of shares of Common Stock then issuable upon the exercise of such stock option. As of the
date of this proxy statement, the Executive Officers do not hold stock options with an exercise price of less than $0.27.
Accordingly, all of the stock options held by the Executive Officers will be cancelled for no consideration.

As of the Effective Time, each Company share-based award other than a stock option that is held by an Executive
Officer (or any other holder who is not a Rollover Shareholder), including restricted share awards, whether or not
vested, will be cancelled and will entitle each holder thereof to receive a payment, in cash from the Company (less any
applicable withholding taxes) promptly following the Effective Time, equal to (a) $0.27 per share, multiplied by (b)
the total number of shares of Common Stock constituting the award. As of the date of this proxy statement, our
employees hold an aggregate of 637,694 shares of Common Stock subject to restricted share awards (of which
479,194 shares are held by our Executive Officers), which will be cancelled in exchange for aggregate consideration

of $172,177.38 (of which $129,382.38 will be paid to our Executive Officers).

We have an employment agreement with Thomas Rende, our chief financial officer, which expired on December 31,
2013, although its terms generally continue to apply after its expiration. Under the continuing terms of his
employment agreement, Mr. Rende will be entitled to enhanced severance benefits if (1) a change of control (as
defined in his employment agreement) occurs (which includes the consummation of the Merger) and (2) within 24
months thereafter, his employment as an at will employee is terminated. In such event, we will pay Mr. Rende an
amount equal to 125% of his base salary, in addition to all other compensation and benefits otherwise to be paid
pursuant to his employment agreement. Under the continuing terms of his employment agreement, the change of
control payment will be made in two installments: (x) the first installment will be paid ten days after his employment
is terminated, in an amount equal to twice the lesser of: (a) the sum of his total compensation (including salary and
bonus) for the calendar year preceding the year in which his employment with the Company was terminated (adjusted
for any increase during that year that was expected to continue indefinitely if he had not terminated employment), and
(b) the maximum amount that may be taken into account under a qualified plan under section 401(a)(17) of the Code
for the year in which his employment with the Company is terminated; and (y) the second installment will be paid on
the first business day following the day that is six months after his employment is terminated, in an amount equal to
the balance, if any, of the change of control payment. The other compensation and benefits otherwise to be paid to Mr.
Rende include: (i) the sum of $250,000; (ii) any non-equity incentive compensation that would have become payable
for the year in which his employment was terminated, pro-rated for the number of months worked during the fiscal
year of termination; (iii) company-paid continuation of medical coverage for one year after termination; (iv) all valid
business expense reimbursements; and (v) all accrued but unused vacation pay.
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Named Executive Officer Merger-Related Compensation Table

The descriptions of the payments immediately above as they relate to our named executive officers, Thomas J. Lynch
and Thomas Rende, and the quantifications of the payments in the table below are intended to comply with Item
402(t) of Regulation S-K of the Exchange Act, which requires disclosure of information about compensation and

benefits that each of the Company s named executive officers will or may receive in connection with the Merger. This

compensation is referred to as golden parachute compensation by
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applicable SEC disclosure rules, and such compensation is subject to a non-binding, advisory vote of the Company s
shareholders, as described below in  Advisory Vote Regarding Merger-Related Compensation Proposal beginning on

page 101.
. . Cash Equity  Perquisites/beneflistal
Named Executive Officer
&) $Hm &) &)
Thomas J. Lynch® 87,345 87,345
Thomas Rende 637,500 42,037 23,739 @ 703,276

None of the Company s named executive officers currently hold any unvested equity awards. The amounts

represent each Company stock-based award that is held immediately prior to the Effective Time, which will, as of
(1)the Effective Time, be cancelled and will entitle the holder to receive a payment in cash from the Company (less
any applicable withholding taxes), promptly following the Effective Time, equal to (a) $0.27 per share, multiplied
by (b) the total number of shares of Common Stock represented by such award.
Mr. Lynch has entered into a new employment agreement described below to become effective at the Effective
Time. The change of control provision in Mr. Lynch s existing employment agreement, which would have provided
him with a cash bonus of $675,000 if his employment was terminated under certain circumstances following a
change of control, was not included in the new employment agreement. Accordingly, Mr. Lynch will not be
entitled to receive any severance or change of control benefits upon the consummation of the Merger other than the
equity he will receive as described in footnote 1, above.
Represents (a) $250,000 severance payment and (b) a change of control payment equal to 125% of Mr. Rende s
base salary ($387,500). The change of control payment is a double-trigger payment, meaning that it is conditioned
upon the Merger occurring and the termination of Mr. Rende s employment by the Company without cause or by
Mr. Rende for good reason within 24 months following the Merger).

@) Represents $23,739 for continuation of medical insurance benefits for one year after termination.

Employment Agreements

2

3)

In connection with the execution of the Merger Agreement, we entered into a new employment agreement with
Thomas J. Lynch, our chairman and chief executive officer, and Parent, which was negotiated after the Lead Director
negotiated the merger consideration of $0.27 per share in cash. The new employment agreement will commence only
upon the Effective Time and will continue until the third anniversary of the Effective Time, unless terminated earlier

as provided in the agreement, or unless extended by mutual written agreement of the Company, Parent and Mr. Lynch.
If the Merger is not consummated, the agreement will not take effect. Until the new employment agreement takes
effect, the terms of Mr. Lynch s employment will continue to be governed by his existing employment agreement. The
existing employment agreement expired on January 2, 2014, but its terms generally continue to apply after its
expiration.

The new employment agreement provides for Mr. Lynch to continue to serve as the Company s chief executive officer
at a base salary of $540,000 per year. Within 30 days of the Effective Time, the Company will pay Mr. Lynch a
one-time cash signing bonus of $150,000. In addition to his base salary, Mr. Lynch is eligible to receive a target

annual incentive bonus of up to 65% of his base salary in accordance with the terms of an annual bonus plan approved

by the Company s Board of Directors and Parent. From time to time, Mr. Lynch also will be eligible to receive such
discretionary bonuses as the Company s Board of Directors and Parent deem appropriate. As additional compensation,

Parent will recommend to its board of managers that Mr. Lynch be granted an equity interest in Parent, pursuant to his

new employment agreement, in the form of incentive units that are part of a separate series of units from those being
issued to the Rollover Shareholders and are subject to vesting and other terms, to be made promptly, but in no event
more than sixty days, following the Effective Time. The equity interest granted to Mr. Lynch will represent
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approximately 5% of the outstanding equity interests of Parent outstanding after the Merger.

The new employment agreement provides that if, during the employment term, we terminate Mr. Lynch without cause
or he terminates his employment for good reason (as such terms are defined in the new employment agreement), or if
we do not continue his employment at the end of the employment term upon substantially similar terms, and if Mr.
Lynch delivers to us a general release of all claims in a form and
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substance acceptable to us, we will be required to pay to him (i) his base salary through the end of the employment
term, (ii) any bonus that would have become payable to him through the end of the employment term, (iii) the
insurance benefits provided in his employment agreement through the end of the employment term, (iv) the lump sum
of $450,000 and (v) medical coverage at our expense for one year commencing on either (a) the last day of the
employment term if his employment is terminated during the employment term or (b) the date of termination if his
employment is terminated after the end of the employment term; provided that medical coverage will terminate upon
becoming covered under a similar program by reason of employment elsewhere. The change of control provision in
Mr. Lynch s existing employment agreement, which would have provided him with a cash bonus of $675,000 if his
employment was terminated under certain circumstances following a change of control, was not included in the new
employment agreement.

The employment agreement provides for us to pay the premiums on a life insurance policy for Mr. Lynch providing a
death benefit of $1,500,000 to his designated beneficiary and a disability insurance policy for Mr. Lynch providing a
non-taxable benefit of at least $10,000 per month payable to him in the event of his disability. Under the new
employment agreement, Mr. Lynch is prohibited from disclosing confidential information about us and employing or
soliciting any of our current employees to leave the Company during his employment and for a period of one year
thereafter. The employment agreement does not contain any change of control or non-competition provisions.

Compensation of the Lead Director

At a meeting of the Board of Directors held on October 16, 2013, the Board authorized the Company to pay Milton
Walters $5,000 per month for a minimum of four months effective September 1, 2013 as compensation for serving in
his capacity as Lead Director. On January 30, 2014, the Board authorized the Company to extend these monthly
payments through the closing of the Merger.

In recommending and approving his compensation for serving as Lead Director, the Board of Directors considered,
among other things, the size of the proposed transaction, the complexities added to the transaction by the involvement
of the Consortium Members and Mr. Harley, the time expected to be required by the Lead Director, the need for the
Lead Director to evaluate matters in addition to the Consortium Members proposal and the publicly-reported

compensation of the special committees and lead directors of other companies.

Indemnification of Directors and Officers

For a description of the indemnification of directors and officers by the Company following the Merger, see The
Merger Agreement  Other Covenants and Agreements Indemnification; Directors and Officers Insurance
beginning on page 79.

Material United States Federal Income Tax Considerations

The following is a general discussion of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences of the Merger to U.S.
holders and non-U.S. holders (each as defined below) of Common Stock whose shares are converted into the right to
receive the merger consideration. We base this summary on the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as

amended, or the Code, applicable U.S. Treasury Regulations, judicial authority, and administrative rulings and
practice, all of which are subject to change, possibly on a retroactive basis. This discussion is not binding on the

Internal Revenue Service or the courts and, therefore, could be subject to challenge, which could be sustained. No

ruling is intended to be sought from the Internal Revenue Service with respect to the Merger.
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This discussion assumes that each shareholder holds its shares of Common Stock as a capital asset within the meaning
of Section 1221 of the Code (generally, property held for investment). This discussion does not address all aspects of
U.S. federal income tax that may be relevant to a shareholder in light of its particular circumstances, or that may apply
to a shareholder that is subject to special treatment under the U.S. federal income tax laws (including, for example,
insurance companies, dealers in securities or foreign currencies, traders in securities who elect the mark-to-market
method of accounting for their securities, shareholders subject to the alternative minimum tax, persons that have a
functional currency other than the U.S. dollar, tax-exempt organizations, financial institutions, mutual funds, certain
expatriates, corporations that accumulate earnings to avoid U.S. federal income tax, shareholders who hold shares of
Common Stock as part of a hedge,
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straddle, constructive sale or conversion transaction, shareholders who will hold, directly, indirectly or constructively,
an equity interest in the surviving corporation or U.S. holders who acquired their shares of Common Stock through the
exercise of employee stock options or other compensation arrangements). In addition, the discussion does not address
any tax considerations under state, local or foreign laws or U.S. federal laws other than those pertaining to the U.S.
federal income tax that may apply to shareholders. You are urged to consult your own tax advisors to determine the
tax consequences in your particular circumstances, including the application and effect of any state, local or foreign
income and other tax laws, of the receipt of cash in exchange for Common Stock pursuant to the Merger.

If a partnership holds Common Stock, the tax treatment of a partner will generally depend on the status of the partners
and the activities of the partnership. If you are a partner of a partnership holding Common Stock, you should consult
your tax advisor.

U.S. Holders

For purposes of this discussion, we use the term U.S. holder to mean a beneficial owner of Common Stock that is for
U.S. federal income tax purposes:

a citizen or individual resident of the United States;
a corporation, or other entity taxable as a corporation, created or organized in or under the laws of the United States or
any state or the District of Columbia;
a trust if it (1) is subject to the primary supervision of a court within the United States and one or more U.S. persons
have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust or (2) has a valid election in effect under applicable
U.S. Treasury Regulations to be treated as a U.S. person; or
an estate the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income tax regardless of its source.

The receipt of cash in the Merger by U.S. holders of Common Stock will be a taxable transaction for U.S. federal

income tax purposes. In general, a U.S. holder of Common Stock will recognize gain or loss in an amount equal to the
difference between:

the amount of cash received in exchange for the Common Stock; and
the U.S. holder s adjusted tax basis in the Common Stock.

Such gain or loss generally will be capital gain or loss, and will be long-term capital gain or loss if the holding period
in the Common Stock surrendered in the Merger is greater than one year as of the date of the Merger. Long-term
capital gains of non-corporate holders, including individuals, are generally eligible for reduced rates of taxation. The
deductibility of a capital loss recognized on the exchange is subject to limitations. If a U.S. holder acquired different
blocks of Common Stock at different times and different prices, such holder must determine its adjusted tax basis and
holding period separately with respect to each block of Common Stock.

A U.S. holder of Common Stock may be subject, under certain circumstances, to information reporting on the cash
received in the Merger unless such U.S. holder is a corporation or other exempt recipient. Backup withholding may
also apply (currently at a rate of 28%) with respect to the amount of cash received, unless a U.S. holder provides proof
of an applicable exemption or a correct taxpayer identification number, and otherwise complies with the applicable
requirements of the backup withholding rules. Backup withholding is not an additional tax and any amounts withheld

under the backup withholding rules may be refunded or credited against a U.S. holder s U.S. federal income tax
liability, if any, provided that such U.S. holder furnishes the required information to the Internal Revenue Service in a
timely manner.

U.S. Holders 136



Edgar Filing: FREDERICK'S OF HOLLYWOOD GROUP INC /NY/ - Form PRER14A

Rollover Shareholders

Parent, the Company and the Rollover Shareholders expect to take the position that the Rollover Shareholders will
generally not recognize gain or loss with respect to their contribution of Common Stock, Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, referred to as the Rollover Shares, to Parent. Assuming this
position is correct, the Rollover Shareholders tax basis in their Parent membership interests will generally equal their
tax basis in the Rollover Shares contributed to Parent and their
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holding period in the Parent membership interests received by Rollover Shareholders will generally include the
holding period of the Rollover Shares. Alternative tax treatments to the Rollover Shareholders are possible, which
may in part depend on the particular circumstances of the Rollover Shareholders, and there can be no assurance that
the Internal Revenue Service will agree with the expected treatment described above.

Non-U.S. Holders

For the purposes of this discussion, we use the term non-U.S. holder to mean a beneficial owner of Common Stock
(other than an entity that is classified as a partnership) that is not a U.S. holder.

Any gain realized upon the exchange of Common Stock for cash pursuant to the Merger by a non-U.S. holder
generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax unless:

the gain is effectively connected with a trade or business of the non-U.S. holder in the United States and, if required
by an applicable income tax treaty, is attributable to a U.S. permanent establishment of the non-U.S. holder or, in the
case of an individual non-U.S. holder, a fixed base of business by the non-U.S. holder;
the non-U.S. holder is an individual who is present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable year of
that disposition, and certain other conditions are met; or
we are or have been a United States real property holding corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes at any
time during the shorter of the five-year period ending on the date of the Merger and such non-U.S. holder s holding
period in such shares of our Common Stock, and either (i) the non-U.S. holder beneficially owns, or has owned, more
than 5% of the total fair market value of our Common Stock at any time during the shorter of the five-year period
ending on the date of the Merger or such non-U.S. holder s holding period in such shares of our Common Stock or (ii)
our Common Stock is not considered to be regularly traded on an established securities market at any time during the
calendar year in which the Merger occurs.

We believe that we are not and have not been a United States real property holding corporation for U.S. federal

income tax purposes during the relevant period.

An individual non-U.S. holder described in the first bullet point immediately above will be subject to U.S. federal
income tax on the net gain derived from the disposition under applicable graduated U.S. federal income tax rates. An
individual non-U.S. holder described in the second bullet point immediately above will be subject to U.S. federal
income tax at a 30% gross rate, subject to any reduction or reduced rate under an applicable income tax treaty, on the
net gain derived from the disposition, which may be offset by U.S. source capital losses. If a non-U.S. holder that is a
foreign corporation falls under the first bullet point immediately above, it will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on
its net gain in the same manner as if it were a United States person (as defined under the Code) and, in addition, may
be subject to the branch profits tax equal to 30% of its effectively connected earnings and profits, subject to any
exemption or lower rate as may be specified by an applicable income tax treaty.

A non-U.S. holder is subject to the backup withholding requirements (described above for U.S. holders). In order for a
non-U.S. holder to qualify as an exempt recipient, that non-U.S. holder must submit an appropriate IRS Form W-8 or
Substitute Form W-8.

Regulatory Approvals

No regulatory approvals are required in connection with the merger.
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Anticipated Accounting Treatment of the Merger

The Company, as the surviving corporation, will account for the Merger as a business combination using the
acquisition method of accounting for financial accounting purposes, whereby the consideration transferred will be
allocated to the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed following FASB Accounting Standards
Codification Topic 805, Business Combinations.
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Fees and Expenses

The estimated fees and expenses incurred or expected to be incurred in connection with the Merger are as follows:

Description Amount
Financial advisory fees $ 80,000
Legal fees and expenses 300,000
Accounting fees and expenses 10,000
Proxy solicitation expenses 10,000
SEC filing fees 407
Printing and mailing costs 30,000
Paying agent fees 20,000
Miscellaneous expenses 9,593
Total $ 460,000

In addition, it is expected that Parent will incur approximately $400,000 of expenses, including legal and other
advisory fees (excluding in all cases the expenses of the Company set forth above) in connection with the Merger.

Except as described in  The Merger Agreement Fees and Expenses beginning on page 84, all costs and expenses
incurred in connection with the Merger, the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby will be paid
by the party incurring or required to incur such expenses.

Litigation

Between January 24 and 31, 2014, three purported shareholders of the Company filed putative class action lawsuits in
New York State Supreme Court challenging the Merger. These actions are: Bruce H. Paul et al., v. Frederick s of
Hollywood Group Inc., et al., Index No. 650252/2014 (N.Y. Sup. Ct. Jan. 24, 2014); David Strasenburgh v.
Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc., et al., Index No. 650294/2014 (N.Y. Sup. Ct. Jan. 28, 2014); and Stephen
Dworkin v. Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc., et al., Index No. 650356/2014 (N.Y. Sup. Ct. Jan. 31, 2014). An
amended complaint adding plaintiffs and additional allegations was filed in Bruce H. Paul, et al., v. Frederick s of
Hollywood Group Inc., et al. on February 11, 2014. The complaints collectively name as defendants the Board of
Directors, the Company, Parent, Merger Sub, HGI Funding, TTG, TKZ, Fursa and Arsenal.

On March 6, 2014, the parties to those lawsuits submitted to the court a stipulation and proposed order that would
consolidate all three actions into a single action captioned In re Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc. Shareholder
Litigation, Index No. 650252/2014, and would appoint two of the five firms involved as co-lead counsel and the other
three firms as the executive committee. The proposed consolidation order also provided that the amended complaint in
Bruce H. Paul, et al, v. Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc., et al. on February 11, 2014 would be the operative
complaint in the consolidated action. The court has not yet entered the proposed consolidation order.

The consolidated amended complaint alleges that the preliminary proxy filed by the Company contained material
misstatements and omissions and that the members of the Board of Directors breached their fiduciary duty to
maximize shareholder value by pursuing the Merger through a flawed process and for inadequate consideration. The
complaint further alleges that (i) the Merger took advantage of a temporary depression in the market price of the
Common Stock that occurred due to its delisting from the NYSE MKT LLC, (ii) the Board of Directors acquiesced to
unreasonable deal protection devices, (iii) the merger process employed by the Board of Directors was unfair because
the process did not include a right for minority shareholders to approve the Merger and the Lead Director was not
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positioned to effectively advocate for the minority shareholders, and (iv) the Board of Directors misstated and/or
failed to disclose supposedly material information in the preliminary proxy statement. The complaint further alleges
that Merger Sub colluded in or aided and abetted the breaches by the Board of Directors. The complaint seeks, among
other things, a declaration that the Merger Agreement was entered in breach of the Board of Directors fiduciary duties
and is therefore unenforceable, an injunction barring the consummation of the Merger until full disclosures have
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been made or rescinding, to the extent already implemented, the Merger, an order directing the Board of Directors to

require approval of the majority of the minority shareholders, and an award of costs and disbursements of the action,

including attorneys fees. Each of the defendants denies any allegations of wrongdoing and believes that the plaintiffs
claims are without merit.

On March 14, 2014, after settlement discussions between plaintiffs counsel and counsel for the Company, the parties
agreed to resolve the litigation and permit the Merger to proceed as contemplated. The settlement provides, among
other things, that certain agreed supplemental and/or modified disclosures be included in this proxy statement. The
settlement was subject to confirmatory discovery by the plaintiffs, which was completed on March 31, 2014, and is

now subject to court approval. There is no assurance that the settlement will be approved by the court. If the
settlement does not become effective and litigation resumes before the Merger, the outcome in these lawsuits could
have an impact on the consummation of the Merger.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING
FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This proxy statement, along with the annexes hereto, includes forward-looking statements that reflect our current
views as to future events and financial performance with respect to our operations, the expected completion and
timing of the Merger and other information relating to the Merger. These statements can be identified by the fact that
they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. There are forward-looking statements throughout this proxy
statement, including, among other places, in Summary Term Sheet , Questions and Answers About the Special Meeting
and the Merger , The Special Meeting , Special Factors ,and Important Information Concerning the Company , and i
statements containing the words aim , anticipate , are confident , estimate , expect , willbe , will continue ,
result , project , intend , plan , believe and other words and terms of similar meaning in conjunction with a discussi
future operating or financial performance or other future events. You should be aware that forward-looking statements
involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in these
forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot assure you that the actual results or developments we anticipate
will be realized, or even if realized, that they will have the expected effects on the business or operations of the
Company. These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which the statements were made and we
undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements made in this proxy statement or elsewhere
as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as required by law. In addition to other factors and
matters contained in this document, including the annexes hereto, we believe the following factors could cause actual
results to differ materially from those discussed in the forward-looking statements:

the occurrence of any event, change or other circumstance that could give rise to the termination of the Merger
Agreement;
the outcome of any legal proceedings that may be instituted against the Company and others relating to the Merger
Agreement;
the inability to complete the Merger due to the failure to satisfy the conditions to consummation of the Merger;
the failure of the Merger to close for any other reason;
the risk that the pendency of the Merger disrupts current plans and operations and the potential difficulties in
employee retention as a result of the pendency of the Merger;
the fact that directors and officers of the Company have interests in the Merger that are different from, or in addition
to, the interests of the Company s unaffiliated shareholders generally in recommending that the Company s
shareholders vote to approve the Merger and adopt the Merger Agreement;
the effect of the announcement of the Merger on our business relationships, operating results and business generally;
the amount of the costs, fees, expenses and charges related to the Merger;
and other risks detailed in our filings with the SEC, including our most recent filings on Forms 10-Q and 10-K, as
amended. See Where You Can Find Additional Information beginning on page 106.
Many of the factors that will determine our future results are beyond our ability to control or predict. In light of the
significant uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking statements contained herein, readers should not place undue
reliance on forward-looking statements, which reflect management s views only as of the date hereof. We cannot
guarantee any future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements.
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THE SPECIAL MEETING

Date, Time and Place

This proxy statement is being furnished to our shareholders as part of the solicitation of proxies by the Board of
Directors for use at the Special Meeting to be held on [ ], 2014, starting at 10:00 a.m. local time at 6255 Sunset
Boulevard, 6% Floor, Hollywood, California 90028, or at any adjournment or postponement thereof.

The purpose of the Special Meeting is for our shareholders to consider and vote upon the approval of the Merger and
adoption of the Merger Agreement. Our shareholders must approve the Merger and adopt the Merger Agreement for
the Merger to occur. A copy of the Merger Agreement (including the amendment thereto) is attached to this proxy
statement as Annex A. This proxy statement and the enclosed form of proxy are first being mailed to our shareholders

on or about [ ], 2014.

Record Date and Quorum

The holders of record of Common Stock as of the close of business on [ ], 2014, the record date for the determination

of shareholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the Special Meeting, are entitled to receive notice of and to vote at

the Special Meeting. On the record date, 39,273,254 shares of Common Stock were outstanding. Holders of Common

Stock as of the record date have one vote for each share of Common Stock owned by such shareholder as of the close
of business on the record date.

The presence at the Special Meeting, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority of shares of Common Stock
outstanding on the record date will constitute a quorum, permitting the Company to conduct its business at the Special
Meeting. Any shares of Common Stock held in treasury by the Company or by any of our subsidiaries are not
considered to be outstanding for purposes of determining a quorum. Once a share is represented at the Special
Meeting, it will be counted for the purpose of determining a quorum at the Special Meeting and any adjournment of
the Special Meeting. However, if a new record date is set for the adjourned Special Meeting, then a new quorum will
have to be established. Proxies received but marked as abstentions will be included in the calculation of the number of

shares considered to be present at the Special Meeting. Broker non-votes, as described in  The Special
Providing Voting Instructions by Proxy beginning on page 70, also will

Meeting  Voting; Proxies; Revocation
count for purposes of determining the presence of a quorum if the shares are being voted with respect to any matter at

the Special Meeting.

Required Vote

For the Company to complete the Merger, under New York law and the Merger Agreement, shareholders holding at
least two-thirds of the aggregate voting power of our Common Stock outstanding at the close of business on the record
date must vote  FOR the approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement. The Merger is not structured

to require the approval of at least a majority of the unaffiliated shareholders.

Subject to the terms of the Voting Agreement between us, Parent and the Rollover Shareholders, the Rollover
Shareholders have agreed to vote all shares of our Common Stock they beneficially own (and any shares acquired by

them after the date of the Voting Agreement) in favor of approving the Merger and adopting the Merger Agreement.
See Agreements Involving the Company s Securities; Transactions Between the Rollover Shareholders and the
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Company Agreements Involving the Company s Securities Voting Agreement beginning on page 87. As of the
record date, there were 39,273,254 shares of our Common Stock outstanding, of which the Rollover Shareholders own
27,678,679 shares of Common Stock, representing in the aggregate approximately 70.5% of the issued and
outstanding shares of Common Stock. This amount excludes the 63,579,204 shares of Common Stock that the
Rollover Shareholders have the right to acquire pursuant to convertible preferred stock, warrants and options held by
them. Because the Rollover Shareholders beneficially hold more than two-thirds of our outstanding shares of
Common Stock as of the record date, they can satisfy the required vote under New York law and the Merger
Agreement to approve the Merger and adopt the Merger Agreement without the affirmative vote of any of our other
shareholders.
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Despite the fact that the Rollover Shareholders can satisfy the required vote, we are soliciting proxies and furnishing a
proxy statement to shareholders for two reasons. First, we must hold a meeting because we are not permitted to take
shareholder action by less than unanimous written consent, without a shareholder meeting, pursuant to our certificate

of incorporation and Section 615(a) of the NYBCL. Second, we are soliciting proxies to give the unaffiliated
shareholders the opportunity to express their respective views of the Merger, even though their approval is not
required as a condition to the transaction.

Except in their capacities as members of our Board of Directors and/or as the Lead Director, as applicable, no officer
or director of the Company, nor any of the Rollover Shareholders, has made any recommendation either in support of
or in opposition to the Merger or the Merger Agreement. The directors and Executive Officers of the Company have
informed the Company that as of date of this proxy statement, they intend to vote in favor of the approval of the
Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement.

Shareholders holding at least a majority of the shares of Common Stock voted at the Special Meeting must vote FOR
the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal, in order for such proposal to be approved. However, such approval is not
required for, and does not have any impact on, the treatment of the Company stock options and other stock-based
awards held by our named executive officers or the completion of the Merger. Approval of the Merger-Related
Compensation Proposal is not a condition to the completion of the Merger, and the vote with respect to the
Merger-Related Compensation Proposal is advisory only and will not be binding on the Parent or the Company.
Because the Rollover Shareholders beneficially hold more than a majority of our outstanding shares of Common
Stock as of the record date, they can approve or disapprove the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal regardless of
how any other shareholder votes.

Voting; Proxies; Revocation

Attendance

All holders of shares of Common Stock as of the close of business on [ ], 2014, the record date for voting at the Special
Meeting, including shareholders of record and beneficial owners of Common Stock registered in the street name of a
bank, broker or other nominee, are invited to attend the Special Meeting. If you are a shareholder of record, please be

prepared to provide proper identification, such as a driver s license. If you hold your shares in street name , you will
need to provide proof of ownership, such as a recent account statement or letter from your bank, broker or other
nominee, along with proper identification.

Voting in Person

Shareholders of record as of the record date will be able to vote in person at the Special Meeting. If you are not a
shareholder of record as of the record date, but instead hold your shares in street name through a bank, broker or other
nominee, you must provide a legal proxy executed in your favor from your bank, broker or other nominee in order to
be able to vote in person at the Special Meeting.

Providing Voting Instructions by Proxy
To ensure that your shares are represented at the Special Meeting, we recommend that you provide voting instructions

promptly by proxy, even if you plan to attend the Special Meeting in person.
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If you are a shareholder of record, you may provide voting instructions by proxy using one of the methods described
below.

Submit a Proxy by Telephone or via the Internet. This proxy statement is accompanied by a proxy card with
instructions for submitting voting instructions. You may vote by telephone by calling the toll-free number or via the
Internet by accessing the Internet address as specified on the enclosed proxy card. Your shares will be voted as you
direct in the same manner as if you had completed, signed, dated and returned your proxy card, as described below.

Submit a Proxy Card. If you complete, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card by mail so that it is received
before the Special Meeting, your shares will be voted in the manner directed by you on your proxy card.
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If you sign, date and return your proxy card without indicating how you wish to vote, your proxy will be voted in
favor of the approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement and the Merger-Related Compensation
Proposal. If you fail to vote or return your proxy card, the effect will be that your shares will not be counted for
purposes of determining whether a quorum is present at the Special Meeting (unless you are a record holder as of the
record date, or you obtain a legal proxy from your bank, broker or other nominee, and attend the Special Meeting in
person) and will have the same effect as a vote against the approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger
Agreement, but will not affect the vote regarding the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal.

If your shares are held by a bank, broker or other nominee on your behalf in street name , your bank, broker or other
nominee will send you instructions as to how to provide voting instructions for your shares by proxy. Many banks and
brokerage firms have a process for their customers to provide voting instructions by telephone or via the Internet, in
addition to providing voting instructions by proxy card.

In accordance with the rules of the New York Stock Exchange, banks, brokers and other nominees who hold shares of
Common Stock in street name for their customers do not have discretionary authority to vote the shares with respect to
the approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement. Accordingly, if banks, brokers or other nominees
do not receive specific voting instructions from the beneficial owner of such shares they may not vote such shares
with respect to the approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement. Under such circumstance, a broker
non-vote would arise. Broker non-votes, if any, will have the same effect as a vote  AGAINST the approval of the
Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement, but will have no effect on the Merger-Related Compensation
Proposal, and will count for purposes of determining the presence of a quorum if the shares are being voted with
respect to any matter at the Special Meeting. For shares of Common Stock held in street name , only shares of
Common Stock affirmatively voted FOR approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement will be
counted as a favorable vote for such proposal.

Revocation of Proxies

Your proxy is revocable. If you are a shareholder of record, you may revoke your proxy at any time before the vote is
taken at the Special Meeting by:

submitting a new proxy with a later date, by using the telephone or Internet proxy submission procedures described
above, or by completing, signing, dating and returning a new proxy card by mail to the Company;

attending the Special Meeting and voting in person; or
sending written notice of revocation to the Corporate Secretary of the Company at Frederick s of Hollywood Group
Inc., Attn: Secretary, 6255 Sunset Boulevard, Hollywood, California 90028.

Attending the Special Meeting without taking one of the actions described above will not in itself revoke your proxy.
Please note that if you want to revoke your proxy by mailing a new proxy card to the Company or by sending a
written notice of revocation to the Company, you should ensure that you send your new proxy card or written notice
of revocation in sufficient time for it to be received by the Company before the day of the Special Meeting.

If you hold your shares in street name through a bank, broker or other nominee, you will need to follow the

instructions provided to you by your bank, broker or other nominee in order to revoke your proxy or submit new
voting instructions.
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Abstentions

Abstentions will be included in the calculation of the number of shares of Common Stock represented at the Special
Meeting for purposes of determining the presence of a quorum. Abstaining from voting will have the same effect as a
vote AGAINST the proposal to approve the Merger and adopt the Merger Agreement, but are not deemed voted and
will have no effect on the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal.
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Postponements

The Company expects there will be present, in person or by proxy, sufficient favorable voting power to secure the
vote of the shareholders of the Company necessary to approve the Merger and adopt the Merger Agreement. The
Company does not anticipate that it will postpone the Special Meeting for the purpose of soliciting additional proxies
unless it is advised by counsel that failure to do so could reasonably be expected to result in a violation of applicable
law. Any postponement of the Special Meeting for the purpose of soliciting additional proxies will allow the
Company s shareholders who have already sent in their proxies to revoke them at any time prior to their use at the

Special Meeting as postponed.

Solicitation of Proxies

We will bear the cost of solicitation of proxies. This includes the charges and expenses of brokerage firms and others
for forwarding solicitation material to beneficial owners of our outstanding Common Stock. We may solicit proxies by
mail, personal interview, e-mail, telephone, or via the Internet. The Company has retained a proxy solicitation firm,
AST Phoenix Advisors, a division of American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC, to assist it in the solicitation
of proxies for the Special Meeting and will pay a fee of $7,500, plus reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses.
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THE MERGER AGREEMENT

The following is a summary of the material provisions of the Merger Agreement, a copy of which (including the
amendment thereto) is attached to this proxy statement as Annex A, and which we incorporate by reference into this
proxy statement. This summary may not contain all of the information about the Merger Agreement that is important
to you. We encourage you to read carefully the Merger Agreement in its entirety, as the rights and obligations of the
parties thereto are governed by the express terms of the Merger Agreement and not by this summary or any other

information contained in this proxy statement.

Explanatory Note Regarding the Merger Agreement

The following summary of the Merger Agreement, and the copy of the Merger Agreement (including the amendment
thereto) attached hereto as Annex A to this proxy statement, are intended to provide information regarding the terms of
the Merger Agreement and are not intended to modify or supplement any factual disclosures about the Company in its
public reports filed with the SEC. In particular, the Merger Agreement and the related summary are not intended to be,
and should not be relied upon as, disclosures regarding any facts and circumstances relating to the Company or any of

its subsidiaries or affiliates. The Merger Agreement contains representations and warranties by the Company, Parent
and Merger Sub which were made only for purposes of that agreement and as of specified dates. The representations,

warranties and covenants in the Merger Agreement were made solely for the benefit of the parties to the Merger
Agreement; may be subject to limitations agreed upon by the contracting parties, including being qualified by
confidential disclosures; are made for the purposes of allocating contractual risk between the parties to the Merger
Agreement instead of establishing these matters as facts; and may apply contractual standards of materiality or
material adverse effect that generally differ from those applicable to investors. In addition, information concerning the
subject matter of the representations, warranties and covenants may change after the date of the Merger Agreement,
which subsequent information may or may not be fully reflected in the Company s public disclosures. Moreover, the
description of the Merger Agreement below does not purport to describe all of the terms of such agreement, and is
qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of such agreement, a copy of which (including the amendment
thereto) is attached hereto as Annex A and is incorporated herein by reference. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the
extent specific material facts exist that contradict the representations or warranties in the Merger Agreement, the
Company has provided corrective disclosure in this proxy statement.

Additional information about the Company may be found elsewhere in this proxy statement and the Company s other
public filings. See Where You Can Find Additional Information beginning on page 106.

Structure of the Merger

At the Closing of the Merger, Merger Sub will merge with and into the Company and the separate corporate existence
of Merger Sub will cease. The Company will be the surviving corporation in the Merger and will continue to be a
New York corporation after the Merger. At the Closing of the Merger, the certificate of incorporation of the Company,
as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, will be amended in accordance with applicable law to reflect the
form of certificate of incorporation attached as an exhibit to the Merger Agreement. At the Closing of the Merger, the
bylaws of the Company, as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, will be amended in accordance with
applicable law to reflect the form of bylaws attached as an exhibit to the Merger Agreement. Subject to applicable
law, the directors of Merger Sub immediately prior to the Effective Time will from and after the Effective Time be the
initial directors of the surviving corporation and will hold office until their respective successors are duly elected and
qualified, or their earlier death, resignation or removal. The officers of the Company immediately prior to the
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Effective Time will from and after the Effective Time be the initial officers of the surviving corporation and will hold
office until their respective successors are duly elected and qualified, or their earlier death, resignation or removal.

When the Merger Becomes Effective

The Closing of the Merger will take place on a date to be specified by the Parent after the satisfaction or waiver of the
conditions to Closing stated in the Merger Agreement (other than those conditions that by their nature are to be
satisfied at the Closing, but subject to the satisfaction or waiver of such conditions) or at such
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other time as the parties may agree in writing, but if Parent fails to specify a Closing Date, the Closing Date shall be
no later than three business days after such conditions have been satisfied or waived (or June 15, 2014, if earlier). The
Merger will become effective at the time, which we refer to as the Effective Time, when the Company and Parent file
a certificate of Merger with the Department of State of the State of New York or at such later date or time as Parent
and the Company agree in writing and specify in the certificate of Merger.

Effect of the Merger on the Capital Stock

At the Effective Time, each issued and outstanding share of Common Stock immediately prior to the Effective Time,

other than the Excluded Shares and the Dissenting Shares, will be converted automatically into and will represent the

right to receive $0.27 in cash, without interest, and each such share shall otherwise cease to be outstanding and shall
otherwise automatically be cancelled and cease to exist.

At the Effective Time, each issued and outstanding Excluded Share immediately prior to the Effective Time, including
each share of capital stock that is currently owned by the Rollover Shareholders (all of which such stock shall,
immediately prior to the Effective Time, be held indirectly by Parent pursuant to the terms of the Rollover
Agreement), shall cease to be outstanding and shall automatically be cancelled and shall cease to exist.

At the Effective Time, each share of common stock of Merger Sub shall be converted into one share of newly issued
common stock of the Company as the surviving corporation of the Merger.

Treatment of Stock Options and Other Stock-Based Awards

Each Company stock option (other than those held by Mr. Harley) that is outstanding immediately prior to the
Effective Time, whether or not vested or exercisable, as of the Effective Time, will be cancelled. Each holder will be
entitled to receive a payment, if any, in cash from the Company (less any applicable withholding taxes) promptly
following the Effective Time, equal to (a) the amount, if any, by which $0.27 exceeds the exercise price per share with
respect to the stock option, multiplied by (b) the total number of shares of Common Stock then issuable upon the
exercise of the stock option. As of the date of this proxy statement, there are outstanding options to purchase 360,000
shares of Common Stock with an exercise price of less than $0.27, which will be cancelled for an aggregate
consideration of $30,900. All of the Company s other outstanding stock options (including all of those held by the
Company s directors and Executive Officers) will be cancelled for no consideration.

Each Company share-based award other than a stock option, including restricted share awards (other than those held
by Mr. Harley), whether or not vested, as of the Effective Time, will be cancelled. Each holder will be entitled to
receive a payment, in cash from the Company (less any applicable withholding taxes) promptly following the
Effective Time, equal to (a) $0.27 per share, multiplied by (b) the total number of shares of Common Stock
constituting the award. As of the date of this proxy statement, the Company has outstanding an aggregate of 737,194
shares subject to restricted share awards, which will be cancelled in exchange for aggregate consideration of
$199,042.38. These amounts include an aggregate of 578,694 shares subject to restricted share awards held by the
Company s directors (other than Mr. Harley) and Executive Officers, which will be cancelled for aggregate
consideration of $156,247.38.

Each Company warrant (other than those held by Mr. Harley and the other Rollover Shareholders), whether or not
vested or exercisable, as of the Effective Time, will be cancelled. Each holder will be entitled to receive a payment, if
any, in cash from the Company (less any applicable withholding taxes) promptly following the Effective Time, equal
to (a) the amount, if any, by which $0.27 exceeds the exercise price per share with respect to the warrant, multiplied
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by (b) the total number of shares of Common Stock then issuable upon the exercise of the warrant. However, any
Company warrant that will have no value after the Effective Time (because the warrant has an exercise price per share
that is greater than the merger consideration and, as of the Effective Time, the holder of the warrant will be entitled to
receive, upon exercise of the warrant, only the merger consideration multiplied by the number of shares subject to the
warrant), may remain outstanding. As of the date of the proxy statement, the Company has no outstanding warrants
(other than those held by the Rollover Shareholders) with an exercise price of less than $0.27 and, accordingly, no
consideration will be paid with respect to these warrants.
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Each Company stock option and restricted share award held by Mr. Harley and each warrant held by Mr. Harley and
the other Rollover Shareholders, as of the Effective Time, will be cancelled on the terms and conditions set forth in
the Rollover Agreement between Parent and the Rollover Shareholders. See Agreements Involving the Company s

Securities; Transactions Between the Rollover Shareholders and the Company Agreements Involving the
Company s Securities Rollover Agreement beginning on page 87.

Dissenting Shares

Notwithstanding anything in the Merger Agreement to the contrary, Dissenting Shares shall not be converted into the
right to receive the merger consideration at the Effective Time unless and until the holder of such shares fails to
perfect, withdraws or otherwise loses such holder s right to appraisal. If a holder of Dissenting Shares shall withdraw
(in accordance with Section 910 of the NYBCL) the demand for such appraisal or shall become ineligible for such
appraisal or if a court of competent jurisdiction shall make a final, non-appealable determination that such holder is
not entitled to the relief provided by Section 910 of the NYBCL with respect to such Dissenting Shares, then, as of the
Effective Time or the occurrence of such event, whichever last occurs, such holder s Dissenting Shares shall cease to
be Dissenting Shares and shall be converted or deemed to have been converted, as the case may be, into the right to
receive the merger consideration. We have agreed to give Parent (i) prompt notice of any written demands for
appraisal, withdrawals (or attempted withdrawals) of demands for appraisal and any other instruments served pursuant
to Section 910 of the NYBCL and received by us and (ii) the opportunity to direct all negotiations and proceedings
with respect to demands for appraisal.

Payment for the Common Stock in the Merger

Contemporaneously with the Effective Time, Parent will deposit, or cause to be deposited, with a bank or trust
company that will be appointed by Parent (and reasonably acceptable to the Company), as the paying agent, in trust
for the benefit of the Public Shareholders, sufficient cash to pay to the Public Shareholders the merger consideration

of $0.27 per share of Common Stock. As soon as reasonably practicable following the Effective Time but not later
than the fifth business day following the Effective Time, the surviving corporation will instruct the paying agent to
mail to each Public Shareholder of record of shares of Common Stock that were converted into the merger
consideration a letter of transmittal and instructions for use in effecting the surrender of certificates that formerly
represented shares of the Common Stock or non-certificated shares represented by book-entry in exchange for the
merger consideration.

Representations and Warranties

The Merger Agreement contains representations and warranties of the Company as to, among other things:

corporate organization, existence and good standing, including with respect to its subsidiaries;
the capitalization of the Company and the absence of certain rights to purchase or acquire equity securities of the
Company of any of its subsidiaries, the absence of any bonds or other obligations allowing holders the right to vote
with shareholders of the Company and the absence of shareholder agreements or voting trusts to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries is a party;

the Company s subsidiaries;

corporate power and authority to enter into the Merger Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements and in each case to
consummate the transactions contemplated thereby;
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required regulatory filings and authorizations, consents or approvals of governmental entities and consents
or approvals required of other third parties;
the accuracy of the Company s and its subsidiaries filings with the SEC and of financial statements included in the
SEC filings, and compliance with certain requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended, and the rules
and regulations thereunder, and with exchange rules;
the absence of certain events or changes since July 27, 2013;

matters relating to information to be included in required filings with the SEC in connection with the Merger;
75

Representations and Warranties 156



Edgar Filing: FREDERICK'S OF HOLLYWOOD GROUP INC /NY/ - Form PRER14A

TABLE OF CONTENTS

the absence of certain suits, actions, proceedings, claims, reviews, investigations, orders, writs or
injunctions related to the Company and its subsidiaries;
compliance with laws and possession of necessary permits and authorizations by the Company and its subsidiaries;
the payment of taxes, the filing of tax returns and other tax matters related to the Company and its subsidiaries;
matters relating to the top suppliers or vendors by volume of purchases;
the good, valid and marketable title to all owned real property, the validity of certain leases for real and personal
property leased by the Company or any of its subsidiaries and other matters pertaining to real property;
the Company s employee benefit plans;
labor matters related to the Company and its subsidiaries;
rights to intellectual property held by the Company and its subsidiaries;
material contracts of the Company and its subsidiaries, and the absence of certain violations or defaults under certain
contracts;
environmental matters and compliance with environmental laws by the Company and its subsidiaries;
insurance policies of the Company and its subsidiaries;
the absence of any right agreements and inapplicability of any anti-takeover statue to the Merger;
the absence of certain undisclosed liabilities for the Company and its subsidiaries;
the shareholder votes required to approve the Merger and adopt the Merger Agreement;
the absence of any other merger, stock purchase agreement, asset purchase agreement, joint venture agreement, or
other similar agreement or understanding with a third party;
the receipt by the Lead Director of an opinion of his financial advisor;
the absence of any fees owed to investment bankers or brokers in connection with the Merger, other than those
specified in the Merger Agreement; and
the Company and its subsidiaries are not required to be registered as investment companies under the Investment
Company Act of 1940.
The Merger Agreement also contains representations and warranties of Parent and Merger Sub as to, among other
things:

corporate organization, existence and good standing;

corporate power and authority to enter into the Merger Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements and in each case to
consummate the transactions contemplated thereby;

required regulatory filings and authorizations, consents or approvals of governmental entities and consents

or approvals required of other third parties;

matters relating to information to be included in required filings with the SEC in connection with the Merger;

the absence of any fees owed to investment bankers or brokers in connection with the Merger, other than those
specified in the Merger Agreement;
the absence of certain suits, actions, proceedings, claims, reviews, investigations, orders, writs or injunctions related
to Parent or Merger Sub; and
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the financial capacity of Parent to perform its obligations under this Agreement and to cause Merger Sub to perform

its obligations under this Agreement.

Some of the representations and warranties in the Merger Agreement are qualified by materiality or include a Material
Adverse Effect or Parent Material Adverse Effect qualifier, as applicable.

For purposes of the Merger Agreement, a Material Adverse Effect with respect to the Company and its subsidiaries
means any effect, together with other effects, that is or would reasonably be expected to be materially adverse to the
business, assets (including intangible assets), condition (financial or otherwise) or results of operations of the

Company or its subsidiaries or would reasonably be expected to materially impair the Company s ability to perform its
obligations under the Merger Agreement; provided, however, that none of the following shall be deemed to constitute
or contribute to a Material Adverse Effect: (A) any adverse effect that results from general economic or market
conditions (including changes in financial, securities or currency markets, changes in prevailing interest rates or
exchange rates) and that does not disproportionately affect the Company or any of its subsidiaries relative to the other
participants in the industry or industry sectors in which the Company or any subsidiary operates, (B) any adverse
effect generally affecting the industry or industry sectors in which the Company or any of the its subsidiaries operates
that does not disproportionately affect the Company or any of its subsidiaries relative to the other participants in the
industry or industry sectors in which the Company or any subsidiary operates, (C) changes, after the date of the
Merger Agreement, in laws or other legally enforceable requirements or applicable accounting regulations (including
GAAP) or principles or interpretations thereof, or political, legislative or business conditions in the countries in which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries operates, that do not disproportionately affect the Company or any of its
subsidiaries relative to the other participants in the industry or industry sectors in which the Company or any
subsidiary operates, (D) acts of war (whether or not declared), the commencement, continuation or escalation of a war,
acts of armed hostility, sabotage or terrorism or other international or national calamity (whether natural or
man-made) or any material worsening of such conditions threatened or existing as of the date of the Merger
Agreement that do not disproportionately affect the Company or any of its subsidiaries relative to the other
participants in the industry or industry sectors in which the Company or any subsidiary operates, (E) any failure by the
Company to meet internal or published projections, forecasts or estimates of revenue, earnings or other financial or
operating metrics (but not any event, condition, fact, change, occurrence or effect underlying such change or failure
that is not otherwise excepted), or (F) any adverse effect that results from actions taken by the Company pursuant to
the business plan of the Company developed at the direction of the lenders under the Credit Agreement.

For the purpose of the Merger Agreement, a Parent Material Adverse Effect means circumstances that would, or
would reasonably be expected to, individually or in the aggregate, prevent or materially delay the performance by
Parent or Merger Sub of any of its obligations under this Agreement or the Ancillary Agreements or the
consummation of any of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby.

Conduct of Business Pending the Merger

The Merger Agreement provides that, subject to certain exceptions or as consented to in writing by Parent or required
by the business plan of the Company developed at the direction of the lenders under the Credit Agreement, during the
period from the signing of the Merger Agreement to the Effective Time or the termination of the Merger Agreement
pursuant to its terms, the Company, among other things, will, and will cause its subsidiaries to, conduct its business in
the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice and shall use its reasonable best efforts to preserve intact
its business organization, assets and goodwill and beneficial relationships with customers, suppliers and others having
business dealings with it and to keep available the services of its officers and key employees on terms and conditions
substantially comparable to those in effect prior to the signing of the Merger Agreement and maintain its rights and
franchises, in each case, consistent with past practice. In addition, subject to certain exceptions or as consented to in
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writing by Parent or required by the business plan of the Company developed at the direction of the lenders under the
Credit Agreement, the Company shall not, and shall not permit any of its subsidiaries to, among other things:

adopt or propose changes to its organizational documents;
declare, set aside, make or pay any dividend or other distribution in respect of any of its capital stock (other than with
respect to the Company s Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and Series B
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Convertible Preferred Stock), or split, combine or reclassify any of its capital stock, or repurchase, redeem or
otherwise acquire any shares of capital stock of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any other equity interests or
any rights, warrants or options to acquire any such interest;

issue, sell, grant, pledge or otherwise encumber any shares of its capital stock or other securities subject to certain
exemptions (including exceptions for existing options and warrants and existing shares of Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock);

merge or consolidate with any other person or acquire an amount of assets or equity of any other person (exclusive of
goods purchased in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice);

sell, lease, license, subject to a lien, encumber or otherwise dispose of any assets, property or rights except sales of
inventory in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, extension or termination of leases in the
ordinary course of business or pursuant to previously disclosed existing commitments;

make any loans, advances or capital contributions to, or investments in, any other person, subject to certain
exemptions, create, incur, guarantee or assume any indebtedness (other than already in existence at the signing of the
Merger Agreement or borrowings in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice), enter into any
derivatives transaction other than in the ordinary course of business, or make or commit to make any capital
expenditures in excess of $50,000 individually or $150,000 in the aggregate;

other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, increase the compensation or benefits
payable or to become payable to the current or former directors, officers, consultants or employees of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; establish, adopt, enter into or amend any benefit plan except as otherwise provided in the
Merger Agreement or to the extent required by law; increase the benefits payable under any existing severance or
termination pay policies or employment agreements; take any affirmative action to accelerate the vesting of any
compensation, except as contemplated by the Merger Agreement; grant any awards under any bonus, incentive,
performance or other compensation arrangement or Company benefit plan, other than as required by such plans in
existence and consistent with past practice; take any action to fund or in any other way secure the payment of
compensation or benefits under any Company benefit plan; make any material determinations not in the ordinary
course of business consistent with past practice under any Company benefit plan; grant or promise any tax offset
payment award under any Company benefit plan; hire or terminate the employment of any employee at the level of
vice president or above, other than for cause ; or adopt or implement any shareholder rights plan or similar
arrangement that is applicable to the Merger;

settle or compromise any claim, action or proceeding or enter into any consent, decree or injunction material to the
business of the Company, other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

make or rescind any material election relating to taxes or consent to any extension of the limitations period applicable
to any material tax claim or assessment; settle or compromise any proceeding relating to a material tax claim, enter
into a closing or similar agreement with any taxing authority relating to any material taxes or surrender any right to
obtain a material tax refund, credit, offset or other reduction in tax liability; file any amended material tax return
(other than to correct an identified error); request a ruling relating to material taxes; or change any material method of
reporting income or deductions for tax purposes from those employed in the preparation of Company tax returns for
the taxable year ending December 31, 2012;

other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, modify, amend or terminate, or assign,
waive, release or relinquish any material rights or claims under, or grant any material consents under any material
contract; enter into any successor agreement to an expiring material contract that changes the terms of the expiring
contract in a way that is materially adverse
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to the Company or any of its subsidiaries; enter into any new contract or agreement that would require a payment to or
give rise to any rights to one or more counterparties in connection with the Merger; or enter into any new material
contract;
enter into or renew or extend any agreements that can limit or restrict the Company and its subsidiaries from engaging
or competing in any line of business or in any geographic area;
change any method of accounting or accounting principles or practices by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
except as required by a change in GAAP or law;
terminate, cancel, amend or modify any material insurance policies maintained by the Company covering the
Company or any of its subsidiaries that is not replaced by a comparable amount of insurance coverage other than in
the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;
approve, adopt or effect a plan of liquidation, dissolution, restructuring, recapitalization or other reorganization of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries;
abandon, dedicate to the public, convey title to or grant licenses under any material intellectual property or trade
secrets of the Company or any of its subsidiaries other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past
practice;
other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, accelerate or delay the payment of any
material accounts payable or extend or make any agreement to extend, the payment terms of any material accounts
receivable;
revalue in any material respect any assets, other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice or
as may be consistent with GAAP;
permit any of its subsidiaries or affiliates or their directors, employees, independent contractors, representatives or
agents to violate the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended, or other applicable law or legally
enforceable requirement;
take any actions or omit to take any actions that would or would be reasonably likely to result in any of the conditions
described in The Merger Agreement Conditions to the Merger beginning on page 83 below not being satisfied or
materially impair or delay the ability of the parties to the Merger to consummate the Merger; or

agree or commit to do anything described in the foregoing bullet points.

Other Covenants and Agreements

Indemnification; Directors and Officers Insurance

All rights to indemnification, advancement of expenses and exculpation now existing in favor of each individual who,
as of the Effective Time, is a present or former director or officer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, referred to
as the indemnified parties , will, with respect to matters occurring at or prior to the Effective Time, survive the Merger
and continue in full force and effect. Until the sixth anniversary of the Closing Date, the organizational documents of
the surviving corporation and its subsidiaries will, with respect to matters occurring at or prior to the Effective Time,
contain provisions no less favorable with respect to indemnification, advancement of expenses and exculpation of the
indemnified persons than as in effect prior to execution of the Merger Agreement. All rights to indemnification or
advancement of expenses now existing in favor of the indemnified persons in any indemnification agreement between
such person and the Company or any of its subsidiaries, as the case may be, or under law shall survive the Merger and
continue in full force and effect in accordance with the terms of such agreement or law. In the event that Parent, the
Company or any of their successors or assigns subsequently (i) consolidates with or merges into any other entity and
is not be the continuing or surviving entity of such consolidation or merger or (ii) transfers or conveys a majority of its
properties and assets to one or more persons in one or more transactions, then, and in each such case, proper provision
shall be made so that the successors, assigns and transferees of Parent or the Company or their respective successors
or assigns, as the case may be, assume the obligations described in this paragraph.
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the Effective Time, covers the indemnified persons for actions and omissions occurring at or prior to the Effective
Time and contains terms with respect to coverage and amount no less favorable than those of the applicable policy in
effect immediately prior to the execution of the Merger Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall
the Company be permitted to expend for such tail policy in excess of 300% of the annual premium currently provided
by the Company for its existing policy of directors and officers liability insurance. If the premium of such insurance
coverage exceeds such amount, the Company shall be permitted to obtain a policy with the greatest coverage available
for a cost not to exceed such amount.

Access and Information

During normal business hours throughout the period prior to the Effective Time, the Company will provide Parent
access to the Company s records, contracts, financial and other data, properties and facilities (and, if requested by
Parent, to conduct, at the sole cost of Parent, an environmental assessment of such properties and facilities), personnel,
auditors, management reports and to such other information as Parent shall reasonably request. Prior to the Effective
Time, the Company shall provide to Parent, promptly when available, financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for each quarter and month through the Effective Time, as prepared by management, a copy of each
report, schedule, registration statement and other document filed by the Company or any of its subsidiaries after the
date of the Merger Agreement and prior to the Effective Time pursuant to the requirements of federal or state
securities laws, and any update of quarterly projections.

Efforts to Consummate

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, each of the parties to the Merger Agreement (and each
of their respective subsidiaries) will use its reasonable best efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all actions and to do,
or cause to be done, all things necessary, proper or advisable to consummate and make the Merger effective as
promptly as practicable, and to cooperate with each other for such purposes. The parties to the Merger Agreement will
use their respective reasonable best efforts to resist, contest or defend any suit, claim, action or proceeding (including
administrative or judicial actions and proceedings) challenging the Merger.

Limited Solicitation

Generally, under the Merger Agreement, we may not solicit alternative Takeover Proposals (as such term is defined in
the Merger Agreement, as described below in this The Merger Agreement Other Covenants and
Agreements Limited Solicitation section), but we may engage in a limited solicitation of certain designated parties
that were agreed upon among Parent, Merger Sub and the Company as a result of the negotiations of the Merger
Agreement by the Lead Director.

The Company will direct its representatives to, immediately cease any discussions, negotiations, or communications
with any party, except the designated parties, with respect to any Takeover Proposal. The Company shall not, nor shall
it authorize or permit any of its subsidiaries or its and their representatives to (and shall use its reasonable best efforts
to cause such persons not to), among other things, directly or indirectly:

except with respect to the designated parties, initiate, induce, solicit, knowingly facilitate or encourage any inquiry or
the making, submission or announcement of any proposal that constitutes or could reasonably be expected to lead to a
Takeover Proposal;

approve, adopt or recommend (or propose to do so) any Takeover Proposal or enter into any letter of intent,
memorandum of understanding, agreement, arrangement or understanding relating to, or that could reasonably be
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expected to lead to, any Takeover Proposal;

enter into any agreement or agreement in principle requiring the Company to abandon, terminate or fail to
consummate the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement or breach its obligations
thereunder, or propose or agree to do any of the foregoing;

except with respect to the designated parties, fail to enforce, or grant any waiver under, any standstill or similar

agreement with any person; or
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except with respect to the designated parties, engage in, continue or otherwise participate in any discussions or
negotiations regarding, furnish to any person any information or data with respect to the Company in connection with
or in response to, or otherwise cooperate with or take any other action to facilitate any proposal that constitutes, or
could reasonably be expected to lead to, any Takeover Proposal or requires the Company to abandon, terminate or fail
to consummate the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement.

However, prior to the receipt of the Shareholder Approval, the Company or the Lead Director may, in response to a
bona fide written Takeover Proposal that did not result from a breach of the above paragraph, contact the party that
submitted such Takeover Proposal to clarify the terms and conditions thereof and, subject to compliance with the
provisions outlined in subsequent paragraphs below and provided that and that the Lead Director determines in good
faith, after consultation with it outside legal counsel and financial advisors, that such Takeover Proposal constitutes or
could reasonably be expected to lead to a Superior Proposal (as such term is defined in the Merger Agreement, as

described below in this The Merger Agreement Other Covenants and Agreements  Limited Solicitation section):

furnish information or data with respect to the Company or any of its subsidiaries to the person making such Takeover
Proposal and its representatives pursuant to a confidentiality agreement, provided that all such information provided
has previously been provided to Parent or is provided to Parent prior to or concurrently with the time it is provided to
such person; and

engage in, continue or otherwise participate in discussions or negotiations regarding, and otherwise cooperate with or
take any other action to facilitate, such Takeover Proposal.

As promptly as practical and in any event within one business day of the receipt by the Company of any Takeover
Proposal or any inquiry with respect to, or that could reasonably be expected to lead to, any Takeover Proposal, the
Company will provide notice to Parent of such Takeover Proposal or inquiry. The notice will include the identity of
the person making the Takeover Proposal or inquiry and the material terms and conditions of the Takeover Proposal

or inquiry. The Company will keep Parent reasonably informed on a current basis of the status of the Takeover

Proposal, including any material changes to its terms and conditions. The Company is required to provide Parent,

within one business day after receipt, with copies of all written communications and other written materials, and
summaries of all other communications, sent or provided to or by the Company and its representatives in connection
with any Takeover Proposal.

The Lead Director will promptly consider in good faith any alteration of the terms of the Merger Agreement or the
Merger proposed by Parent in response to any Takeover Proposal.

Prior to the Company receiving the Shareholder Approval, the Lead Director may, in response to a Superior Proposal,
effect a Change in the Company Recommendation or approve and enter into any agreement relating to a Superior
Proposal, provided that the Lead Director determines in good faith that the failure to do so would constitute a breach
of its fiduciary duties to the shareholders of the Company. At least five business days prior to effecting a Change in
the Company Recommendation or approving and entering into an agreement relating to a Superior Proposal, the Lead
Director will provide written notice to Parent of its intention to make a Change in the Company Recommendation or
enter into such agreement. The notice shall include the reasonable details regarding the cause for, and nature of, the
Change in the Company Recommendation or the entering into such agreement. In addition, the Lead Director may not
effect the Change in the Company Recommendation or approve and enter into an agreement relating to a Superior
Proposal unless Parent does not make, within five business days of receipt of such notice, an offer that the Lead
Director determines, in good faith after consultation with its legal and financial advisors, results in the applicable
Takeover Proposal no longer being a Superior Proposal.

As described in this The Merger Agreement  Other Covenants and Agreements  Limited Solicitation section,
nothing in the Merger Agreement will prohibit the Company, the Board of Directors or the Lead Director from

complying with securities laws in respect of any Takeover Proposal, including making any disclosure to the
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Directors expressly publicly reaffirms its approval or recommendation of the Merger Agreement and the Merger in
such disclosure, or in the case of a stop, look and listen or similar communication, in a subsequent disclosure.

Other than as otherwise described in this The Merger Agreement Other Covenants and Agreements  Limited
Solicitation section, neither the Board nor any committee thereof nor the Lead Director will, directly or indirectly,
effect a Change in the Company Recommendation, take any formal action or make any recommendation or public
statement in connection with a tender offer or exchange offer other than a recommendation against such offer or a

temporary stop, look and listen communication or approve any agreement, arrangement or understanding relating to,
or that may reasonably be expected to lead to, any Takeover Proposal.

For purposes of this proxy statement:
A Takeover Proposal refers to any proposal or offer in respect of:

a tender or exchange offer, merger, consolidation, business combination, share exchange, reorganization,
recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution or similar transaction involving the Company or a significant subsidiary with
a third party;
the Company s acquisition of any third party in a tender or exchange offer, merger, consolidation, business
combination, share exchange, reorganization, recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution or similar transaction in which
the shareholders of the third party will own more than 20% of the Company s outstanding capital stock immediately
following such transaction;
any acquisition by any third party of 20% or more of any class of capital stock of the Company or of 20% or more of
the consolidated assets of the Company and its subsidiaries, in a single transaction or a series of related transactions;
or
any transaction which is similar in form, substance or purpose to any of the foregoing transactions, other than the
transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement.
A Superior Proposal refers to any bona fide written proposal or offer made by a third party in respect of a business
combination transaction involving, or any purchase or acquisition of, a majority of the voting power of the Company s
capital stock or a majority of the consolidated assets of the Company and its subsidiaries, which transaction or other
purchase or acquisition contains terms and conditions that the Lead Director determines in good faith would result in a
transaction that:

if consummated, would be more favorable to the Public Shareholders than the Merger and the transactions
contemplated by the Merger Agreement; and
is reasonably capable of being consummated on the terms so proposed.

Shareholder Litigation

The Company will give Parent the opportunity to participate in the defense or settlement of any shareholder litigation
against the Company and/or its directors relating to the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, whether
commenced prior to or after the execution and delivery of the Merger Agreement. The Company will not settle or
offer to settle any litigation commenced prior to or after the execution of the Merger Agreement against the Company
or any of its directors or executive officers by any shareholder of the Company relating to the Merger Agreement, the
Merger, any other transaction contemplated thereby or otherwise, without the prior written consent of Parent, which
shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.
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During the period prior to the Effective Time, the Company shall continue to timely file or furnish all forms, reports,
statements, schedules and other materials with the SEC required to be filed or furnished pursuant to federal securities
laws.
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Conditions to the Merger

The obligations of the Company, Parent and Merger Sub to effect the Merger are subject to the satisfaction or waiver,
at or prior to the Closing Date, of the following mutual conditions:

the Shareholder Approval shall have been obtained; and
no court or U.S. governmental entity shall have issued an order, decree or ruling or taken any other action restraining,
enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the consummation of the Merger or the other transactions contemplated by the
Merger Agreement.
The obligation of Parent and Merger Sub to effect the Merger is subject to the satisfaction or waiver, at or prior to the
Closing Date, of the following additional conditions:

the representations and warranties of the Company set forth in the Merger Agreement, disregarding any qualifications
or limitations contained therein as to materiality or Material Adverse Effect, shall be true and correct as of the date of
the Merger Agreement and as of the Closing Date as though made on and as of the Closing Date (or, if given as a
specific date, at and as of that date), except where such failures to be true and correct, taken as a whole, have not had,
and would not reasonably be expected to have, a Material Adverse Effect, and Parent shall have received a certificate
from the Company to such effect;
the Company shall have performed or complied in all material respects with all agreements and covenants required to
be performed by it under the Merger Agreement at or prior to the Closing Date and Parent shall have received a
certificate from the Company to such effect;
since July 27, 2013, there shall not have been any, or a worsening of any, states of facts, events, changes, effects,
developments, conditions or occurrences that, when taken as a whole, have had or would reasonably be expected to
have a Material Adverse Effect; and
Parent shall have received a certification from the Company to the effect that the Company is not (and was not at any
time during the five-year period ending on the Closing Date) a United States real property holding corporation within
the meaning of the Internal Revenue Code; and
the aggregate number of Dissenting Shares shall not equal or exceed 10% of the issued and outstanding shares of our
Common Stock immediately prior to the Effective Time.

The obligation of the Company to effect the Merger is subject to the satisfaction or waiver, at or prior to the Closing

Date, of the following additional conditions:

the representations and warranties of Merger Sub and Parent set forth in the Merger Agreement, disregarding any
qualifications or limitations contained therein as to materiality or a Parent Material Adverse Effect, shall be true and
correct, in each case, as of the date of the Merger Agreement and as of the Closing Date as though made on and as of
the Closing Date (or, if given as a specific date, at and as of such date), where such failures to be true and correct,
taken as a whole, have not had, and would not reasonably be expected to have, a Parent Material Adverse Effect, and
the Company shall have received a certificate from Parent to such effect;

each of Merger Sub and Parent shall have performed or complied in all material respects with all agreements and
covenants required to be performed by it under the Merger Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements at or prior to the
Closing Date and the Company shall have received a certificate from Parent to such effect; and

each of the Ancillary Agreements shall have been executed and delivered by each party thereto (other than the
Company) and shall be in full force and effect.
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Termination

The Merger Agreement may be terminated and the transactions contemplated thereby may be abandoned at any time
prior to the Effective Time, whether prior to or after receipt of the Shareholder Approval:

by mutual written consent of Parent and the Company (acting at the direction of the Lead Director);
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by either Parent or the Company (with the prior approval of the Lead Director), if:

the Merger shall not have been consummated by the Termination Date, provided that the right to terminate the
<Merger Agreement pursuant to this provision is not available to any party whose failure to perform any of its

obligations under the Merger Agreement has been the primary cause of the failure of the Merger to be consummated

by the Termination Date;

a governmental entity of competent jurisdiction takes any action (which the party seeking to terminate the Merger

Agreement shall have used its reasonable best efforts to resist, resolve, annul, quash or lift, as applicable)
opermanently restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the Merger and such action shall have become final and

non-appealable, provided that the right to terminate the Merger Agreement pursuant to this provision shall not be

available to any party whose failure to perform any of its obligations under the Merger Agreement has been the

primary cause of any such action; or
othe Shareholder Approval shall not have been obtained at the Special Meeting or any adjournment or postponement

thereof;

by Parent, if:

the Company shall have breached or failed to perform in any material respect any of its representations, warranties,

covenants or agreements contained in the Merger Agreement, which breach or failure to perform is incapable of

being cured by the Company prior to the Termination Date or if capable of being cured, is not cured within 30 days
Jfollowing receipt by the Company of written notice from Parent, and which would result in a failure of any Parent

and Merger Sub condition to effect the Merger, as described in The Merger Agreement — Conditions to the Merger

beginning on page 83, provided that Parent s right to terminate the Merger Agreement pursuant to this provision shall

not be available if Parent or Merger Sub is then in material breach of any of its representations, warranties, covenants

or agreements under the Merger Agreement; or

° a Change in the Company Recommendation shall have occurred;
by the Company (with the prior approval of the Lead Director), if:

Parent or Merger Sub shall have breached or failed to perform in any material respect any of its representations,

warranties, covenants or agreements contained in the Merger Agreement, which breach or failure to perform is

incapable of being cured by Parent or Merger Sub prior to the Termination Date or if capable of being cured, is not
ocured within 30 days following receipt by Parent of written notice from the Company, and which would result in a

failure of any Company condition to effect the Merger, as described in The Merger Agreement  Conditions to the

Merger beginning on page 83, provided that the Company s right to terminate the Merger Agreement pursuant to this

provision shall not be available if the Company is then in material breach of any of its representations, warranties,

covenants or agreements under the Merger Agreement; or

the Board of Directors, upon the recommendation of the Lead Director, causes the Company to enter into any

agreement related to a Superior Proposal, provided that the Company has complied in all material respects with the
°provisions in the Merger Agreement relating to solicitation of Takeover Proposals, including the notice provisions

therein, as summarized in The Merger Agreement Other Covenants and Agreements Limited Solicitation

beginning on page 80.

Fees and Expenses

Except as otherwise provided in the Merger Agreement as described in this The Merger Agreement Fees and
Expenses section, all fees and expenses incurred in connection with the Merger and the other transactions
contemplated by the Merger Agreement shall be paid by the party incurring such fees or expenses, whether or not the
Merger is consummated.
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Payment or Reimbursement of Fees and Expenses by the Company

If the Merger Agreement is terminated by Parent because of a Change in the Company Recommendation, as described
in The Merger Agreement Termination beginning on page 83, the Company will reimburse Parent for its expenses
(not to exceed $300,000 in the aggregate). If the Merger Agreement is terminated by the Company because the Board

of Directors, upon the recommendation of the Lead Director, causes the Company to enter into an agreement related to
a Superior Proposal, as described in The Merger Agreement Termination beginning on page 83, the Company will
reimburse Parent for its expenses (not to exceed $300,000 in the aggregate) and will pay Parent a termination fee of

$300,000. Parent s right to receive such reimbursement of expenses and/or such termination fee, as applicable, shall be

the sole and exclusive remedy in the event of a termination of the Merger Agreement as described, except in the event

of a willful or intentional material breach of any provision of the Merger Agreement by the Company.

Payment or Reimbursement of Fees and Expenses by Parent

If the Merger Agreement is terminated by the Company because Parent or Merger Sub breached or failed to perform
in any material respect any of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements contained in the Merger
Agreement, as described in The Merger Agreement Termination beginning on page 83, and (i) such breach was
material and knowing, willful or intentional and (ii) at the time of such termination, the Company is then ready,
willing and able to consummate the merger and the conditions to Parent and Merger Sub s obligations under the
Merger Agreement have been satisfied or waived, Parent will reimburse the Company for its expenses (not to exceed
$300,000 in the aggregate) and will pay the Company a termination fee in an amount equal to $300,000. If the Merger
Agreement is terminated by the Company because Parent or Merger Sub breached or failed to perform in any material
respect any of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements contained in the Merger Agreement, as
described in The Merger Agreement  Termination beginning on page 83, in circumstances other than those set forth
in the preceding sentence, Parent will reimburse the Company for its expenses (not to exceed $300,000 in the
aggregate). The Company s right to terminate and receive such reimbursement of expenses and/or such termination
fee, as applicable, shall be the sole and exclusive monetary remedy of the Company. In the event the Merger
Agreement is terminated as described, under no circumstances shall the Company be permitted or entitled to receive
any injunction, specific performance or other equitable relief.

Amendments and Waivers

The Merger Agreement may not be amended and no waiver, consent or approval by or on behalf of the Company (or
Lead Director, if applicable) may be granted except pursuant to an instrument in writing signed by or on behalf of the
Company (or Lead Director, if applicable) following approval of such action by the Lead Director and signed by
Parent; provided, however, that following the Shareholder Approval, no amendment may be made to the Merger
Agreement that by law requires further approval or authorization by the shareholders of the Company or Merger Sub
without such further approval or authorization.

At any time prior to the Effective Time, whether before or after receipt of the Shareholder Approval:

the Lead Director on behalf of the Company may, but will not be obligated to, extend the time for the
performance of any of the obligations of Merger Sub and Parent, waive any inaccuracies in the
representations and warranties of Merger Sub or Parent, or waive compliance by Merger Sub or Parent with
any of the covenants or with any conditions to the Company s obligations; and
Parent may, but will not be obligated to, extend the time for the performance of any of the obligations of the
Company, waive any inaccuracies in the representations and warranties of the Company or waive compliance by the
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Equitable Remedies

The Company will not be entitled to receive both equitable remedies and the reimbursement of expenses and/or a
termination fee, as described in The Merger Agreement Fees and Expenses Payment or Reimbursement of Fees
and Expenses by Parent beginning on page 85. Parent and/or Merger Sub shall be entitled to an injunction or
injunctions to prevent breaches of the Merger Agreement or to enforce specifically the performance of the terms
hereof in addition to any other remedies to which they are entitled at law or in

85

Amendments and Waivers 173



Edgar Filing: FREDERICK'S OF HOLLYWOOD GROUP INC /NY/ - Form PRER14A

TABLE OF CONTENTS

equity. The Company has waived any defenses in any action for specific performance, including the defense that a
remedy at law would be adequate. Except as otherwise provided in the Merger Agreement, as described in this
paragraph, the exercise by Parent or Merger Sub of a particular remedy shall not preclude the exercise of any other
remedy.

Vote Required and Board Recommendation

For the Company to complete the Merger, under New York law and the Merger Agreement, shareholders holding at
least two-thirds of the aggregate voting power of our Common Stock outstanding at the close of business on the record
date must vote  FOR the approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement. For purposes of the proposal
to approve the Merger and adopt the Merger Agreement, abstentions and shares deemed present at the meeting but not
entitled to vote with respect to the proposal (because of either shareholder withholding or broker non-vote) will have
the same effect as a vote  AGAINST the proposal. If you fail to submit a proxy or vote in person at the Special
Meeting, the shares of Common Stock not voted will have the same effect as a vote  AGAINST this proposal.

Subject to the terms of the Voting Agreement between us, Parent and the Rollover Shareholders, the Rollover
Shareholders have agreed to vote all shares of our Common Stock they beneficially own (and any shares acquired by
them after the date of the Voting Agreement) in favor of approving the Merger and adopting the Merger Agreement.

See Agreements Involving the Company s Securities; Transactions Between the Rollover Shareholders and the
Company Agreements Involving the Company s Securities Voting Agreement beginning on page 87. As of the
record date, there were 39,273,254 shares of our Common Stock outstanding, of which the Rollover Shareholders own
27,678,679 shares of Common Stock, representing in the aggregate approximately 70.5% of the outstanding shares of
Common Stock. This amount excludes the 63,579,204 shares of Common Stock that the Rollover Shareholders have
the right to acquire pursuant to convertible preferred stock, warrants and options held by them. Because the Rollover
Shareholders beneficially hold more than two-thirds of our outstanding shares of Common Stock as of the record date,
they can satisfy the required vote under New York law and the Merger Agreement to approve the Merger and adopt
the Merger Agreement without the affirmative vote of any of our other shareholders.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BASED ON THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE LEAD DIRECTOR,
RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE MERGER AND THE ADOPTION OF
THE MERGER AGREEMENT.
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AGREEMENTS INVOLVING THE COMPANY S
SECURITIES; TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE
ROLLOVER SHAREHOLDERS AND THE COMPANY

Agreements Involving the Company s Securities

Voting Agreement

In connection with the execution of the Merger Agreement, on December 18, 2013, Parent, HGI Funding and the
Rollover Shareholders entered into an agreement with the Company, which we refer to as the Voting Agreement,
pursuant to which each Rollover Shareholder agreed, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein, to vote the
Subject Shares (as defined therein, and including any shares acquired by them after the date of the Voting Agreement)
in favor of approving the Merger and adopting the Merger Agreement. The Rollover Shareholders further agreed to
vote against (i) any Takeover Proposal or Superior Proposal, (ii) any action, proposal, transaction or agreement which
could reasonably be expected to result in a breach of any covenant, representation or warranty or any other obligation
or agreement of the Company under the Merger Agreement or of such shareholder under the Voting Agreement, and
(iii) any action, proposal, transaction or agreement that could reasonably be expected to impede, interfere with, delay,
discourage, adversely affect or inhibit the timely consummation of the Merger or the fulfillment of Parent s, the
Company s or Merger Sub s conditions under the Merger Agreement or change in any manner the voting rights of any
class of shares of the Company. The Voting Agreement will terminate upon the occurrence of certain events,
including the termination of the Merger Agreement in accordance with its terms.

A copy of the Voting Agreement is attached to this proxy statement as Annex C and is incorporated by reference into
this proxy statement. The summary of the Voting Agreement in the preceding paragraph does not purport to be
complete and may not contain all of the information about the Voting Agreement that may be important to you and is
qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of such agreement. We encourage you to read the Voting
Agreement carefully and in its entirety, as the rights and obligations of the parties thereto are governed by the express
terms of the Voting Agreement and not by this summary or any other information contained in this proxy statement.

As of the record date, there were 39,273,254 shares of our Common Stock outstanding, of which the Rollover
Shareholders own 27,678,679 shares of Common Stock, representing in the aggregate approximately 70.5% of the
outstanding shares of Common Stock. This amount excludes the 63,579,204 shares of Common Stock that the
Rollover Shareholders have the right to acquire pursuant to convertible preferred stock, warrants and options held by
them.

Rollover Agreement

In connection with the execution of the Merger Agreement, on December 18, 2013, the Rollover Shareholders entered
into an agreement with Parent, which we refer to as the Rollover Agreement, pursuant to which, simultaneously with
the execution of the Rollover Agreement, Parent issued to each Rollover Shareholder an equity interest in Parent.
Subject to the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Purchase Agreement (as defined in Agreements
Involving the Company s Securities, Transactions Between the Rollover Shareholders and the
Company Agreements Involving the Company s Securities Purchase and Sale Agreement below), immediately
prior to the Effective Time, each Rollover Shareholder will contribute the shares of Common Stock, Series A
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Convertible Preferred Stock and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock held by such Rollover Shareholder (after taking
into account the transfer of shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock from TTG to HGI Funding pursuant to the
Purchase Agreement) to Parent in exchange for an increase in their equity interests in Parent. The issuance of the
equity interests will be effected by increasing the value of the capital account corresponding to such Rollover

Shareholder s existing equity interests.

In addition, each stock option, stock-based award (other than a stock option) and warrant held by the Rollover
Shareholders will, immediately following the Effective Time, automatically and without the taking of any further
action on the part of the Company or any Rollover Shareholder, be cancelled (and to the extent formerly exercisable
shall no longer be exercisable) and shall no longer represent the right to receive or acquire shares of Common Stock or
receive any other consideration therefor.
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In the event that the transactions contemplated by the Rollover Agreement are consummated but the Merger
Agreement is terminated in accordance with its terms, then the transactions contemplated by the Rollover Agreement
will be deemed not to have occurred. The Rollover Agreement will terminate upon the termination of the Merger
Agreement in accordance with its terms.

A copy of the Rollover Agreement is attached to this proxy statement as Annex D and is incorporated by reference
into this proxy statement. The summary of the Rollover Agreement in the preceding paragraph does not purport to be
complete and may not contain all of the information about the Rollover Agreement that may be important to you and

is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of such agreement. We encourage you to read the Rollover
Agreement carefully and in its entirety, as the rights and obligations of the parties thereto are governed by the express
terms of the Rollover Agreement and not by this summary or any other information contained in this proxy statement.

Purchase and Sale Agreement

In connection with the execution of the Merger Agreement, on December 18, 2013, HGI Funding and TTG entered
into an agreement, which we refer to as the Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which, subject to the terms and
conditions of the agreement, HGI Funding agreed to purchase and TTG agreed to sell 14,900 shares of the Company s
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock for an aggregate purchase price of $1,490,000. The sale will close immediately
prior to the closing of the Merger (with a condition subsequent that the closing of the Merger occurs) and the
transactions contemplated by the Rollover Agreement. The Purchase Agreement will terminate upon the termination
of the Merger Agreement in accordance with its terms.

A copy of the Purchase Agreement is attached to this proxy statement as Annex E and is incorporated by reference into
this proxy statement. The summary of the Purchase Agreement in the preceding paragraph does not purport to be
complete and may not contain all of the information about the Purchase Agreement that may be important to you and
is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of such agreement. We encourage you to read the Purchase
Agreement carefully and in its entirety, as the rights and obligations of the parties thereto are governed by the express
terms of the Purchase Agreement and not by this summary or any other information contained in this proxy statement.

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock Transaction
Purchase Agreement

On March 15, 2013, the Company entered into a Series B Convertible Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, the Series
B SPA, pursuant to which the Company sold $10,000,000 of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock to Five Island, a
subsidiary of HGI. In addition, the Company issued to Five Island warrants to purchase up to an aggregate of
10,246,477 shares of Common Stock at exercise prices ranging from $0.01 to $1.21 per share. The warrants are
exercisable only upon a corresponding exercise or conversion of specified outstanding securities, as set forth in the
warrants. On September 26, 2013, Five Island transferred the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and the warrants,
along with its rights under the agreements described below, to HGI Funding.

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock

The terms of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, as set forth in a certificate of amendment, or the Series B
Certificate of Amendment, to the Company s certificate of incorporation, are as follows:
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Dividends. Cumulative dividends on the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock are payable quarterly in arrears either
(1) at the rate of 9% per annum in cash or, at the Company s discretion, (ii) at the rate of 12% per annum in additional
shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock. The dividends on the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock will be
paid prior to dividends on the Company s common stock and preferred stock ranking junior to the Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock, or the Junior Preferred Stock.

Rank. The Series B Convertible Preferred Stock ranks, with respect to rights upon a Liquidation Event (as defined
below), (a) junior to any other class or series of capital stock of the Company subsequently created that by its terms
ranks senior to the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock; (b) senior to the common stock and the Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock; (c) senior to any class or series of capital stock of the
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Company subsequently created that does not specifically rank senior to or on parity with the Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock; and (d) on parity with any class or series of capital stock of the Company subsequently created that
by its terms ranks on parity with the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock.

Voting Rights. Except as otherwise required by law or by the terms of the Series B Certificate of Amendment, the
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock does not have voting rights. However, as long as any shares of Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock are outstanding, the Company may not, without the vote or written consent of the holders
of at least a majority of the outstanding shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock: (a) amend, alter or repeal of

any provision of the Company s certificate of incorporation or by-laws; (b) alter or change the powers, preferences or
other special rights, privileges or restrictions of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock; (c) authorize or designate
any new security ranking on a parity with or senior to the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock; (d) issue any common
stock or equity or debt security convertible into common stock (other than shares of Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock issued as dividends on the outstanding shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock), whether senior, on
parity or junior to the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock; (e) issue any equity or debt in a Series B Qualifying
Investment (as defined in the Series B Certificate of Amendment) where the securities issued in such investment are
by their terms mandatorily redeemable by the Company; (f) incur, assume or guarantee any indebtedness for borrowed
money in excess of $1,000,000 or permit any liens other than in connection with such indebtedness; (g) enter into any
transaction with affiliates other than salary and benefits in the ordinary course of business or conversion of the Series
A Convertible Preferred Stock into common stock; (h) purchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any equity interests of
the Company, other than a mandatory redemption of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock pursuant to its terms; (i)
declare or pay any dividend or distribution to any equity holders of the Company other than preferred dividends on the
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and any dividends payable in
additional shares of common stock; (j) except as provided in the Series B Certificate of Amendment, increase or
decrease the size of the Board of Directors; or (k) liquidate, dissolve or wind up, or commence any bankruptcy or
similar proceeding, with respect to the Company.

Director Election Rights. As long as the holders of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (together with former
holders (or affiliates thereof) who have exercised their conversion rights) represent (A) at least 25% of the outstanding
shares of the Company s common stock (assuming (x) conversion of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and the
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and (y) exercise of any warrants held by the holders of the Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock), the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock will be entitled to elect 35% of the Board of Directors (rounded up to the nearest
whole number of directors and in all cases at least two directors) or (B) at least 15%, but less than 25%, of the
outstanding shares of the Company s common stock (assuming (x) conversion of the Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock and the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and (y) exercise of any warrants held by the holders of the Series
A Convertible Preferred Stock and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock), the holders of a majority of the outstanding
shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock will be entitled to elect one director of the Board of Directors (in either
case, such directors or director shall be referred to as the Series B Directors or Series B Director ).

At any annual or special meeting of the Company s shareholders, the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock will be entitled to elect the Series B Directors. Series B Directors may be
removed, with or without cause, only by a vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock. Vacancies in seats held by Series B Directors can only be filled by a vote of the holders
of a majority of the outstanding shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock.

Additionally, as long as the holders of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (together with any former holders (or
affiliates thereof) of shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock who have exercised their conversion rights)

represent at least a majority of the outstanding shares of the Company s common stock (assuming (x) conversion of the
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Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and (y) exercise of any warrants
held by the holders of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock), upon
delivery of written notice to the Company from all of the remaining holders of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock
exercising their right to convert all of the
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Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, the number of members of the Board of Directors will automatically increase,
without any action required by the Company or the Board of Directors, such that the number of newly created seats
plus the number of Series B Directors will constitute a majority of the Board of Directors. The holders of a majority of
the outstanding shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock delivering the conversion notice will be entitled to
elect directors to fill all of the newly created seats.

Liguidation Rights. Upon the occurrence of an Acquisition or Asset Transfer (each as defined in the Series B
Certificate of Amendment) or upon any bankruptcy, liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, whether
voluntary or involuntary (any such Acquisition, Asset Transfer, bankruptcy, liquidation, dissolution or winding up, a

Series B Liquidation Event ), the holders of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive, in
preference to the holders of any security not ranking by its terms senior to or on parity with the Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock, including the common stock and any Junior Preferred Stock, an amount equal to: (i) the stated value
of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock plus all accrued but unpaid dividends thereon, multiplied by (ii) (A) 1.05,

if the Liquidation Event occurs after March 15, 2014 but no later than March 15, 2015 or (B) 1.00, if the Series B
Liquidation Event occurs after March 15, 2015.

Mandatory Repurchase Obligation. A holder of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock will have the right to
require the Company to purchase its shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock for a price equal to the amount the
holder would be entitled to receive upon a Series B Liquidation Event in the event of a cash investment in the
Company (other than by holders of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock) resulting in (i) 30% or more of the
equity of the Company being held by one or more parties that did not own it immediately prior to the investment and
(ii) the securities issued under such investment are not by their terms mandatorily redeemable by the Company.

Conversion. The Series B Convertible Preferred Stock may be converted at any time, at the option of the holder, into
shares of common stock at a conversion price of $0.25 per share, or the Series B Conversion Price. The Series B
Conversion Price is subject to adjustment resulting from dividends, distributions, stock combinations, splits,
recapitalizations or similar capital adjustments. The Series B Conversion Price is also subject to adjustment if the
Company sells common stock or common stock equivalents at a price below the Series B Conversion Price; provided,
however, that the foregoing conversion price adjustments can never result in a conversion price of less than $0.07 per
share, as adjusted from time to time for any stock combinations, splits, recapitalizations or similar capital adjustments.

Upon full conversion and exercise of all preferred stock, HGI Funding would own a majority of the Company s
common stock and be entitled to appoint a majority of the Company s Board of Directors. Formerly, TTG, TKZ, Fursa
and Arsenal collectively controlled a majority of the Company s common stock.

Optional Redemption by the Company. The Series B Convertible Preferred Stock is redeemable, at the option of the
Company, at any time after March 15, 2018. Upon redemption, a holder of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock will
be paid, for each share of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, a price equal to the stated value of the Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock then in effect plus all accrued or cumulated but unpaid dividends thereon.

The Series B Certificate of Amendment was adopted by the Board of Directors on March 12, 2013 and became
effective upon filing with the New York Secretary of State on March 15, 2013.

Registration Rights

Pursuant to the Series B SPA, the Company agreed to file, by May 14, 2013, a registration statement to register the
resale of the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, the

shares of Common Stock underlying any shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock issuable as dividends on such
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shares and shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants. The requirement to file a registration
statement was waived, but HGI Funding reserves its right to rescind the waiver in the future. In addition, HGI Funding
has certain demand and piggyback registration rights with respect to such shares of Common Stock.
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Shareholder Meeting

Pursuant to the Series B SPA, the Company agreed to cause a general or special meeting of its shareholders to be duly
called and held, as soon as practicable, but not later than February 1, 2014, for the purpose of voting on the approval
and adoption of an amendment to the Company s certificate of incorporation providing that the shareholders entitled to
vote may take any action that they might have taken at a shareholders meeting by a written consent signed by the
holders of outstanding shares having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize
or take such action. The Company agreed to use its best efforts to prepare and file a proxy statement with the SEC for
use in soliciting proxies for the general or special meeting of shareholders. Pursuant to the Voting Agreement, HGI
Funding waived the requirement to include the amendment in this proxy statement for the Special Meeting.
Accordingly, the certificate of incorporation continues to prohibit the Company from taking action by less than
unanimous consent.

Amendments to By-laws

Pursuant to the Series B SPA, effective on March 15, 2013, the Board of Directors adopted the Second Amended and
Restated By-laws of the Company to, among other things, provide for the Series B Directors to serve on the Board of
Directors as described above and to allow the shareholders of the Company to act by majority written consent if the
Company s certificate of incorporation is amended as described above under the heading Shareholder Meeting. Under
the Company s prior effective by-laws, the shareholders could only act by unanimous written consent. Additionally,
the new by-laws provide that for so long as the holders of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock are entitled to appoint
one Series B Director to the Board of Directors, each committee of the Board of Directors (including the executive
committee) shall include at least one Series B Director.

Series B Directors

Pursuant to the Series B SPA, the Company agreed to use its best efforts to cause the rights granted to the holder of
the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock with respect to the nomination and appointment of the Series B Directors to
be effectuated. The Company will enter into separate indemnification agreements with each Series B Director upon
his or her appointment or election to the Board of Directors. As of the date of this proxy statement, a Series B Director
has not been appointed.

Consent and Waiver of Holder of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock

In connection with the transaction, TTG, the holder of the outstanding shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock,
consented to the transaction and waived, on behalf of itself and any transferees of the Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock, (a) any and all anti-dilution adjustments applicable to the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock which might
otherwise be made to the conversion prices of such shares and any additional shares of Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock that may be issued as a dividend on such shares and (b) any and all rights to redemption in connection with a
Qualifying Investment (as defined in the Company s certificate of incorporation), in each case as a result of the

transactions contemplated by the Series B SPA.

Additional Information

The foregoing are summaries of the Series B SPA, Series B Certificate of Amendment, Warrants, Amended and
Restated By-laws and Indemnification Agreement are not complete and are qualified in their entirety by reference to
the full text of those documents, which are attached as exhibits to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on March 21, 2013. Readers should review the Series B SPA and all related documents for a complete

Shareholder Meeting 183



Edgar Filing: FREDERICK'S OF HOLLYWOOD GROUP INC /NY/ - Form PRER14A

understanding of the terms and conditions associated with this transaction.

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock Transaction
Purchase Agreement

On May 23, 2012, the Company entered into a Series A Convertible Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, or the
Series A SPA, pursuant to which the Company sold $5,000,000 of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock to TTG. In
addition, the Company issued to TTG three, five, and seven year warrants, each to purchase 500,000 shares of
Common Stock (for an aggregate of 1,500,000 shares of Common Stock) at exercise prices of $0.45, $0.53 and $0.60
per share, respectively.
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Series A Convertible Preferred Stock
The terms of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock are as follows:

Dividends. Cumulative dividends on the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock will be payable quarterly in arrears at
the rate of 9% per annum in additional shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, or PIK Shares, except that
from and after May 23, 2014, the rate will be the greater of 9% per annum or the highest rate the Company is paying
on any outstanding debt under its then existing credit facilities.

Conversion. The Series A Convertible Preferred Stock other than the PIK Shares may be converted at any time, at the
option of the holder, into shares of common stock at a conversion price of $1.05 per share, or the Series A Series A
Conversion Price, and the PIK Shares may be converted at any time, at the option of the holder, into shares of

common stock at a conversion price of $0.45 per share, or the PIK Share Series A Conversion Price. The Series A
Conversion Price and PIK Share Series A Conversion Price will be adjusted for customary structural changes such as
stock splits and dividends. The Series A Conversion Price will also be adjusted if the Company sells common stock or

common stock equivalents at a price below the Series A Conversion Price, and the PIK Share Series A Conversion

Price will be adjusted if the Company sells common stock or common stock equivalents at a price below the PIK
Share Series A Conversion Price; provided, however, that the foregoing conversion price adjustments can never result

in a conversion price of less than $0.29 per share, or the Floor Series A Conversion Price.

Ranking. The Series A Convertible Preferred Stock ranks, with respect to rights upon a Liquidation Event (defined
below), (a) junior to any other class or series of capital stock of the Company created that by its terms ranks senior to
the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock; (b) senior to the common stock; (c) senior to any class or series of capital
stock of the Company created that does not specifically rank senior to or on parity with the Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock; and (d) on parity with any class or series of capital stock of the Company created that by its terms
ranks on parity with the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock.

Voting Rights. Except as required by law, the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock will not have voting rights.
However, as long as any shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock are outstanding, the Company may not,
without the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the then outstanding shares of Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock, (a) alter or change adversely the powers, preferences or rights given to the holders of the Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock, (b) amend its certificate of incorporation or other charter documents in any manner that
adversely affects any rights of the holders of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, (c) authorize or designate any
new security ranking on a parity with or senior to the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, (d) issue any common
stock or debt or equity security convertible into common stock, whether senior, on parity or junior to the Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock, at a price per share which is lower than the Floor Series A Conversion Price or (e) issue
any equity or debt in a Qualifying Investment (as defined in the Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of
Incorporation of the Company, or the Series A Certificate of Amendment ) where the securities issued in such
investment are by their terms mandatorily redeemable by the Company.

Liguidation Rights. Upon the occurrence of an Acquisition or Asset Transfer (each as defined in the Series A
Certificate of Amendment) or upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, whether voluntary or
involuntary (any such Asset Acquisition, Asset Transfer, liquidation, dissolution or winding up, a Series A
Liquidation Event ), a holder of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive in preference to the
holders of any capital stock of the Company junior to the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, an amount equal to:
(1) the stated value of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock plus all accrued but unpaid dividends thereon,
multiplied by (ii)(A) 1.05 if the Series A Liquidation Event takes place by May 23, 2014, or (B) 1.0 if the Series A
Liquidation Event takes place after May 23, 2014, plus (x) the original value per share as of the date of issuance for
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any PIK Shares (as adjusted for stock splits, reverse stock splits and similar capital adjustments) plus all accrued but
unpaid dividends thereon, multiplied by (y) the number of PIK Shares. A holder of the Series A Convertible Preferred

Stock will also have the right to require the Company to purchase its shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock
for a price equal to the amount the holder would be entitled to receive upon a Series A Liquidation Event in the event
of a cash investment in the Company (other than by holders of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock) resulting in a
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change in ownership of more than 30% of the equity of the Company and the securities issued under such investment
not being mandatorily redeemable by the Company.

Optional Redemption by the Company. The Series A Convertible Preferred Stock is redeemable, at the option of the
Company, at any time. Upon redemption, a holder of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock will be paid: (a) for each
share of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock other than a PIK Share, a price equal to the stated value of the Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock plus all accrued but unpaid dividends thereon multiplied by (i) 1.10 if the redemption
occurs on or prior to May 23, 2015, (ii) 1.08 if the redemption occurs after May 23, 2015 but on or prior to May 23,
2017 or (iii) 1.0 if the redemption occurs after May 23, 2017, and (b) for each PIK Share, an amount equal to the
stated value of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock plus all accrued but unpaid dividends thereon.

Registration Rights

The Company filed a registration statement to register the resale of the shares of common stock issuable upon
conversion of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and exercise of the warrants issued to TTG.

Additional Information

The foregoing is a summary of the Series A SPA, Series A Certificate of Amendment and Warrants, which is not
complete, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of those agreements, which are attached as
exhibits to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 29, 2013. Readers should review
the Series A SPA and all related agreements for a complete understanding of the terms and conditions associated with
this transaction.

Non-Employee Director Compensation to William F. Harley Il and Peter Cole

During past two years, as compensation for services rendered to the Company as a non-employee director, the
Company issued shares of Common Stock to William F. Harley III, a Rollover Shareholder, in the amounts and as of
the dates set forth below. The shares were issued on a quarterly basis and the number of shares was calculated, in each
case, based on the price per share set forth below, which was the closing price on the last trading day prior to the end
of the quarter.

Date Shares For Quarter Ended  Closing Price
November 4, 2011 19,512 October 29,2011 $ 0.41
February 1, 2012 18,605 January 28,2012 $ 0.43
May 3, 2012 28,443 April 28, 2012 $ 0.26
August 2, 2012 17,949 July 28, 2012 $ 039
November 13, 2012 20,000 October 27,2012 $ 0.30
February 7, 2013 56,522 January 26, 2013 $ 023
May 7, 2013 60,000 April 27, 2013 $ 0.15
August 5, 2013 44,444 July 27, 2013 $ 0.18
November 5, 2013 39,130 October 26,2013 $ 0.23

On January 11, 2012, each non-employee director, including Mr. Harley and Peter Cole, who became a member of the
board of managers of Parent on the date the Merger Agreement was executed, was issued 9,000 shares of restricted
stock and options to purchase 21,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.40 per share under the 2010
Long-Term Incentive Equity Plan. One-third of the shares and options vested on each of January 11, 2012 and 2013,
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and one-third vested on January 11, 2014.

Transactions between the Rollover Shareholders and the
Company

Except for the Merger and as described in  Agreements Involving the Company s Securities; Transactions Between the
Rollover Shareholders and the Company above, there have been no transactions between the Rollover Shareholders
and the Company during the past two years.
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PROVISIONS FOR PUBLIC SHAREHOLDERS

No provision has been made (i) to grant the unaffiliated shareholders of the Company access to the corporate files of
the Company, any other party to the Merger or any of their respective affiliates, except that the opinion of Cassel
Salpeter attached to this proxy statement as Annex B and the presentation by Cassel Salpeter attached as exhibit (c)(1)
to the Schedule 13E-3 relating to the Merger will be made available for inspection and copying at the principal
executive offices of the Company during its regular business hours, or (ii) to obtain counsel or appraisal services at the
expense of the Company, any other such party or affiliate.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION CONCERNING THE
COMPANY

Company Background

Through our subsidiaries, we sell women s apparel and related products under our proprietary Frederick s of
Hollywood® brand through our retail stores, website and catalog. Our customer target is women primarily between the
ages of 18 and 45. Our major merchandise categories are foundations (including bras, corsets, shapewear and panties),

lingerie (including daywear and sleepwear), ready-to-wear (dresses and sportswear, including denim), and fragrance
and accessories (including shoes, handbags, jewelry, personal care products and novelties).

As of April 14, 2014, we operated 96 Frederick s of Hollywood stores. These stores are primarily located in shopping
malls in 28 states. Approximately one-third of the stores are in California. Of the stores outside of California,
approximately 35% are situated in our other key operating states, which include Florida, Texas, New York and
Nevada. Our flagship store is on Hollywood Boulevard in Hollywood, California.

We also have an extensive history dating back to the first Frederick s of Hollywood catalog produced in 1947 of
offering women s apparel directly to the consumer. Today, we market and sell our products directly to consumers
primarily through our retail website, www.fredericks.com, and catalog. During fiscal year 2013, we mailed
approximately 4,300,000 catalogs.

In addition, we have an exclusive multi-year licensing agreement for Emirates Associated Business Group, or EABG,
to build and operate Frederick s of Hollywood retail stores in the Middle East. As of January 25, 2014, EABG had
closed the three stores it had been operating and has not paid any royalties during the six months ended January 25,
2014. We are seeking to terminate the agreement with EABG. The Company s principal offices are located at 6255
Sunset Boulevard, Hollywood, California 90028.

If the Merger Agreement is approved and adopted by the Company shareholders at the Special Meeting and the
Merger is completed as contemplated, the Company will survive the Merger and will continue its operations as a
private company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Parent.

Directors and Executive Officers

The Board of Directors presently consists of five members. The below listed persons are the Executive Officers and
directors of the Company as of the date of this proxy statement. Each Executive Officer will serve until a successor is
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elected by the Board of Directors or until the earlier of his resignation or removal. None of these persons has been
convicted in a criminal proceeding during the past five years (excluding traffic violations or similar misdemeanors),
and none of these persons has been a party to any judicial or administrative proceeding during the past five years that
resulted in a judgment, decree or final order enjoining the person from future violations of, or prohibiting activities
subject to, federal or state securities laws or a finding of any violation of federal or state securities laws. All of the
directors and Executive Officers of the Company are citizens of the United States and can be reached c/o:

Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc.
6255 Sunset Boulevard
Hollywood, California 90028
(323) 466-5151

Thomas J. Lynch, 45 years old, became our Chief Executive Officer in January 2009 and our Chairman of the Board
of Directors in May 2009 and has been a member of our Board of Directors since January 2008. From February 2007
to December 2008, he served as Chief Executive Officer of Fursa. From July 2006 to
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January 2007, Mr. Lynch was a Managing Director at UBS, an investment bank and global asset management
business. From August 2000 to May 2006, Mr. Lynch was Managing Director and Senior Vice President of Mellon
Asset Management. Mr. Lynch was a member of the Mellon Asset Management Senior Management Committee and
was a thought leader in global distribution strategies and strategic planning. He had direct management responsibility
for a $36 billion (Assets Under Management) institutional asset management business. Mr. Lynch received a B.A.
degree from St. Anselm College and attended The Brandeis University International Business School.

Peter Cole, 65 years old, has served as a member of our Board of Directors since April 2004 and was our Executive
Chairman from January 2008 to May 2009. From January 2007 to January 2008, he served as the lead director to
facilitate the completion of our merger with FOH Holdings, Inc. Since October 2005, Mr. Cole has been the managing
member of Performance Enhancement Partners, LLC, a private consulting firm that he founded. Since July 2010, Mr.
Cole has served as a director, and from July 2010 to March 2011 served as Chief Executive Officer of Harmony
Health & Beauty, Inc., a privately-held in-airport retailer. From April 2001 through July 2005, he served as Chairman
of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of Qwiz, Inc., a privately-held leading provider of skills and behavioral
testing now operating as SHL Previsor, Inc. Prior to joining SHL Previsor, Inc., Mr. Cole was a Managing Director at
Citibank, where he was responsible for one of its global capital markets businesses. Since May 2012, Mr. Cole has
served as Chief Administrative Officer and a director of Focus Pointe Holdings, Inc., a privately-held provider of
focus group panelists and facilities. He received a B.A. degree in economics from the University of Vermont.

John L. Eisel, 65 years old, has been a member of our Board of Directors since April 2004. Since 1980, Mr. Eisel has
been a partner at Edwards Wildman Palmer LLP and its predecessor, Wildman, Harrold, Allen & Dixon LLP, a law
firm located in Chicago, Illinois that he joined in 1975. Mr. Eisel s primary areas of practice are mergers and
acquisitions and securities regulation. As part of his legal practice, Mr. Eisel has provided counsel to the boards of
directors of several public and private companies. Mr. Eisel was Chairman of his firm s Management Committee from
1994 to 1999 and is currently co-chair of the firm s Business Law Department. Mr. Eisel received a B.S. degree in
accounting and a J.D. degree from the University of Illinois. Mr. Eisel passed the CPA examination in 1971. He
currently serves on the board of directors of several private companies, and he is a member of the Planning Committee
for the Ray Garrett Jr. Corporate and Securities Law Institute.

William F. Mickey Harley, I11, 50 years old, has been a member of our Board of Directors since January 2008. He
currently serves as the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Arsenal Group, LLC, a company he co-founded in
February 2011. Mr. Harley is principally responsible for Arsenal Group s investment decisions. Arsenal Group owns
HRK Holdings LLC and HRK Industries LLC, both of which filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection in the U.S.

Bankruptcy Court for the Middle District of Florida on June 27, 2012. The court has approved the companies hiring an
investment banker to market properties they own and intend to sell in order to emerge from bankruptcy. Mr. Harley

also is President and Chief Investment Officer of Fursa, which he co-founded in April 1999 (as HBV Capital
Management, LLC) and sold to Mellon Financial Corporation in July 2002 (when it was re-named Mellon HBV
Alternative Strategies LLC). Mr. Harley served as Chief Investment Officer and Chief Executive Officer of Fursa
from July 2002 until he repurchased it from Mellon in December 2006. Mr. Harley is principally responsible for

Fursa s investment decisions. From June 1996 to April 1999, Mr. Harley was the Head of Research at Milton Partners,

L.P., a hedge fund manager specializing in arbitrage funds. Before joining Milton Partners, Mr. Harley was a Vice
President and Director of Allen & Company, where he was responsible for the day-to-day management and
investment strategies of the arbitrage department. From January 2003 to April 2006, and since April 2007, Mr. Harley
has served as a director of FOH Holdings. Since December 2008, Mr. Harley has served as a director, and from
December 2008 to September 2012, he served as President of Xemplar Energy Corporation (TSX Venture: XE). Mr.
Harley also has previously served on the board of directors of the following privately-held companies: J.L. French
Automotive Castings, Inc., Metromedia International Group, Inc., Integral Systems, Inc., Coastal Greenland Limited

and Interboro Insurance. Mr. Harley received a Master s degree in public and private management from Yale
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Yale University.
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Milton J. Walters, 71 years old, has been a member of our Board of Directors since January 2008 and a director of
FOH Holdings since January 2003. He has more than 40 years of investment banking experience including serving as
Managing Director of AG Becker and its successor Warburg Paribas Becker, where he was employed from 1965 to
1984; Senior Vice President and Managing Director of Smith Barney from 1984 to 1988; Managing Director of
Prudential Securities from 1997 to 1999; and since August 1999 as President and Chief Executive Officer of Tri-River
Capital, a strategic financial advisory and valuation service provider which he founded. Since November 2010, Mr.
Walters has served as a member of the board of directors of Sabra Healthcare REIT, Inc. (NASDAQ: SBRA). He also
has served as a director of Petroleum & Franchise Capital, a privately-held company that provides financing for
national and regional franchise and retail petroleum operators, since November 2012, and as a director of Gorilla
Toolz Inc., a privately-held software developer of partner relationship programs, since September 2013. From
September 2001 to December 2012, he served as a director and chairman of the audit committee of Sun Healthcare
Group, Inc. (NASDAQ: SUNH), and from January 2003 to June 2010, he served as a director and chairman of the
audit committee of Decision One Corporation, a privately-held information technology services company. Mr.
Walters is a member of the Economics Club of New York, the National Association of Corporate Directors and the
University Club of New York, and currently serves as a director of the Lyme Land Conservation Trust, Inc. and the
Southeast Connecticut World Affairs Council. He is a former trustee of Hamilton College and Friends Academy. Mr.
Walters received an A.B. degree from Hamilton College.

Thomas Rende, 53 years old, has served as our Chief Financial Officer since January 2008, and served as Chief
Financial Officer of our wholesale division from February 1999 until it was sold in October 2010. He also served as a
member of our Board of Directors from January 2008 to May 2010 and from April 2004 to April 2007. Since joining
the company in 1989, Mr. Rende has held various positions within the finance department. Mr. Rende received a B.S.

degree in economics from the State University of New York at Oneonta.

Prior Public Offerings

We have not made any underwritten public offerings of Common Stock or other Company securities in the past three
years.

Additional Financial and Business Information

Additional financial and business information about the Company, including our audited financial statements for the
years ended July 27, 2013 and July 28, 2012 and our unaudited financial statements for the six months ended January
25, 2014 and January 26, 2013, may be found in our Annual Report on Form 10-K and the amendment to the Annual
Report attached to this proxy statement as Annexes F-1 and F-2 and in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q attached to
this proxy statement as Annex G. Such financial statements should be read together with the notes thereto.

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

The following table presents our ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the fiscal periods indicated.

January  October July 27, July 28,

(in thousands) 25, 26,
2014 2013 2013 2012
Earnings $(4.591)
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Pretax loss 2,797  $(7,251) $(22,484) $(6,357)
Fixed charges 2,686 9,059 8,722
Amortization of capitalized interest

Distributed income of equity investee

Share of pre-tax losses of equity investee for which charges

arising from guarantees are included in fixed charges

Subtotal (1,794) (4,565) (13,425) 2,365
Less: Interest capitalized
Less: Preference security dividend requirements 451 418 933 84
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January October Tuly 27, Tuly 28,

(in thousands) 25, 26,

2014 2013 2013 2012
Less: Non-controlling interest in pre-tax income of
subsidiaries that have not incurred fixed charges
Total Earnings (2,245) (4983) (14,358) 2,281
Fixed Charges
Interest charges 914 792 2,137 2,224
Amortization of debt issue costs
Portion of rental expense which represents interest factor() 1,423 1,476 5,989 6,414
Preferred stock dividend requirements 451 418 933 84
Total Fixed Charges 2797  $2,686  $9,059 $8,722
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges?®

(1) One-third of net rent expense represents an appropriate interest factor.

( )The Company s earnings were insufficient to cover its fixed charges by $5,042, $7,669, $23,417 and $6,441 as of
January 25, 2014, October 26, 2013, July 27, 2013 and July 28, 2012, respectively.

Book Value Per Share

Our net book value per share of Common Stock as of January 25, 2014, was approximately $(0.74) (calculated based
on 39,223,254 shares of Common Stock outstanding as of such date).

Market Price of the Company s Common Stock

The Company s Common Stock is quoted on the OTCQB under the symbol FOHL. The following table sets forth
during the periods indicated the high and low closing sales prices for the Common Stock:

High Low

Year Ending July 26, 2014
First Quarter 0.24 0.17
Second Quarter $0.265 $0.20
Third Quarter* $0.27 $ 0.261
Year Ended July 27, 2013
First Quarter $0.41 $ 0.25
Second Quarter 0.35 0.16
Third Quarter 0.29 0.13
Fourth Quarter 0.24 0.16
Year Ended July 28, 2012
First Quarter $0.74 $ 0.38
Second Quarter 0.54 0.31
Third Quarter 0.64 0.20
Fourth Quarter 0.58 0.14

* Through April 14, 2014.
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The closing sale price of our Common Stock on September 27, 2013, which was the last trading day before the
Consortium Members announced their proposal to acquire all outstanding shares of Common Stock not owned by
them, was $0.18 per share, compared to which the merger consideration represents a premium of approximately 50%.

We have not paid any cash dividends on our Common Stock to date. It is the present intention of the Board of
Directors to retain all earnings, if any, for use in our business operations and, accordingly, the Board of Directors does

not currently anticipate declaring any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. The payment
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of dividends will be within the discretion of the Board of Directors and will be contingent upon our revenue and
earnings, if any, capital requirements, general financial condition and such other factors as the Board of Directors may
consider. In addition, the terms of our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock
and covenants contained in our Credit Agreement restrict our ability to pay cash dividends so long as the Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock or the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock is outstanding or any amount is owed and
outstanding under the Credit Agreement, respectively.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management

The following table sets forth certain information as of April 14, 2014 with respect to the beneficial ownership of
Common Stock by:

director and nominee for director of the Company who owns shares of any class of the Company s voting securities,
the Company s named executive officers (as defined in Item 402 of Regulation S-K of the Exchange Act),
all directors and Executive Officers of the Company, as a group, and
person who is known to the Company to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the Company s issued and
outstanding Common Stock.
Beneficial ownership has been determined in accordance with applicable SEC rules, pursuant to which a person is
deemed to be the beneficial owner of securities if such person has or shares voting or investment power with respect
to such securities or has the right to acquire voting or investment power within 60 days.

Except as otherwise indicated, the persons listed below, to our knowledge, have sole voting and investment power
with respect to all shares of Common Stock shown as beneficially owned by them, subject to the application of
community property laws where applicable. The percentage of beneficial ownership for each table is based on

39,273,254 shares of Common Stock outstanding as of April 14, 2014.

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner(D Number of Percent of
Shares Class

Harbinger Group Inc.

450 Park Avenue, 30t Floor 91,257,883 @ 88.7 %

New York, NY 10022

Arsenal Group, LLC

21 Greene Avenue 91,257,883 3 88.7 %
Amityville, New York 11701

Fursa Alternative Strategies LLC, on behalf of certain funds and
accounts affiliated with or managed by it or its affiliates

21 Greene Avenue

Amityville, New York 11701

Tokarz Investments, LLC

287 Bowman Avenue 91,257,883 ) 88.7 %
Purchase, New York 10577

TTG Apparel, LLC

91,257,883 8.7 %

287 Bowman Avenue 91,257,883 (0 88.7 %
Purchase, New York 10577
Thomas J. Lynch 1,729,500 43 %
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Thomas Rende

Peter Cole

John L. Eisel

William F. Harley III

c/o Fursa Alternative Strategies LL.C

21 Greene Avenue

Amityville, New York 11701

Milton J. Walters

All Executive Officers and directors as a group (6 individuals)
98

656,720 ®
510,612 ©
240,333 (10)

512,547 (b

254,754 (12)
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* Less than 1%.
(I)The business address of each of Thomas J. Lynch, Thomas Rende, Peter Cole, John L. Eisel and Milton J. Walters
is c/o Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc., 6255 Sunset Boulevard, Hollywood, California 90028.
Includes 54,488,577 shares beneficially owned by HGI Funding, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of HGI, and
includes and excludes, as applicable, the shares included and excluded by Arsenal, Fursa, Mr. Harley, TKZ and
TTG, as set forth in notes 3, 4, 5 and 6, as members of a group that may be deemed to exist under Rule 13d-5 of the
Exchange Act. The 53,197,377 shares include (i) 44,321,600 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of
110,804 shares of Series B Preferred Stock and (ii) 10,166,977 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of
(2)warrants with exercise prices ranging from $0.01 to $1.21 per share. Pursuant to their terms, these warrants are
only exercisable upon a corresponding exercise or conversion of securities representing the right to acquire
10,166,977 shares of common stock. According to a Schedule 13D/A, dated September 26, 2013, and filed with the
SEC on September 27, 2013, as a result of Philip Falcone s position as the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of
the Board of Directors of HGI and his relationship with certain controlling persons of HGI, Mr. Falcone may be
deemed to beneficially own securities beneficially owned by HGI.
Includes 11,916,187 shares beneficially owned by Arsenal, and includes and excludes, as applicable, the shares
included and excluded by HGI Funding, Fursa, Mr. Harley, TKZ and TTG as set forth in notes 2, 4, 5 and 6, as
members of a group that may be deemed to exist under Rule 13d-5 of the Exchange Act. The 11,916,187 shares
include (a) 11,359,292 shares of common stock and (b) 556,895 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of
currently exercisable warrants. These securities (i) are held of record by Fursa, but, based on information made
known to us, have been sold to, and are in the process of being transferred of record to, Arsenal Group, LLC and
(ii) are subject to a pledge agreement between Fursa Master Global Event Driven Fund LP and Scotia Capital
(USA) Inc. According to a Schedule 13D/A, dated September 26, 2013, and filed with the SEC on October 8,
2013, William F. Harley III serves as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Arsenal and is principally
responsible for its investment decisions.
Includes 6,135,146 shares beneficially owned by Fursa, and includes and excludes, as applicable, the shares
included and excluded by HGI Funding, Arsenal, Mr. Harley, TKZ and TTG, as set forth in notes 2, 3, 5 and 6, as
members of a group that may be deemed to exist under Rule 13d-5 of the Exchange Act. The 6,135,146 shares
(4)include (a) 5,692,041 shares of common stock and (b) 443,105 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of
currently exercisable warrants. According to a Schedule 13D/A, dated September 26, 2013, and filed with the SEC
on October 8, 2013, William F. Harley III serves as Chief Investment Officer of Fursa and is principally
responsible for its investment decisions.
Includes 8,386,977 shares beneficially owned by TKZ, and includes and excludes, as applicable, the shares
included and excluded by HGI Funding, Arsenal, Mr. Harley, Fursa and TTG, as set forth in notes 2, 3, 4 and 6, as
(5)members of a group that may be deemed to exist under Rule 13d-5 of the Exchange Act. According to a Schedule
13D/A, dated September 26, 2013, and filed with the SEC on September 30, 2013, Michael T. Tokarz is the sole
controlling person and manager of TKZ.
Includes 9,818,449 shares beneficially owned by TTG, and includes and excludes, as applicable, the shares
included and excluded by HGI Funding, Arsenal, Mr. Harley, Fursa and TKZ, as set forth in notes 2, 3,4 and 5, as
members of a group that may be deemed to exist under Rule 13d-5 of the Exchange Act. The 9,818,449 shares
include (a) 1,766,322 shares of common stock, (b) 1,500,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of
currently exercisable warrants, (c) 4,761,905 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of 50,000 shares of
(6) Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (assumes conversion at the rate of $1.05 per share) and (d) 1,790,222 shares
of common stock issuable upon conversion of $805,600 of accrued dividends (assumes conversion at the rate of
$0.45 per share). Excludes the remaining shares of common stock that are potentially issuable upon conversion of
the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, if such preferred stock is converted at the floor rate of $0.29 per share.
According to a Schedule 13D/A, dated September 26, 2013, and filed with the SEC on September 30, 2013,
Michael T. Tokarz is the sole controlling person and manager of TTG.

3)
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Includes (a) currently exercisable options to purchase 1,131,500 shares of common stock and (b) 323,500 shares of
restricted stock, all of which are vested.
(8 Includes (a) currently exercisable options to purchase 364,750 shares of common stock,

)
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(b) 133,450 shares of common stock held jointly with Mr. Rende s spouse, (c) 1,650 shares of common stock owned
by Mr. Rende s spouse and (d) 155,694 shares of restricted stock, all of which are vested.
Includes (a) 103,168 shares of common stock held by Performance Enhancement Partners, LLC ( PEP ), including
66,500 shares of restricted stock, all of which are vested, and (b) currently exercisable options to purchase 38,500
shares of common stock granted to PEP. Peter Cole, as the sole member of PEP, has voting and dispositive power
over these shares.
Includes (a) 16,500 shares of restricted stock, all of which are vested, and (b) currently exercisable options to
(10)
purchase 44,500 shares of common stock.
Includes (a) 16,500 shares of restricted stock, all of which are vested, and (b) currently exercisable options to
purchase 38,500 shares of common stock. As Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Arsenal, Mr. Harley
exercises voting and dispositive power over shares that it beneficially owns, described in Footnote 3 above. As
Chief Investment Officer of Fursa, William F. Harley III exercises voting and dispositive power over shares
beneficially owned by certain funds and accounts affiliated with, managed by, or over which Fursa or any of its
affiliates exercises investment authority, including, without limitation, with respect to voting and dispositive
(11)rights, described in Footnote 4 above. Mr. Harley disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares described in
Footnotes 3 and 4 above except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein. Accordingly, such shares are not
included in Mr. Harley s beneficial ownership. If Mr. Harley is deemed to be a member of a group with the other
Rollover Shareholders, which group may be deemed to exist under Rule 13d-5 of the Exchange Act, the Rollover
Shareholders, including Mr. Harley, would beneficially own 91,257,883, or 88.7% of the Company s outstanding
common stock. Mr. Harley disclaims beneficial ownership over such shares and his membership in a group.
Accordingly, such shares are not included in Mr. Harley s beneficial ownership.
Includes (a) 156,605 shares of common stock held by Sagebrush Group, Inc. ( Sagebrush ), including 16,500 shares
of restricted stock, all of which are vested, (b) currently exercisable options to purchase 38,500 shares of common
(12)stock granted to Sagebrush and (c) currently exercisable options to purchase 31,170 shares of common stock
granted to Mr. Walters. Milton J. Walters, as the sole shareholder of Sagebrush, has voting and dispositive power
over the shares held by Sagebrush.
Includes an aggregate of 1,687,420 shares of common stock that our Executive Officers and directors have the
right to acquire upon exercise of currently exercisable options.

Ownership of Parent Following the Merger

€))

(13)

Following the Merger, the Rollover Shareholders (and Thomas J. Lynch, our chairman and chief executive officer,
upon his receipt of an equity interest in Parent, pursuant to his new employment agreement, in the form of incentive
units that are part of a separate series of units from those being issued to the Rollover Shareholders and are subject to
vesting and other terms) will own 100% of the equity interests of Parent.

Transactions in Common Stock

Other than the Rollover Agreement, the Voting Agreement, the Purchase Agreement and the compensation paid to
Mr. Harley for his services as a non-employee director of the Company as discussed in Agreements Involving the
Company s Securities; Transactions Between the Rollover Shareholders and the Company  Agreements Involving
the Company s Securities beginning on page 87, Parent, Merger Sub, and their respective affiliates have not made any
transactions with respect to Common Stock during the past 60 days.

On November 5, 2013, as compensation for services rendered to the Company as a non-employee director for the
quarter ended October 26, 2013, the Company issued 10,870 shares of Common Stock to Milton Walters, the Lead
Director. The number of shares was calculated based on a price per share of $0.23, which was the closing price of the
Company s Common Stock on October 25, 2013. Except for the issuance to Mr. Walters and the transaction with Mr.
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Harley discussed in Agreements Involving the Company s Securities; Transactions Between the Rollover
Shareholders and the Company  Agreements Involving the Company s Securities beginning on page 87, no other
officers or directors of the Company have engaged in transactions in Common Stock during the past 60 days.
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ADVISORY VOTE REGARDING MERGER-RELATED
COMPENSATION PROPOSAL

In accordance with the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010, which we refer to as
the Dodd-Frank Act, and pursuant to Section 14A of the Exchange Act, we are providing our shareholders with an
opportunity to cast a non-binding advisory vote to approve the golden parachute compensation that the Company s

named executive officers (as defined in Item 402 of Regulation S-K of the Exchange Act) will or may receive in
connection with the Merger. Under the Dodd-Frank Act and for this purpose, golden parachute compensation is any
type of compensation, whether present, deferred or contingent, that is based on or otherwise relates to the Merger
pursuant to arrangements entered into with the Company and as disclosed in this proxy statement. Accordingly, we are
asking our shareholders to approve the following non-binding resolution at the Special Meeting:

RESOLVED, that the shareholders of Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc. approve, on a non-binding advisory basis,
the golden parachute compensation based on or otherwise related to the Merger that the Company s named executive
officers will or may receive in connection with the Merger as disclosed pursuant to Item 402(t) of Regulation S-K in
Special Factors Interests of the Company s Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger Interests of Executive

Officers.

Vote Required and Board Recommendation

The vote on this proposal is a vote separate and apart from the vote to approve the Merger. Accordingly, you may vote
not to approve the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal and vote to approve the Merger and adopt the Merger
Agreement and vice versa.

Approval of this resolution, commonly referred to as a say-on-golden-parachute resolution, requires the affirmative
vote of a majority of the votes cast at the Special Meeting with respect to the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal.
For purposes of this proposal, abstentions and shares deemed present at the meeting but not entitled to vote with
respect to the proposal (because of either shareholder withholding or broker non-vote) are not deemed voted and
therefore will have no effect on this proposal. If you fail to submit a proxy or vote in person at the Special Meeting,
the shares of Common Stock not voted will not be counted in respect of, and will not have an effect on, this proposal.

Because the vote is advisory in nature only, it will not be binding on either the Company or the Parent regardless of
whether the Merger is completed. Approval of the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal is not a condition to
completion of the Merger, and failure to approve this advisory matter will have no effect on the vote to approve the
Merger. Because the compensation to be paid in connection with the Merger is based on contractual arrangements
with the named executive officers, regardless of the outcome of this advisory vote, such compensation will be
payable, subject only to the contractual conditions applicable thereto, if the Merger is completed.

Because the Rollover Shareholders beneficially hold more than a majority of our outstanding shares of Common
Stock as of the record date, they can approve or disapprove the Merger-Related Compensation Proposal regardless of
how any other shareholder votes.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BASED ON THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE LEAD DIRECTOR,
RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE FOR THE MERGER-RELATED COMPENSATION PROPOSAL.
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DISSENTERS RIGHTS

Sections 623 and 910 of the NYBCL provide that if the Merger is consummated, holders of shares of our Common
Stock entitled to vote on the approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement who object to such actions
in writing prior to or at the Special Meeting, but before the vote, and who follow the procedures specified in Section
623 (summarized below) will have the right to receive cash payment of the fair value of their shares of Common
Stock if the proposed corporate actions are taken. The express procedures of Section 623 must be followed precisely;
if they are not, holders of shares of Common Stock will lose their right to dissent. As described more fully below,
such fair value would potentially be determined in judicial proceedings, the result of which cannot be predicted. We
cannot assure you that holders of shares of Common Stock exercising dissenters rights will receive consideration
equal to or greater than the merger consideration.

The statutory procedures outlined below are complex. What follows is a summary and is qualified in its entirety by
reference to the full text of Section 623 and Section 910 of the NYBCL, which are attached hereto as Annex H.
Holders of shares of Common Stock wishing to exercise their dissenters rights should consult their own legal advisors
to ensure that they fully and properly comply with the requirements of New York law.

Any holder of shares of Common Stock who is entitled to vote on the approval of the Merger and adoption of the
Merger Agreement will have the right to receive cash payment of the fair value of his or her shares of Common Stock
and the other rights and benefits provided in Section 623 if such shareholder:

files with the Company a written objection to the Merger and Merger Agreement prior to the vote by the Company
shareholders on the approval of the Merger and the adoption of the Merger Agreement. The written objection must
include: (1) notice of the shareholder s election to dissent; (2) the shareholder s name and residence address; (3) the
number of shares of Common Stock as to which the shareholder dissents; and (4) a demand for payment of the fair
value of such shares of Common Stock if the proposed corporate actions are taken; and

does not vote in favor of the approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement.

A vote against approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement will not satisfy the requirement of filing
a written objection. Failure to vote against approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement will not
waive the right of a holder of shares of Common Stock to receive payment if such holder has filed a written objection
in accordance with Section 623 and has not voted in favor of approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger
Agreement. If a holder of shares of Common Stock abstains from voting on approval of the Merger and adoption of
the Merger Agreement, this will not waive his or her dissenters rights so long as the appropriate written objection to

the approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement are properly and timely filed. Since a proxy left
blank will be voted for approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger Agreement, any holder of shares of
Common Stock who wishes to exercise his or her dissenters rights must either vote against approval of the Merger and
adoption of the Merger Agreement or abstain. Written objection prior to the vote by the Company shareholders on the
approval of the Merger Agreement and adoption of the Merger Agreement may not be required from any holder of
shares of Common Stock to whom the Company did not give proper notice of the Special Meeting of shareholders
contemplated by this proxy statement.

A holder of shares of Common Stock may not dissent as to less than all shares of Common Stock held of record by
him or her that he or she owns beneficially. A nominee or fiduciary may not dissent on behalf of any beneficial owner
of shares of Common Stock as to less than all of the shares of Common Stock of such owner held of record by the

nominee or fiduciary for such beneficial owner.

All written objections to the Merger and notices of election to dissent should be addressed to:
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Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc.
6255 Sunset Boulevard
Hollywood, California 90028
Attention: Secretary
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If the Merger Agreement is approved and adopted by the Company s shareholders, within 10 days after such action the
Company will give written notice of such approval and adoption by registered mail to each holder of shares of

Common Stock who filed a timely written objection or from whom written objection was not required, except for any
holder of shares of Common Stock who voted in favor of approval of the Merger and adoption of the Merger

Agreement. Any holder of shares of Common Stock from whom objection was not required and who elects to dissent

must file with the Company, within 20 days after the giving of such notice to him or her, a written notice of election to

dissent, stating his or her name and residence address, the number of shares of Common Stock as to which he or she
dissents and a demand for payment of the fair value for his or her Common Stock.

Either at the time of filing of the notice of election to dissent or within one month after the filing of the notice of
election to dissent, a dissenting holder of Common Stock must submit the certificates representing his or her shares of
Common Stock to the Company, or to its transfer agent, which shall note conspicuously on the certificates that a
notice of election has been filed and will then return such certificates to such holder. Any holder of Common Stock
who fails to submit his or her certificates for notation within one month after the filing of the notice of election to
dissent shall, at the option of the Company upon written notice to such holder of Common Stock within 45 days from
the date of filing of such notice of election to dissent, lose his or her dissenters rights unless a court, for good cause

shown, otherwise directs.

Within 15 days after the expiration of the period within which holders of Common Stock may file their notices of
election to dissent, or within 15 days after the completion of the Merger, whichever is later (but in no case later than
90 days after the Company's shareholders approve the Merger and adopt the Merger Agreement), the surviving
corporation will make a written offer by registered mail to each holder of Common Stock who has filed a notice of
election to pay for his or her dissenting shares of Common Stock at a specified price which the surviving corporation
considers to be their fair value. If the Merger has occurred, such offer must be accompanied by an advance payment to
each holder of Common Stock who has submitted, in accordance with the foregoing requirements, his or her share
certificates to the Company of an amount equal to 80% of the amount of the offer or, if such holder has not yet
submitted his or her share certificates, a statement that an advance payment equal to 80% of the offer will be made
promptly upon submission of his or her certificates. Acceptance of such payment shall not constitute a waiver of any
dissenters rights. The offer must be made at the same price per share to all the holders of Common Stock who have
filed their notices of election to dissent before the expiration of the period within which to do so. If, within 30 days
after the making of an offer, the surviving corporation and any holder of shares of Common Stock agree on the price
to be paid for his or her shares, the balance of payment for such shares must be made within 60 days after the making
of the offer or the completion of the Merger, whichever is later, upon surrender of the certificates representing such
shares of Common Stock.

If the surviving corporation fails to make an offer to dissenting holders of shares of Common Stock within the 15-day
period described above, or if it makes the offer and any dissenting holder of shares of Common Stock fails to agree
with it within 30 days thereafter upon the price to be paid for his or her shares, the surviving corporation is required,
within 20 days after the expiration of whichever is the applicable of the two periods referred to above, to institute a

special proceeding in the Supreme Court of the State of New York in the judicial district in which the office of the
surviving corporation is located to determine the rights of dissenting holders of shares of Common Stock and to fix the
fair value of their shares of Common Stock. If the Company fails to institute such proceeding within such 20-day
period, any dissenting holder of shares of Common Stock may institute such proceeding for the same purpose not later
than 30 days after the expiration of such 20-day period. If such proceeding is not instituted within such 30-day period,
all dissenters rights are lost unless the Supreme Court of the State of New York, for good cause shown, otherwise
directs.
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During each proceeding, the court will determine whether each dissenting holder of shares of Common Stock who has
not agreed to an offer by the Company is entitled to receive payment for his or her shares and, if so, will fix the value
of such shares, which shall be the fair value as of the close of business on the day prior to the date the Company's
shareholders voted to approve the Merger and adopt the Merger Agreement, taking into consideration the nature of the
transaction giving rise to the right of the dissenting holder of shares of Common Stock to receive payment for his or
her shares of Common Stock and its effect on the surviving corporation and its shareholders, the concepts and
methods then customary in the relevant securities and
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financial markets for determining the fair value of shares of a corporation engaging in a similar transaction under
comparable circumstances and all other relevant factors. The court shall determine the fair value of the shares of
Common Stock without a jury and without referral to an appraiser or referee. The court will also award interest on
such amount to be paid from the date of the completion of the Merger to the date of payment unless the court finds
that the refusal by a dissenting holder of Common Stock to accept the surviving corporation s offer of payment was
arbitrary, vexatious or otherwise not in good faith. Each party to such proceeding will bear his, her or its respective
costs and expenses unless the court finds the refusal by any such dissenting holders to accept the surviving
corporation s offer of payment was arbitrary, vexatious or otherwise not in good faith, in which case the court, in its
discretion, may apportion and assess the Company s costs against any or all such dissenting holders. The court, in its
discretion, may also apportion or assess any part of the costs of dissenting holders of Common Stock against the
surviving corporation if it finds that the fair value of the dissenting holders shares of Common Stock as determined
materially exceeds the amount which the surviving corporation offered to pay, or that no offer or advance payment
was made by the surviving corporation, or that the surviving corporation failed to institute such special proceeding
within the specified period, or that the actions of the surviving corporation in complying with its obligations under
Section 623 of the NYBCL were arbitrary, vexatious or otherwise not in good faith. Within 60 days following the
final determination of the applicable proceeding, the surviving corporation shall pay to each dissenting holder of
shares of Common Stock the amount found to be due him or her upon the surrender by such holder of all certificates
representing dissenting shares.

The enforcement by a holder of shares of Common Stock of his or her right to receive payment for shares in
accordance with Section 623 of the NYBCL excludes the enforcement by such holder of Common Stock of any other
right to which he or she might otherwise be entitled by virtue of his or her ownership of shares (unless the holder of
Common Stock timely withdraws his or her notice of election or the Merger is abandoned), except that the holder of
Common Stock will retain the right to bring or maintain an appropriate action to obtain relief on the grounds that the
Merger will be or is unlawful or fraudulent as to him or her. A notice of election by a holder of Common Stock may
be withdrawn at any time prior to his or her acceptance in writing of an offer to purchase his or her dissenting shares
of Common Stock by the Company, but no withdrawal may be made later than 60 days from the completion of the
Merger (unless the Company failed to make a timely offer) without the consent of the Company.

In view of the complexity of Sections 623 and 910 of the NYBCL, shareholders who may wish to dissent from
the Merger and pursue dissenters rights should consult their legal advisors.
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MULTIPLE SHAREHOLDERS SHARING ONE
ADDRESS

In accordance with Rule 14a-3(e)(1) under the Exchange Act, one proxy statement will be delivered to two or more
shareholders who share an address, unless the Company has received contrary instructions from one or more of the
shareholders. The Company will deliver promptly upon written or oral request a separate copy of the proxy statement
to a shareholder at a shared address to which a single copy of the proxy statement was delivered. Requests for
additional copies of the proxy statement, and requests that in the future separate proxy statements be sent to

shareholders who share an address, should be directed to Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc., 6255 Sunset
Boulevard, 6% Floor, Hollywood, California 90028, Attn: Secretary or by calling our secretary, Thomas Rende, at
(212) 779-8300. In addition, shareholders who share a single address but receive multiple copies of the proxy
statement may request that in the future they receive a single copy by contacting the Company at the address and
phone number set forth in the prior sentence.

SUBMISSION OF SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS

If the Merger is completed, we may not hold an annual meeting of shareholders in 2014. If the Merger is not
completed, you will continue to be entitled to attend and participate in our annual meetings of shareholders and we
will hold a 2014 annual meeting of shareholders, in which case we will provide notice of or otherwise publicly
disclose the date on which such 2014 annual meeting will be held. If the 2014 meeting is held, shareholder proposals
will be eligible for inclusion in the proxy statement and form of proxy for our 2014 annual meeting of shareholders in
accordance with Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act and our bylaws, as described below.

In order for any shareholder proposal to be eligible for inclusion in our proxy statement for such meeting, we must
receive them at our principal executive offices a reasonable time before we print proxy materials (because the date of
the 2014 annual meeting will have changed by more than 30 days from the date of the 2013 annual meeting) and they
must be submitted in compliance with the Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act. Each proposal should include the exact

language of the proposal, a brief description of the matter and the reasons for the proposal, the name and address of

the shareholder making the proposal and the disclosure of that shareholder s number of shares of common stock
owned, length of ownership of the shares, representation that the shareholder will continue to own the shares through
the annual shareholder meeting, intention to appear in person or by proxy at the annual shareholder meeting and
material interest, if any, in the matter being proposed.

Any shareholder proposal or nomination for director that a shareholder wishes to propose for consideration at the 2014
annual meeting of shareholders, but does not seek to include in our proxy statement under applicable SEC rules, must
be submitted in accordance with our bylaws. Any such shareholder proposal must be an appropriate subject for
shareholder action under applicable law and must otherwise comply with our bylaws. Pursuant to SEC Rule
14a-4(c)(1), if we receive any shareholder proposal that is intended to be presented at the 2014 annual meeting,
without inclusion in the proxy statement for the meeting, at our principal executive offices after a reasonable time
before we print proxy materials (because the date of the 2014 annual meeting will have changed by more than 30 days
from the date of the 2013 annual meeting), the proxies designated by the Board will have discretionary authority to

vote on such proposal.

Shareholders who wish to recommend to the Nominating and Governance Committee a candidate for election to the
Board of Directors should send their letters to Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc., 6255 Sunset Boulevard,
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Hollywood, California 90028, Attention: Nominating and Governance Committee. The Corporate Secretary will
promptly forward all such letters to the members of the Nominating and Governance Committee. Shareholders must
follow certain procedures to recommend to the Nominating and Governance Committee candidates for election as
directors. In general, to provide sufficient time for the Nominating and Governance Committee to evaluate candidates
recommended by shareholders to be considered for nomination in connection with our Annual Meeting of
Shareholders, the Corporate Secretary must receive the shareholder s recommendation no later than thirty days after

the end of our fiscal year.
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The recommendation must contain the following information about the candidate:

Name and age;
Current business and residence addresses and telephone numbers, as well as residence addresses for the past 20 years;
Principal occupation or employment and employment history (name and address of employer and job title) for the
past 20 years (or such shorter period as the candidate has been in the workforce);
Educational background;
Permission for us to conduct a background investigation, including the right to obtain education, employment and
credit information;
Three character references and contact information;
The number of shares of our common stock beneficially owned by the candidate;

The information that would be required to be disclosed by us about the candidate under the rules of the SEC in a
proxy statement soliciting proxies for the election of such candidate as a director (which currently includes
information required by Items 401, 404 and 405 of Regulation S-K); and

A signed consent of the nominee to serve as a director of our company, if elected.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The Company files annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You
may read and copy these reports, proxy statements and other information at the SEC s Public Reference Section at 100
F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549, at prescribed rates. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further
information on the Public Reference Section of the SEC. The Company s public filings are also available to the public
from document retrieval services and the Internet website maintained by the SEC at www.sec.gov.

The Company will make available a copy of its public reports, without charge, upon written request to the Secretary,
Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc., 6255 Sunset Boulevard, Hollywood, California 90028. Each such request must
set forth a good faith representation that, as of the record date, the person making the request was a beneficial owner
of Common Stock entitled to vote at the Special Meeting. In order to ensure timely delivery of such documents prior
to the Special Meeting, any such request should be made promptly to the Company. A copy of any exhibit may be
obtained upon written request by a shareholder (for a fee limited to the Company s reasonable expenses in furnishing
such exhibit) to the Secretary, Frederick s of Hollywood Group Inc., 6255 Sunset Boulevard, Hollywood, California
90028.

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended July 27, 2013, filed with SEC on October 25, 2013, the
amendment to the Annual Report filed on November 22, 2013, and our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal
quarter ended January 25, 2014 filed with the SEC on March 11, 2014 are attached to this proxy statement as Annexes
F-1, F-2 and G, respectively, and are included in and constitute part of, this proxy statement (except with respect to
any reference in such documents to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995).

Because the Merger is a going private transaction, the Company, the Rollover Shareholders have filed with the SEC a
Transaction Statement on Schedule 13E-3 with respect to the Merger. The Schedule 13E-3, including any
amendments and exhibits filed or incorporated by reference as a part of it, is available for inspection as set forth
above. The Schedule 13E-3 will be amended to report promptly any material change in the information set forth in the
most recent Schedule 13E-3 filed with the SEC. We urge you to read the entire Schedule 13E-3 carefully, including
the exhibits, in connection with your consideration of the Merger.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 212



Edgar Filing: FREDERICK'S OF HOLLYWOOD GROUP INC /NY/ - Form PRER14A

No persons have been authorized to give any information or to make any representations other than those contained in
this proxy statement and, if given or made, such information or representations must not be relied upon as having been
authorized by us or any other person. This proxy statement is dated [ ], 2014. You should not assume that the
information contained in this proxy statement is accurate as of any date other than that date, and the mailing of this
proxy statement to shareholders shall not create any implication to the contrary.
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ANNEX A

AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

BY AND AMONG

FOHG HOLDINGS, LLC

FOHG ACQUISITION CORP.

AND

FREDERICK S OF HOLLYWOOD GROUP INC.

DATED AS OF DECEMBER 18, 2013

A-1
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AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

THIS AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER (this _Agreement ), dated as of December 18, 2013, is entered into by
and among FOHG HOLDINGS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (_Parent ), FOHG ACQUISITION CORP.,
a New York and wholly-owned subsidiary of Parent (_Merger Sub ), and FREDERICK S OF HOLLYWOOD GROUP
INC., a New York corporation (the _Company and, together with Parent and Merger Sub, the Parties ). Certain
capitalized terms used in this Agreement and not otherwise defined are used as defined in Section 8.11.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, as of the date of this Agreement, the Persons listed on Exhibit A (the _Rollover Shareholders ) own, in the
aggregate, 27,678,679 Common Shares (as defined herein), 56,778 Series A Preferred Shares (as defined herein) and
107,576 Series B Preferred Shares (as defined herein) (the _Rollover Shares );

WHEREAS, concurrently with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, (i) the Rollover Shareholders are
entering into a rollover agreement with Parent and Merger Sub, dated as of the date of this Agreement (the _Rollover
Agreement ) substantially in the form of Exhibit B, providing for the contribution immediately prior to the Effective
Time of the Rollover Shares to Parent, in exchange for that class and number of membership interests of Parent set

forth opposite such Rollover Shareholder s name on Exhibit A to the Rollover Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Company (the _Board of Directors ) (other than the Rollover Director, who
abstained and recused himself from all discussions relating to the negotiations (except to the extent his presence was
specifically requested by the Lead Director), and all deliberations with respect to the approval and adoption, of this
Agreement, the Ancillary Agreements and the Merger), based on the recommendation of Milton Walters, the lead
director of the Board of Directors (the _Lead Director ), has determined that a business combination with Parent, on the
terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein, is fair to, and in the best interests of, the Company and the holders
of Common Shares, other than the Rollover Shareholders and any Affiliate or Associate of the Rollover Shareholders
(such holders, the _Public Shareholders );

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (other than the Rollover Director, who abstained and recused himself from all
discussions relating to the negotiations (except to the extent his presence was specifically requested by the Lead
Director), and all deliberations with respect to the approval and adoption, of this Agreement, the Ancillary
Agreements and the Merger), based on the recommendation of the Lead Director, has (a) approved and adopted this
Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements and the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, including the
Merger, and (b) recommended approval and adoption of this Agreement by the shareholders of the Company; and

WHEREAS, concurrently with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Rollover Shareholders and Parent
are entering into a voting agreement with the Company, substantially in the form of Exhibit C (the _Voting
Agreement ), pursuant to which, among other things, the Rollover Shareholders and Parent have agreed to vote the
Rollover Shares in favor of the adoption of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the respective representations, warranties, covenants and
agreements set forth in this Agreement, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I

THE MERGER
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Section 1.01. The Merger. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement, and in
accordance with the NYBCL, at the Effective Time, Merger Sub shall be merged with and into the Company and the
separate corporate existence of Merger Sub shall thereupon cease (the _Merger ). The Company shall be the surviving

corporation in the Merger (sometimes hereinafter referred to as the _Surviving Corporation ), and the separate corporate
existence of the Company, with all its rights, privileges, immunities, powers and franchises, shall continue unaffected
by the Merger.
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Section 1.02. Closing. The closing of the transactions contemplated by Section 1.01 (the _Closing ) shall take place on
a date to be specified by Parent after all of the conditions set forth in Article VI have been satisfied or waived other
than those conditions that by their nature are to be satisfied at the Closing (the _Closing Date ), unless this Agreement
has been theretofore terminated pursuant to its terms or unless another date is agreed to in writing by Parent and the
Company. If Parent fails to specify such closing date after all of the conditions set forth in Article VI have been
satisfied or waived (other than those conditions that by their nature are to be satisfied at the Closing), the Closing Date
shall be no later than three (3) Business Days after such conditions have been satisfied or waived (or the Termination
Date, if earlier), unless this Agreement has been theretofore terminated pursuant to its terms. The Closing shall occur
at the offices of Milbank, Tweed, Hadley & McCloy LLP at One Chase Manhattan Plaza, New York, New York, or as
otherwise agreed in writing by the Parties. At the Closing, the Company and Parent shall file a certificate of merger
executed in accordance with, and in such form as is required by, the NYBCL (the _Merger Certificate ) with the
Department of State of the State of New York in respect of the Merger, and the Merger shall become effective upon
such filing or at such later time as is agreed to by the Company and Parent and specified in the Merger Certificate (the
time at which the Merger becomes effective is herein referred to as the _Effective Time )

Section 1.03. Effects of the Merger. The Merger shall have the effects set forth in this Agreement and the NYBCL
(including Section 906 thereof).

Section 1.04. Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws. The certificate of incorporation and the by-laws of the
Company shall be amended in the Merger to read in their entirety in the form of Exhibit D (in the case of the
certificate of incorporation) and Exhibit E (in the case of the by-laws), and, as so amended, shall be the certificate of
incorporation and by-laws of the Surviving Corporation until thereafter amended in accordance with their respective
terms and the NYBCL.

Section 1.05. Directors. The directors of Merger Sub immediately prior to the Effective Time shall from and after the
Effective Time be the initial directors of the Surviving Corporation, each to hold office, subject to the applicable
provisions of the certificate of incorporation and by-laws of the Surviving Corporation, until their respective
successors shall be duly elected or appointed and qualified in the manner provided in the certificate of incorporation
and by-laws of the Surviving Corporation, or until their earlier death, resignation or removal, or as otherwise provided
by Law.

Section 1.06. Officers. The officers of the Company immediately prior to the Effective Time shall from and after the
Effective Time be the initial officers of the Surviving Corporation, subject to the applicable provisions of the by-laws
of the Surviving Corporation, until their respective successors are duly elected or appointed and qualified in the
manner provided in the certificate of incorporation and by-laws of the Surviving Corporation, or until their earlier
death, resignation or removal, or otherwise as provided by Law.

Section 1.07. Conversion of Shares.

(a) Common Shares. At the Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of the Parties
hereto or any holder of Company Shares, each Common Share issued and outstanding immediately prior to the
Merger (other than Excluded Shares and any Dissenting Shares) shall be converted into the right to receive $0.27 in
cash, without interest (the _Merger Consideration ). At the Effective Time, all Common Shares (other than Excluded
Shares and any Dissenting Shares) shall cease to be outstanding and shall automatically be cancelled and shall cease
to exist, and each holder of (i) a certificate that immediately prior to the Effective Time represented such Common
Share (a _Certificate ) or (ii) uncertificated shares represented by book-entry that immediately prior to the Effective
Time represented such Common Shares (_Book-Entry Shares ) shall cease to have any rights with respect thereto,
except the right to receive the Merger Consideration for each Common Share represented by such Certificate or
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Book-Entry Share, to be paid in consideration therefor, without interest, upon surrender of such Certificate or
Book-Entry Share in accordance with Section 2.02(b).

(b) Excluded Shares. At the Effective Time, all Excluded Shares shall cease to be outstanding and shall automatically
be cancelled and shall cease to exist, and each holder of (i) a Certificate that immediately prior to the Effective Time

represented such shares, or (ii) Book-Entry Shares that
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immediately prior to the Effective Time represented such shares, shall cease to have any rights with respect thereto
and no consideration shall be delivered in exchange therefor.

(c) Shares of Merger Sub. At the Effective Time, each share of common stock of Merger Sub shall be converted into
one share of newly issued common stock of the Surviving Corporation.

Section 1.08. Stock Options. Company Awards and Warrants. The provisions of this Section 1.08 shall be applicable

to each Stock Option, Company Award and Warrant except (i) each Stock Option, Company Award and Warrant held
by the Rollover Shareholders (which are subject to Section 1.09), or (ii) to the extent that Parent and the holder of a
Stock Option, Company Award and/or Warrant, as applicable, otherwise agree in writing prior to the Closing Date.

(a) Stock Options. Prior to the Effective Time, the Company shall take all actions necessary to provide, effective as of
the Effective Time, for the cancellation, on the terms and conditions set forth in this Section 1.08(a) and without any
payment therefor except as otherwise provided in this Section 1.08(a), of all outstanding options to purchase Common
Shares (each, a _Stock Option ) outstanding at the Effective Time (whether or not then vested or exercisable). As of the
Effective Time, each Stock Option shall be cancelled (and to the extent formerly so vested or exercisable shall no
longer be vested or exercisable) and shall entitle each holder thereof, in cancellation and settlement therefor, to receive
a payment, if any, in cash from the Company (less any applicable withholding taxes), as promptly as reasonably
practicable following the Effective Time, equal to (i) the amount, if any, by which the Merger Consideration exceeds
the exercise price per share with respect to such Stock Options, multiplied by (ii) the total number of Common Shares
then issuable upon the exercise of such Stock Options (whether or not then vested or exercisable). Each Stock Option,
when cancelled pursuant to this Section 1.08(a), shall no longer represent the right to acquire Company Shares and
shall represent the right to receive the cash consideration, if any, as set forth in this Section 1.08(a). Notwithstanding
the foregoing, no Stock Option shall be subject to this Section 1.08(a), if, in accordance with its terms, upon
consummation of the Merger, (i) the exercise price per Company Share of such Stock Option will be greater than the
Merger Consideration per Company Share and (ii) the holder of such Stock Option will be entitled to receive, upon
exercise of such Stock Option, only the Merger Consideration multiplied by the number of Company Shares subject to
such Stock Option. For the avoidance of doubt, in the event that a Stock Option is forfeited by its terms prior to the
Effective Time, the holder thereof shall not be entitled to any payment in respect of such Stock Option pursuant to this

Section 1.08(a) or otherwise.

(b) Other Awards. Prior to the Effective Time, the Company shall take all action necessary to provide, effective as of
the Effective Time, for the cancellation, on the terms and conditions set forth in this Section 1.08(b) and without any

payment therefor except as otherwise provided in this Section 1.08(b), of each award, including each share of
restricted Company Shares, restricted stock unit, performance share and stock equivalent (whether or not then vested

or exercisable), but excluding Stock Options outstanding immediately before the Effective Time (the __Company
Awards ). As of the Effective Time, each Company Award shall be cancelled (and to the extent formerly so exercisable
shall no longer be exercisable) and shall entitle each holder thereof, in cancellation and settlement therefor, to receive
a payment in cash from the Company (less any applicable withholding taxes), as promptly as reasonably practicable
following the Effective Time, equal to (i) the amount, if any, by which the Merger Consideration exceeds the exercise
price per share, if any, with respect to such Company Award multiplied by (ii) the total number of Common Shares
then issuable with respect to such Company Award. For the avoidance of doubt, in the event that a Company Award is
forfeited by its terms prior to the Effective Time, the holder thereof shall not be entitled to any payment in respect of

such Company Award pursuant to this Section 1.08(b) or otherwise. Each Company Award, when cancelled pursuant

to this Section 1.08(b), shall no longer represent the right to acquire Company Shares and shall represent the right to
receive the cash consideration, if any, as set forth in this Section 1.08(b).
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(c) Warrants. Prior to the Effective Time, the Company shall take all action necessary to provide, effective as of the
Effective Time, for the cancellation, on the terms and conditions set forth in this Section 1.08(c) and without any
payment therefor except as otherwise provided in this Section 1.08(c), of each Warrant that is issued and outstanding
immediately prior to the Effective Time (whether or not then

A-3

INDEX OF DEFINED TERMS 231



Edgar Filing: FREDERICK'S OF HOLLYWOOD GROUP INC /NY/ - Form PRER14A

TABLE OF CONTENTS

vested or exercisable). As of the Effective Time, each Warrant shall be cancelled (and to the extent formerly so
exercisable shall no longer be exercisable) and shall entitle each holder thereof, in cancellation and settlement
therefor, to receive, as of the Effective Time, as promptly as reasonably practicable after the Effective Time, an
amount in cash equal to (i) the amount, if any, by which the Merger Consideration exceeds the exercise price per share
with respect to such Warrant, multiplied by (ii) the total number of Common Shares then issuable upon the exercise of
such Warrant. Each Warrant, when cancelled pursuant to this Section 1.08(c), shall no longer represent the right to
acquire Company Shares and shall represent the right to receive the cash consideration, if any, as set forth in this
Section 1.08(c). Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Warrant shall be subject to this Section 1.08(c), if, in accordance
with its terms, upon consummation of the Merger, (i) the exercise price per Company Share of such Warrant will be
greater than the Merger Consideration per Company Share and (ii) the holder of such Warrant will be entitled to
receive, upon exercise of such Warrant, only the Merger Consideration multiplied by the number of Company Shares
subject to such Warrant.

(d) Required Action. At or prior to the Effective Time, the Company, the Board of Directors and the compensation
committee of the Board of Directors, as applicable, shall adopt any and all resolutions and take any and all other
actions which are reasonably necessary to effectuate the provisions of Sections 1.08(a), (b) and (¢). The Company
shall use reasonable best efforts to ensure that, from and after the Effective Time, neither Parent nor the Surviving
Corporation will be required to deliver any payments (other than as set forth in this Section 1.08 or Section 1.09
below), any Company Shares or other capital stock of the Company or Parent to any Person pursuant to or in
settlement of Stock Options, Company Awards, or Warrants.

Section 1.09. Stock Options. Company Awards and Warrants Held by Rollover Shareholders.

(a) Stock Options. Prior to the Effective Time, the Company, Parent and Merger Sub shall take all actions necessary
to provide, effective as of the Effective Time, for the cancellation, on the terms and conditions set forth in this Section
1.09(a) and without any payment therefor except as otherwise provided in this Section 1.09(a), of all Stock Options
held by the Rollover Shareholders outstanding immediately prior Effective Time (whether or not then vested or

exercisable) (each such Stock Option, an _Affiliate Stock Option ). As of the Effective Time, each Affiliate Stock
Option shall be cancelled (and to the extent formerly so exercisable shall no longer be exercisable) on the terms and
conditions set forth in the Rollover Agreement.

(b) Other Awards. Prior to the Effective Time, the Company, Parent and Merger Sub shall take all action necessary to
provide, effective as of the Effective Time, for the cancellation, on the terms and conditions set forth in this Section
1.09(b) and without any payment therefor except as otherwise provided in this Section 1.09(b), of any Company
Awards held by the Rollover Shareholders that are outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (whether or
not then vested or exercisable) (each such Company Award, an _Affiliate Company Award ). As of the Effective Time,
each Affiliate Company Award shall be cancelled (and to the extent formerly so exercisable shall no longer be
exercisable) on the terms and conditions set forth in the Rollover Agreement.

(c) Warrants. Prior to the Effective Time, the Company, Parent and Merger Sub shall take all action necessary to
provide, effective as of the Effective Time, for the cancellation, on the terms and conditions set forth in this Section
1.09(c) and without any payment therefor except as otherwise provided in this Section 1.09(c), of each Warrant held
by the Rollover Shareholders, that is issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (whether or not

then vested or exercisable) (each such Warrant, an _Affiliate Warrant ). As of the Effective Time, each Affiliate
Warrant shall be cancelled (and to the extent formerly so exercisable shall no longer be exercisable) on the terms and
conditions set forth in the Rollover Agreement.
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(d) Required Action. At or prior to the Effective Time, the Company, the Board of Directors and the compensation
committee of the Board of Directors, as applicable, and Parent and Merger Sub shall adopt any and all resolutions and
take any and all actions which are necessary to effectuate the provisions of Sections 1.09(a), (b) and (¢). The
Company, Parent and Merger Sub shall use reasonable best efforts to ensure that, from and after the Effective Time,
neither Parent nor the Surviving Corporation will be
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required to deliver any payments (other than as set forth in this Section 1.09 or Section 1.08 above), any Company
Shares or other capital stock of the Company or Parent to any Person pursuant to or in settlement of Affiliate Stock
Options, Affiliate Company Awards, or Affiliate Warrants.

Section 1.10. Shareholders Meeting: Proxy Materials and Other SEC Filings.

(a) The Company, acting through or under direction of the Board of Directors, upon the recommendation of the Lead
Director, shall (i) duly take all lawful action to call, give notice of, convene and hold a meeting of its shareholders on
a date as soon as reasonably practicable after SEC Clearance of the Proxy Statement (each such term as defined
below) by the SEC (the _Company Shareholders Meeting ), for the purpose of obtaining the Company Shareholder
Approval with respect to the approval and adoption of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby,
including the Merger, and (ii) use reasonable best efforts to solicit the approval and adoption of this Agreement and
the transactions contemplated hereby, including the Merger, by the vote required for the Company Shareholder
Approval; provided that, in the event of a Change in the Company Recommendation pursuant to Section 5.07(¢c) or
Section 5.07(d), notwithstanding clause (ii) of this Section 1.10(a), the Company may disclose the fact of such Change
in the Company Recommendation in any solicitation made by the Company to its shareholders. The Board of
Directors and the Lead Director shall recommend approval and adoption of this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby, including the Merger, by the shareholders of the Company as set forth in Section 3.21 (the
Company Board Recommendation ), and shall not withdraw, modify or qualify (or propose to withdraw, modify or
qualify) in any manner adverse to Parent or any of its Affiliates, such Company Board Recommendation or take any
action or make any statement in connection with the Company Shareholders Meeting inconsistent with such Company
Board Recommendation, including approving or recommending or proposing to approve or recommend a Takeover
Proposal with respect to the Company or failing to recommend the approval and adoption of this Agreement and the
transactions contemplated hereby, including the Merger (collectively, a _Change in the Company Recommendation );
provided, however, that the Board of Directors or the Lead Director may make a Change in the Company
Recommendation pursuant to and in accordance with Section 5.07(c) or Section 5.07(d) hereof. Notwithstanding any
Change in the Company Recommendation, unless this Agreement shall have been terminated in accordance with its
terms, the Company shall submit this Agreement to the holders of Company Shares as promptly as reasonably
practicable for the purpose of obtaining the Company Stockholder Approval at the Company Shareholders Meeting.
The Company shall, upon the reasonable request of Parent, advise Parent in writing at least on a daily basis on each of
the last ten (10) Business Days prior to the date of the Company Shareholders Meeting as to the aggregate tally of
proxies received by the Company with respect to the Company Shareholder Approval. Without the prior written
consent of Parent, the approval of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby (including the Merger)
shall be the only matter which the Company shall propose to be acted on by the shareholders of the Company at the
Company Shareholders Meeting, except as otherwise required by applicable Law.

(b) As promptly as practicable following the date of this Agreement, in cooperation with, and subject to, the approval
of the Lead Director, the Company shall prepare and file with the SEC a proxy statement on Schedule 14A relating to
the approval and adoption of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, including the Merger, by the
Company s shareholders (as amended or supplemented, the Proxy Statement ), and the Company and Parent shall
prepare and file with the SEC a Schedule 13E-3 (as amended or supplemented, the _Schedule 13E-3 ). As promptly as
practicable following the date of this Agreement, Parent shall request from the Rollover Shareholders any information
about such Persons that is required to be included in the Proxy Statement or the Schedule 13E-3. Each of the
Company and Parent shall use its reasonable best efforts to cause the Proxy Statement and Schedule 13E-3,
respectively, to be filed with the SEC not later than the date that is twenty (20) Business Days after the date of this
Agreement. The Company shall use its reasonable best efforts to ensure that the Proxy Statement, and the Company
and Parent shall use its reasonable best efforts to ensure that the Schedule 13E-3, do not contain any untrue statement
of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the
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with respect to statements made based on information supplied in writing by a Party other than the Company or its
Subsidiaries specifically for inclusion therein. Each of the Company and Parent shall use its reasonable best efforts to
ensure that none of the information it supplies in writing specifically for inclusion in the Proxy Statement or Schedule
13E-3 contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omits to state any material fact required to be stated therein
or necessary in order to make the statements contained therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were
made, not misleading. The Parties shall cooperate with each other in connection with the preparation of the foregoing
documents and the SEC s review of such documents. The Company shall use its reasonable best efforts to have the
Proxy Statement, and the Parent shall use their reasonable best efforts to have the Schedule 13E-3, cleared by the SEC

as promptly as practicable.

(c) The Company shall cause the Proxy Statement to be mailed to the Company s shareholders as promptly as
practicable, but in no event more than five (5) Business Days, after the Proxy Statement is cleared by the SEC or the
expiration of the review period therefor if there is or has been no review by the SEC (_SEC Clearance ). The Company

shall retain a proxy solicitor on terms reasonably acceptable to Parent in connection with the solicitation of the

Company Shareholder Approval.

(d) The Company shall promptly notify Parent in writing of the receipt of any oral or written comments from the SEC
relating to the Proxy Statement or the Schedule 13E-3. Parent shall promptly notify the Company in writing of the
receipt of any oral or written comments by Parent from the SEC relating to the Schedule 13E-3. The Company shall
cooperate with Parent with respect to, and provide Parent with a reasonable opportunity to review and comment on,
drafts of the Proxy Statement (including each amendment or supplement thereto), and the Parties shall cooperate with
respect to, and provide each other with a reasonable opportunity to review and comment on, the draft Schedule 13E-3
(including each amendment or supplement thereto) and all responses to requests for additional information by, and
replies to comments of, the SEC, prior to filing such with or sending such to the SEC, and the Parties shall provide
each other with copies of all such filings made and correspondence with the SEC.

(e) If at any time prior to the Effective Time, any information should be discovered by any Party that should be set
forth in an amendment or supplement to the Proxy Statement or the Schedule 13E-3 so that the Proxy Statement or the
Schedule 13E-3, as the case may be, would not include any misstatement of a material fact or omit to state any
material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not misleading, the Party that discovers such information shall promptly notify in
writing the other Parties and, to the extent required by applicable Law, an appropriate amendment or supplement
describing such information shall be promptly filed by the appropriate Party with the SEC and disseminated by the
Company to the shareholders of the Company.

(f) Parent and Merger Sub shall promptly provide in writing any information reasonably requested by the Company
with respect to Parent, Merger Sub or their respective Affiliates or Associates as may be reasonably deemed relevant
by such Party for use in the Proxy Statement or for the purposes of complying with Schedule 13E-3 filing
requirements and assisting the Company in fulfilling its related obligations under this Section 1.10.

Section 1.11. Further Assurances. After the Effective Time, the officers and directors of the Surviving Corporation
will be authorized to execute and deliver, in the name and on behalf of any Party, any deeds, bills of sale, assignments
or assurances and to take and do, in the name and on behalf of any Party, any other actions and things to vest, perfect
or confirm of record or otherwise in the Surviving Corporation any and all right, title and interest in, to and under any
of the rights, properties or assets acquired or to be acquired by the Surviving Corporation as a result of, or in
connection with, the Merger.

A-6
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ARTICLE II
DISSENTING SHARES; PAYMENT FOR SHARES

Section 2.01. Dissenting Shares. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Common Shares
outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time and which are held by a shareholder (i) who shall have neither
voted for adoption of this Agreement and the Merger nor consented thereto in writing and (ii) who shall be entitled to
and shall have demanded properly in writing appraisal for such shares in accordance with Section 910 of the NYBCL
(_Dissenting Shares ), shall not be converted into the right to receive the Merger Consideration at the Effective Time
unless and until the holder of such Common Shares fails to perfect, withdraws or otherwise loses such holder s right to
appraisal. If a holder of Dissenting Shares shall withdraw (in accordance with Section 910 of the NYBCL) the demand
for such appraisal or shall become ineligible for such appraisal or if a court of competent jurisdiction shall make a
final, non-appealable determination that such holder is not entitled to the relief provided by Section 910 of the
NYBCL with respect to such Dissenting Shares, then, as of the Effective Time or the occurrence of such event,
whichever last occurs, such holder s Dissenting Shares shall cease to be Dissenting Shares and shall be converted or
deemed to have been converted, as the case may be, into the right to receive the Merger Consideration in the manner
provided in Section 1.07. The Company shall give Parent (i) prompt notice of any written demands for appraisal,
withdrawals (or attempted withdrawals) of demands for appraisal and any other instruments served pursuant to
Section 910 of the NYBCL and received by the Company and (ii) the opportunity to direct all negotiations and
proceedings with respect to demands for appraisal. The Company shall not, except with the prior written consent of
Parent, make any payment with respect to any demands for appraisal or offer to settle or settle any such demands.

Section 2.02. Payment Fund.

(a) Payment Fund. Prior to the Effective Time, Parent and the Company shall enter into an agreement (the _Paying
Agent Agreement ) with a bank or trust company selected by Parent and reasonably satisfactory to the Company to act
as paying agent hereunder for the purpose of exchanging Certificates and Book-Entry Shares for the Merger
Consideration (the _Paying Agent ). Contemporaneously with the Effective Time, Parent shall deposit or cause to be
deposited with the Paying Agent, in trust for the benefit of holders of Common Shares (other than Excluded Shares
and any Dissenting Shares), an amount of cash representing the aggregate Merger Consideration payable pursuant to
Section 1.07. Any cash deposited with the Paying Agent shall hereinafter be referred to as the _Payment Fund.

(b) Payment Procedures. As soon as reasonably practicable, but no later than the fifth (5%) day, after the Effective
Time, the Surviving Corporation will instruct the Paying Agent to mail to each holder of record of Common Shares
(other than Excluded Shares and any Dissenting Shares) (i) a form letter of transmittal (which shall specify that
delivery shall be effected, and risk of loss and title to the Certificates or Book-Entry Shares shall pass, only upon
proper delivery of the Certificates to the Paying Agent or, in the case of Book-Entry Shares, upon adherence to the
procedures set forth in the letter of transmittal, and shall be in such form and have such other provisions as the
Surviving Corporation may reasonably specify) and (ii) instructions for use in effecting the surrender of such
Certificates or Book-Entry Shares in exchange for the Merger Consideration pursuant to Section 1.07. Upon surrender
of such a Certificate or Book-Entry Share for cancellation to the Paying Agent or to such other agent or agents as may
be appointed by the Surviving Corporation, together with a letter of transmittal, duly executed, and such other
customary documents as may be required pursuant to such instructions (collectively, the _Transmittal Documents ), the

holder of such Certificate or Book-Entry Share shall be entitled to receive in exchange therefor the Merger
Consideration for each Company Share formerly represented by such Certificate or Book-Entry Share, without any
interest thereon, less any required withholding of taxes, and the Certificate or Book-Entry Share so surrendered shall
thereupon be canceled. In the event of a transfer of ownership of Company Shares that is not registered in the transfer
records of the Company, the Merger Consideration may be issued and paid in accordance with this Article II to the
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stock power must be properly guaranteed and the Person requesting payment of the Merger Consideration must either
pay any Transfer Tax or other Taxes required by reason of the payment to a Person other than the registered holder of
the Certificate so surrendered or establish to the Surviving Corporation that such Tax has been paid or is not
applicable. The Merger Consideration will be delivered by the Paying Agent as promptly as practicable following
surrender of such a Certificate and the related Transmittal Documents. Cash payments may be made by check unless
otherwise required by a depositary institution in connection with Book-Entry Shares. No interest will be payable on
any Merger Consideration. Until surrendered in accordance with this Section 2.02, each Certificate and Book-Entry
Share shall be deemed at any time after the Effective Time to evidence only the right to receive, upon such surrender,
the Merger Consideration for each share of Company Shares (other than Excluded Shares and any Dissenting Shares)
formerly represented by such Certificate or Book-Entry Share. The Payment Fund shall not be used for any purpose
other than as set forth in this Article II. Any interest, dividends or other income earned on the investment of cash held
in the Payment Fund shall be for the account of the Surviving Corporation. The Merger Consideration delivered upon
surrender of the Certificates and the Book-Entry Shares in accordance with the terms hereof shall be deemed to have
been paid in full satisfaction of all rights pertaining to the shares represented by such Certificates or Book-Entry
Shares.

(c) Termination of the Payment Fund. Any portion of the Payment Fund (including the proceeds of any investments
thereof) that remains undistributed to the Public Shareholders on the first (15) anniversary of the Effective Time shall
be delivered by the Paying Agent to the Surviving Corporation. Any Public Shareholders who have not theretofore
complied with this Article II shall thereafter look only to the Surviving Corporation (subject to abandoned property,
escheat or other similar Laws) as a general creditor thereof with respect to the payment of any Merger Consideration
that may be payable upon surrender of any Certificates or Book-Entry Shares held by such holders, as determined
pursuant to this Agreement, without any interest thereon. Any amounts remaining unclaimed by such holders at such
time at which such amounts would otherwise escheat to or become property of any Governmental Entity shall
become, to the extent permitted by applicable Law, the property of the Surviving Corporation or its designee, free and
clear of all claims or interest of any Person previously entitled thereto.

(d) No Liability. None of the Company, the Surviving Corporation, Parent, Merger Sub or the Paying Agent shall be
liable to any Person for any cash delivered to a public official pursuant to any applicable abandoned property, escheat
or similar Law.

(e) Investment of the Payment Fund. The Paying Agent shall invest any cash included in the Payment Fund, in
accordance with the Paying Agent Agreement, as directed by Parent on a daily basis in (i) short-term direct
obligations of the United States of America, (ii) short-term obligations for which the full faith and credit of the United
States of America is pledged to provide for the payment of principal and interest, (iii) short-term commercial paper

rated the highest quality by either Moody s Investors Service, Inc. or Standard and Poor s Ratings Services or (iv)
certificates of deposit, bank repurchase agreements or banker s acceptances of commercial banks with capital
exceeding $1 billion; provided that any gain or loss thereon shall not affect the amounts payable to the shareholders of
the Company pursuant to Article I or this Article II and the Surviving Corporation shall promptly replace or cause to
be replaced any funds deposited with the Paying Agent lost through any investment made pursuant to this Section
2.02(e). Any interest and other income resulting from such investments shall promptly be paid to the Surviving
Corporation.

(f) Withholding Rights. Each of the Surviving Corporation, Parent and the Paying Agent shall be entitled to deduct
and withhold from the consideration otherwise payable to any Person pursuant to this Agreement such amounts as it
reasonably determines that it is required to deduct and withhold with respect to the making of such payment under the
United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the _Code ), and the rules and regulations promulgated

thereunder, or under any provision of state, local or foreign Law. To the extent that amounts are so withheld, such
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(g) Lost. Stolen or Destroyed Certificates. In the event any Certificate shall have been lost, stolen or destroyed, the
holder of such lost, stolen or destroyed Certificate shall execute an affidavit of that fact upon request. The holder of
any such lost, stolen or destroyed Certificate shall also deliver a reasonable indemnity against any claim that may be
made against Parent, the Surviving Corporation or the Paying Agent with respect to such Certificate alleged to have
been lost, stolen or destroyed. The affidavit and any indemnity which may be required hereunder shall be delivered to
the Paying Agent (or, after the first anniversary of the Effective Time, the Surviving Corporation), which shall be
responsible for making payment for such lost, stolen or destroyed Certificates pursuant to the terms hereof.

Section 2.03. Stock Transfer Books. At the Effective Time, the stock transfer books of the Company shall be closed
and thereafter there shall be no further registration of transfers on the stock transfer books of the Surviving
Corporation of Company Shares that were outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time. From and after the
Effective Time, the holders of Certificates or Book-Entry Shares representing Company Shares shall cease to have any
rights with respect to such shares, except as provided in this Agreement or by applicable Law. Any Certificate or
Book-Entry Share presented to the Paying Agent or the Surviving Corporation for any reason at or after the Effective
Time shall be canceled and, in the case of any Certificates or Book-Entry Shares representing Company Shares (other
than Excluded Shares and any Dissenting Shares), exchanged for the Merger Consideration pursuant to the terms of
this Article II.

Section 2.04. Adjustments to Prevent Dilution. In the event that prior to the Effective Time, solely as a result of a
reclassification, combination, stock split (including a reverse stock split), stock dividend or stock distribution which in
any such event is made on a pro rata basis to all holders of Company Shares, there is a change in the number of
Company Shares outstanding or issuable upon the conversion, exchange or exercise of securities or rights convertible
or exchangeable or exercisable for Company Shares, then the Merger Consideration shall be equitably adjusted to
eliminate the effects of such event.

ARTICLE III
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY

Except as (x) disclosed in the SEC Reports filed with or furnished to the SEC on or after June 14, 2011 through the
date that is two (2) Business Days prior to the date of this Agreement (excluding disclosure contained in the risk
factors section or constituting forward-looking statements, in each case, to the extent such disclosure is cautionary,
predictive or speculative in nature) or (y) disclosed to Parent and Merger Sub in a letter (the _Company Disclosure
Letter ) delivered to them by the Company prior to the execution of this Agreement (with specific reference to the
representations and warranties in this Article III to which the information in such letter relates, provided, that any
disclosure set forth in any section of the Company Disclosure Letter shall be deemed set forth for purposes of any
other section to which such disclosure is relevant, to the extent that it is reasonably apparent that such disclosure is
relevant to such other section), the Company hereby represents and warrants to Parent and Merger Sub as follows:

Section 3.01. Corporate Organization. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries is a corporation, partnership or other
legal entity duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the Laws of the jurisdiction of its
incorporation or organization and has the requisite power and authority and all necessary governmental approvals to
own, lease and operate its properties and to carry on its business as it is now being conducted. The Company and each
of its Subsidiaries is duly qualified or licensed and in good standing to do business in each jurisdiction in which the
character of the properties owned, leased or operated by it or the nature of its business makes such qualification or
licensing necessary, except for such variances from the matters set forth in this sentence as would not, individually or
in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. Section 3.01 of the Company Disclosure
Letter sets forth the name of each Person that is not a Subsidiary of the Company but in which the Company holds an
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Section 3.02. Capital Structure of the Company.

(a) As of the date of this Agreement, the authorized capital stock of the Company consists of 200,000,000 common
shares, par value $0.01 per share, of the Company (the _Common Shares ), and 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock. As
of the close of business on December 13, 2013 (the _Capitalization Date ), (i) 39,273,254 Common Shares were issued
and outstanding, (ii) no Common Shares were held in treasury by the Company, (iii) 56,778 shares of Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share, of the Company (the __Series A Preferred Shares ) were issued
and outstanding, (iv) no Series A Preferred Shares were held in treasury by the Company, (v) 107,576 shares of Series
B Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share, of the Company (the _Series B Preferred Shares and, together
with the Common Shares and the Series A Preferred Shares, the _Company Shares ) were issued and outstanding and
(vi) no Series B Preferred Shares were held in treasury by the Company. All issued and outstanding equity securities
of the Company are duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

(b) Section 3.02(b) of the Company Disclosure Letter contains a schedule, as of the Capitalization Date, setting forth
(as applicable) the number of, exercise or reference price, vesting date (or dates) and expiration date (or delivery date)
of each outstanding equity compensation award in respect of Common Shares. With respect to each Stock Option and
Company Award (i) each grant of a Stock Option or Company Award was duly authorized by all necessary corporate
action, including, as applicable, approval by the Board of Directors, or a committee thereof, or a duly authorized
delegate thereof, and any required approval by the shareholders of the Company by the necessary number of votes or
written consents, and the award agreement governing such grant, if any, was duly executed and delivered by each
party thereto following the date on which such Stock Option or Company Award was granted (the _Grant Date ), (ii)
each such grant was made in accordance with the terms of the applicable plan pursuant to which the grant was
effectuated, the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (_Securities Act ), the Exchange Act and all other applicable Laws,
including the rules of the NYSE MKT LLC (the _NYSE MKT ) or the OTCQB Marketplace (as applicable), (iii) the per
share exercise price of each Stock Option and Company Award was not less than the fair market value of a share of
the applicable Common Shares on the applicable Grant Date, (iv) each such grant was properly accounted for in all
material respects in accordance with GAAP in the financial statements (including the related notes) of the Company
and disclosed in the Company Financial Statements in accordance with the Exchange Act and all other applicable
Laws, and (v) no modifications have been made to any such grants after the Grant Date. The Stock Options and
Company Awards may, by their terms, be treated in accordance with Sections 1.08(a) and (b), without the requirement
of any consent or release from the holders thereof.

(c) Section 3.02(c) of the Company Disclosure Letter contains a schedule, as of the Capitalization Date, setting forth
(as applicable) the number of, exercise or reference price, vesting date (or dates) and expiration date (or delivery date)
of each outstanding Warrant in respect of Common Shares, including the name of the holder of such Warrant, the type
of entity of such holder, the number of Common Shares issuable upon the exercise of such Warrant, the exercise price
of such Warrant, the date of grant of such Warrant, the vesting schedule for such Warrant, including the extent vested

to date and whether the vesting of such warrant is subject to acceleration as a result of the transactions contemplated

by this Agreement or any other events. The Warrants may, by their terms, be treated in accordance with Section
1.08(c), without the requirement of any consent or release from the holders thereof.

(d) There are no preemptive or similar rights on the part of any holder of any class of securities of the Company or any
of its Subsidiaries. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has outstanding any bonds, debentures, notes or

other obligations the holders of which have the right to vote (or which are convertible into or exercisable for securities
having the right to vote) with the shareholders of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries on any matter submitted to
shareholders or a separate class of holders of capital stock. As of the date of this Agreement, except for the Series A
Preferred Shares and the Series B Preferred Shares and as set forth on Sections 3.02(b) and 3.02(c) of the Company
Disclosure Letter, there are no options, warrants, calls, rights, convertible or exchangeable securities, phantom stock
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of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or by which any

of them is bound (i) obligating the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to issue, deliver, sell or transfer or repurchase,
redeem or otherwise acquire, or cause to be issued, delivered, sold or transferred or repurchased, redeemed or

otherwise acquired, any shares of the capital stock of, or other equity interests in, the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, any additional shares of capital stock of, or other equity interests in, or any security convertible or
exercisable for or exchangeable into any capital stock of, or other equity interest in, the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, (ii) obligating the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to issue, grant, extend or enter into any such
option, warrant, call, right, security, commitment, contract, arrangement or undertaking or (iii) that give any Person
the right to receive any economic benefit or right similar to or derived from the economic benefits and rights accruing
to holders of capital stock of, or other equity interests in, the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.

(e) Except for the Company s Constituent Documents, this Agreement and the Voting Agreement, there are no voting
trusts, proxies or other agreements or understandings to which the Company is a party or is bound with respect to the
voting, dividends or disposition of capital stock of the Company.

(f) Section 3.02(f) of the Company Disclosure Letter sets forth, as of the date of this Agreement, the name and
jurisdiction of organization of each Subsidiary of the Company and sets forth a complete and accurate list of all
outstanding securities of each Subsidiary and the registered and beneficial owner thereof. Except as set forth in

Section 3.02(f) of the Company Disclosure Letter, all of the outstanding shares of capital stock of, or other equity or
voting interests in, each Subsidiary of the Company (except for directors qualifying shares or the like) are owned
directly or indirectly, beneficially and of record, by the Company free and clear of all Liens, pledges, security interests
and transfer restrictions, except for such transfer restrictions of general applicability as may be provided under the
Securities Act, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, or other applicable securities Laws (including
any restriction on the right to vote, sell or otherwise dispose of such shares of capital stock or other equity or voting
interests). Each outstanding share of capital stock of each Subsidiary of the Company that is held, directly or
indirectly, by the Company is duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid, nonassessable and free of preemptive rights,
and there are no subscriptions, options, warrants, rights, calls, contracts or other commitments, understandings,
restrictions or arrangements relating to the issuance, acquisition, redemption, repurchase or sale of any shares of
capital stock or other equity or voting interests of any Subsidiary of the Company, including any right of conversion
or exchange under any outstanding security, instrument or agreement, any agreements granting any preemptive rights,
subscription rights, anti-dilutive rights, rights of first refusal or similar rights with respect to any securities of any
Subsidiary. None of the Subsidiaries has any outstanding equity compensation plans or policies relating to the capital
stock of, or other equity or voting interests in, any Subsidiary of the Company. Neither the Company nor any of its
Subsidiaries has any obligation to make any payments based on the price or value of any securities of any Subsidiary
of the Company or dividends paid thereon or revenues, earnings or financial performance or any similar attribute of
any Subsidiary of the Company.

Section 3.03. Authority Relative to this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements.

(a) The Company has all necessary corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and the
Ancillary Agreements to which the Company is a party, to perform its obligations hereunder and thereunder and,
subject to receipt of the Company Shareholder Approval and the filing of the Certificate of Merger in accordance with
the NYBCL, to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. The execution and delivery by the
Company of this Agreement and each of the Ancillary Agreements to which the Company is a party and the
consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby have been duly authorized by all
necessary corporate action and no other corporate proceedings on the part of the Company are necessary to authorize
the execution, delivery and performance by the Company of this Agreement and each of the Ancillary Agreements to
which the Company is a party or the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby and
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due authorization, execution and delivery by each other Party thereto, constitutes a valid and binding obligation of the
Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency,
fraudulent transfer, moratorium, reorganization or similar Laws affecting the rights of creditors generally and the
availability of equitable remedies, regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or

at law (together, the _Bankruptcy and Equity Exception ).

(b) The Lead Director, at a meeting duly called and held, has approved and adopted this Agreement and the Ancillary
Agreements and the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, including the Merger, and has determined that
such transactions are fair to, and in the best interests of, the Public Shareholders. The Board of Directors, based on the
recommendation of the Lead Director, has by vote of all of its members (other than the Rollover Director, who
abstained and recused himself from all discussions relating to the negotiations (except to the extent his presence was
specifically requested by the Lead Director), and all deliberations with respect to the approval and adoption, of this
Agreement, the Ancillary Agreements and the Merger) (i) determined that this Agreement and the Ancillary
Agreements and the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, including the Merger, are fair to, and in the best
interests of, the Public Shareholders, (ii) approved and adopted this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements and the
transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, including the Merger, (iii) subject to the provisions of Section 5.07(c)
and Section 5.07(d), resolved to recommend approval and adoption of this Agreement by the shareholders of the
Company as set forth in Section 3.21 and directed that this Agreement and the Merger be submitted to the
shareholders of the Company for their approval and adoption and (iv) duly and validly approved and taken all
corporate action required to be taken, under the Company s Constituent Documents and pursuant to applicable Law,
including the NYBCL, by the Board of Directors to authorize the consummation of the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements, including the Merger.

Section 3.04. No Conflict: Required Filings and Consents.

(a) Except for any consent required under the terms of the Series A Preferred Shares and the Series B Preferred Shares
and as set forth in Section 3.04(a) of the Company Disclosure Letter, the execution, delivery and performance by the
Company of this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements to which the Company is a party and the consummation of
the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby and compliance by the Company with any of the terms or provisions
hereof or thereof, will not (i) conflict with or violate the Constituent Documents of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, (ii) assuming the Governmental Approvals referred to in clauses (i), (iii) and (iv) of Section 3.04(b) are
obtained and the filing in clause (ii) of Section 3.04(b) is made, conflict with or violate any Law, judgment, writ or
injunction of any Governmental Entity applicable to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or by which any property
or asset of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is bound or affected, (iii) result in any breach of or constitute a
default (or an event which with notice or lapse of time or both would become a default) or require a Consent under,
result in the loss of a benefit under or give to others any right of termination, amendment, acceleration, payment or
cancellation of or under any contract, agreement, lease, license, permit, franchise or other instrument or obligation to
which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or by which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or any of
their properties or assets is bound or affected or (iv) result in the creation of any Lien on any properties or assets of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries, except in the case of clauses (ii), (iii) or (iv), for any such conflicts, violations,
breaches, defaults or other occurrences which would not, individually or in the aggregate, have or reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(b) The execution, delivery and performance by the Company of this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements to
which the Company is a party and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby will not
require any Consent of, or filing with or notification to, any governmental or regulatory authority, domestic or foreign

(each a _Governmental Entity ), except for (i) the applicable requirements of the Exchange Act, (ii) the filing of
appropriate merger and other documents as required by the NYBCL in connection with the Merger and the other
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Company Disclosure Letter (the matters referred to in clauses (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) of this sentence, collectively, the
Governmental Approvals ), or (v) any other Consents, filings or notifications the failure of which to be obtained or
made would not, individually or in the aggregate, have or reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

Section 3.05. SEC Filings and Company Financial Statements.

(a) Since June 14, 2011, the Company has timely filed or furnished all Company Financial Statements, each as finally
amended prior to the date of this Agreement, and has complied in all material respects, and all documents required to
be filed by the Company with the SEC after the date of this Agreement and prior to the Effective Time will comply in
all material respects, with the applicable requirements of the Exchange Act, the Securities Act, the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act, the Dodd-Frank Act, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, each as in effect on the date so filed.

(b) Since June 14, 2011, none of the Company Financial Statements contained, when filed, any untrue statement of a
material fact or omitted to state a material fact required to be stated or incorporated by reference therein or necessary
in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.
None of the Company s Subsidiaries is subject to the reporting requirements of Sections 13(a) or 15(d) under the

Exchange Act or otherwise required to file or furnish any forms, reports or other documents with the SEC.

(c) Apart from comment letters available on EDGAR, the Company has made available to Parent true, correct and
complete copies of all written comment letters from the staff of the SEC received since June 14, 2011 relating to the
Company Financial Statements and all written responses of the Company thereto, and the SEC has not asserted that

any of such responses are inadequate, insufficient or otherwise non-responsive. There are no outstanding or
unresolved comments in comment letters from the SEC or its staff with respect to any of the Company Financial
Statements. To the Knowledge of the Company, none of the Company Financial Statements is the subject of ongoing
SEC review or outstanding SEC investigation. To the Knowledge of the Company, there are no SEC inquiries or
investigations, other governmental inquiries or investigations or internal investigations pending or threatened, in each
case regarding any accounting practices of the Company.

(d) Except as set forth in Section 3.05(d) of the Company Disclosure Letter, from June 14, 2011 to February 21, 2013
the Company was in all material respects in full compliance with, and did not receive any notice of noncompliance
with respect to, the applicable listing and corporate governance rules and regulations of the NYSE MKT.

(e) Each of the Company Financial Statements (i) has been prepared from, and is in accordance with, the books and
records of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries, (ii) complies in all material respects with the applicable
accounting requirements and with the published rules and regulations of the SEC with respect to such requirements,
(iii) has been prepared in accordance with GAAP applied on a consistent basis during the periods involved (except as
may be indicated in the Company Financial Statements or in the notes to the Company Financial Statements and
subject, in the case of unaudited interim financial statements, to normal year-end audit adjustments and the absence of
footnote disclosure as permitted by GAAP), and (iv) fairly presents, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position and the consolidated results of operations and cash flows (and changes in financial position, if any) of the
Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of the date and for the periods referred to in the Company Financial
Statements.

(f) Neither the Company nor any of the Company s Subsidiaries is a party to, or has any commitment to become a
party to, any joint venture, off-balance sheet partnership or any similar Contract or arrangement (including any
Contract relating to any transaction or relationship between or among the Company and any of its Subsidiaries, on the
one hand, and any unconsolidated Affiliate, including any structured finance, special purpose or limited purpose entity

or person, on the other hand or any off-balance sheet arrangements (as defined in Item 303(a) of Regulation S-K
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material transaction involving, or material liabilities of, the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in the Company s or
such Subsidiary s audited financial statements or other Company Financial Statements.

(g) The Company and each of its Subsidiaries has established and maintains a system of internal controls over
financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) that is sufficient to provide
reasonable assurance (i) regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with GAAP, (ii) that receipts and expenditures of the Company and its Subsidiaries
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and the Board of Directors, and (iii) regarding
prevention or timely detection of the unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company s or any of its
Subsidiaries assets that could have a material effect on the Company s financial statements.

(h) The Company s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange
Act) are designed to ensure that all information (both financial and non-financial) required to be disclosed by the
Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC, and that all such information is
accumulated and communicated to the Company s management as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure and to make the certifications of the principal executive officer and principal financial officer of
the Company required under the Exchange Act with respect to such reports. The Company has disclosed, based on its
most recent evaluation of such disclosure controls and procedures prior to the date of this Agreement, to the
Company s auditors and the audit committee of the Board of Directors that (i) there are no significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting that could adversely affect
in any material respect the Company s ability to record, process, summarize or report financial information, and (ii)
there has been no fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the Company s internal controls over financial reporting. For purposes of this Agreement, the terms significant
deficiency and material weakness shall have the meaning assigned to them in Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board Auditing Standard 2, as in effect on the date of this Agreement.

(1) As of the date of this Agreement, neither the Company nor, to the Knowledge of the Company, any of its executive
officers has received written notice from any Governmental Entity challenging or questioning the accuracy,
completeness, form or manner of filing of the certifications made by its executive officers under Section 302 or 906 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. To the Company s Knowledge, there are no existing facts or circumstances that would

prevent its principal executive officer and principal financial officer from giving the certifications and attestations

required pursuant to the rules and regulations adopted pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, without
qualification, when next due.

(j) Each of the principal executive officer and the principal financial officer of the Company has made all
certifications required by Rule 13a-14 or 15d-14 under the Exchange Act and Sections 302 and 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act with respect to the Company Financial Statements, and the statements contained in such
certifications were true and accurate in all material respects as of the date they were made. The Company is in
compliance with all applicable provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

(k) Since June 14, 2011, no material complaints from any source regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or
auditing matters, and no material concerns from employees of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries regarding
questionable accounting or auditing matters, have been received by the Company s officers or directors. The Company
has made available to Parent a summary of all material complaints or concerns relating to other matters made since
June 14, 2011 through the Company s whistleblower hot-line or equivalent system for receipt of employee concerns
regarding possible violations of Law. No attorney representing the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, whether or not
employed by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, has reported evidence of a violation of securities Laws, breach
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designated for the purpose) of the Board of Directors or the Board of Directors pursuant to the rules adopted pursuant
to Section 307 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act or any Company policy contemplating such reporting.

() All accounts receivable (including trade receivables and other receivables) have been recorded on the Company
Financial Statements in accordance with GAAP and derive from bona fide sales transactions entered into in the
ordinary course of business consistent with past practice and are payable on the terms and conditions set forth in the
applicable written agreement (net of allowances for doubtful accounts as reflected in the Financial Statements in
accordance with GAAP).

(m) All inventory reflected in the Company Financial Statements consists of quantity and quality usable and salable in
the ordinary course of business consistent with past practices and is not obsolete, defective, damaged or slow moving,
and is merchantable and fit for its intended use and is being actively marketed in normal commercial channels, subject
only to the allowance for inventory obsolescence as reflected in the Company Financial Statements. All inventory has
been properly valued at the lower of cost or market, including the capitalization of labor and overhead costs, in
accordance with GAAP, consistently applied. The Company has maintained established controls over the inventory
and maintains accurate perpetual records updated periodically for physical inventory accounts.

Section 3.06. Absence of Certain Changes or Events. Since July 27, 2013 through the date of this Agreement, the
Company and its Subsidiaries have conducted their business in all material respects only in the ordinary course
consistent with past practice, and there has not been (i) any event, change or occurrence that, individually or in the
aggregate has had, or would reasonably be expected to have, a Material Adverse Effect or (ii) any action taken by the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries that, if such action was taken during the period from the date of this Agreement
through the Effective Time, would constitute a breach of Sections 5.01(a) through (t).

Section 3.07. Proxy Statement and Schedule 13E-3. None of the information contained or incorporated by reference
in the Proxy Statement will at the time of the mailing of the Proxy Statement to the shareholders of the Company, at
the time of Company Shareholders Meeting, or at the time of any amendments thereof or supplements thereto, and
none of the information supplied or to be supplied by the Company for inclusion or incorporation by reference in the
Schedule 13E-3 to be filed with the SEC concurrently with each filing of the Proxy Statement will, at the time of such
filing with the SEC, at the time of filing with the SEC any amendments thereof or supplements thereto, contain any
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order
to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, except that
no representation is made by the Company with respect to statements made in the Proxy Statement based on
information supplied in writing by Parent or Merger Sub specifically for inclusion therein. The Proxy Statement will
comply in all material respects with the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder and all other
applicable Laws.

Section 3.08. Litigation. Except as set forth in Section 3.08 of the Company Disclosure Letter, there are no
Proceedings, Orders or SEC inquiries or investigations pending or, to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened
against the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, any of their respective assets or properties, or any officer, director or
employee of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in such capacity, which (a) involves an amount in controversy in
excess of $200,000, (b) could reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material Adverse
Effect or (c) could, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Parent Material Adverse Effect.
Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party or subject to or in default under any Order which would
have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material Adverse Effect.

Section 3.09. Compliance with Laws. Orders. Permits and Regulations.
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(a) Each of the Company and its Subsidiaries has at all times been in compliance in all material respects with all
applicable Laws and Orders (including Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act) and, to the Knowledge of the
Company, as of the date of this Agreement, is not under investigation with respect to, and has not been threatened to
be charged with or given written notice of, any material violation of
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any Law or Order, except where the failure to so comply with such Law or Order or the effect of such investigation
would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(b) The Company and each of its Subsidiaries hold all licenses, franchises, permits, certificates, approvals and
authorizations from Governmental Entities necessary for the lawful conduct of their respective businesses

(collectively, _Permits ), except where the failure to hold the same has not had and would not reasonably be expected to

have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material Adverse Effect. The Company and its Subsidiaries are in compliance
with the terms of all Permits and no such Permit is the subject of any suit or pending proceeding seeking the

revocation, suspension, non-renewal or material impairment of such Permit, except for such non-compliance or
potential revocation, suspension, non-renewal or impairment, as has not had and would not reasonably be expected to
have a Material Adverse Effect.

(c) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries nor any director, officer, agent, employee or Affiliate of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries is aware of any action, or any allegation of any action, or has taken any action,
directly or indirectly, that would constitute a violation in any material respect by such Persons of the Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act of 1977, as amended, and the rules and regulations thereunder the (_FCPA ), including making use of the
mails or any means or instrumentality of interstate commerce corruptly in furtherance of an offer, payment, promise to
pay or authorization of the payment of any money, or other property, gift, promise to give, or authorization of the
giving of anything of value to any foreign official (as such term is defined in the FCPA) or any foreign political party
or official thereof or any candidate for foreign political office, in contravention of the FCPA.

Section 3.10. Taxes.

(a) Each of the Company and each of its Subsidiaries has (i) duly and timely filed (taking into account extensions)
with the appropriate Taxing Authorities all material Tax Returns required to be filed by it in respect of any Taxes,
which Tax Returns were true, correct and complete in all material respects, (ii) duly and timely paid all Taxes shown
as due and payable by it on such Tax Returns, (iii) established reserves in accordance with GAAP that are adequate
for the payment of all material Taxes not yet due and payable with respect to the results of operations of the Company
and each of its Subsidiaries through the end of the last period for which the Company and its Subsidiaries ordinarily
record items on their respective books and (iv) complied in all material respects with all Laws applicable to the
information reporting, payment and withholding of Taxes and has timely withheld and paid over to the respective

proper Taxing Authorities all material Taxes required to be so withheld and paid over.

(b) There is no deficiency, claim, audit, suit, proceeding, request for information or investigation now pending,
outstanding or threatened against or with respect to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in respect of any Taxes or
Tax Returns, in each case, the resolution of which would reasonably be expected to result in a material liability or
obligation to the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company and no requests for waivers of time to assess any such
Taxes have been granted and are still in effect, or are pending. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is
liable for Taxes of any Person (other than the Company and its Subsidiaries) as a result of being (i) a transferee or
successor of such Person, (ii) a member of an affiliated, consolidated, combined or unitary group that includes such

Person as a member or (iii) a party to a tax sharing, tax indemnity, tax allocation or similar agreement, whether
express or implied, other than contracts or agreements entered into in the ordinary course of business or pursuant to
the terms of commercial financing arrangements.

(c) There are no material Liens on any of the assets or properties of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries that arose
in connection with any Tax (other than Liens for Taxes (i) not yet due and payable or (ii) being contested in good faith
and for which adequate reserves have been established in accordance with GAAP on the Company Financial

Statements).
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(d) There are no Tax rulings, requests for rulings, closing agreements or other similar agreements or rulings with
respect to material Taxes (including any gain recognition agreements under Section 367 of
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the Code or any application for a change in accounting method under Section 481 of the Code) in effect or filed with
any Taxing Authority relating to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.

(e) Since January 1, 2008, no material claim has been made by a Taxing Authority in a jurisdiction where the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries does not file Tax Returns that the Company or such Subsidiary is or may be
subject to Tax in such jurisdiction.

(f) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has entered into any transaction that is a listed transaction as

defined in Treasury Regulation §1.6011-4(b)(2). The transactions contemplated by this Agreement will not trigger any

income or gain to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries for federal income tax purposes under Section 355(e) of the
Code in respect of a distribution by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries occurring prior to the Closing.

Section 3.11. Suppliers.

(a) The term _Suppliers refers to the suppliers or vendors that were among the top ten suppliers or vendors (measured
by expenditures) of the Company and its Subsidiaries for the fiscal year ended July 27, 2013. Section 3.11(a) of the

Company Disclosure Letter sets forth a true, correct and complete list of all Suppliers. No Supplier is a sole source of

supply of any material goods, materials or services used by the Company or any Subsidiary. As of the date of this
Agreement, none of the Suppliers has canceled or otherwise terminated, or to the Knowledge of the Company,
threatened to cancel or otherwise terminate its relationship with the Company or any Subsidiary, except to the extent
that such cancellation or termination has not had and would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse
Effect.

(b) As of the date of this Agreement, the Company has not received any written notice that the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements, including the Merger, will result in any material loss
of business or reduction in volume with any of the Suppliers. There exists no actual or, to the Knowledge of the
Company, threatened, termination, cancellation or limitation of, or any adverse modification or change in, the
business relationship between the Company or any Subsidiary, on the one hand, and any Supplier, on the other hand,
except to the extent that such termination, cancellation, limitation, modification or change has not had and, if it
occurred, would not reasonably be expected to have, a Material Adverse Effect.

Section 3.12. Real Estate; Assets.

(a) Section 3.12(a)(i) of the Company Disclosure Letter contains a true, correct and complete list of all Owned Real
Property. The Company or one or more of its Subsidiaries has good and marketable fee simple title to all Owned Real
Property, each free and clear of all Liens, except Permitted Liens. Except as set forth in Section 3.12(a)(ii) of the
Company Disclosure Letter, as of the date of this Agreement, neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries (A)
lease all or any part of the Owned Real Property or (B) has received notice of any pending, and to the Knowledge of
the Company there is no threatened, condemnation proceeding with respect to any of the Owned Real Property.

(b) Section 3.12(b)(i) of the Company Disclosure Letter contains a true, correct and complete list of all material real
property leased or subleased (whether as tenant or subtenant) by the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company
(including the improvements thereon, the _Leased Real Property ). The Company has made available to Parent a true,
correct, and complete copy of each Lease for Leased Real Property to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is
a party, including all amendments thereto. The Company or one of its Subsidiaries has valid leasehold estates in all
Leased Real Property, each free and clear of all Liens, except Permitted Liens. The Company or one of its
Subsidiaries has exclusive possession of each Leased Real Property, other than any use and occupancy rights granted
to third-party owners, tenants or licensees pursuant to agreements with respect to such real property entered in the
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ordinary course of business, true, correct and complete copies of which have been provided to Parent.

(c) Section 3.12(c)(i) of the Company Disclosure Letter contains a true, correct and complete list of all material
personal property leased or subleased (whether as lessee or sublessee) by the Company or any Subsidiary of the
Company (the _Leased Personal Property ). The Company has made available to Parent a true, correct, and complete
copy of each Lease for Leased Personal Property to which the
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Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party, including all amendments thereto. The Company or one of its
Subsidiaries has good and valid title in all Leased Personal Property, each free and clear of all Liens, except Permitted
Liens. The Company or one of its Subsidiaries has exclusive possession of the Leased Personal Property, other than
any use and rights granted to third-party owners, lessors or licensees pursuant to agreements with respect to such
property entered in the ordinary course of business, true, correct and complete copies of which have been provided to
Parent.

(d) Each Lease is in full force and effect and is valid and enforceable in accordance with its terms, except that (i) such
enforcement may be subject to applicable bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or other similar Laws,
now or hereafter in effect, affecting creditors rights generally and (ii) the remedy of specific performance and
injunctive and other forms of equitable relief may be subject to equitable defenses and to the discretion of the court
before which any proceeding therefor may be brought. There is no default under any Lease either by the Company or
its Subsidiaries or, to the Knowledge of the Company, by any other party thereto, and no event has occurred that, with
the lapse of time or the giving of notice or both, would constitute a default by the Company or its Subsidiaries
thereunder. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has assigned (collaterally or otherwise) or granted any
other security interest in the Leases or any interest therein.

(e) (i) There are no pending or, to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened, condemnation or eminent domain
proceedings that affect any Leased Real Property, and (ii) the Company has not received any notice of the intention of
any Governmental Entity or other Person to take any Leased Real Property.

(f) Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect,
the Company and each of its Subsidiaries has good title to, or a valid and binding leasehold interest in, all the personal
property owned by it, except for that personal property that is no longer used or useful in the conduct of the Company
Business or the respective businesses of each of its Subsidiaries, and in each case free and clear of all Liens other than
Permitted Liens. The Owned Real Property and Leased Real Property constitute all interests in real property currently

used, occupied or currently held for use in connection with the Company Business as currently conducted.

Section 3.13. Emplovee Benefit Plans and Related Matters: ERISA.

(a) Section 3.13(a) of the Company Disclosure Letter contains a correct and complete list of each material Company
Benefit Plan. The term _Company Benefit Plan means each employee benefit plan within the meaning of Section 3(3)
of ERISA and each other employee compensation and benefit plan, policy, program, arrangement or payroll practice,
including any multiemployer plan within the meaning of Section 3(37) of ERISA, and each other stock purchase,
stock option, restricted stock, severance, retention, employment, consulting, change-of-control, collective bargaining,
bonus, incentive, deferred compensation, employee loan, fringe benefit and other benefit plan, agreement, program,
policy, commitment or other arrangement, whether or not subject to ERISA (including any related funding mechanism
now in effect or required in the future), whether formal or informal, oral or written, in each case sponsored,
maintained, contributed or required to be contributed to by the Company or its Subsidiaries or under which the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries has any current or potential liability.

(b) The Company has provided or made available to Parent with respect to each and every Company Benefit Plan a
true and complete copy of all plan documents, if any, including related trust agreements, funding arrangements, and
insurance contracts and all amendments thereto; and, to the extent applicable, (i) the most recent determination or
opinion letter, if any, received by the Company or Subsidiary from the IRS regarding the tax-qualified status of such
Company Benefit Plan; (ii) the most recent financial statements for such Company Benefit Plan, if any; (iii) the most
recent actuarial valuation report, if any; (iv) the current summary plan description and any summaries of material
modifications; (v) Form 5500 Annual Returns/Reports, including all schedules and attachments, including the certified
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audit opinions, for the most recent plan year; and (vi) the most recent written results of all compliance testing required
pursuant to Sections 125, 401(a)(4), 401(k), 401 (m), 410(b), 415, and 416 of the Code.

(c) No Company Benefit Plan is subject to Title IV or Section 302 of ERISA or Section 412 or 4971 of the Code and
neither the Company nor any ERISA Affiliate has any liability (contingent or otherwise)
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under any plan subject to Title IV of ERISA. No Company Benefit Plan is a multiemployer plan as defined in Section
3(37) of ERISA, and none of the Company, or any ERISA Affiliate has participated in or withdrawn at any time
within the preceding six years from any multiemployer plan, or incurred any withdrawal liability which remains
unsatisfied, and no events have occurred and no circumstances exist that would reasonably be expected to result in any
such liability to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries. No event has occurred and no condition exists that would
subject the Company or any of its Subsidiaries by reason of its affiliation with any ERISA Affiliate to any material (i)
Tax, penalty or fine, (ii) Lien, or (iii) other liability imposed by ERISA, the Code or other applicable Laws.

(d) With respect to each Company Benefit Plan that is intended to qualify under Section 401(a) of the Code, such
plan, and its related trust, has received, has an application pending or remains within the remedial amendment period
for obtaining, a determination letter (or opinion letters in the case of any prototype plans) from the IRS that it is so
qualified (taking into account all applicable matters, including under the Economic Growth and Tax Relief
Reconciliation Act of 2001, the Pension Funding Equity Act of 2005 and the Pension Protection Act of 2006) and that
its trust is exempt from tax under Section 501(a) of the Code, and nothing has occurred with respect to the operation
of any such plan which could cause the loss of such qualification or exemption or the imposition of any material
liability, penalty or tax under ERISA or the Code that could not reasonably be corrected without material liability to
the Company or any Subsidiary thereof. All amendments and actions required to bring the Company Benefit Plans
into conformity in all material respects with all applicable provisions of ERISA, the Code and other applicable Laws
have been made or taken except to the extent that such amendments or actions are not required by law to be made or
taken until a date after the Effective Time.

(e) There are no material pending or, to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened actions, claims or lawsuits against
or relating to the Company Benefit Plans, the assets of any of the trusts under such plans or the plan sponsor or the
plan administrator, or against any fiduciary of the Company Benefit Plans with respect to the operation of such plans
(other than routine benefits claims). No stock or other securities issued by the Company or any Subsidiary is held by
any Company Benefit Plan.

(f) Each Company Benefit Plan has been established and administered in all material respects in accordance with its
terms, and in compliance in all material respects with the applicable provisions of ERISA, the Code and other
applicable Laws. Each nonqualified deferred compensation plan (as defined in Section 409A(d)(1) of the Code) of the
Company is in compliance in all material respects with Section 409A of the Code and the rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder. All contributions (including all employer contributions and employee salary reduction
contributions) required to have been made under any of the Company Benefit Plans to any funds or trusts established
thereunder or in connection therewith have been made by the due date thereof and all contributions for any period
ending on or before the Closing Date which are not yet due will have been paid or accrued prior to the Closing Date.

(g) Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary thereof provides retiree health or life insurance benefits except as may be
required by Section 4980B of the Code and Section 601 of ERISA, any other applicable Law or at the expense of the
participant or the participant s beneficiary. There has been no material violation of the continuation coverage
requirement of group health plans as set forth in Section 4980B of the Code and Part 6 of Subtitle B of Title I of
ERISA or, similar requirements under other applicable Law, with respect to any Company Benefit Plan to which such
continuation coverage requirements apply.

(h) Except as set forth in Section 3.13(h) of the Company Disclosure Letter, neither the execution and delivery of this
Agreement nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby will (either alone or in combination with
another event) in any material manner (i) result in any payment becoming due, or increase the amount of any
compensation or benefits due, to any current or former employee, consultant or director of the Company and its
Subsidiaries or with respect to any Company Benefit Plan; (ii) increase any benefits otherwise payable under any
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trust or otherwise) of any
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such compensation or benefits; or (iv) result in a non-exempt prohibited transaction within the meaning of Section 406
of ERISA or section 4975 of the Code.

(i) Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated

hereby will (either alone or in combination with another event) result in the payment of any amount that would,

individually or in combination with any other such payment, not be deductible as a result of Section 280G of the
Code.

(j) All Company Benefit Plans subject to the laws of any jurisdiction outside of the United States (i) have, in all
material respects, been maintained in accordance with all applicable requirements, (ii) if they are intended to qualify
for special tax treatment, meet all material requirements for such treatment, and (iii) if they are intended to be funded

and/or book-reserved, are fully funded and/or book reserved, as appropriate, based upon reasonable actuarial
assumptions.

(k) The Company Stock Purchase Plan was terminated effective as of December 31, 2007, and the Company has made
no contributions to the Company Stock Purchase Plan since June 30, 1996. Any and all Common Shares issuable
under the Company Stock Purchase Plan have been distributed to each employee in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Company Stock Purchase Plan and the Company has liquidated the Company Stock Purchase Plan in
accordance with all applicable Laws and the terms and conditions of the Company Stock Purchase Plan.

Section 3.14. Employees. Labor Matters.

(a) Section 3.14(a) of the Company Disclosure Letter contains a list of the name of each full-time employee as of
November 30, 2013 (including active employees and employees on maternity, military, short-term disability,
long-term disability, holiday, jury duty, bereavement or other leave), together with such employee s position or
function, annual base salary or wages and any incentive or bonus arrangement with respect to such employee in effect
on such date.

(b) None of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any collective bargaining agreement or other labor
union contract applicable to current or former employees of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries and, to the
Knowledge of the Company, there are not any activities or proceedings of any labor union to organize any such
employees.

(1) There is no unfair labor practice charge or complaint pending before any applicable governmental entity relating to
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or any employee thereof;

(ii) there is no labor strike, material slowdown or material work stoppage or lockout pending or, to the Knowledge of
the Company, threatened against or affecting the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, and none of the Company or any
of its Subsidiaries has experienced any strike, material slowdown or material work stoppage, lockout or other
collective labor action by or with respect to its employees;

(iii) there is no representation claim or petition pending before any applicable governmental entity, and to the
Knowledge of the Company, no question concerning representation exists relating to the employees of the Company
or any of its Subsidiaries;

(iv) there are no charges with respect to or relating to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries pending before any

applicable governmental entity responsible for the prevention of unlawful employment practices; and

INDEX OF DEFINED TERMS 264



Edgar Filing: FREDERICK'S OF HOLLYWOOD GROUP INC /NY/ - Form PRER14A

(v) none of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries has received written notice from any governmental entity
responsible for the enforcement of labor or employment Laws of an intention to conduct, and to the Knowledge of the
Company, no such governmental agency intends to conduct, an investigation of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries and no such investigation is in progress.

(c) Each of the Company and its Subsidiaries has been in compliance in all material respects with all applicable Laws
relating to employment of labor, including all applicable Laws relating to wages, hours, collective bargaining,
employment discrimination, civil rights, safety and health, workers compensation, pay equity, classification of

employees, and the collection and payment of withholding
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and/or social security Taxes. Each of the Company and its Subsidiaries has met in all material respects all
requirements required by Law or regulation relating to the employment of foreign citizens, including all requirements
of I-9, and to the Knowledge of the Company, none of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries currently employs, or
has ever employed, any Person who was not permitted to work in the jurisdiction in which such Person was employed.
Each of the Company and its Subsidiaries has complied in all material respects with all Laws that could require
overtime to be paid to any current or former employee of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, and no employee
has ever brought or, to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened in writing to bring a claim for unpaid
compensation or employee benefits, including overtime amounts. Each of the Company and its Subsidiaries is, and
has been, in compliance with the Worker Adjustment Retraining Notification Act of 1988, as amended (_WARN Act )
and each similar state or local Law.

Section 3.15. Intellectual Property Rights.

(a) Section 3.15 of the Company Disclosure Letter sets forth a complete and correct list of all registered Intellectual
Property owned, licensed or, to the Knowledge of the Company, otherwise used, by the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, excluding registered Off-the-Shelf Software and registered Internet domain names accessed by the

Company or any of its Subsidiaries in the course of their accessing the Internet (the _Company Intellectual Property ).

The Company or one of its Subsidiaries owns a complete and undivided interest in all material Company Intellectual

Property free and clear of any Liens (other than Permitted Liens). The Company or one of its Subsidiaries has the right
to use the material Company Intellectual Property in all material respects and will continue to have such right after
Closing.

(b) All of the Company Intellectual Property is valid, subsisting, in full force and effect (except with respect to
applications), and has not expired or been cancelled or abandoned.

(c) The Company and its Subsidiaries (i) own, or have valid rights to use, all of the Intellectual Property used or held
for use in, or necessary for the conduct of the Business, and (ii) have, at all times since the dates of their respective
formations, owned or had valid rights to use all of the Intellectual Property used or held for use in the Business.

(d) The Company and its Subsidiaries are in compliance in all material respects with contractual obligations relating to
the protection of such of the Company Intellectual Property as they use pursuant to license or other agreement.

(e) To the Knowledge of the Company, the conduct of the Business does not infringe or otherwise conflict with the
rights of any Person in respect of any Intellectual Property, except for such infringements or conflicts that would not,
individually or in the aggregate, have or reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. To the Knowledge
of the Company, none of the Company Intellectual Property is being infringed or otherwise used or being made
available for use by any Person without a license or permission from the Company except for such infringements or
uses as would not, individually and in the aggregate, have or reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse
Effect. None of the Company Intellectual Property is subject to any outstanding Order by or with any court, tribunal,
arbitrator or other Governmental Entity.

Section 3.16. Contracts.
(a) Except as disclosed in the SEC Reports filed with or furnished to the SEC on or after June 14, 2011 or as set forth

in Section 3.16(a) of the Company Disclosure Letter, as of the date of this Agreement, neither the Company nor any of
its Subsidiaries is a party to or bound by:
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(i) any agreement which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries was required to file as an exhibit under Item
601(b)(10) of Regulation S-K under the Exchange Act or to disclose on a Current Report on Form 8-K that has not
been so filed or disclosed;

(i1) any agreement or arrangement that limits or otherwise restricts in any material respect the Company or any of its
Affiliates or any successor thereto, or that could, after the Effective Time, limit or restrict in any material respect the
Surviving Corporation or any of its Affiliates or any
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successor thereto, from engaging or competing in any line of business or in any geographic area in any manner or
restricting the Company or any of its Subsidiaries from freely setting prices for its products (including most favored
customer pricing provisions);

(iii) any other agreement pursuant to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is required to pay or is scheduled
to receive (assuming full performance pursuant to the terms thereof) $150,000 or more during the 12-month period
following the date of this Agreement;

(iv) with respect to a joint venture, partnership, limited liability company or other similar agreement or arrangement,
any agreement or arrangement relating to the formation, creation, operation, management or control of any partnership
or joint venture that is material to the business of the Company and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole;

(v) any indenture, credit agreement, loan agreement, security agreement, guarantee, note, mortgage, trust deed or other
written agreement for or with respect to the borrowing of money, a line of credit, any currency exchange, commodities
or other hedging arrangement, or a leasing transaction of a type required to be capitalized in accordance with GAAP;

(vi) any written agreement under which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries has advanced or loaned any other
Person amounts in the aggregate exceeding $25,000;

(vii) any agreement or arrangement involving the acquisition from another Person or disposition to another Person,
directly or indirectly (by merger, license or otherwise), of assets or capital stock or other equity interests of another
Person (A) for aggregate consideration under such contract (or series of related contracts) in excess of $100,000 or (B)
that contain representations, warranties, covenants, indemnities or other obligations (including indemnification,

earn-out or other contingent obligations), that are still in effect and, individually, would reasonably be expected to
result in payments by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in excess of $100,000 (in the case of each of clause (A)
and (B), other than acquisitions or dispositions of inventory in the ordinary course of business);

(viii) any contracts (or a series of related contracts) for the purchase of materials, supplies, goods, services, equipment
or other assets providing for either (A) annual payments by the Company and its Subsidiaries of $150,000 or more or
(B) aggregate payments by the Company and its Subsidiaries of $200,000 or more, in each case other than (I) those

that can be terminated by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries on less than thirty-one (31) days notice without
payment by the Company or any Subsidiary of any material penalty and (II) contracts entered into by the Company
and its Subsidiaries in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

(ix) any contracts that are sales, distribution or other similar contracts providing for the sale by the Company or any
Subsidiary of materials, supplies, goods, services, equipment or other assets that provide for either (a) annual
payments to the Company and its Subsidiaries of $150,000 or more or (b) aggregate payments to the Company and its
Subsidiaries of $200,000 or more, in each case other than (I) those that can be terminated by the Company or any of
its Subsidiaries on less than 61 days notice without payment by the Company or any Subsidiary of any material

penalty and (II) contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

(x) any agreement or arrangement that would prohibit or materially delay or have a Material Adverse Effect on the
Merger and the transactions contemplated hereby;

(xi) any contract relating to any currency hedging;

(xii) any agreement or arrangement prohibiting the payment of dividends or distributions in respect of the capital stock
of the Company or any of its wholly owned Subsidiaries, prohibiting the pledging of the capital stock of the Company
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(xiii) any license agreements from which the Company and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, have received or paid
$150,000 or more during the 12-month period ending with the most recent month end preceding the date of this
Agreement, pursuant to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries licenses in Intellectual Property or licenses out
Intellectual Property owned by the Company or its Subsidiaries;

(xiv) any written agreement that provides for the payment, increase or vesting of any benefits or compensation in
connection with the Merger and the transactions contemplated hereby;

(xv) any written agreement (A) that provides compensation, severance or other benefits or rights to any individual
(including to any officer, director, employee or consultant) who currently receives annual compensation from the
Company and/or any of its Subsidiaries of more than $100,000 or (B) pursuant to which the Company is or may
become obligated to make any bonus or similar payment (whether in the form of cash or equity securities but
excluding payments constituting base salary) to any individual (including to any officer, director, employee or
consultant) who currently receives annual compensation from the Company and/or any of its Subsidiaries of more
than $100,000;

(xvi) Any written agreement that contains a put, call, collar, right of first refusal or similar right pursuant to which the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries would be required to purchase or sell, as applicable, any equity interests of any
Person;

(xvii) any material settlement agreement or similar written agreement and any settlement agreement or similar written
agreement with a Governmental Entity, in each case, under which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries has
continuing obligations, liabilities or duties;

(xviii) any written agreement that grants exclusive rights, rights of refusal, rights of first negotiation or similar rights
to any Person or that limits or purports to limit in any material respect the ability of the Company or any of its
Affiliates to own, operate, sell, transfer, pledge or otherwise dispose of any material asset or business;

(xix) any written agreement relating to the sale, issuance, grant, exercise, award, purchase, repurchase or redemption
of any shares of its capital stock or other securities or any options, warrants or other rights to purchase or otherwise
acquire any such shares of capital stock, other securities or options, warrants or other rights therefor, except for those
written agreements in substantially the form of the standard agreements evidencing Stock Options or Company
Awards provided or made available to Parent;

(xx) any written agreement under which the Company has granted any Person any registration rights or under which
any Person has granted the Company any registration rights; or

(xxi) any other written agreement or group of related written agreements with the same party or group of affiliated
parties (other than this Agreement or agreements between the Company and any of its Subsidiaries or between any of
the Subsidiaries of the Company) under which any party to such written agreement or group of related written
agreements is obligated to make payments (whether fixed, contingent or otherwise) in excess of $150,000 per annum
or $250,000 during the life of the written agreement or group of written agreements.

(b) Except for guarantees related to the Indebtedness relating to any written agreement set forth in Section 3.16(a)(v)
above, neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any written agreement of guarantee, support, or
assumption with respect to the obligations, liabilities (whether accrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise) or
indebtedness of any other Person.
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(c) Except as set forth in the Company Financial Statements, neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party
to any written agreement for or relating to the employment by it of any director, employee or officer or other type of
written agreement with any of its directors or officers that is not terminable by it without cost or other liability,
including any written agreement requiring it to make a payment to any director, employee or officer as a result of the
Merger, any transaction or any written agreement that is entered into in connection with this Agreement.
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(d) Except as set forth in the Company Financial Statements, neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is a
party to any written agreement in which its officers, directors, employees or shareholders or any members of their
immediate families is directly or indirectly interested (whether as a party or otherwise), including, without limitation,
any written agreements relating to loans to officers, directors, employees or shareholders or any members of their

immediate families.

(e) All Company Contracts are in written form or summarized in Section 3.16(e) of the Company Disclosure Letter.
The Company has delivered or made available to Parent a true, correct and complete written copy of each Company
Contract, including all amendments thereto. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is in material default
under any Company Contract and no event has occurred with respect to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or, to
the Company s Knowledge, with respect to any other contracting party, that (with or without the lapse of time or the
giving of notice, or both) could reasonably be expected to (i) cause a material default under any Company Contract or
(ii) give any party (A) the right to accelerate the maturity or performance of any material obligation of the Company
or any of its Subsidiaries under any Company Contract, or (B) the right to cancel or terminate any Material Contract.
Each of the Company Contracts is, and after the consummation of the transactions will continue to be, in full force
and effect and is the valid, binding and enforceable obligation of the Company and its Subsidiaries, and, to the
Knowledge of the Company, the other parties thereto, except that (x) such enforcement may be subject to applicable
bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or other similar Laws, now or hereafter in effect, affecting
creditors rights generally and (y) the remedy of specific performance and injunctive and other forms of equitable relief
may be subject to equitable defenses and to the discretion of the court before which any proceeding therefor may be
brought.

Section 3.17. Environmental Laws and Regulations. Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have or
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect:
(a) The Company and each of its Subsidiaries has complied during the past three (3) years, and is now in compliance
with all applicable Environmental Laws and now holds and is in compliance with all Environmental Permits.

(b) As of the date of this Agreement, no written notice of violation, notification of liability, demand, request for
information, citation, summons or order has been received by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries which remains
unresolved, no pending complaint has been filed, no unpaid penalty or fine has been assessed, and no investigation,
action, claim, suit or proceeding is pending or, to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened in writing by any Person
involving the Company or any of its Subsidiaries relating to or arising out of any Environmental Law.

(c) No Releases of Hazardous Substances have occurred at, on, above, under or from any properties currently owned,
leased, operated or used by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries that has resulted in or would reasonably be
expected to result in any cost, liability, investigation or remediation obligation of the Company or any of its

Subsidiaries under any Environmental Law.

(d) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries, nor, to the Knowledge of the Company, any other Person, has
caused or taken any action that would reasonably be expected to result in any liability, investigation or remediation
obligation of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries under any Environmental Law relating to (i) the environmental
conditions at, on, above, under, or about any properties or assets currently owned, leased, operated or used by the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or (ii) the use, management, handling, transport, treatment, generation, storage, or
Release of, or exposure to, Hazardous Substances.

Section 3.18. Insurance Coverage. Section 3.18 of the Company Disclosure Letter sets forth a complete and accurate
list of all insurance policies maintained by the Company or its Subsidiaries or which names the Company or any of its
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Subsidiaries as an insured (or loss payee), including those which pertain to the Company s or any of its Subsidiaries
assets, employees or operations. All such insurance policies are in full force and effect and all premiums currently
payable or previously due thereunder have been paid. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries have received
notice of cancellation of any such insurance policy or is in breach of, or default under, any such insurance policy.
There is no material claim by the Company or any of
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its Subsidiaries pending under any such insurance policy covering the assets, business, equipment, properties,
operations, employees, officers and directors of the Company and its Subsidiaries. Neither the Company nor any of its
Subsidiaries has been refused any insurance with respect to its assets or operations by any insurance carrier to which it
has applied for any such insurance or with which it has carried insurance, during the last five (5) years prior.

Section 3.19. Rights Agreement: Anti-Takeover Provisions.

(a) The Company is not party to a rights agreement, poison pill or similar agreement or plan that would have the effect
of preventing the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements.

(b) Assuming the satisfaction of the conditions set forth in Section 6.01, no fair price, = moratorium, control share
acquisition or other similar anti-takeover statute or regulation (including Section 912 of the NYBCL) or any
anti-takeover provision in the Company s Constituent Documents is, or at the Effective Time will be, applicable to the

Company or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the Ancillary Agreements, including the Merger, and
if and to the extent the Board of Directors has taken, or will take, any action to exempt the Company or the
transactions contemplated hereby from, or otherwise waive, amend, supplement or modify, any of the foregoing, the
Company has provided, or will provide (as the case may be) Parent with a reasonable opportunity to review and
comment on any related resolution, written consent or other document prior to the effectiveness thereof, and has
provided (with respect to any such action taken prior to the date hereof) or will provide (with respect to any such
action to be taken after the date hereof but before the Effective Time) true, correct and complete final copies of same
to Parent promptly following the taking or effectiveness of such action.

Section 3.20. Absence of Undisclosed Liabilities. The Company and its Subsidiaries do not have any liabilities or
obligations, known or unknown, contingent or otherwise, required to be reflected on or reserved against in a balance
sheet in accordance with GAAP except (i) liabilities and obligations in the respective amounts recorded on or reserved
against in the audited balance sheet of the Company and its Subsidiaries for the period ended July 27, 2013 contained
in the Company Financial Statements (the _Company Balance Sheet ), (ii) liabilities and obligations incurred in the

ordinary course of business, consistent with past practice, since the date of the Company Balance Sheet and (iii)
liabilities and obligations that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have or reasonably be expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect.

Section 3.21. Shareholder Approval. The affirmative vote (in person or by proxy) of the holders of issued and
outstanding Common Shares, voting together as a single and separate class, representing at least two-thirds of all the
votes entitled to be cast at the Company Shareholders Meeting by holders of Common Shares with respect to the
adoption of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated herebys, is the only vote of holders of Common Shares
of the Company required to adopt this Agreement under applicable Law and the Company s governing documents (the

Company Shareholder Approval ). On the date of this Agreement, the Company received duly executed, valid and
binding written consents of the holders of the Series A Preferred Shares and the Series B Preferred Shares,
respectively, each voting as a single and separate class, representing at least a majority of all the shares entitled to
approve the adoption of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby. Such votes, together with the
Company Shareholder Approval, satisfy the shareholder approval requirements of the NYBCL and the Company s
Constituent Documents in order for the Company to validly perform its obligations under this Agreement, and there is
no other vote of, or actions required by, the shareholders of the Company required under the NYBCL and the
Company s Constituent Documents in order for the Company to validly perform its obligations under this Agreement.

Section 3.22. Third Party Acquisition Agreements. The Company is not party to, and does not have any liability, duty

or other obligation under, any merger agreement, stock purchase agreement, asset purchase agreement, joint venture
agreement, or other similar agreement or understanding, whether written or oral, with any Third Party.
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certain assumptions, qualifications, limitations and other matters set forth in such opinion, the Merger Consideration
to be received in the Merger pursuant to this Agreement by holders of Common Shares (other than the Rollover
Shareholders, Parent and any of their respective Affiliates or Associates) is fair, from a financial point of view, to such
holders. A true, complete and signed copy thereof will be delivered to Parent solely for informational purposes,
promptly following receipt thereof by the Lead Director. As of the date of this Agreement, such opinion has not been
withdrawn, revoked or modified.

Section 3.24. Brokers. No broker, finder or investment banker (other than Cassel Salpeter) is entitled to any
brokerage, finder s or other fee or commission in connection with this Agreement or the Ancillary Agreements or the
transactions contemplated hereby or thereby based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of the Company. The
Company has heretofore furnished to Parent a complete and correct copy of all agreements between the Company and
Cassel Salpeter pursuant to which such firm would be entitled to any payment relating to any of the transactions
contemplated hereby, and any brokerage, finder s or other fee or commission due to Cassel Salpeter in connection with
this Agreement or the Ancillary Agreements or the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby based upon
arrangements made by or on behalf of the Company shall be solely the responsibility of the Company or, after the
Effective Time, the Surviving Corporation.

Section 3.25. Investment Company. None of the Company or any Subsidiary is, or at the Effective Time will be,
required to be registered as an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

ARTICLE IV
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PARENT AND MERGER SUB
Parent and Merger Sub hereby represent and warrant to the Company as follows:

Section 4.01. Organization. Parent is a limited liability company duly organized, validly existing and in good standing
under the Laws of the State of Delaware. Merger Sub is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good
standing under the Laws of the State of New York.

Section 4.02. Authority Relative to this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements. Each of Parent and Merger Sub

has all limited liability company or corporate power, respectively, and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement
and the Ancillary Agreements to which it is a party, to perform its obligations hereunder and thereunder and to
consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. The execution and delivery by each of Parent and
Merger Sub of this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements and the consummation of the transactions contemplated
hereby and thereby by Parent and Merger Sub, as applicable, have been duly and validly authorized by, in the case of
Parent, its managing member and sole member, and in the case of Merger Sub, its board of directors and sole
shareholder, and no other limited liability or corporate proceedings on the part of Parent or Merger Sub, as applicable
are necessary to authorize the execution, delivery and performance by each of Parent and Merger Sub of this
Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements or the consummation by Parent and Merger Sub of the transactions
contemplated hereby and thereby. Each of Parent and Merger Sub has duly and validly executed and delivered this
Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements and, assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery by the other
parties thereto, such agreements constitute valid and binding obligations of each of Parent and Merger Sub, as
applicable, enforceable against each of them in accordance with their respective terms, subject, in each case, to the
Bankruptcy and Equity Exception.

Section 4.03. No Conflict: Required Filings and Consents.

’
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(a) The execution, delivery and performance by each of Parent and Merger Sub of this Agreement and the Ancillary
Agreements, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby by Parent and Merger Sub,

as applicable, and compliance by each of Parent and Merger Sub, as applicable, with any of the terms or provisions

hereof or thereof, as applicable, will not (i) conflict with or violate the Constituent Documents of Parent or Merger
Sub, (ii) assuming the Governmental Approvals referred to in clauses (i), (iii) and (iv) of Section 3.04(b) are obtained

and the filing in clause (ii) of Section 3.04(b) is made, conflict with or violate any Law, judgment, writ or injunction
of any Governmental Entity applicable to Parent or Merger Sub or by which any of their properties or assets are
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bound or affected, or (iii) result in any breach of or constitute a default (or an event which, with notice, lapse of time
or both, would become a default) under, result in the loss of a benefit under or give to others any right of termination,
amendment, acceleration, payment or cancellation of, or result in the creation of a lien or other encumbrance on any
property or contract, agreement, lease, license, permit, franchise or other instrument or obligation to which Parent or
Merger Sub is a party or by which Parent or Merger Sub or any of their properties or assets is bound or affected,
except in the case of clauses (ii) and (iii), for any such conflicts, violations, breaches, defaults or other occurrences
which would not, or would not reasonably be expected to, individually or in the aggregate, prevent or materially delay
the performance by each of Parent or Merger Sub of any of its obligations under this Agreement or the Ancillary
Agreements or the consummation of any of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby (a _Parent Material
Adverse Effect ).

(b) The execution, delivery and performance by each of Parent and Merger Sub of this Agreement and, in the case of
Parent, the Ancillary Agreements and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby by
Parent and Merger Sub, as applicable, will not require any consent, approval, authorization or permit of, or filing with
or notification to, any Governmental Entity by Parent or Merger Sub, except for (i) the Governmental Approvals and
(ii) any other Consents, filings or notifications the failure of which to be obtained or made would not, individually or
in the aggregate, have or reasonably be expected to have a Parent Material Adverse Effect.

Section 4.04. Proxy Statement and Schedule 13E-3. None of the information supplied or to be supplied in writing by
Parent or Merger Sub specifically for inclusion in the Proxy Statement will at the time of the mailing of the Proxy

Statement to the shareholders of the Company, at the time of the Company Shareholders Meeting, and at the time of
any amendments thereof or supplements thereto, and none of the information supplied or to be supplied in writing by
Parent or Merger Sub specifically for inclusion in the Schedule 13E-3 filed with the SEC concurrently with the filing
of the Proxy Statement, will at the time of such filing with the SEC, and at the time of any amendments thereof or
supplements thereto, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be
stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they
were made, not misleading. The Schedule 13E-3 will comply as to form in all material respects with all applicable
Laws. No Person other than the Rollover Shareholders and the Company (or Affiliates or Associates of any such
Person) is required to file the Schedule 13E-3, and no disclosure regarding any Person other than the Rollover
Shareholders and the Company (or Affiliates or Associates of any such Person) is required to be included in the
Schedule 13E-3.

Section 4.05. Brokers. No broker, finder or investment banker, is entitled to any brokerage, finder s or other fee or
commission in connection with this Agreement or the Ancillary Agreements or the transactions contemplated hereby
or thereby based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of Parent or Merger Sub.

Section 4.06. Litigation. As of the date of this Agreement, there is no suit, action, proceeding, claim, review or
investigation (whether at law or in equity, before or by any Governmental Entity or before any arbitrator) pending or,
to the Knowledge of each of Parent or Merger Sub, threatened against Parent or Merger Sub, as applicable, which
would, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Parent Material Adverse Effect, if adversely
determined. As of the date of this Agreement, there is no order, writ or injunction of any Governmental Entity or
arbitrator outstanding against Parent or Merger Sub, as applicable, which is material to Parent or Merger Sub, as
applicable.

Section 4.07. Financial Capability. Parent has the financial capacity to perform its obligations under this Agreement
and to cause Merger Sub to perform its obligations under this Agreement. Parent has, and will cause Merger Sub to
have, prior to the Effective Time, sufficient funds to pay the aggregate Merger Consideration, to pay all other amounts
payable by Parent or Merger Sub under this Agreement (including pursuant to Section 1.08) and to perform the other
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COVENANTS AND OTHER AGREEMENTS

Section 5.01. Conduct of Business of the Company. From the date of this Agreement until the earlier of (i) the

Effective Time and (ii) the termination of this Agreement pursuant to its terms, unless Parent shall otherwise consent
in writing (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned), and except as set forth in
Section 5.01 of the Company Disclosure Letter or as otherwise required by the Business Plan, the Company shall, and
shall cause each of its Subsidiaries to, conduct its business in the ordinary course of business consistent with past
practice and shall use its reasonable best efforts to preserve intact its business organization, assets and goodwill and
current beneficial relationships with customers, suppliers and others having business dealings with it and to keep
available the services of its current officers and key employees on terms and conditions substantially comparable to
those currently in effect and maintain its current rights and franchises, in each case, consistent with past practice. In
addition to and without limiting the generality of the foregoing, except as expressly set forth in Section 5.01 of the
Company Disclosure Letter or as otherwise expressly provided for in this Agreement or as otherwise required by the
Business Plan, from the date of this Agreement until the earlier of (i) the Effective Time and (ii) the termination of
this Agreement pursuant to its terms, without the prior written consent of Parent (which consent shall not be

unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned), the Company shall not, and shall not permit any of its Subsidiaries to:

(a) adopt or propose any change in its certificate of incorporation or by-laws or other comparable organizational
documents;

(b) (1) declare, set aside, make or pay any dividend or other distribution (whether in cash, stock or property) in respect
of any of its capital stock (other than dividends or distributions declared, set aside, made or paid (A) by any
Subsidiary wholly owned by the Company or another Subsidiary to the Company or such other Subsidiary or (B) by
the Company with respect to the Series A Preferred Shares or Series B Preferred Shares), (ii) split, combine or
reclassify any of its capital stock or issue or propose or authorize the issuance of any other securities (including
options, warrants or any similar security exercisable for, or convertible into, such other security) in respect of, in lieu
of, or in substitution for, shares of its capital stock, or (iii) repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any shares of the
capital stock of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or any other equity interests or any rights, warrants or options
to acquire any such shares or interests;

(c) issue, sell, grant, pledge or otherwise encumber any shares of its capital stock or other securities (including any
options, warrants or any similar security exercisable for or convertible into such capital stock or similar security) other
than (i) pursuant to the exercise of existing options or Warrants or the conversion of, or payment of dividends in kind
with respect to, existing Series A Preferred Shares or Series B Preferred Shares, in each case in accordance with their
present terms, and (ii) pursuant to the existing written contracts or commitments set forth on Section 5.01(c) of the
Company Disclosure Letter;

(d) merge or consolidate with any other Person, or acquire an amount of assets or equity of any other Person
(exclusive of goods purchased in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice).

(e) sell, lease, license, subject to a Lien, other than a Permitted Lien, encumber or otherwise surrender, relinquish or
dispose of any assets, property or rights (including capital stock of a Subsidiary of the Company) except (i) pursuant
to existing written contracts or commitments (the terms of which have been disclosed in writing to Parent prior to the
date of this Agreement), (ii) sales of inventory in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice or (iii)

the extension or termination of Leases in the ordinary course of business.
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(f) (i) make any loans, advances or capital contributions to, or investments in, any Person other than pursuant to any
contract or other legal obligation existing at the date of this Agreement as set forth in Section 5.01(f) of the Company
Disclosure Letter, (ii) create, incur, guarantee or assume any Indebtedness, issuances of debt securities, guarantees,
loans or advances, other than any of the foregoing in existence as of the date of this Agreement and other than
borrowings in the ordinary course of
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business consistent with past practices under credit facilities of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in existence as
of the date of this Agreement, (iii) enter into any swap or hedging transaction or other derivative agreements other
than in the ordinary course of business or (iv) make or commit to make any capital expenditure other than in an
amount not to exceed $50,000 individually or $150,000 in the aggregate;

(g) (1) other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, increase the compensation or benefits
payable or to become payable to the current or former directors, officers, consultants or employees of the Company, or
any of its Subsidiaries, (ii) establish, adopt, enter into or amend any plan, agreement, trust, fund, policy or
arrangement that is, or would be considered, a Company Benefit Plan, except as contemplated by this Agreement or to
the extent required by applicable Law, (iii) increase the benefits payable under any existing severance or termination
pay policies or employment or other agreements, (iv) take any affirmative action to accelerate the vesting of any
compensation, except as contemplated by this Agreement, (v) grant any awards under any bonus, incentive,
performance or other compensation plan or arrangement or Company Benefit Plan (including the grant of stock
options, stock appreciation rights, stock based or stock related awards, performance units or restricted stock, or the
removal of existing restrictions in any Company Benefit Plan or agreements or awards made thereunder), other than
contributions (whether in stock or cash) made to Company Benefit Plans as required by the terms of such plans and
consistent with past practice, (vi) take any action to fund or in any other way secure the payment of compensation or

benefits under any Company Benefit Plan, (vii) make any material determinations not in the ordinary course of
business consistent with past practice under any Company Benefit Plan, (viii) grant or promise any tax offset payment
award under any Company Benefit Plan, (ix) hire or terminate the employment of any employee at the level of vice
president or above, other than for cause , or (x) adopt or implement any shareholder rights plan, poison pill or similar
arrangement or plan that is applicable to the Merger;

(h) other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, settle or compromise any action, suit,
claim, litigation, proceeding, arbitration, investigation, audit or controversy (each, a _Proceeding ) or enter into any
consent, decree, injunction or similar restraint or form of equitable relief in settlement of any material Proceeding
other than such settlements and compromises that relate to Taxes (which are the subject of Section 5.01(i)) or that,

individually or in the aggregate, are not material to the Business or the Company;

(i) make or rescind any express or deemed material election relating to Taxes or consent to any extension of the
limitations period applicable to any material Tax claim or assessment, (ii) settle or compromise any Proceeding
relating to a material Tax claim, enter into a closing or similar agreement with any Taxing Authority relating to any
material Taxes or surrender any right to obtain a material Tax refund, credit, offset or other reduction in Tax liability,
(iii) file any amended material Tax Return (other than to correct an identified error), (iv) request a ruling relating to
material Taxes or (v) change any material method of reporting income or deductions for Tax purposes from those
employed in the preparation of its Tax Returns for the taxable year ending December 31, 2012;

(j) other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, (i) modify, amend or terminate, or
assign, waive, release or relinquish any material rights or claims under, or grant any material consents under any
Company Contract, (ii) enter into any successor agreement to an expiring Company Contract that changes the terms of
the expiring Company Contract in a way that is materially adverse to the Company or any of the Subsidiaries, (iii)
enter into any new contract or agreement that contains a change in control provision in favor of the other party or
parties thereto or that would otherwise require a payment to or give rise to any rights to such other party or parties in
connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, or (iv) modify, amend or enter into any new agreement that
would have been considered a Company Contract if it were entered into at or prior to the date of this Agreement or,
once entered into, assign, waive, release or relinquish any material rights or claims thereunder, or grant any material

consents thereunder;
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(k) enter into or renew or extend any agreements or arrangements that limit or otherwise restrict the Company or any
of its Affiliates or any successor thereto, or that could, after the Effective Time, limit or restrict the Surviving
Corporation or any of its Affiliates or any successor thereto, from engaging or competing in any line of business or in
any geographic area;

(1) change any method of accounting or accounting principles or practices by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries,
except for any such change required by a change in GAAP or a change in applicable Law;

(m) other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, terminate, cancel, amend or modify any
material insurance policies maintained by it covering the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or their respective
properties which is not replaced by a comparable amount of insurance coverage;

(n) approve, adopt or effect a plan of complete or partial liquidation, dissolution, restructuring, recapitalization or
other reorganization of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries;

(o) abandon, dedicate to the public, convey title to or grant licenses under (other than in the ordinary course of
business consistent with past practice) any material Intellectual Property or Trade Secrets of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries;

(p) other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, accelerate or delay the payment of any
material accounts payable or extend or make any agreement to extend, the payment terms of any material accounts
receivable;

(q) revalue in any material respect any of its assets, including writing down the value of inventory or writing down
notes or accounts receivable, other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice or as may be
consistent with GAAP;

(r) permit any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates or any of its or their respective directors, officers, managers, employees,
independent contractors, representatives or agents to promise, authorize or make any payment to, or otherwise
contribute any item of value to, directly or indirectly, any non-U.S. official, in each case, in violation of the FCPA or
other applicable Law;

(s) take any actions or omit to take any actions that would or would be reasonably likely to (i) result in any of the
conditions to the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement set forth in Article VI not being
satisfied or (ii) materially impair the ability of the Parties to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby in
accordance with the terms hereof or materially delay such consummation; or

(t) agree or commit to do any of the foregoing.

Section 5.02. Notification of Certain Matters. The Company shall give prompt written notice to Parent, and Parent
shall give prompt written notice to the Company, of the occurrence, or failure to occur, of any event which occurrence
or failure to occur would be likely to cause (a) any representation or warranty contained in this Agreement to be
untrue or inaccurate in any material respect or (b) any material failure of the Company, on the one hand, or Merger
Sub or Parent, on the other hand, as the case may be, to comply with or satisfy any covenant, condition or agreement
to be complied with or satisfied by it under this Agreement; provided, however, that no such notification shall affect
or modify the representations, warranties or agreements of the Parties or the conditions to the performance by the

Parties hereunder.
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Section 5.03. Indemnification; Directors _and Officers Insurance.

(a) Parent and the Company agree that all rights to indemnification, advancement of expenses and exculpation now
existing in favor of each individual who, as of the Effective Time, is a present or former director or officer of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries (each, an _Indemnified Person ) as provided in the Constituent Documents of the
Company or any of such Subsidiaries, in effect as of the date of this Agreement, shall, with respect to matters
occurring prior to the Effective Time, survive the Merger and continue in full force and effect after the Effective
Time. Until the sixth anniversary of the Closing Date, the Constituent Documents of the Surviving Corporation and
the Constituent Documents of its
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Subsidiaries shall, with respect to matters occurring at or prior to the Effective Time, contain provisions no less
favorable with respect to indemnification, advancement of expenses and exculpation of the Indemnified Persons than
are set forth in the Company s Constituent Documents or in the Constituent Documents of the Surviving Corporation s

Subsidiaries in effect as of the date of execution of this Agreement, and such provisions shall not be amended,

repealed or otherwise modified prior to the sixth (6th) anniversary of the Effective Time in any manner that would
adversely affect the rights thereunder, as of the Effective Time, of any Indemnified Person, with respect to matters
occurring at or prior to the Effective Time. Parent and the Company further agree that all rights to indemnification or
advancement of expenses now existing in favor of Indemnified Persons in any indemnification agreement between
such person and the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, as the case may be, or under Law shall survive the Merger
and continue in full force and effect in accordance with the terms of such agreement or Law. In the event that Parent,
the Surviving Corporation or any of their successors or assigns (i) consolidates with or merges into any other Person
and shall not be the continuing or surviving Person of such consolidation or merger or (ii) transfers or conveys a
majority of its properties and assets to one or more Persons in one or more transactions, then, and in each such case,
proper provision shall be made so that the successors, assigns and transferees of Parent or the Surviving Corporation
or their respective successors or assigns, as the case may be, assume the obligations set forth in this Section 5.03.

(b) Prior to the Effective Time, the Company shall purchase a fully-paid, non-cancellable tail policy under the
Company s existing directors and officers insurance policy, in a form reasonably acceptable to Company and Parent (a
correct and complete copy of which will be provided or made available to Parent), which (i) has an effective term of
six years from the Effective Time, (ii) covers the Indemnified Persons for actions and omissions of such Indemnified
Persons (in their capacities as officers and directors) occurring at or prior to the Effective Time and (iii) contains terms
with respect to coverage and amount no less favorable than those of the applicable policy in effect on the date of this
Agreement; provided, however, that in no event shall the Company be permitted to expend for such tail policy in
excess of 300% of the annual premium currently provided by the Company for its existing policy of directors and
officers liability insurance; and provided. further, that if the premium of such insurance coverage exceeds such
amount, the Company shall be permitted to obtain a policy with the greatest coverage available for a cost not to
exceed such amount.

Section 5.04. Access and Information. The Company shall afford to Parent and its Representatives such access during
normal business hours throughout the period prior to the Effective Time to the Company s books, records (including

Tax returns), contracts, financial and other data, properties and facilities (and, if requested by Parent, to conduct, at the
sole cost of Parent, an environmental assessment of such properties and facilities), personnel, auditors, management
reports and to such other information as Parent shall reasonably request. Prior to the Effective Time, the Company

shall provide to Parent and its Representatives, promptly when available, (i) financial statements of the Company and
its Subsidiaries (including balance sheet, income statement and statement of cash flows) for each quarter and month
through the Effective Time, as prepared by management (whether for internal use or otherwise), (ii) a copy of each
report, schedule, registration statement and other document filed by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries after the

date of this Agreement and prior to the Effective Time pursuant to the requirements of federal or state securities Laws,

and (iii) any update of quarterly projections.

Section 5.05. Publicity. Parent and the Company have agreed upon the text of a press release to be issued with respect
to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby. None of the Parties shall issue or cause the publication of
any press release or other public announcement with respect to this Agreement, the Merger or the other transactions
contemplated hereby without the prior written consent of the other Parties, except as may be required by Law
(provided that, in any such event, the Company shall provide Parent a reasonable opportunity to review and comment
on such public announcement).
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Section 5.06. Efforts to Consummate.

(a) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, each of the Parties hereto agrees (and shall cause its
respective Subsidiaries) to use its reasonable best efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all actions and to do, or cause to
be done, all things necessary, proper or advisable to consummate and make effective as promptly as practicable the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements, and to cooperate with each other in
connection with the foregoing, including using its reasonable best efforts to (i) obtain all necessary Consents from
other parties to material agreements, leases and other contracts, including those set forth in Section 3.04 of the
Company Disclosure Letter, (ii) prepare, execute and deliver such instruments and take or cause to be taken such
actions as any other party shall reasonably request, (iii) obtain all necessary Consents from Governmental Entities as
are required to be obtained under any applicable Law, (iv) lift or rescind any injunction or restraining order or other
Order adversely affecting the ability of the Parties to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and (v) effect
any necessary registrations and filings and submissions of information requested or required by Governmental
Entities, including those contemplated by or required in connection with the performance of the obligations contained
in Section 1.10.

(b) The Parties shall use their respective reasonable best efforts to resist, contest or defend any Proceeding challenging
the Merger or the completion of the transactions contemplated hereby. Subject to applicable Law and the instructions
of any Governmental Entity, the Parties shall keep each other reasonably apprised of the status of matters relating to

the completion of the transactions contemplated hereby, including promptly furnishing the other with copies of notices

or other written communications received by such Party or any of their respective subsidiaries, from any
Governmental Entity and/or Third Party with respect to such transactions, and, to the extent practicable under the
circumstances, shall provide the other Party and its counsel with the opportunity to participate in any meeting with any
Governmental Entity in respect of any filing, investigation or other inquiry in connection with the transactions
contemplated hereby.

(c) In connection with and without limiting the generality of clause (v) of Section 5.06(a), each of the Parties hereto
shall make or cause to be made, in consultation and cooperation with the others and as promptly as practicable after
the date of this Agreement (but in any event, within ten (10) Business Days following the date of this Agreement), all
necessary registrations, declarations, notices and filings relating to the Merger with any other Governmental Entities
under any other antitrust, competition, trade regulation or similar Laws.

Section 5.07. No Solicitation.

(a) The Company shall not, nor shall it authorize or permit any of its Subsidiaries or any of its or their respective
Representatives to (and shall use its reasonable best efforts to cause such Persons not to), directly or indirectly (i)
except with respect to the Persons set forth in Section 5.07 of the Company Disclosure Letter, initiate, induce, solicit,
knowingly facilitate or knowingly encourage (including by way of furnishing non-public information) any inquiry or
the making, submission or announcement of any proposal that constitutes or would reasonably be expected to lead to a
Takeover Proposal, (ii) approve, adopt or recommend, or propose to approve, adopt or recommend, any Takeover
Proposal or enter into any letter of intent, memorandum of understanding, merger agreement or other agreement,
arrangement or understanding relating to, or that would reasonably be expected to lead to, any Takeover Proposal, (iii)
enter into any agreement or agreement in principle requiring the Company to abandon, terminate or fail to
consummate the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by this Agreement or breach its obligations hereunder,
or propose or agree to do any of the foregoing, (iv) except with respect to the Persons set forth in Section 5.07 of the
Company Disclosure Letter, fail to enforce, or grant any waiver under, any standstill or similar agreement with any
Person or (v) except with respect to the Persons set forth in Section 5.07 of the Company Disclosure Letter, engage in,
continue or otherwise participate in any discussions or negotiations regarding, furnish to any Person any information
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other action to facilitate any proposal that (A) constitutes, or would reasonably be expected to lead to, any Takeover
Proposal or (B) requires the Company to abandon, terminate or fail to consummate the Merger or any
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other transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Except with respect to the Persons set forth in Section 5.07 of the
Company Disclosure Letter, the Company shall, and shall direct each of its Subsidiaries and each agent or
representative of any of the foregoing to, immediately cease any discussions, negotiations, or communications with
any party with respect to any Takeover Proposal. Notwithstanding the foregoing, prior to the receipt of the Company
Shareholder Approval, the Company or the Lead Director or its Representative may, in response to a bona fide written
Takeover Proposal that did not result from a breach of this Section 5.07(a). and subject to compliance with Section
5.07(c):

(A) contact the party that submitted such Takeover Proposal to clarify the terms and conditions thereof;

(B) furnish information or data with respect to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to the Person making such
Takeover Proposal and its Representatives pursuant to and in accordance with a customary confidentiality agreement,
provided that (i) such confidentiality agreement shall not contain any provisions that would prevent the Company
from complying with its obligation to provide the required disclosure to Parent pursuant to this Section 5.07, and (ii)
all such information provided to such Person has previously been provided to Parent or is provided to Parent prior to
or concurrently with the time it is provided to such Person; and

(C) engage in, continue or otherwise participate in discussions or negotiations regarding, and otherwise cooperate with
or take any other action to facilitate, such Takeover Proposal.

provided, in the case of clause (B) and (C), that the Lead Director determines in good faith, by resolution duly
adopted, after consultation with its outside legal counsel of nationally or regionally recognized reputation (including
Graubard Miller) and with its financial advisor of nationally or regionally recognized reputation (including Cassel
Salpeter), that such Takeover Proposal constitutes or would reasonably be expected to lead to a Superior Proposal.
The Company shall promptly notify Parent (within one (1) Business Day) in writing of any such determination by the
Lead Director that such Takeover Proposal constitutes or would reasonably be expected to lead to a Superior Proposal.
The Company shall promptly inform its Representatives of the obligations undertaken in this Section 5.07. Without
limiting the foregoing, any violation of the restrictions set forth in this Section 5.07 by any Representative of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries, whether or not such Person is purporting to act on behalf of the Company or any
of its Subsidiaries, shall be deemed to be a breach of this Section 5.07 by the Company.

(b) As promptly as practicable after the receipt by the Company of any Takeover Proposal or any inquiry with respect
to, or that would reasonably be expected to lead to, any Takeover Proposal, and in any case within one (1) Business
Day after the receipt thereof, the Company shall provide oral and written notice to Parent of (i) such Takeover
Proposal or inquiry, (ii) the identity of the Person making any such Takeover Proposal or inquiry, and (iii) the material
terms (including the price) and conditions of any such Takeover Proposal or inquiry (including any amendments or
modifications thereto). The Company shall keep Parent reasonably informed on a current basis of the status of any
such Takeover Proposal, including any material changes to the terms and conditions thereof, and promptly (but in any
event within one (1) Business Day after the receipt thereof) provide Parent with copies of all written or e-mail
correspondence or other communications and other written materials, and summaries of all oral correspondence or
other communications, sent or provided to or by the Company and its Representatives in connection with any
Takeover Proposal. The Lead Director shall promptly consider in good faith (in consultation with its outside legal
counsel of nationally or regionally recognized reputation (including Graubard Miller) and with its financial advisor of
nationally or regionally recognized reputation (including Cassel Salpeter)), any proposed alteration of the terms of this
Agreement or the Merger proposed by Parent in response to any Takeover Proposal. The Company shall not take any
action to exempt any Person from the restrictions on business combinations contained in any applicable Laws or to

otherwise cause such restrictions not to apply.
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fail to include the Company Board Recommendation in the Proxy Statement, (ii) take any formal action or make any
recommendation or public statement in connection
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with a tender offer or exchange offer other than a recommendation against such offer or a temporary stop, look and
listen communication by the Board of Directors pursuant to Rule 14d-9(f) of the Exchange Act or (iii) approve any
letter of intent, memorandum of understanding, merger agreement or other agreement, arrangement or understanding
relating to, or that may reasonably be expected to lead to, any Takeover Proposal. At any time prior to the Company
Shareholder Approval having been obtained, but not after, the Board of Directors or the Lead Director may, in
response to a Superior Proposal, effect a Change in the Company Recommendation or approve and enter into any
agreement related to any Superior Proposal, provided that the Lead Director determines in good faith, by resolution
duly adopted after consultation with its outside legal counsel of nationally or regionally recognized reputation
(including Graubard Miller) and with its financial advisor of nationally or regionally recognized reputation (including
Cassel Salpeter), that the failure to do so would constitute a breach of the Lead Director s fiduciary duties to the
shareholders of the Company under applicable Law; provided, further, that the Board of Directors or the Lead
Director may not effect a Change in the Company Recommendation pursuant to this Section 5.07(c) or approve and
enter into any agreement related to any Superior Proposal unless (i) the Lead Director shall have first provided prior
written notice to Parent of its intention to make such Change in the Company Recommendation, at least five (5)
Business Days in advance of taking such action, which notice shall include the reasonable details regarding the cause
for, and nature of, the Change in the Company Recommendation (including, without limitation, the most current
version of the proposed agreement under which such Superior Proposal is proposed to be consummated and the
identity of the third party making such proposal, together with a reasonably detailed description of the reasons for
making such Change in the Company Recommendation), and (ii) Parent does not make, after being provided with
reasonable opportunity to have good faith negotiations with the Lead Director (to the extent Parent and Merger Sub
desire to have such negotiations), within five (5) Business Days of receipt of such notice, an offer that the Lead
Director determines, in good faith after consultation with its legal and financial advisors, results in the applicable
Takeover Proposal no longer being a Superior Proposal. In the event of any material revisions to a Superior Proposal,
the Company shall be required to deliver a new notice to Parent and to comply with the requirements of this Section
5.07(c) with respect to such new written notice.

(d) Nothing contained in this Section 5.07 shall prohibit the Company, the Board of Directors or the Lead Director
from (i) complying with Rule 14d-9 and Rule 14e-2 promulgated under the Exchange Act in respect of any Takeover
Proposal or (ii) making any disclosure to the shareholders of the Company or taking any other action required to
comply with applicable Law (including their fiduciary duties thereunder). Any public disclosure by the Company
relating to a Takeover Proposal (other than a stop, look and listen or similar communication of the type contemplated
by Rule 14d-9(f) under the Exchange Act) shall be deemed to be a Change in the Company Recommendation unless
the Board of Directors expressly publicly reaffirms its approval or recommendation of this Agreement and the Merger
in such disclosure, or in the case of a stop, look and listen or similar communication, in a subsequent disclosure on or
before the earlier of (i) the last day of the ten (10) Business day period under Rule 14d-9(f) under the Exchange Act
and (ii) two (2) Business Days before the Company Shareholders Meeting.

(e) For purposes of this Agreement:

Takeover Proposal means any proposal or offer in respect of (i) a tender or exchange offer, merger, consolidation,
business combination, share exchange, reorganization, recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution, or similar transaction
involving the Company or any Subsidiary that would constitute a significant subsidiary (as defined in Rule 1-02 of
Regulation S-X, but substituting 20% for the references to 10% therein) (any of the foregoing, a _Business
Combination Transaction ) with any Third Party, (ii) the Company s acquisition of any Third Party in a Business
Combination Transaction in which the shareholders of the Third Party immediately prior to consummation of such
Business Combination Transaction will own more than 20% of the Company s outstanding capital stock immediately
following such Business Combination Transaction, including the issuance by the Company of more than 20% of any
class of its equity securities as consideration for assets or securities of a Third Party, (iii) any direct or indirect
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Third Party of 20% or more of any class of capital stock of the Company or of 20% or more of the consolidated assets
of the Company and its Subsidiaries, in a single transaction or a series of related transactions or (iv) any transaction
which is similar in form, substance or purpose to any of the foregoing transactions, in each case other than the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Superior Proposal means any bona fide written proposal or offer made by a Third Party in respect of a Business
Combination Transaction involving, or any purchase or acquisition of, (i) a majority of the voting power of the
Company s capital stock or (ii) a majority of the consolidated assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries, which
Business Combination Transaction or other purchase or acquisition contains terms and conditions that the Lead
Director determines in good faith, by resolution duly adopted after consultation with its outside legal counsel of

nationally or regionally recognized reputation (including Graubard Miller) and with its financial advisor of nationally
or regionally recognized reputation (including Cassel Salpeter)), based on the written advice of such legal counsel and
legal advisor, would result in a transaction that (A) if consummated, would be more favorable to the Public
Shareholders than the Merger and the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, taking into account all of the
terms and conditions of such proposal and of this Agreement (including any proposal by Parent to amend the terms of
this Agreement and including in each case the risks, probabilities and timing of consummation), and (B) is reasonably
capable of being consummated on the terms so proposed, taking into account all financial, regulatory, legal and other
aspects of such proposal.

Section 5.08. Shareholder Litigation. The Company shall give Parent the opportunity to participate in the defense or
settlement of any shareholder litigation against the Company and/or its directors relating to the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, whether commenced prior to or after the execution and delivery of this Agreement.
The Company agrees that it shall not settle or offer to settle any litigation commenced prior to or after the date of this
Agreement against the Company or any of its directors or executive officers by any shareholder of the Company
relating to this Agreement, the Merger, any other transaction contemplated hereby or otherwise, without the prior
written consent of Parent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

Section 5.09. Expenses. Except as expressly set forth in Section 7.03, all Expenses shall be paid by the party incurring
such Expenses (it being understood and agreed that Expenses associated with the printing, filing and mailing of the
Proxy Statement and the Schedule 13E-3 and any amendments or supplements thereto, and the solicitation of
shareholder approvals shall be borne by the Company), provided that, in the event the Closing occurs, any such
Expenses incurred by Parent and its Affiliates shall be paid by the Surviving Corporation.

Section 5.10. Transfer Taxes. Subject to the provisions of Section 2.02(b). all Transfer Taxes, including any Transfer
Taxes attributable to the transfer, if any, of a controlling interest in the Real Property, incurred in connection with the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements, including the Merger, shall be paid by
either Parent or the Surviving Corporation and expressly shall not be a liability of any holder of Company Shares. The
Company shall cooperate with Parent in preparing, executing and filing any Tax Returns with respect to such Transfer
Taxes, including supplying in a timely manner a complete list of all of the Real Property and any information with
respect to such Real Property that is reasonably necessary to complete such Tax Returns. The portion of the Merger
Consideration allocable to the Real Property shall be determined by Parent in its reasonable discretion.

Section 5.11. Ancillary Agreements. At the Closing, the Parties shall duly execute and deliver to each other, or cause
to be duly executed and delivered, those Ancillary Agreements to which the Company is a party between them not

entered into concurrently herewith.

Section 5.12. Section 16 Matters. Prior to the Effective Time, the Company shall take all such steps as may be
required to cause any dispositions of Company Shares (including derivative securities with respect to Company
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Section 5.13. Governance Matters. The Company shall take all reasonable action to cause, effective at the Effective
Time, if requested by Parent, the resignations of such directors of the Company and/or its Subsidiaries as Parent may
request.

Section 5.14. SEC Reports. During the period prior to the Effective Time, the Company shall continue to timely file
or furnish all forms, reports, statements, schedules and other materials with the SEC required to be filed or furnished
pursuant to the Exchange Act or other federal securities Laws.

ARTICLE VI
CONDITIONS

Section 6.01. Conditions to Obligation of Each Party to Effect the Merger. The respective obligations of the Parties to
consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including the Merger, are subject to the satisfaction or
waiver (by mutual written consent of the Parties,) at or prior to the Closing of each of the following conditions:

(a) Shareholder Approval. The Company Shareholder Approval shall have been obtained.

(b) No Order. No court o